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GI BILL PROGRAM

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 1987

House OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING
AND EMPLOYMENT,
CoMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS,
Washington, D.C.
The subcommittee me&,ﬂpursuant to call, at 1 p.m., in room 334,
Cannon House Office Building, Hon. Wayne Dowdy (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.
Present: Re&resentatives Montgomery, Solomon, Dowdy, Smith of
New Jersey, Wylie, Jontz, and Patterson.
Also present: Representatives Schroeder, Bateman, and Pickett.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. WAYNE DOWDY

Mr. Dowpy. We will call the committee to order.

I want to welcome you all to the first hearing of the Subcommit-
tee on Education, Training and Employment in the 100th Congress.
We are meeting today to review H.R. 1085, a bill authored by the
chairman of the full committee, SonrﬁmMontgome , and cospon-

. sored by 174 Members of the House. This bill would make perma-
nent the educational assistance ;rogram for members of the All-
Volunteer Force under chapter 30 of Title 38 and the program of
educational assistance for members of the Selected Reserve under
chapter 106 of Title 10. Together, these programs are generally

- known as the New GI Bill.

During the past-several years, two issues of particular concern
have been widely debated in this country. The first is the impor-
tance and availability of high quality education for our Nation’s
citizens. The second is achieving and maintaining a strong national
defense. With the enactment of the New GI Bill in October 1984,
the Congress took:an important step toward addressing both issues.
the New GI Bill rrovides an excellent opportunity for post-zecond-
ary education and training to thousands of young people who, but
for this program, might not be able to further their education. At
the same time, the New GI Bill provides a cost-effective means to
strengthen our national defense by recruiting high quality young
men and women.

Last week I visited service training bases with Chairraan Mont-
gomer{cand many of the individuals who will be Zestifying before
the subcommittee later todag. I was impressed by the enthusiasm
expressed for the New GI Bill by those in positions of command. I

was even more impressed, however, by the interest in the program
shown by the young recruits. By their questions and comments,
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these young people demonstrated a deep appreciation for the im-
pertance of education in their lives and a definite ability to know a
good deal when they see it. At Fort Knox, the statement was made,
“If you give a recruit a dollar today, it will be gone tomorrow. If
you give a recruit an education, it will be with that recruit the rest
of his life.” The young people weé met understand the truth and
wisdom in that statement and are grateful that in exchange for
honorable service they will be provided the means to pursue fur-
ther education and increase their skills. -

Our newest service members are bright, ambitious and eager to
serve their country. They are also entering the military ts get an
education, and‘they know the New GI Biil is one of the most effec-
tive programs available to them. ’

They know- that if they choose to leave the service after comple-
tion of their enlistment, the New GI Bill will assist them in their
readjustment to civilian life. They also know that if they choose to
stay in the military, they can use their education benefits while
they are on active duty. The men and women we met and talked
with last week are the future leaders of our Nation—military lead-
ers, community leaders and national leaders—and I can assure you
our future is in good hands. -

In response-to the President’s State of the Union Message last
month, the Speaker of the House, Jim Wright, stressed that in the
100th Congress education would be in its rightful place at the pin-
nacle of our national priorities. He pointed out that the best finan-
cial investment this country ever made was the GI bill established
at the end of World War II. We on this committee agree with the
Speaker and know that the New GI-3ill will provide the same divi-
dends as did 5" predecessors—dividends to the service members, to
the Armed Fo1. .3 and to the Nation.

There is broad, bipartisan. support for continuation of the New
GI Bill in both the House and Senate. The Senate Veterans’ Affairs

Committee held hearings on this issue earlier this month, and Sen- .

ator Cranston and Senator Murkowski have long been staunch ad-
vocates of the New GI Bill. The time for testing is cver. The time
has come to make the New GI Bill a permanent program.

Before we proceed to our first witness, I want to give the ranking
minority member of this subcommittee, Chris Smith of New Jersey,
an opportunity to make a statement. Chris, I look forward to work-
ing closely with you during the 100th Congress.
62[']I‘he prepared statement of Congressman Dowdy appears on p.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH

Mr. CurisTroPHER H. SMITH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

First of all, I want to thank you for convening this hearing to
look at and discuss H.R. 1085, to make the New GI Bill program
permanent. The distinguished chairman of our full committee is
the father of the New GI Bill, which is now a test program. I think
it is significant that every member of the House Veterans' Affairs
Committee has cosponsored H.R. 1085. I thank our chairman for
his tenaciocus work on behalf of this vital piece of legislation.
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Mr. Chairman, we know from talking with commanders and new
recruits that the New GI Bill test program has been a tremendous
success. Rarely have I seen a leve! of enthusiasm and consensus for
axinigltlavemment program to match that which exists for the New

Thanks in large part to it, the military services have the highest
quality recruits ever to join up. And everybody comes out a winner:
the recruit, the Department of Defense and our Nation as-a whole.

Improvements have been suggested for the New GI Bill and pos-
sible ways to improve the program are being considered by this
committee. However, I agree with Mr. Montgomery that we Gught
to keep first things first and elevate this program from a test
status to a permanent status. Then we can consider how to make a
great program aven better. It certainly is obvious how I feel about
the New:GI Bill. I have expressed this time and time again in this
coramittee, as well as the floor of the House. I am going to vote to
make it permanent.

Mr. Chairman, we have many witnesses who are going to testify
about the program this afternoon. While there is little doubt about
how our subcommittee markup will go, it is important for us to
demonstrate the strength and depth of the support for the New GI
Bill. DOD and VA officials, representatives of respected military
associations and veterans’ groups will share their valuable experi-
ence and insights with us, 2ud I look forward to learning what they
will have to say on this important subject.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
79[']l‘he prepared statement of Congressman Smith appears on p.

Mr. Dowpy. Thank you very much, Mr. Smith. We are pleased to
have with us also the Ranking Member of the full Veterans' Af-
fairs Committee of the House. It is my pleasure to call on my col-
league, Jerry Solomon from New York. Mr. Solomon.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. GERALD B.H. SOLOMON

Mr. SoLomoN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

I am going to be very brief because we have a long line up here
today. But I really want to thank you and, of course, Sorny Mont-
gomery, who is going to make a statement here in a minute, for
organizing the oversight hearings we had at the four military bases
this past week. It certainly was extremely enlightening to me and I
know all members of the committee.

I can recall back in 1979 having visited Paris Island, S.C., the
stark difference today in the military recruitment bases. The kind
of recruits that we are getting, is just really something to see. I, for
one, believe that the peacetime GI bill has a lot to do with the kind
of recruits we are getting today. Not only is the peacetime GI bill a
good recruitment tool and a. good retention tool as well, but it is
still a readjustment program for *hose young men and women who
serve in our military. They always lag behind their peers who have
gone on to college or work and have moved up the promotion
ladder. They never quite catch up. That is what the peacetime GI
bill is all about.

Q '9
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When they do live up to their obligations as U.S. citizens and
serve their count:iy, they ought to have that opportunity to catch
glp, a#d certainly I think the peacetime GI bill is a big step in that

rection.

I just want to thank all of you and thank all of those who trav-
eled with us from the veterans’ organizations as well as the mili-
tary associations because your input and the input you will give us
today is going to help us make this peacetime GI bill Sonny Mont-
gomery “grandaddied” I think somebody said on the triR,Ito make
it pecmanent liko it should be. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair-
man. Let's'get on with it.

Mr. Downy. Thank you, Mr. Solomon.

We will call on our colleague, Jim Jontz, from Indiana who was
also with us last week on our field hearings. Jim.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. JIM JONTZ

Mr. JonTz. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Let me say how pleased I am to be at this hearing this afternoon
and {o be a cosponsor of this legislation, and how appreciative I
was of the opportunity to ﬂzrticipate in the trip last week and how
helpful that was. We do have a long list of witnesses this after-
noon.

Our distinguished Veterans’ Committee chairman, Mr. Montgom-
ery, was-so bashful during the trip in expressing his true feelings
about this GI bill that I arnu looking forward to hearing his testimo-
ny this afternoon. I think it will be very enlightening.

Thank you very much.

Mr. Dowpy. We are very pleased to have our colleague from
South Carolina, Liz Patterson.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. ELIZABETH J. PATTERSON
Mrs. PATTERSON. Excuse me for being late. Let me just sort of

second what my colleague to my left just said. It is a real

honor for me to be here and to be serving with our distinguished

chairman, Mr. Montgomery, and I hope today that I can learn

more 8o that I can be—as I'am a cosponsor of this legislation—but

be a strong advocate with others who are not sponsors so we can
et this legislation passed and see it on the books in the very near
uture. I look forward to your testimony.

Mr. Dowpy. All right. We want to thank all of you for being
resent. It is a great honor for me to have the opportunity to intro-
uce our lead-off witness. When I was first elected to the House of

Representatives, I was given the opportunity to meet for the first
time then-retired former Senator, President Pro Tem, Jim Eastland
from Mississippi. I was ushered into Mr. Eastland’s office and at
some point in our conversation he said he wanted to give me some
advice. He said he wanted me to remember to do two things as a
young Congressman. He said “You always remember to be quiet
and always vote with your chairman.”

I hope Sonny. Montgomery will vouck for the fact I have followed
Senator Eastland’s advice. Sonny Montgomery is the father and
the chief architect of the New GI Bill, and, Mr. Chairman, we look
forward to your testimony.

Q :j_lO
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STATEMENT OF HON. G.V. (SONNY) MONTGOMERY, A REPRE-
SENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI,
AND CHAIRMAN, FULL COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS

Mr. MoNTGomERY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I notice you start-
ed the meeting right on time.

Mr. Chairman, let me congratulate you on assuming the chair-
manship on the Subcornmittee on Education, Training and Employ-
ment. 1 am delighted you are holding this hearing and that so
many raembers are present. I want to welcome my good friend who
just came in, Pat Schroeder, who is on the Subcommittee on Per-
sonnel of the House Armed Services Committee. We invited the
members of that subcommittee to attend today and expect that
there might be others who will come in later.

I appreciate having the opportunity to talk about the New GI
Bill and legislation to make it permanent. H.R. 1085 makes no
other changes in the existinilgrosram, and 174 of our colleagues
have joined as cosponsors of this bill.

I have f(jusi: seen the S er of the House, and he is very sup-
portive of the New GI Bill. He wants to bring this legislation up as
soon as possible, snd he wants to bripy it up as separate legisla-
tion. If he gets the opportunity today, Mr. Chairman, he will come
over and make his own statement. He wants to move H.R. 1085 as
soon as possible.

The future of the New GI Bill is.one of the most critical issues
we must act on in this session. This legislation was jointly referred
to the Armed Services Committee. I hope to get early action by the
Armed Services Committee and kave the bill to the floor, as I men-
tioned, by the end of March. I am optimistic that we can complete
action on H.R. 1085 in record time.

Mr. Chairman, you and several other members of the Education
Subcommittee, along with representatives of military associations
and veterans’ organizations, were with me last week on our visit to
service training bases where we had the %);i)ortunity to observe
first-hand the enthusiasm for the New GI Bill expressed by bate
commanders, recruiters, trainers and eapecially vhe recruits them-
selves. I know you will agree with me that those in the best posi-
tion to evaluate this program gave it an “A” plus. It is succeeding
as a very important readjustment benefit. As secondary benefit is
-that it has proven to be a recruiting tool for all the services. It is a
program which is going to greatly benefit the Nation as a whole.

On October 19, 1984, the New GI Bill was signed into law. It was
a day that marked the culmination of more than 4 years of hard
work on both sides of Capitol Hill to further ensure the Nation’s
strength and security. Already we can look back on that day as one
%f the most important in the history o»f our country’s Armed

orces.

On January 28, 1981, I first introduced and some of you cospon-
sored, H.R. 1420, a bill to establish the New GI Bill. Prior to that
date, we had worked for over 8 months with the military service
departments to lay the ground work for this legislative gro It
has proven to be time well spent. the New GI Bill is fulfil ing the
purposes set out by Congress. First and foremost, it will assist in
the readjustment of members of the Armed Forces to civilian life

011
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after their separation from military service. It is providing educa-
tion asgistance for tens of thousands of young men and women ¥ ho
otherwise might not be able to go to college or pursue other pust-
secondary training/education. '

A first century philosopher observed only the educated are free.
This statement 18 still true as we move into the 21st Century, and
it is our responsibility to enablz those who rotect our freedom to
also pursue their personal freedom and self<improvement through
education.

In addition to facilitating readjustment, the New GI Bill is de-
signed to attract high quah'g personnel to the Active and Reserve
components of the Armed Forces. Without the New GI Bill, the
services would be forced to compete with an expanding job market
and educational institutions in order to attract high quality young
people and larger percentages from a shrinking pool of ellggble re-
cruits. However, since the implementation of the New GI Bi)’, and
because of it, the Congress and the military have forged a new,
stronger alliance with our community colleges, universities and
training institutions to ensure that those individuals who desive
further education may do 80 and may do so with the knowledge
tha’ they earned it in service to their country.

Several of our witnesses who will testify later this afternoon ac-
companied us when we visited basic training bases last weck. I
know they gained a deeper insight into the importance of the New
GI Bill. It is very important that we get out of Washington and
into the field so that we can talk with thoes who really know what
18 1mportant to recruits and the services. Brigadier General Paul
Funk, of the Armored School at Fort Knox told us he had com-
manded troops in the 1960s, the 1970s and in the 1980s. H said
that young people coming inte the Army today are the best ever.
According to General Funk, the New GI Bill has made the army a
great place to soldier.

The Adjutant General of Kentucky, General Billy Wellman, told
us, “the New G Bill is the most attractive and important benefit
we have to offer. I don’t know of any other program more impor-
tant to the Military, Guard, Reserve and Active Forces, than the
New GI Bill.”

Mr. Chairman, as far as I am concerned, statements like these
and others we heard last week make the case for establishing the
New GI Bill and make a strong case to make it a pe'manent pro-
gmm. This is a bipartisan effort with 174 original cosponsors. The

peaker of the House is totally behind it, and I want to thank 3 u
for giving me this opportunity to be the lead-off witness and ior
having this hearing this afternoon. Thunk you very much.
71[']I‘he prepared stat_ment of Chairman Montgomery appears on p.

Mr. Dowpy. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for your lead-
ership on this issue.

Mr. Smith.

Mr. CuristopHER H. SMmITH. Thank you.

The distinguished chairman, Sonny Montgomery, is fond of
saying this is the only committee in Congress that applauds their
witnesses. I would like to note there is no chairman in the House
more fair, courteous, or helpful to members of the committee than

L & 2

ic 12.




f

this distinguished chairman, Sonny Montgomery. No chairman in
the House is more committed to the subject matter under its juris-
diction.than this distinguished chairman. I say that very sincerely.
I have been on this committee since first being elected in 1980, and
it has been an honor to serve with you, Sonry.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Thank you very much, Chris.

Mr. Dowpy. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. We want to
welcome our colleague from Colorado, Pat Schroeder, who is a
.member of the Personnel Subcommittee on Arimned Services. Pat, do
you have any comments? )

Mrs. ScHROEDER. I want to join in thanking the chairman. We
are working hard to move it out of Armed Services very rapidly
and looking to this committee for leadership, because I think the
main concern has been that it gets out and it gets funded and they
don’t play games with it.

I vhink the gentleman from Mississippi has seen lots of games
played. Everybody wants to be both for it and agai-:st it, or at least
some people have. So I salute his getting it on the fast track and
everybody helping.

Mr. Dowpy. Chalmers Wylie, a member of the committee.

Mir. WyLi. Thank you. ) .

I would like to associate myself with the previous remarks. I
would associate myself with the remarks of Chris Smith. Chairman
Montgomery is the father—I use the word advisedly—of the All
Volunteer GI Bill, and he has certainly made this his number one
p}l;l;:rg , and we on this side are going to give him help in getting
this bill out.

_Mr. Downy. I would also like to welcome our colleague from Vir-
ginia, Herb Bateman, a member of the Armed Services Committez.

Mr. BaTEMAN. Delighted to be here. You can see how bipartisan
we are.

. Mr. Dowpy. We will call our next panel of witnesses represent-
%the Veterans' Administration. All the witnesses this afternoon

comply with the 5-minute rule. We will insert your prepared
statements into the record. Our firs{rpanel is from the VA. Mr. R.J.
Vogel, Chief Benefits Director. Mr. Vogel, if you would, I would ask
you introduce those who accompany you.

STATEMENTS OF RJ. VOGEL, CHIEF BENEFITS DIRECTOR, VET-
ERANS' ADMINISTRATION, ACCOMPANIED BY GRADY HORTON,
DEPUTY CHIEF BENEFITS DIRECTOR FOR PROGRAM MANAGE-
MENT; DENNIS R. WYANT, DIRECTOR, VOCATIONAL REHABILI-
TATION AND EDUCATION; AND JAMES P. KANE, ASSISTANT
GENERAL .COUNSEL

STATEMENT OF R.J. VOGEL «

Mr. VeGer. Thank you. To my tigll::: is James Kane, Assistant
General Counsel of the Veterans’ Administration; and to my left,
Dr. Dennis Wyant, Director of the Vocational Rehabilitation and
Education Service of the Department of Veterans’ Benefits.

Mr. Chairman, let me say how pleased I am to be here today to
give \you our views cn making the New GI Bill permanent. We at
the VA have a rich historﬂ. Since June 1944, over 18 million veter-
ans and service persons have trained under three GI bills for a
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total cost of some $60 billion. The GI bill has been acclaimed by
many observers as the best investment America ever made. For
over-four decades since the original GI bill, the Veterans’ Adminis-
tration, working with the Congress, has responded to the require-
ments of the law while at the same time trying to be flexible in
adapting to emerging policies of *he educational community, veter-
ans’ needs-and governmental priorities.

In October 1984, Public Law 98-525 was enacted bringing into
being the New GI Bill test progcram. This new law, as amended by
Public Law 99-576, provides a program of educational benefits not
only for servicepersons and veterans but also for reservists.

the New GI'Bill Reserves was the program with the first signifi-
cant number of trainees. To the end of January 1987, close to
46,000 reservists will have trained under this program. We are pro-
jecting that number of trainees will peak in fiscal year 1989——

Mr. Dowbpy. Excuse me for interrupting, but we are very honored
to have with us at this time the Speaker of the House. As we said
earlier, the Speaker made comments on national television about
the importance of the GI bill. Mr. Speaker, we welcome you, we
thank you for your interest in this legislation. Mr. Vogel, if you
would keep your seat, we will ask Mr. Wright, the Speaker, if he
flvqild, to zome forward at this time and make whatever comments

e has.

STATEMENT OF HON. JIM WRIGHT, SPEAKER OF THE U.S. HOUSE
OF REPRESENTATIVES

‘Speaker WRIGHT. That is very gracious. I surely wouldn’t want to
interrupt the testimony.nor to intrude into your committee’s hesr-
ing. I am here just to be in a supportive role and to encourage you
and to thank you for taking up this legislation.

I think it is one of the important things that faces us. The GI bill
of rights truly was, I believe, the most dramatically sound invest-
ment that we have made in my lifetime. I believe it has paid off in
8o many ways that they almost are countless. So I encourage you. I
just wanted to drop by and give each of the members of this com-
mittee my best wishes and my expressions of appreciation for your
expeditious consideration of this bill which.I think is one of the im-
portant things that we can do in this Congress.

{Applause.] .

Mr. Dowpy. Again we thank you, Mr. Speaker, very much.

Mr. Vogel, we thank you for allowing us to interrupt your testi-
mony. If you would proceed.

Mr. VogeL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

We are.projecting the number of trainees will peak in fiscal year
1989 at about 140,000.-Over time we do expect that the larger pro-
gram will be the New GI Bill Active Duty. Close to 180,000 trainees
are expected in fiscal year 1992. The number of trainees in the pro-
gram is low right now because few individuals have yet served long
enough to become eligible for training. In fiscal year 1987, we
expect 800 of these trainees. With all this background out of the
way, Mr. Chairman, I want to say that the aAministration supports
making the New GI Bill permanent.
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There are two changes to the current operations of the program
that are proposed in the President’s 1988 budget. These are, one, to
shift the funding responsibility for the basic benefit from VA to
DOD and, two, to restructure the basic benefit so as to offer pro-
gressively lower benefits for shorter terms of service, The Adminis-
tration stronglgoourges that any amendatory GI bill legislation
which this subcommittee may be considering include all the

changes to in the New GI Bill proposed in the iden*’s budget.
That concludes-my testimony, Mr. Chairman. I would be glad to
respond to any questions from you or the members of the subcom-

mittee.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Vogel appears on p. 83.]

Mrlgowm( Thank you very much, Nfr Vogel, for your state-
ment, We understend that the Department of Defense is going to
recommend e reductiox: in the basic benefit. If this were to pen,
what in your opinion would be the effect on the New GI Bill as a
readjustment benefit?

Mr. VoGeL. My personal view is that it would severely impair
the readjustment benefits aspect of the New GI Bill. A low amount
of educational assistance, with the cost of today’s education would
be virtually meaningless for a separated: veteran.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Smith.

Mr. CaristopHER H. SMitH. Thank you, Mr. Vogel, for your testi-
mony. I am fleased and delighted the Administration slljlﬂ)orts
making the GI bill permanent. Although: you- noted you would like
to see some changes as we move along, those will be contemplated.

One question: Does the VA have adequate personnel in anticipa-
tion of some of the numbers you have cited to carry forward with
th&program, and do you also have sufficient funding? .

r. VOGEL. Mr. Smith, we have had a fall-off in the caseload in
compensation and pension and in the vocational rehabilitation
areas. We think that we can divert the resources otherwise used in
those program areas to the administration of both the Chapter 106
and the Chapter 30 I;zlrogram.

Mr. CuristoprEer H. SmrtH. Do you anticipate requesting in fiscal
year 1988 additional funds for the program?

Mr. Voger. The funding needs for the program in 1988 are based
on our projections working with the Department of Defense and
the number of accepted——

Mr. CurisTopHER H. SmitH. What is requested will fit the need?

Mr. VogeL. Yes, sir.

Mr. CuristoPHER H. SmrtH. Thank you. I yield back.

Mr. Dowpy. We will ask Mr. Montgomery, the chairman of the
full committee, if he has any questions of this witness.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. No.

I::ItZe Downy. Mr. Solomon, the ranking membgo: of the full com-
mittee.

Mr. SoLomoN. Mr. Chairman, I don’t have any questions at the
resent time. We do want to thank the Veterans’ Administration
or their support of making this peacetime GI bill permanent. I

think we are going to hear some testimcny later on, testimony that
I agree with, that there dare changes that need to be made. Howev-
er, our chairman, Sonny Montgomery, has said the main thi
right now is to get this program permanent and advertised, an
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from there we .will work to.make what changes we can. I will be
working with you, and -we appreciate your coming before us today.

Mr. Dowpy. Thank you. Jim Jontz?

Mr. JonTz. No questions.

Mr. Dowpy. Mrs. Patterson?

Mrs. PATTERSON. No questions.

Mr. 'Dowpy. ‘Any other member of the panel have any questions
of the’e witnesses? |
* Mr. WyLze. I would like to ask one question.

As I understand it, and I didn’t hear it in the testimony, but you
have a little difference of opinion as to how the program should be
funded. Is that right?

Mr. Voger. My personal opinion, Mr. Wylie?

Mr. WywLie. Yes, your personal opinion.

Mr. Voger. That question has been posed by both the Full Com-
mittee in the House and Senate. The VA has been in the GI bill
administration business for a long time. We are proud of what we
have done. There was a significant give and take between the Ad-
ministrator and. the Executive Office of the President ca the issue
of funding‘the New GI Bill. :

Consistent with past practice, my personal opinion is that if the
funding and the policy and procedures were in one agency, the Vet-
erans’ Administration, we could march on in the future with this
program as we have in the past with previous GI bills.

Mr. Wywre. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Dowpy. Thank you for your testimony. We would ask unani-
mous consent ‘of the members of the subcommittee to keep the
record open for any additional questions that may be asked. Mr.
Vogel, we would ask that you and the other witness today respond
to those written questions.

Mr. VogeL. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Chairman?

Mr. MonTGoMERY. I certainly appreciate, Mr. Vogel, your com-
ments that you feel administrative funding and keeping it under
one agency in the Veterans’ Administration is where it belongs. Is
that basically what you said? .

Mr. VogeL. Yes, sir.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. I certainly agree with you. We feel if you get
out and see these young men and women after they get through
with the service, that is what the GI bill is, it is a readjustment
program, and the way it is drawn up now, $10,800 is waiting on
them, and we think the sky is the limit as far as education for
these young people who have an obligation and serve their country.

I want to thank you for statements you made here today.

Mr. Wyrie. Would the gentleman yield?

. Mr. MOoNTGOMERY. Yes.

Mr. WyLie. The reason for my question was there has been some
indication that the money ought to go to the Department of De-
fense at the Pentagon and have it transferred back to the VA, as I
understand it.

It seemed kind of foolish upfront to me to have it appropriated to
one-agency and then have it transferred -back to the agency that
was going to administer it. That is why I wanted to elicit the com-
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ment from Mr. Vogel here today. I knew it was along the lines of
ing, Mr. Chairm

your thinking, Mr. an.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Dowpy. Thank.you very much, Mr. Vogel.
_~ Mr. Dowpy. Our next witness is from the Department of De-
fense. We will agk Hon, Chapman B. Cox, Assistant Secretary of
Defense for Force Management and Personnel—Mr. Cox, as we
have said, we are going to try to adhere to a 5-minute limit on. your
staterrélent; Any prepared testimony will be submitted for the
record. .

We welcome you.

Mr. Cox. Mr. Chairman, would you like Mr. Shaw to join me at
the table?

Mr. Downy. Yes, Mr. Dennis Shaw, Principal Deputy Assistant
Secretary of Defense for Reserve Affairs,
Sh\;Ve will proceed with the testimony of Mr. Cox and then Mr.

w. . .

STATEMENT OF HON. CHAPMAN B. COX, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
OF DEFENSE FOR FORCE MANAGEMENT AND PERSONNEL,
DEPARTMENT. OF DEFENSE

Mr. Cox. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

It is a privilege for me to appear before this committee which
has done s0 much over the years for American service men and
women. The men and women of the Armed Forces are the back-
bone of our Nation’s defense structure. They are proud and patriot-
ic citizens and I know they are grateful to this committee for en-
suring their fair treatment.

We in the Department of Defense are also grateful.

Today you have requested that I comment on the Administra-
tion’s position with respect to the New GI Bill. This program, ad-
ministered under your oversight, is a good example of the impor-
tant role you play in providing for American military personnel in
their transition back to civilian life.

For over 40 years, veterans have been eligible for Federal educa-
tion assistance under a variety of programs. These assistance pro-
grams have been authorized for a number of reasons:

One, to provide service members with a compensating benefit for
adversities they endure such as low pay, harsh environments, phys-
ical danger and undesirable tasks;

Two, to make service in the Armed Forces more attractive;

Three, to provide training and readjustment to civilian life for
those who have served in the Armed Forces; and

Finally, to provide an éducation for those veterans who might
not otherwise be able to afford one.

These programs have been of considerable value both to the
Nation and to its service members.

The Educational Assistance Test Program, which we conducted
during 1981, confirmed that educational benefits, if sufficiently
generous, can attract high-quality people to the Armed Forces. A
separate study, conducted by the Congressional Budget Office in
March 1982, validated the results of the Education Assistance Test
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Program and also pointed out that enlistments of high school grad-
uates with above-average aptitude test scores increased with gener-
ous education benefits.

Wa believe the New GI Bill has the potential to be an effective
recruiting incentive. For this reason, we support making this pro-
gram permanént. However, to fit into the overall context of the
DOD recruiting program, we believe that it should be more of a
targeted benefit. For this reason, we are submitting a legislative
proposal that will do three things:

One, restructure the basic benefit to provide a benefit that varies
with the term of enlistment;

Two, continue targeted incentives, known as “kickers”’; and

Three, transfer-funding of the basic benefit from the VA to DOD.

Placing both policy and fiscal responsibility for the New GI Bill
with the Department .of Defense will permit a concentrated ap-
proach to using educational benefits as a recruitina%incentive.

We will be able to build on the level of variable basic benefit
with additional targeted incentives that recognize the sgecial re-
cruiting needs of the individual. services. These “kickers” can be
varied as necessary and tied to hard-tofill skills, test scores or
other criteria.

This concludes my prepared statement. Thank you again for the
g_pportunity to appear. I will be pleased to respond to your ques-

ions.

Mr. Dowpy. Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Cox appears on p. 89.]

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Shaw, we weicome you.

STATEMENT OF HON. DENNIS SHAW, PRINCIPAL DEPUTY ASSIST-
ANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE FOR RESERVE AFFAIRS,
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Mr. SHAW. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

1 appreciate the 'opportuniti to speak on behalf of the Reserve
components with respect to the New GI Bill. It ig the first time
that members of the Selected Reserve have had an opportunity to
participate in this type of general entitlement program, and we are
grateful for that opportunity.

the New GI Bill is popular with the members of the Selected Re-
serve, and I would lil-e the committee to have an opportunity to see
that graphically.

Represented on these charts are the numbers of participants, in
thousands, by fiscal dyear quarters since the New GI Bill was en-
acted back in the mid-part of 1985.

It is even better to look at the number of enrollments on a
monthly basis.

1 show vou this by month because it shows the New GI Bill for
reservisis is not a start-stop program. There are no peaks and val-
leys in our enrollments. They are just up, and we expect that to
continue.

We goe some positive things coming fror1 the program. Although,
I must say even at this point in time we are not able to quantify
the recruiting and retention value of the GI bill to the degree we
would like. But, we are going to do that.

o/
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We requested the Sixth QRMC take a look at the New GI Bill
with respect to its impact on recruiting and retention and it cost
effectiveness.

What we have found, however, in looking at a 15-month period
immediately after the enactment of the GI bill and the same sea-
sonal 15-month: period before.enactment of the bill, is that the

small, but that is 8,300 more people who enlisted for 6 years in the
15-month period after the GI bill than in the 15-month period prior
to enactment of the New GI Bill.

With respect to equality, if we look at non-prior service enlistees
who have high school degrees, and compare 1984 with 1986, we find
an increase of 5 percent, or 34,500 non-prior gervice individuals.

I think we can make some favorable conclusions and inferences
from these increases.

The final point I would like to make, Mr. Chairman, is that in
addition to the GI bill which we believe attracts members to the
Reserve components, we need targetted incentives as well.

Our bonuses for enlistment and re-enlistment attract people to
critical skill areas and those gkill areas where large shortages
exist. We nieed to continue to attract people to those areas.

The GI bill brings people in. Our targeted incentives put them in
Particular places where they are critically needed. So, with a bal-
anced and broad program of recriiting and retention incentives, we
will be able to meet our recruiting objective goals which, as you

ow, are increasing each year.

ank-you.

Mr. Dowpy. Thank, you very much.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Shaw appears on p, 92.]

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Cox, in your statement, you indicated your opin-
ion that educational benefits are not as cost effective as enlistment
bonuses. I took that to be a general theme of your prepared com-
ments here today.

Mr. Cox. Sir, I am sorry if I misled you. That was not meant to
be the general theme of my comments. The general theme is that
we believe the New GI Bill does provide recruiting incentive and
we support making it permanent on that basis. We do think it can

made more cost effective so that point was made in my prepared
statement and that is the reason that we are proposing some
changes to it.

My statement was not intended to mean that we don’t think the
New GI Bill is a cost-effective incentive, However, we think it can
be made more cost-effective.

Mr. Dowpy. Well, based on information gathered by a group of
us last week during site visits at Fort Knox and Lackland Air
Force Base and other installations, we asked a large number of
young men and women what attracted them into the armed serv-
ices. Practically without exception those young men and women in-
dicated that the educational incentives in the GI bill, and not the
bonus program, attracted them into the service,

Also information supplied to us by the Army shows that higher
quality recruits who are attracted by educational programs such as
by the GI bill are lcss expensive to train than other recruits.
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We have also been told that discipline is substantially reduced
with.higher quality recruits who are attracted to the service not by
bonuses we were told last week by the young men and women, but
rather by the educational incentives of the GI bill.

Did: the CBO study to which you referred in your testimony take
all of this into account when determining the relative cost effec-
tiveness of educational assistance benefits.

Mr. Cox. Yes, sir. We think it took all those things into account.
I don’t think the incentive to enlist is based on just one factor. Sev-
eral factors play in it. We know that educational benefits, bonuses,
compensation, advertising, and recruiter resources are all part of a
complex mix that has ccntributed to our good success in the re-
cruiting area over the last 6 years.

The CBO did take those things into account and we do not deny
that the New GI Bill is a recruiting tool. We agree with that. We
don’t object to that at all.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Smith.

Mr. Smrre oF NEw JERSEY. Thank you. ‘

You mentioned, Mr. Shaw, that it is difficult to quantify the
effect of recruitment and retention. Some of the facts you present-
ed to this subcommittee a few moments ago were encouraging. You
referred to a study.

Can you tell us what that study is you were referring to?

Mr. SHAw. The Sixth QRMC? This is the Quarterly Review of
Military Comrensation we do every 4 years. The Sixth QRMC is.
dedicated exclusively to looking at Reserve component compensa-
tion, and the area of compensation includes recruiting, retention,
incentives, and those kinds of things.

The Sixth QRMC is looking at all aspects of Reserve component
compensation, and we wanted to include the New GI Bill in that
review. We asked the review staff to take a look at the New GI Bill
T‘l‘lt;ntitatively and qualitatively. When they issue their report later
this year, we plan to have some quantification of the data that is
better than what I can give you today.

Mr. Smrts oF NEw JERsEY. Thank you.

Mr. Cox, one of the conclusions in the legislative proposal that
you indicated will be sent up to the Hill will be legislation transfer-
ring the funding from the VA to DOD, which I think will meet
with some controversy here in the Veterans’ Affairs Committee,
but perhaps you can for the enlightenment of all of us, explain the
rationale behind that.

Mr. Cox. I will explain my understanding of the current situa-
tion and then the rationale for the Administration’s r?osa.l. Asl
understand it, the funding now is split. Some of the funding is pro-
vided by the Department of Defense and some of it by the VA. Ba-
sically, the split comes between the basic benefit and the targeted
incentives.

The basic benefit is funded by the VA and the targeted incen-
tives, or kickers as we call them, are funded by DOD. Also funded
by DOD are the Reserve benefits because we had a difficult time
determining execatly how much of the Reserve benefit was recruit-
ing and incentive-oriented as oglposed to being societal in nature.

Thus, DOD accepted the funding of all of the Reserve benefits.
That is the current method. Our legislative proposal is to move the
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funding of the basic benefit from in the VA to DOD. The rationale

is that if we are going to Justify the New GI Bill on a recruiting
incentive basis, then DOD should be the one to fund and manage
it. It is the Administration’s position that the GJ, bill should be jus-
tified on that basis, and it should not be justified on the basis of
societal benefit or of investment in the futire.
Mr. SmitH oF NEw JERSgY. One ﬁnaﬁuestioh, Mr. Chairman. Do
ou favor transferability and refundability within the GI bill?
ferability of the bencfit to a spouse or to a child or dependent
and refundability if the benefit is not utilized?
Mr. Cox. I favor refundability, but not transferability, sir.
Mr. Surra, Is that the view of the administration?
Mr. Cox. I can'’t speak for the administration on that. I would
have to check,
Mr. Smit oF New JErsey. I would appreciate for the record, Mr.
Chairman, if that céuld be provided.
[The DOD subsequently submiited the following information:]

There is little doubt that transferability, the right to transfer educational benefits
earned under the New GI Bill from the member to the member’s spouse or depend-
ents, would be a popular additional feature to the pro%z:.m. "However, overall Serv-
ice member retention remains very good in both the enlisted and officer components
at this time. Although there are cetention problems in selected skills or specialties,
it is unlikely that transferability could serve as an effective substitute for the tools
We now use to retain qualified people. .

A key career decision point is the first reenlistment for enlisted members, and the
end of the minimum period of required service for certain officer communities, such
as aviators. At this point, the education of dependent children, which may be the
most highly valued use of transferability, is generally at least 10 to 15 years away.
Hence, the value of transferability as a major retention incentive might well be
heavily discounted at £ais key career decisiomint. Targeted incentives, such as Se-
lective Reenlistment»Bonusps for Enlisted Skills, Aviation Career Incentive Pay and
Aviation Officer Cintinuation Pay for Pilots, are our most effective retention tool.
Transferability should be viewed only as an additional and lesser aid to retention.

Transferability could have a freatar effect on the retention of those members who
have children at, or near, college age. This population normally has at least 15
years of service; vith high retention rates due, largely, to our most important long-
term retention incentive, the military retirement system. .

We monitor the New GI Bill, we will evaluate carefully its role in _the total

benefits package ana continue to assess the need for a transferability provision. Qur
current assessment is. that it is premature to draw unequivocal conclusions reiard
ing the need for transfevability. As the New GI Bill program matures and we have
more data on participation and utilization, we will again reevaluate the issue of
transferability. . .

The New GI Bill, unlike the VEAP program, does not contain a provision for a
refund of the Service member’s contribution. Because Service members believe this
to be a matter of equity, particularly in those cases where eligibility is not obtained
through no fault of the individual, lack of a refund rrovision tends to give the pro-
gram a negative image. At the very least, a refund /¢ the individual separated for a
non-service medical disability should be considered. We will continue to look at a
refund provision and how it might be proposed.

Mr. DowpY. Thank you, Mr. Smith.
" Chairman Montgomery.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Cox, when we met with Secretary Taft, you and he were
there talking about permanent legislation on the ‘GI bill. I thought
it was fgenerally agreed then with you and Secretary Taft that we
would fund the program gust like it is and implement it just like it
is beeg})g presented today by the bill we have introduced. What hap-
pened? -
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Mr. Cox. Sir, I think you understand that I cannot apeak for the
administration, and we agreed with you we would not object to
that and the Defense Department doe3 not object t> that. It is the
administration’s position that we cannot justify this program on
the basis of a societal benefit and-the administration would like to
have it funded by us.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. But my point is you have no objectior. in the
Defense Department, as I understand it, whex we met in vour posi-
tion personally now, I assume the Secretary is :hc reme way, that
you have no objection the way it is funded now whsther the Veter-
ans’ Administration picks up for the readjustment and the Defense
Department picks up for the National Guard and Reserve? That is
your personal feeling?

Mr. Cox. Sir,'you heard the testimony of Mr. Vogel. Mine s
somewhat the same. There has been substantial give and take be-
tween the Secretary and the Office of Management and Budget on
this issue, and the Department would not object to havi it in the
Veterans' Administration. However, the administration’s position
is that it should all be furded by us as a recruiting incentive and
there should be no societal benefit portion.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. I understand and I think that certainly clears
up the record.

Thank you.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Solomon.

Mr. SoLomoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

First of all, let me commend DOD for, first of x1l, your successf-1
promotion of the GI bill as a recruitment tosi and as a retention
tool. It is obvious from the oversight hearings that we held for 2
days that the programs are successful although they could use
some improvement, s most everything can.

i might as well put a plug in for the Marine Corps while I am at
it.
The Marine Corps happens to have the best program of the four
branches of service in explaining this program to the new recruits,
and maybe you might want to look into distributing the program
that the Marine Corps uses to the other branches of service be-
cause I think all of us were very impressed with that.

Mr. Cox. As you know, I am a Marine myself. I think we could
all take a lesson from the Army. They got 75 percent participation.

Mr. SoLomoN. That is right.

Secondly, let me just say we don’t want to play down the bonus
incentives that are out there. But it was ob rous from talking to
the recruits in all branches of service that the GI bill was a strong
reason of why they enlisted.

Again we have to go back to the recruitment, the retention and
the readjustment program that the GI bill is and you need those
bonuses as well, because you take those away and it makes the GI
bill that much less attractive, and we all know in today’s Army or
Marine Corps, Army, Air Force, there is no way those people can
keep up with their peers in the private sector.

Those bonuses are just that extra incentive that helps make up
that difference. -
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I do want to take exception with DOD and the administration’s
directions to fund the GI bill through the Defense Department. I
don’t think it belongs there. .

You know, you do have your tuition assistance programs in the
military today, which are primarily designed for ongoing education
simultaneously with the tour of duty, and the GI bill is primarily
for education in addition to once they get out of the service, al-
though it can be used at the same time, and I think we have to
kogp in mind-the Defense Department budget is always going to be
squeezed from time to time. In the Veterans’ budget, although it is
subject to squeezes as-well, I think there this committee can better
1ook out for the veteran and for these benefits and I think that we
want to keep it there.

1 have. to tell you to go back to Mr. Weinberger and to the ad-
ministration and to OMB and anybody else, and say that it is the
overwhelming feeling of this Congress we want to keep this pro-
gram in the VA and we would appreciate their support.

So take back that message.

I don’t have any questions at this time.

Thank you.

Mr. Cox. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Dowby. Thank you, Mr. Solomon.

Mr. Jontz.

Mr. Jontz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Cox, when we heard the recruits on our trip last week, it
was clear that many of them saw the GI bill as a good dealédgetting
$8 or $9 back for every $1 they invest. There also seemed to be
some recognition on the part of these young men and women that-
$300 a month doesn’t go as far toward meeting the expenses of col-
lege as it used to.

When they think about the circumstances they are going to be in
when they leave the service and obligations they might have, sy
do give that amount of benefits zome consideration when they
de:li{de whether it is really worth the investment they have to
make,

So let me ask’you this: When you speak of restructuring the
basic bersfits to provide benefits that vary in terms of enlistment,
are you talking about cutting benefits or increasing benefits? Could
you be more specific on your proposal?

Mr. Cox. Without getting into the details of the proposal, the
basic concept is to stretch out the amendment of the benefit over
terms of enlistment so that if you enlisted for longer than just 2
years, you would get a larger basic benefit than if you come in for

. Just 2 years.

I think the way it has graduated under the proposal, the total
$10,800 benefit would be there for the 6-year enlistment, somewhat
less for 4 years and somewhat less for 2 years.

But then again, we are talking about a concept that justifies this
program on the basis of recruiting incentives and, therefore, we are
increasing the amount of the benefit for increased service.

Mr. JoNTz. Mr. Cox, but don’t you think that if you cut the level
of benefits for the short-term recruit-to a/fraction of what it is for
the recruit in for a longer period of t}me, you might get to the
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point where the deal would not be attractive and it wouldn'’t be a
recruiting incentive because—

Mr. Cox. No. Our information and our analysis shows we would
get more recruits who stayed in longer and that should be good for
them and good for the country.

" Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Wylie.

Mr. Wywrie, Thank you.

It seems my question of Mr. Vogel a little earlier was a good one.
What concerns some of us is the fact that this committee exercises
jurisdiction over the Veterans’ Administration, and we don't, I
don’t think, have as much on the Belatter as maybe the Armed
Services Committee has vis-a-vis the Department of Defense.

But do You have any indication as to how Secretary Weinberger
might feel about proposals to_transfer this from the VA to DOD?

Mr. rtC;”% This is the Administratioi’s position and the Secretary
su it.

r. WyLte. Okay. I think the pro came from OMB original-
ly, if my memory serves me correctly. So the Secretary, I suppose,
would be in a position of suptoﬁ:)rting it, all alcng.

Mr. Cox. lutely. I didn’t mean by my answer to Chairman
Montgomery that that was not the Secretary’s position. I said we
would not object. I said we would not support it going to the VA.

Mr. WyLie. Okay.

Now, the Reservists are already funded out of DOD, as you point-
ed out, so there is a little difference there.

Mr. Cox. Plus, DOD also funds all the kicker benefits. All the re-
cruitin&,incentive benefits are currently funded by DOD.

. Mr. WyuE. Is there any reason why the two should be different?

Mr. SHAw. In order for a member of the Reserve components to
use the GI bill, he has to be actively participating in the Selective
Reserve. The moment the member separates from the Selected Re-
serve, he becomes a non-%articipant. e loses all elig'ibilit¥1 for par-
‘tiicipafpion under the GI bill, is unlike the members of the active

uty force.

r. WYLIE. So they are differént in that respect, but the point I
am making s doee there need to be a difference in administration
of the two benefits, benefits for the Keservist and the active duty
personnel?

Mr. Cox. Well, sir, we assume there will be some funding by
DOD even if you just make the current program permanent, and
tll1ere is some wisdom involved in setting it up that way in the first
place.

The recruiting incentive part of the program would be funded by

Mr. WyLie. The incentive part of the program would remain the
same. You are assuming that would be the case?

Mr. Cox. Yes.

Mr. WyLE. Thank you.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Bateman.

Mr. BaTeMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, as I am the ranking member of the Subcommittee
on Military Personnel and Compensation of the Armed Services
Committee, we will necessarily have to plow this further on in an-
other field on another day. I am going to withhold any questions
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today, but express appreciation for being asked to be here today
and my thanks to the witnesses.

Mr. Downy. I want to yield to the chairman of the full commit-
tee, Mr. Montgomery.

Mr. MoNtGoMEeRY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Secretary, there have been some rumors floating around that
DOD might propose legislation about actually changing the formu-
Ia on benefits that we now use.

Do you have before you what the benefits for 3 years of service
might be? Do you have that for the record right now for the 8
years the individual puts up $1,200 and the basic benefit is current-
ly $9,600, which comes out, $10,800 over a 8-year enlistment—do
you have what you proposed?

er}.1 Cox. I am sorry. I am fumbling for it. I do have a summary
of it here.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. I have ot it.

Mr. Cox. I have a summary for the record. A 2-year enlist-
ment—— .

Mr. MoxTGoMERY. Give me 8 years.

Mr. Cox. In all of these, the member would continue to put up
the $1,200, which is the same as the current situation. The match-
ing portion for a &-year enlittment under our proposal would be
$1,200; for 3 years, $3,600; for 4 years, $6,000; for 5 years, $7,800;
and and for 6 years, $9,600.

Mr. MoNTGoMERY. Under 3 years, that would be a reduction
almost in half,

Mr. Cox. About half for the 8 years; yes, sir.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. But the individual contribution would still
stay at——

Mr. Cox. Would stay the same, yes.

Mr. MoNTcoMmERY. You know yourself that you can’t make it like
that. That is too low. Wouldn’t you agree to that? ]

Mr. Cox. I don’t think I can agree to that, sir. You have pushed
me as far as you can, sir.

Mr. MoNTGoMERY. I forgot you are a Marine.

We have the military departments following you. We will put
them on the line on that.

Mr. Dowpy. Any other questions of of these witnesses?

Mrs. Patterson.

Ms. Patrerson. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

dJust sort of following up on that, I am trying to catch on, this is
all new to me, but as a parent getting ready to look at colleges, are
you saying that now if someone serves § years, they would get
$10,000 to go on to school, but under the proposal from your office
it would be 6 years and still get $10,000?

Mr. Cox. Right.

. PATTERSON. I don’t see that is much of an incentive with the
cost of colleges now. I am having difficulty finding a college one
could go to for less than $10,000. It would seem to me 3 years for
that amount of money is about the incentive we can go for. I am
just wondering if my math was exactly right.

Mr. Cox. I think your math is right.
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Mr. Dowpy. I thank both of your for your testimony. We are
going to leave the record open. Written questions are to submit-
ted, and we would appreciate your responsx to those.

Mr. Dowpy. Our next panel of witnesses is a panel of military

rsonnel chiefs. We would welcome these witnesses: Gen. Robert

. Elton, Deputy Chief of Staff for Personnst, U.S. Army; Vice
Adm. Dudley L. Carlson, Deputy Chief of Naval Operations, U'.S.
Navy; Lt. Gen. Thomas J. Hickey, Deputy Chief of Staff for Person-
nel, U.S. Air Force; Lt. Gen. Ernest C. eatham, Jr., Deputy Chief
of Staff for Manpower, U.S. Marine Corps; Rear Adm. Henr{alr{(i
Bell, Chief of Personnel, U.S. Coast Guard; Brig. Ger. Ric
Dean, Acting Deputy Director of Army National uard; and Brig.
Gen. John McMerty, Deputy Director of Air National Guard.

We welcome each of you.

STATEMENTS OF LT. GEN. ROBERT M. ELTON, DEPUTY CHIEF OF
STAFF FOR PERSONNEL, U.S. ARMY; VICE ADM. DUDLEY L.
CARLSON, DEPUTY CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS, US. NAYY;
LT. GEN. THOMAS J. HICKEY, DEPUTY CHIEF OF STAFF FOR
PERSONNEL, US: AIR FORCE; LT. GEN. ERNEST C. CHEATHAM,
JR., DEPUTY CHIEF OF STAFF FOR MANPOWER, U.L. MARINE
CORPS; REAR ADM. HENRY H. BELL, CHIEF OF PERSONNEL,
U.S. COAST GUARD; BRIG. GEN. RICHARD DEAN, DEPUTY DI-
RECTOR OF ARMY NATIONAL GUARD; AND BRIG. GEN. JOHN
McMERTY, DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF AIR NATIONAL GUARD

Mr. MoNTCOMERY. May I ask unanimous consent the figures I
have here be put in the record. Secretary Cox confirms that to
these amounts are close to those that will be recommended.

I would like to Foint out, maybe our military panel will comment
on it, that actually they are not recommending a reduction in the
National Guard and Reserve benefits. It would be much better for
a reservist to go one weekend a month and you would get about the
same educational beefits as he would under this proposed cutback
for the activities by GMB, So that is not workable at al.

Mr. Dowpy. Without objection, those figures are made a part of
the record of the proceeding.

Mr. Dowpy. I want to welcome each of you here today. For the
benefit of the other Members, I want to explain I did not request
written statements from this panel because we want to know their
personal views regarding the New GI Bill, we felt we could do this
most effectively with a dialog with this distinguished panel. So in
the order in which I introduced you, beginning with General Elton,
if you would, in complying with that statement, tell us your opin-
jon of the proposals relative to the New GI Bill.

General ELToN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to be sure I
understand that question.

You want us to address specifically the GI bill that is currently
in effect?

Mr. Dowpy. Let me do it this way. We asked you not to prepare
written statements. If any of you want to voluntarily say anything
at this time, we will give you the opportunity at this time and then
we will give the opportunity te the members of the panel to ad-
dress questions to you.

]
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‘General ErtoNn. I am ready.

Admiral CArtsoN. I am ready for any questions you may have.

My personal opinion always coincides with the uniform I wear. I
find it-a great risk as a‘military officer to wall. down the plank b
offering my personal opinion on the.GI bill as opposed to one total-
ly endorsed and\supgorted by the Navy.

General Hickey. Sir, I-have no prepared remarks. It is my privi-

" lege to be here and appear on behalf of the Air Force in support of

H.R. 1085. .

General CF~  4aM. Lhave no prepared remarks, sir.

Admiral Becv. I have none either, sir.

Mr. Downy. All right. :

Let me-ask you this. In your opinion and from your background
and experience, does an educational assistance incentive attract a
different kind of recruit from ‘that who may be attracted by bo-
nuses? Would any of you care to give us your opinion on that?

STATEMENT OF LT. GEN. ROBERT W. ELTON

General ErtoN, I will vohinteer for that. Since we have perhaps
the toughest recruiting mission of the Services, we tried very hard
to dig into the market and determine what are the incentives that
would causé a young man or woman to come into the Army, specif-
ically the Army. We found we draw the pool of young Americans.
from two major streams, one that is headed for the employment
part of the sector, and the other that is headed. for college, and
they come for different reasons.

Some of them do blend. But those that are coming to—that are
motivated' by the desire for additional education—tell us hands
down they come for the GI bill and any additional educational
kickers that the Army might have. Those that are coming from the
employment sector and desire to learn a skill or to increase their
own ability .1 that particular regard tell us that they' come for,
some of them come for the GI beﬁ and some come for the enlist-
ment bonus. So it is a program that is split in that regard and both
are absolutely n .

Mr. Dowpy. My question was: Do you find those who are attract-
ed by the educational assistarice incentives are a different type of
recruit from those who are attracted by the bonus incentives? Have
you observed any difference between the two classes, two types?

General ELTON. I am not sure that that is the accurate gortrayal
of those individuals. If an individual scores on the aptitude test in
the upper category, they are in the upper category. If they are a
high school graduate, we know those two things in combination
make for you the very best kind of soldier.

Now, whether they are motivated for college or employment is
not necessarily as important as whether they have those first two
qualifications.

Now, the great majority of the upper mental category, high
school graduates are motivated by education. So when we get a
much greater' percentage of individuals headed for college or who
want to go to college and finish their education, they fill those two
B;:requisites. Therefore, I would say the greatest perceatage of our

t soldiers are headed to college. :
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Mr. Dowpy. The other members of the panel, if you would ad-
dress that. )

STATEMENT OF VICE ADM. DUDLEY L. CARLSON '

Admiral CartsoN. I would it is difficult to assess an indi-
vidual as this is a college-bound youth and this-person is interested
in a bonus. These programs make up a part of the total opportuni-
ty package we present to the recruit. We find many recruits are
attracted to the GI bill because it is attractive to their parents. The
{fung person may not be interested in the GI bill at that moment.

e may be more interested in.the bonus. But over time, he sees the
GI bill as an opportunity. It is part of our total recruiting incentive
package.that we offer.to the younister.

There may be many who join who.aren’t interested in the GI bill
at all, who turn out to be most interested in it after two or 3 years
in the military. Some are interested.in skill training but they are
not thinking about the GI bill at all. They are thinking about those
gkills we would impart to them in training that is an integral part
of the Navy or any of the other Services.

I think it is. very difficilt to separate which incentive does the
most good. Some join because they want to get away from home,
others want a job. The GI bill is a very, very important part of it.
Egﬂal important? That is difficult to say. That depends on each indi-
vidual.

STATEMENT OF LT. GEN. THOMAS J. HICKEY

General Hickey. Could I also join in that? We have the same dif-
ficulty measuring the numbers. But the interest is very strong. In
the Air Force the GI bill tends to attract those persons interested
in education. About 60 percent of our new recruits we survey ongo-
ing, indicate education is one of the primary factors they have
joined. When we look at those who are participating in the GI bill
program, we find that the vast majority of those are in the higher
mental category. So we think in the general stream of things that
the GI bill brings a higher mental category and.to that kind of an
attribute, a better kind of recruit.

On the other hand, the selective bonuses that we use for recruit-
ing bonuses are targeted to. specific kinds of hard-tofill skills, so
they are used to a somewhat different purpose.

STATEMENT OF LT. GEN. ERNEST C. CHEATHAM, JR.

General CueATHAM. I would have to agree with my contemporar-
jes. We have found in the Marine Corps that those who are inter-
ested in the GI bill are normally in the higher mental group cate-
gories.

Mr. Dowpv. Are nrormally what?

General CHEATHAM. Normally in. the higher mental group cate-
gories, mental group 1, 2.

STATEMENT OF REAR ADM. HENRY H. BELL

Admiral Berr. I would have to concur with that from the Coast
Guard’s point of view.
Mr. Dowpy. What about the Reserve components?

283




E

r

Fulr

Toxt

RIC <83

23

STATEMENT OF .BRIG. GEN. RICHARD DEAN

_General DeaN. At the present. time 43 rcent of the Reserve
component usage is in the Army Guard. We have about 19,737
people who are currently enrolled in the program. We found it is
an especially valuable recruiting tool, when added to the bonus
program it gives us a package which allows us to bring in the indi-
viduals we need to meet the Army’s requirements for a total force.
We have found that aS a-result of this our mental categories 1 to 3
and our high schonl degrée graduates.are up, ali indicators are that
it has been good for .us since its inception.  *

STATEMENT OF BRIG. GEN. JOHN McMERTY

General McMerty. We in the.Air National Guard believe it is a
good .program., It is helping us attract better quality people into our
program and keep better quality people in our program. We appre-
ciate your efforts to keegait going.

Mr. Dowpy. We do have other written questions which I will
submitS to %ﬁu. We appreciate your response.

mith.

Mr. CuristopHER H. SmrTh. Secretary Cox noted the Army has

‘e highest Earticipation rate. It is my understanding some 75 per-
cent, Navy 43 percent, Air Force 41 percent, the Marine Corps at
61 percent. I wonder if you would be good enough to comment on
why there is this real discrepancy between the various Services in
terms of agarticipa,tion rates.

General Hickey. Since the- Air Force statistics are the lowest you
quoted, it is appropriate I address that first.

Let me start up by saying while our recruits are very much edu-
cation interested, we have had-a history of non-participation in the
Veterans' Education Assistance Program, for insfunce, we only had
a 6 percent participation rate by recruits when it was in operation.
the New GI Bill shows its strength and effectiveness in that we
have a 7-fold increase in that. You are accurate in that we have
the lowest participation, rate, and ;;:arhaps some of that is our own
fault in that we are doing so much better than we did under the
other bill, and we are so pleased that we are meeting our qualita-
tive levels, we haven’t concentrated on increasing participation to
the extent .we should.-

I would tell you that we have an ongoing program within our re-
cruiting force to increase the emphasis on the utilization of the GI
bill, and we are going to streamline and improve the information
process and the kinds of information and media that we are using
at-their initial recruitment- point at Lackland Air Force Base svhen
they come on active duty. -

e have a multi-phase system as you know starting with the ini-
tial recruiter and then .at their processing station, and then two
different sessions on their second day when they come on active
duty to give them.all the information we can. We think we can do
a bet:fk job.in advertising and pointing out its merits.

you.

Admiral CarrsoN. We in the Navy have seen a remarkable in-
crease in GI bill participation. We are at 58 percent for the past 2
months. Overall we were at 44 percent. We have seen our numbers
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improve and we think it is because we are getting the word out
and advertising it better. Now for those of you -who were in Orlan-
do, I am aware that the presentation down there didn’t make all of
Kou raise your -hands to' join the Na\ﬁ' or sign up for the GI bill,

ut that was the pregenter, I think. He felt like it was the Chris-
tians and the lions and that he was a Christian. The poor guy was
a little awed by the audience he was-pitching to.

We have séen a good increase in. participation because we think
we-advertise it right. But you shou!d also remember that $100 a
month from a recruit whose base pay is only $600 is a lot of money.
After you subtract income tax, it puts income down around $480.
Then you take another hundred out of that, you are at $380. If the
individual has some responsibilities, financial responsibilities, that
is a significant amount of his pay. On that basis, it may not be at-
tractive to some. -

Mr. MonTGoMERY. May I make a-comment on that.

Mr. CurisToPHER H. SmrtH. Sure.

Mr. MonTGOMERY. We had a gentleman on our trip with us; he
was called in before World War II and received $24 a month and
gave half that to his mother. He got bi{pretty well. These kids

on’t have many expenses. I know the Marines don’t even know
where the gate is to get out-of Paris Island for 3 months. ’
Admiral CARLSON. Our guys are a little brighter than that.
Mr. MoNTGOMERY, So, you know, maybe-it is good. The luxuries,
the cars, the stereos; that really plays a big part. After they are in
for 8 or 4 months, tiley get promoted and get a significant pay in-
crease. Also, we have clarified the income tax situation. A recruit
pays taxes only on the reduced amount of his basic pay, so he’ll
save some money there.

I don’t know, I sometimes worry about the $1,200. We didn’t put
it in there, the Senate put it in there. We wanted a clean GI bill
when we brought it up. But the Senate forced us to make changes.

months after they had to make a decision on the GI bill, they
cannot get back in, they feel like they made a mistake and the
$100 a month was the reason they didn’t get in.

Admiral CariSoN. I am not apologizing or being critical of it. I
think that may be a fact. It influences some for the wrong reasons.

General Hickey. If I may add, I think particularly if the recruit
happens to be married or.a couple years older than the 17- to 19-
year-old that is normally thought of as a new recruit, it has an
even -bigger impact as they have a family responsibility from the
very beginning.
eneral FLTON. One-thing I wanted to.add, not in comparison at
all with the other Services, each of us has our own problems with
regard to recruiting, but the Army has the largest of the chal-
lenges-and we are constantly looking and digging into the market
to try to develop new ways to approach quality young men and
women. And the surveys that we have taken over and over again
tell us hands down that young America, young bright America,
wants to go to school.

And so the Army’s position is that education is a lifelong process,
and we:want it to continue while they are in the Army. We want
them to.believe that that in fact is true. So we offer a number of

v
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educational incentives in the Army. We even have started a pro-

-gram which- will-help those who have ‘the GI bill in their pocket to

transition directly into college by using our counselors to get them
into the college. And the point is that we have tried to make that
known, the image of the Army, to young America through our ad-
vertising on television and elsewhere in the media, to give them an
incentive for joining the Army. Right now the figures we have as of
the .end of December right now, about 84 percent of those who

‘come into the Army sign _on for the GI bill, but that is because we

sit down and:talk to them about, one on one, it is'an investment in
your future, and we encourage you strongly to get on board.

So'that is why——

Mr. CuristopHER H. Smrra. That leads to a question. Is there a
certain amount of interagency or inter-Service cooperation in
terms of tools to try to sell the program? Since the Army has done
50 well, perhaps the others can benefit from that experience.

"General HiCkEY. Yes, sir. I think all of us cooperate. One of the
things we. are looking at is a videoscript that will do a better job.
What we are looking at is a very professional and slick article the
Army already-uszs. - * -

Admirel CArLSON. We all have the same GI bill. 1t is one thing
to convince a kid to join to.go"to school, it is another thing to con-
vince him he wants to go to sea. A lot of them don’t knaw what
going to sea means. Samuel Johnson said, “going to sea is like
being in jail with an opportunity to drown.” That is the backdrop
against which we are doing our recruiting. Sending these young
peoPIe off to sea for months at a time with family separation; 1
don’t ¢are how gocd the GI bill is, if the individual doesn’t want to
do that, we will have a most difficult problem.,

General Hickey. One last point. We could probably also without
working harder increase our participation rate to some degree if
we used kickers, but we have historically not done so because we
Wwere meeting our recruitment goals.

I think the appropriate method of solving that is the one I de-
scribed earlier within the:Air Force at least.

General CHEATHAM. I would like to second the General’s position.
Also, I would like to state that the Marine Corps is not at 61 per-
cent, it is at 62.6 percent overall, and this last month it was up to
about 73 percent. I recall 73.2 percent as this last month’s partici-
pation rate.

It is unique. I think you will find that within the Marine Corps
we have a great number of 6-year enlistments.

In fact, our average enlistment is in excess of 4 yaars. I don’t
think that the majority of People that come into the Marine Corps
come in for the education, for the GI bill. I think if you talked to
Marines you will find that out.

But it is obvious that_there is a high percentage of them taking
advantage of it because'it is a wonderfi program for young men.

Mr. Smrth oF NEw JErsEy. I would appreciate it if members of
the panel would discuss what kind of effort is being made to inform
recruits frior to actually checking in, so to speak, as to the decision
they will make in- the ‘first couple of weeks of their time in the
service.
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My understanding is, and I have heard back from some, and
have gotten-ietters and I think the committee has also gotten some
letters that the decision time comes upon them too quickly.

I, was wondering if perhaps a longer period of time was being
contemplated, perhaps ringmfutfe parents more into the equation
earlier on. Is that the kind of thi g:being looked at?

General Hickey. I would be glad to walk through the process be-
cause we have a multi-faceted process in the Air Force again. The
first time that a potential recruit goes in to see a recruiter, he is
griefed on and given a brochure on the GI bill and what its bene-

ts are.

. At the time of his enlistment and going through the processing
station, he is again given a mandatory batch of information, listen-
ing and reading combined. on that same thing, and at the same
time we:have him at the enlistment processing station.

We also send a brochure to his.parents. They may be more inter-
ested in future education than the individual recruit is. So each of

" 13

those three are done before they enter active duty. We do give
them time to mull the whole process over. X

On the second day that they are a new recruit, we again go
thr?;ggh the whole same brochure and the same information is pre-
sented to them at our basic military training school. Then we have
a deliberate cooling off period for them to take that material home,
call their parents, their minister, educators, to make u their mind
and then on the seventh day of their training we call them back in
and at that point they have the option to opt out if they want to do

80.

Genéral Erton. I have given you all literature we hand to the
recruits. In addition to the things Tom has mentioned, the onl
other ‘thing we do is to take a little television set into the individ:
ual’s home with his parents and we have a tape that lasts about 5
to 10 minutes, and it walks through exactly what the GI bill pro-
vides, and what you must do and how much you must take out of
your pocket and put into it and - what you get if you go to college
and what you get if you don’t go to college.

The fact is you give it all up if you don't go to college. They un-
derstand that completely when they sign the contract. When they
get into the reception station, we talk to them one on one with an
educational counsellor who talks to them about the goodness of in-
vesting in your future.

Admiral CArisoN. We have a similar program that exposes them
all the way along from first contact until when they are well into
boot camp, or recruit training.

Mr. SmitH oF NEW JERszy. Would any of you like to comment on
refundability or transferability and whether that would be useful?

General tHAM. 1 think they are both -good and sheuld be
employed. If I could go back to your previous question just for one
moment. I think this brochure mailed to the parent is a key to the
perticipation of the young marine at boot camp. When the parent
sees this, they discuss the decision with their son or daughter.

Admiral CARLsON. I think transferability is important, because
the GI bill, as it is now, is a recruiting incentive. It is not a reten-
tion incentive. It is a disincentive. If you have transferability it is
very attractive to-the.individual who, during the course of his en-

-
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¢ listment or ds he comes in, has dependents to whom he can trans-
ot fer his GI bill. It could be a tremendous retention incentive.

i So there is great lpotential in my view.

! General ErtoN. I would like to jump onto that because for the
: first time in many months the Army is finding because of a
” number of other personnel changss, policies-and so forth, that we
are -having a little difficulty with our re-enlistment objectives. And
many of the reenlistment NCOs have come to us and said if we
were able to transfer-the GI-bill, the soldiér woula re-enlist, not so
that he could keep it, but so that he could let his wife go on to
school. That is from their mouths.

General Hickey. I would say the Air Force certainly supports the
refund portion of it towards survivors of someone who perhaps got
killed on active duty or some suitable period, perhaps 5 years after
separation from the service.

If they have not taken advantage of. those things, a refund ap-
pears to us to be fair and equitable.

Mr. Smrtn oF NEw JErsky. Thank you, gentlemen. Your com-
ments have been most helpful. I would say one final thing.

There is no way I could not be a strong supporter of the New GI
Bill. My brother, Lt. Col. Mike Smith, has exercised his preroga-
tives as a big brother and as a constituent, and I wouldn’t get his
vote if I.didn’t support it. ‘

I thank you for your answers and yiéld back the balance of my
time.

Mr. Dowpy. Chairman Montgomery.

Mr. MoNTGoMERY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Without objection, I notice General Elton has mentioned about
some of the literature, if that could be—if these two pamphlets
could be put in the record and if any of the service personnel chiefs
have anything for the record that would be put into the record per-

ining. to the GI bill.

[h'lﬂ'f{ D wm;11 Vgthout objection. 99-165]

€ pamphiets appears on pp. 99-165.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Mr. Chairman, .about the transferability, we
had that in the original bill, which. means, in effect, you earned
these benefits and you can transfer them to your wife or one of
your children or two or three of your children. It was taken out of
the bill. It added to the cost.

We were surprised at the number of recruits who brought up
transferability. If we can make this permanent legislation that
would be one of the areas we would look into.

Actually the idea started with the aviators and the Air Force
pilots, that they said if you give us some transferability, we might
stay in the service. We could have saved millions of dollars if we
could have kept these people in the service because they said they
want to be sure to educate their children.

General Hickey, or Admiral Carlson, I might disagree with you a
little on your gtatement that this pushes—the GI bill pushes them
out of the service. We certainly don’t want to do that.

When we talk to these recruits-we encourage them to stay in and
they can use their GI benefits in the service. But some of them
have got to get out.
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What is the number under 21, 22 years of age, in the Marine
Corps—how.many are under.22 years of age, General?

General CHEATHAM. Twenty-four is the average age of the enlist-
ed in the -Marine CorW.h -

Mr. MonTGOoMERY. What percentage of that——

General CHEATHAM. . A hundred percent. That is counting peopl=
like me..So the ayverage age.in the Marine Corps——

_Mr. MoNTGOMERY. That is, fine. I will buy that. I mean people
older than you, how many percent? F.ity? Twenty percent?

What I am trying to get at, 85 percent of the Marine Corps is
under 22 years of age; is that correct?

General CHEATHAM. Yes, sir, to be precise 84.1 percent of our
first-terin enlisted Marines are 22 or younger.

Mr. Dowpy. What about the Arm{l

General ELTON. 1 am not sure what the exact figures are. I am
sure.they are similar to.that.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. My point is you have to keep a young military
to take the high ground and to do the things, so some of them are
going to’have to get out is my point, Admiral Carlson. It is:good if
you have these benefits waiting on them.

My other question, and then I will yield back the balance of my
time, I notice the Army Times quoted the high test scores on re-
cruits in 1987 for the first 3 months of the fiscal year. Can you ex-
plain what caused that or what you think caused that?

I guess this is the first time in the history of the Army they have
had higher test scores than the other services. 1

General ErLToN. Mr. Montgomery; I am not sure exactly why we
stand any higher than any of the other services. It may be the way
we have assessed the population wé have in the delayed entry pro-
gram and brought them in.

Those. are the figures for those who have actually entered the
gervice. At the end of the month of December, the first quarter, we
stood about 75 percent in the 1 to 3(A) category. And we are abso-
lutely delighted with that. .

However, we are also iealists and understand that i(shgpin to
drop down as we go out and coatinue to recruit for the difficult to
fill skills and are not quite-as successful in doing that.

‘Still, all in all, the major incentive for bringiiig in hggh quality
]y:ung men and women is the GI bill-and the additional educational

ickers. So that is what those people are after.

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Thank you.

General CHEATHAM. It also might have been because that was
written in the Army Times.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Solomon.

Mr. SoLoMON. If General Cheatham and PX Kelly were to leave
the Marine Corps, it would drop the average age down to about 19.
Just an observation. Not personal, General.

Let me also put in a word for the Air Force here. We noticed a
little discrepancy as we were going around. One of the things that
we learned from the various recruit groups was the fact that in the
Air Force they seemed to think they had a better opportunity for
on-the-job training than " ey did in the other branches of the serv-
ice. That might have something to do with the fact you don’t have
as many signing up historically as we have in the other branches.
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That is no reflection on the other branches, but that seems to be
the feeling out there. In other words, in the Air Forces there is a
better opportunity to learn a trade and to have a career.

I was again really taken by the kind of recruits we saw in all
four branches. I think it was at the Naval Air Station in Orlando
where in one group that was going through, we had an opportunity
to speak with—personaily, there were three from New York City in
the group, two from the suburbs, outside the immediate suburbs of
New York City and two from Upstate New York. That was really a
cross section of America that was going through in that one pla-
toon of men. )

That is something that I hudn’t seen in the last 8 or 9 years, and
I am sure that the GI bill has a great deal to do with that along
with upgrading of salary and benefits, in general.

I think we all ‘have to take off our hats to all of you gentlemen.
You must be doing*sometlﬁxfl right out there. It is heartening to
see that in these days of an All-Volunteer military.

Admiral CARLSON. It is also helpful to come before committees
that want to do more for sailors. That is properly reported in all
our papers and it has a positive effect. You are a major contributor
to our sailors’ welfare.

Mr. SoromoN. It is nice of you to say that.

Also, General Cheatham, going along with what you said about
members of the Marine Corps enlisting for whatever reasons, in
one of those platoons we also had them raise their hands as to how
many enlisted specifically because of the GI bill and only two out
of about 30 raised.their hands.

I think that has a lot to do with it. I guess the concern that I saw
out there was over the young recruit coming in and having the
$106 a month for 12 months be a real factor. They, of course, are
Jjust out of high school and a $100 a month to them is a lot of
money.

There were a lot of them out there married, which surprised me.
There were a lot of them out there married who had children and
that surprised me and certainly a $100 a month in that category
could make quite a difference.

That, along with the period of having to make a decision within
6 to 8 days of setting foot on that base seemed to be a real draw-
back. I guess the one thing we would like to see you do over the
next year would be to really look at that and question those re-
cruits and give us some oversight as to what we might do in order
to solve those two problems.

Other than that, Mr. Chairman, I may have some other ques-
tions I would like to submit in writing, but, again, our hats are off
to you for doing a great job. We appreciate it.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Jontz.

Mr. JonTz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

If T might make an-observation to the panel. Before asking a
question, as Mr. Solomon and others hava said, the recruits were
ve? consistent in saying the brief duration of time in which they
had to make a decision was a factor, and I have no doubts that a
real effort has been made by the recruiters to get this program
across. However, we asked the recruits by a show of hands how
many had not heard of the GI bill before or didn’t know about the
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benefits. A large number of hands went up in every case, as 1

I have no doubts many efforts have been made. But for whatever
reasons, there are a large number of groups coming in that didn't
know about the benefits, and they expressed that to us,

Admiral Carlson, you commented about the $100, and Congress-
man Solomon did, too. One proposal that a number of these young
men and women made to us was the possibility of making their
contribution in the sum of $50 a month over a period twice as long
instead of the sum of $100. I would like to ask you, Admiral Carl-
son, whether you think that makes some sense.

Admiral Carison. 1 think it makes a lot of sense. I think you
would find more people would #ign up. It is a lesser bite of their
take-home pa eeg]i'lon.

Some join the military because they don’t have a job, so they are
keenly sensitive to pay. They view that we are going to take this
money from them- at a time when they need the money they
can get ri%ﬂ: now. They regret having later made the decision.

ifty dollars is an easier program to sign up for than twice that
amount of money. .

General ErToN. We agree with that 100 percent.

General Hickey. And the Air Force 100 percent.

General CHEATHAM. If there iz one thing that could be changed
that would be it.

Admiral BeLL. I also support that. The young men have heen told
everything. They are more concerned about where am I going to
sleep, what I am going to do, is the drill instructor going to harass
me. When you walk into boot camp and are then asked, what do
you want to do about your college future, the young person is look-
ing at the most important thing facing him, which is someone yell-

ing at him.
mf know we would get greater farticipation if we would extend the
length of the payment time. I would submit also that a longer

riod for them to siﬁn up or to make the decision would be help-
ul, so that they would have a little more rational frame of mind
than in those first couple of days of boot camp, would also increase
participation. -

Thank you.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Wylie.

Mr. WyLie. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. .

I think maybe General Cheatham, from my own observation, if
we put it in perspective as Mr. Solomon did a little earlier, there
griﬁ other incentives perhaps here besides the incentive of the GI

I think a lot of young le are enamored or were enamorad
with the Air Force and joined without the other incentives so you
didn't have as difficult a time as getting recruits a the Army did.

Being an Army man, I can probably relate to that and the same
&n;gy be.said of the Marines. They didn't at one time have as much

ifficulty recruiting young people. But as to the idea of retention—
and may I say that 1 have seen the full gamnt of the GI bill—when
I came out of the service, the GI bill had just been enacted.

I enlisted earlier for a different reason. Tli2 patriotic aspect and

the GI bill was just like a gift. But that was supposed to be an in-
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centive for me to re-adjust myself to civilian life, which is a far dif-
ferent concept than ggu are talking about here today.

Now, Linote that DOD is coming up with proposaL to stretch out
the time frame within which the benefits under the GI bill would
be available. Each of you heard about that?

Right now a veteran can get the maximum benefit if he serves in
the Armed Forces for 8 years, I believe. What would you think
about that stretch out, General Elton?

General ELToN. We found out about that this week. I am told it
is going to be staffed with the services so we can provide a formal
comment. Just let me say, though, I sent a daughter to college and
for $2,400 you can just about get in the front door for a year or a
couple of semesters, and that is what you get for the 2-year pro-

gram.

And a great number of individuals would not enter the service,
and not enter the service in the Army, and I think not enter in
increasing numbers in the Navzefor the 2-year program. For 38
years they get $10,800 as a basic benefit, and this would be reduced
$4,800, and that is a considerable reduction.

I have no data I can provide to corroborate the fact we ‘have
driven—the heavy dollars available have driven people to shorter
enlistment terms. In fact, what we have is some data that shows by
de-linking the Army. college fund and the bonus, we have driven
people to shorter-terms. We are going through a number of terms
ofservices evaluation in which we are finding there are many in-
centives which, in fact, will help to move them to longer terms, but
that the GI bill basically is, as our Chief of Staff, General Wick-
ham, has stated in. his testimony in front of the Senate, the very
most critical recruiting incentive that the Army has, and we don't
want to see it changed at all;

‘Mr. WyLIE. You want to leave it the same way it is?

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. Would the gentleman yield in that?

The National Guard can comment on this. Am I correct in safying
that 6-year enlistments have increased significantly because of the
New GI Bill requirement of a 6-year enlistment? , your re-en-
listments for maybe 2 or 3 years are increasinf to 6 years.

In fact, just the 6-year re-enlistments will pay for the GI bill
under the rve program because you are not having to retrain
or train new personnel to fill those different jobs. Training costs

ill g0 way down.

General DEAN. Yes, sir, the retention rate is currently at 80.7
percent, which is the best it has been in any number of years re-
certly, We also have a higher number of 81e who are staying
for «ne 6 gears, as you indicated, which at $20,000 average to train
an individual to come in to one of these branches of the Army is
definitely a saving.

Not question about it.

General CHEATHAM. If I may tie onto that, the Marine Corps Re-
serve has increased 6-year enlistments. Six-year enlistments have
g(f)fggt from 61 to 79 percent since the Reserve GI b:!ll has been in
effect.

Mr. Wy, I see my time is up. You may want to comment on
this for the record as to DOD coming up with a proposal to stretch
out the GI bill benefit.
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Mr. Dowpy. General McMerty, did you want to respond?

General McMerty. In the Guard at large, we have got about 60
percent of the participation in the program from the Reserve com-
ponents. If you look at our statistics, you will find that we have the
lowest turnover as well.

Of people that I talked to in the fie). -.out three-quarters of
them feel like the GI bill is the most imj~ctant initial entry or en-
listment incentive that we have and about half of them feel like it
is the most significant re-enlistment or retention tool that we have.

While that is not scientific, it is very useful in terms of evaluat-
ing the value of this program to the National Guard.

Mr. Dowpy. Mrs, Patterson.

Mrs. PaTTersoNn. No questions.

Mr. Dowpy. All right. We want to thank each of you very much
for your appearance here today and your help.

Mr. Dowpy. Next we have a panel of witnesses from the educa-
tion area. The panel includes Dean J. Clay Smith, Jr., Howard Uni-
versity Law School; Mr. Charles Saunders, vice president for gov-
ernment relations, American Council on Education; Mr. Frank
Mensel, vice president for federal relations, American Association
of Community and Junior Colleges; and Ms. Bertie Rowland, presi-
dent, National Association of Veterans Program Administ-ators.

Before we hear from this panel, I would like to introduce and
note the presence of Gen. Eston Marchant, the Adjutant General of
South Carolina. He is here representing the National Guard Asso-
ciation. I am told he must catch a plane at 3 this afternoon and
may not be able to testify because of that. We know of his strong
support for the New GI Bill.
tora'e appreciate his support and thank him for being with us

y. .

Mrs. PatTeRsoN. If it would be appropriate, I want to thank him
for being here. He is one of my good friends at home, and I appreci-
ate him making the trip up here. I understand he is going to be
roasted at home this evening. He had better go home and check
that roast out:

Mr. Dowpy. We would be happy to allow you a few minutes.

STATEMENT OF MAJ. GEN. T. ESTON MARCHANT, ADJUTANT GEN-
ERAL, STATE OF SOUTH CAKOLINA, NATIONAL GUARD ASSO-
CIATION OF THE UNITED STATES

General MArCHANT. I want to say I am here assisting in repre-
senting the National Guard Association of {he United States. Gen-
eral Stroud, our president, is also here. He asked me to be present
and make a few comments.

Let me first say a genuine word of thanks for all that the Con-
gress of the United States has done in the area of support for the
Guard and Reserve, which is substantial, down through the years;
and I 'might, if I may, just add quickly that out there in the States,
and I am talking about the National Guard, where the actual re-
cruiting and the retention work is done, the GI bill is the single
most effective tocl we have for recruiting, for retention, and for
training, which is the bottomn line.

T
kYR

38




83

It tremendously impacts, I would like to point out, not only on
the student enlistee—and the high school student is the primary
target we have in the Guard—it also impacts on the on-board mem-
bers who want to continue with their education. It also impacte on
the parents of our:prospect, our enlistee, and on or that on-board
member. The parents nave a far better attitude about the National
Guard and our recruiting because of the opportunities we can
afford their children, as well as, of course, the financial aid we are
able to provide. .

And the educators, Mr. Chairman, and members of the commit-
tee, in the high schools much more readily accept the Guard into
their schools {and that is a problem in some instances) because
they realize we are going to be able to provide those students of
theirs with a further educational opportunity from a financial
standpoint beyond the high school era. I would like to point out
specifically to you, and I think it is indicative, that in South Caroli-
na our accession figures, our enlistment figures, continue to rise, to
climb, and our retention rate has significantly improved over the
past 1% years due in large measure to the New GI Bill,

I am told, and'I had it provided for this opportunity, that since
July 1, 1985, t5 daie, we have had 2,628 young Guardsmen and
women take advantage of the New GI Bill.

In conclusion, I would like to say modernization and sophistica-
tion are the names of-the games these days, in all of the military,
certainly inclusive of the Guard, and we need not only t{o have
people, but smart people, smart strength, and therein lies the main
advantage and asset of the GI bill.

I appreciate again, Mr. Chairman, the opportunity for being with
you. I apologize for interrupting. I thank my representative, Mrs.
Patterson, for helping out.

[The prepared statement of the National Guard Association ap-
pears on p. 184.]

Mr. Powpy. Do any members of the panel have any comments or
questions?

Mr. MonTGoMERY. We saw the general at Fort Jackson, S.C. He
was very helpful. He came out on an inspection trip Wednesday.
Thank you very much for your courtesies when we were in South
Carolina.

Mr. Dowpy. We want to welcome the next panel, and I have al-
ready introduced each of you. Dean Smith was on active duty with
the Army where he served as captain in the Judge Advocate Gen-
eral Corps. We introduced some of you. You may feel free to talk
from your written statements, or perhaps most helpful to the com-
mittee would be your informal remarks and comments about the
GI billsandhhow it has affected the institutions that you represent.
Dean Smith.
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STATEMENTS OF J. CLAY SMITH, JR., DEAN OF THE HOWARD UNI-
VERSITY LAW SCHOOL; CHARLES SAUNDERS, VICE PRESIDENT
FOR GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS, AMERICAN COUNCIL ON
EDUCATION; FRANK MENSEL, VICE PRESIDENT FOR FEDERAL
RELATIONS, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNITY AND
JUNIOR COLLEGES; AND BERTIE ROWLAND, PRESIDENT, NA-
%%AL ASSOCIATION OF VETERANS PROGRAM ADMINISTRA-

STATEMENT OF DR. J. CLAY SMITH, JR.

Dr. J. CLAy Smrra.,, JR. I returned early from the deans’ meeting
of the American Bar Association held in New Orleans in order to
respond to the committee’s invitation to express my views on the
GI bill because of the importance that I attach to it.

As a law educator, I always try to find principles which under-
gird_legislation. Reviewing some of the testimony, the following
words seem to support the principles undergirding the GI bill. The
Speaker of the House Jares Wright said the “best financial invest-
ment this country ever made was the GI bill of Rights at the end of
World War II. It sent an entire generation of Americans to college,
and our country has been reaping the benefits ever since.” I agree
with that principle.

I also agree with the principles stated by Congressman G.V.
Montgomery on February 11 regarding H.R. 1085, in which he said
that “the newest GI bill is the latest to help carry out our national
obligation to assist servicemen in their efforts to achieve maximum
potential as individuals and as citizens.”

Since the enactment of the first GI bill in 1944, over 18 million
veterans and service personnel have received educational assist-
ance under the GI bills. These include 7.8 million under the World
War ii GI bill and almost 2.4 million under the Korean GI bill and
over 8 million under the Vietnam-era post-Korean GI bill.

I join thoee supporting to permanently fix the GI bill in the

exican dream. Though I am currently. the Dean of Howard Uni-
versity School of Law, I was first a veteran. I served as a captain in
the U.S. Army, the Jut{fe Advocate General’s Corps from 1967 to
1971. This es me a Vietnam war era veteran. I qualified for the
GI benefits during the last 2 years of my 4-year active duty com-
mitment. I was a flegular Army officer. I the GI bill to pay for
& portion of my master of laws degree, which I received from the
George Washington Universig' School of Law in 1971.

After resigning from the JAG Corps to return to private life, the
availability of the GI'bill made it possible for me to complete my
course requirements toward the highest academic degree awardzd
in law, the doctor of juridical science, which I received from the
George Washington National Law School in 1977. These education-

experiences were ample reason for me to write an unsolicited
letter to Congressman G.V. Mon%omery in 1986, after reading a
news account in the Washington Post about the GI bill and his ef-
forts, many of your efforts to make that bill permanent. I inform
him that I supported his and other Congressmen'’s efforts to fix the
GI bill as a permanent piece of legislative policy.

Now, in listening to the other witnesses that have testified in
other panels on the issue of refundability and transferability, it

Q
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seems to me now as an educator and as dean of a law school and
being associated in a-university of some 12,000 individuals, I think

that the -proposals or the thoughts that are going.into the issue of

refundability, and particularly transferability, make a lot of sense.
I look at the GI bill not as a regional issue but as a national issue,
not as an issue involving the rich-versus the poor, but as a funda-
mental American -policy issue. It covers everyone. It doesn’t dis-
criminate against anyone.

So the issue of transferablhty would allow a greater reach and a
greater incentive and morale for some military families and veter-
ans who might not be able to afford to educate their families. I
think that the American people across the board ought to support
the leglslatlon

Thank yo

[The prepared statement of Dean Smith appears on p. 166]

Mr. Dowpy. All right. In the order I introduced you, those of the
other witnesses, as we have said, some of you: hava prepared state-
ments, and ‘those will be mcorporated into the record.

STATEMENT OF CHARLES SAUNDERS

Mr. SAUNDERS. My name is Charles Saunders, ard I am grateful
for this opportunity to represent the American Council on Educa-
tion, which i an umbrella group representing all sectors of higher
education. I will be very brief.

I simply would like to reinforce what my testimony" says, that
this is—passage of this legislation is high priority for the higher
education community as a whole. We are very grateful to you and
Chairman Montgomery and your colleagues for your championship
of this legislation, and I simply note in my statement that we have
already circuiated to Congress a publication 1dent1fy1n§ our prior-
ities for the 100th Congress, and renewal of the New GI Bill is one
of those high priorities.

I think I will just leave it at that.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Saunders appears on p. 168.]

STATEMENT GF FRANK MENSEL

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Mensel.

Mr. MenseL. Mr. Chairman, I am Frank Mensel, and I head the
staff of the Joint Commission ¢n Federal Relations of the American
Association of Community and Junior Colleges, and the Association
of Community College Trustess.

Mr. Chairman, all Amenca.\.d we feel owe a great debt to Chair-
man Montgomery for his vision and perseverance in creating the
New GI Bill, which we think is clearly demonstrating that it en-
hances beth *he American Dream and American competltlveness
%gsthank every member of this committee .for cosponsoring H.R.

We commend in partlcular the Army and the National Guard
Buresu. for the imagination and vigor with which they are putting
the program to work.

Mr. Chairman, the community colleges are enthusiastic about
the opportunities that this bill, this program creates for American
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youth, especially for ﬁe’_edier students. It is a tremendous bulwark

of opportunity. -
‘Community collegés hadve been very active in supggrt of the New
GI.Bill since' the original -introduction of H.R. 1400 several Con-
-8g0, and our members have no cause to regret that support.
t is clear:to-us that the New GI Bill is exceeding its expectations
as.&-3-year pilot and -is.now making vital contributions to the na-

‘ional interest on at:least three fronts: First, greater national secu-

rity; second, increased post:secondary education access, and, ‘third,
a more competitive American skill base.

The program’s contributions to national security are underscored
by the marked im rovements in the general quality of personnel
entering the armed se.vices, and we think your military witnesses
toda%lhpve already been documenting that improvement rather
graphicaliy.

r. Chairman, .as.far as we are concerned, a vital;, perhaps the
most vital innovation in the New GI Bill, is the college incentives
it offers for ‘Reserve and National Guard members who take 6-year
enlistments. Those of us who have supported this innovation from
the beginning have often referred to it as an “up front” GI bill. By
allowing the Guard and Reserve enlistees to take college courses
while serving their military obligation, the program gives the de-
fense system the direct benefit of the enhaficed skills-~this in con-
trast with the-traditional GI bill, in which the skill enhancement
comes after the service. The more sophisticated our weapons sys-
tems -becortie, thé- more-dependent our security is on the skills of
the-personnel using them. ' o

Thismixing.of military service and- college training strengthens
both.national security and the economy, in both the short and the
long run. The college benefits that Guard and"Reserve members re-
ceive during their enlistments are bound to strengthen their civil-
ian careers. Many skills so gained will find their way sooner or
later into civilian defense work, as well as benefit the mili di-
br(e)ct};}y through extended enlistments. In many cases, they will do

th.

A perhaps more subtle benefit of the New GI Bill is its potential
for alleviating the competition among the military, employers and
higher education for the reduced flow of high school graduates.
This faces all three sectors in the next decade. In the jargon of af-
firmative action, great numbers of the Guard and Reserve enlistees
who use their New GI ‘Bill benefits will become “two-fers” and
“threefers.” By that, we mean they will go to college as full-time
students, serve as part-time soldiers and finally apply new skills in
part-time work, often defense-work.

It is worth noting, Mr. Chairman, a recent analysis by Carol
Frances, a consulting economist who is the former chief economist
of the American Council on Education, shows that the biggest
gingle step that a working American takes up the pay ladder is the
completion of the 2-year college degree. It shows that a worker
with.a 2-year college degree earns an average of 80 percent of what
a bachelors degree holder earns.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, we should not underestimate the impor-
tance of the Néew GI Bill to the American dream of universal post-
secondary educational opportunity. With a marked decline in the
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purchasing power of student financial aid as measured against full
costs of college attendance, increasing numbers of high school grad-
uates are likely to turn to the New GI Bill as their surest path to a
college education.

The only improvement we might suggest, Mr. Chairman, is that
the $100 a month contribution-from the servicemen be reduced or
eliminated. ;

In summary, the community colleges are enthusiastic about the
opportunities for greater productivity that the New GI Bill offers
both to individual. Americans aid to.the national economy. In its
quickening quest for an economic competitiveness policy-that will
give this country -the ‘technical education and skill base it must
have to meet the global challenge, Congress already has a corner-
stone in place in the New GI'Bill. -

We thank you again for this opportunity.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Mensel appears on p. 171.]

Mr. Dowbpy. Thank you, Mr. Mensel.

Ms. Rowland.

STATEMENT OF BERTIE ROWLAND

Ms. Rowranp. Thank you.

I am Bertie Rowlang, I represent the National Association of
Veterans Program Administrators. My organization is actually the
people that are on the college campus, the people that are actually
administering the GI bill to the veterans as they come to our
schools, helping them get enrolled and helping them how to budget

‘their money so they can get through the term.

We are pleased and encouraged by the high participation rate in
the New GI Bill as compared to the Chapter 32 Veterans Education
Asgistance Program. We know the improved participation rates
will have a dramatic effect on the-adjustment of these veterans as
they.return to civilian life and careers..

The availability of the financial assistance in the face of tighter
constraints in financial aid will be the key to successful return to
their educational goals. Many veterans and veterans’ programs
were frustrated by the poor participation in Chapter 32, the Veter-
ans Education Assistance Program. It was not uncommon to have a
veteran seeking assistance, only to find that they had not partici-
pated in the program.

The pool of ycung people is limited and the demand for bright
young, educationaily-oriented people is shared by the military, in-
dustry and education. the New GI Bill is attractive to young people
because it integrates these three demands. They can serve their
country, receive their.education and prepare for private sector, all
with a minimum of readjustment difficulty. The reservist GI bill
allows simultaneous pursuit in these areas.

We testified hefore this committee on the difficulties associated
with implementation of the New GI Bill, particularly the reservist
chapter 106. We are pleased to report that many of the problems
have been resolved, and some are being presently addressed. The
fact that this program is overwhelmingly accepted by the military,
the educational institutions and by individual reservists and Serv-
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ice membets hr . prompted a tremendous spirit of cooperation and
cecmmunication between these peoplé.

.Wenliot;kforward ‘to improvement in the determination of basic
e A

conclusion, NAVPA press is enthusiastic about the benefit of
the New GI Bill,'not only in terms of 81lll[s>port of vetérans’ educa-
tion but also-in terms of updating the skills of our people to partici-
ppate in.increasingly sophisticated military and an increasingly so-
phisticated society.

There are two things that I would like to mention that we, too,
would agree that the $100:a month reduction in pay should be ex-
tended over a 24-month:period, at least reduced $50 a month.

We feel we have people on active duty seeking our assistance and
very often we find that they wish they couid opt into the system
now even thoufh they are on active duty. They will contact us be-
cause they are looking forward to entering the university. So an ex-
tended period to opt in would be an advantage to those people.

'I'hanE -you very much, sir.

e Igorepared statement of Ms. Rowland appears on p. 174.]

. Downy. I.thank each of you for your testimony. When last
week we went to some of the military installations we had the op-
portunity to meet with reservists, as I remember, guardsmen, who
were inschool on-the GI bill. As:I remember it, in response to a

uestion from ‘Chairman Montgomery, each of them indicaied that

e program was working well in terms-of the Veterans’ Adminis-
tration getting them their checks. They were satisfied with the way
the program was-being carried out. Let me ask, is that the general
feeling? It seemed to be from-the indications we received lasi week
on our field hearings. ’ :

. Ms. KowLAND. Since I seem to be on the firing line on that, let
me respond to that. Things have improved significantly but there
are still significant problems:on. the processing of the notice of
basic eligibility. The National Guard has centralized their process-
ing somewhat as I understand: it, so that the unit levels are no
longer signing the NOBIs which is the-form that authorizes eligibil-
ity. But apf)aregtly there is still a problem. We have people that,
right now I have people in my files that have cut off benefits be-
cause they had not met. the requirements. Perhaps their high
school diploma was not ‘on file or perht‘aips,they actually did not
sign up for 6-year enlistment. Those woul the exceptions.

would .y the majority are going well but the proﬁlems always
seem to come back to processing at the unit level.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Mensel or Mr. Saunders? Do you went to talk
about that?

Mr. MENSEL. Our community college found in the early months
perhaps the first year of the program, the VA and the military
units were very slow to get the forms in place and get the informa-
tion circulated so that more members would take advantage of the
pr?igram, ‘and more colleges would build the liaison with the Guard
and Reserve units, especially to make the benefits available.

Our two community-college associations, nationally, are trying to
go out systematically to key States and hold 1-day, drive-in confer-
ences for community college administrators so they in turn get out
systematically to build the liaison with their Guard and Reserve
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units, because we believe that this ]?rogram will mean a great deal

to the skill base that this country has to have to meet global com-
petition, and if there are any members of this committee that
would like these associations to help you realize, conduct 1-day con-
ferences for the community college in your districts or in your
States, we would be glad to work with you.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Seunders?

Mr. SaunbEss. No further comment, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Dowpy.; One final question. Dean Smith might be able to re-
spond..T would ask all of you if you would like.

It is pretty obvious to me what the answer would .be but what
impact on the effectiveness of the GI bill would we have if we were
to have-a restructuring of the benefits so that they were reduced
by, sa}fl,tc 5}(1)9pet<;ent for a person who went into the military for a 3-
year . .

Dr. J. CLay SmitH., JR. One of the things fortunately that I have
been able to do in my busy life and career is maintain some friend-
ship with some youilg people, who are in the service, so evén
though I-don't know all the intricacies of the GI bill as the veter-
ans—except I always do want fc' make sure that that benefit got
there on time, that is why I smile because it was always sometimes
right-on the money when the day of registration occurred. That is
even back in the early 1970’s,

But I think the reduction is a proper direction, policy direction,
reduction from $100 to $50—isn’t that your question?

Mr. Downy. I did not mean that. I meant the reduction of the
benefits, not the reduction of the amount contributed by the young
man or woman, but rather the reduction in the amount that that
person-would:receive under the GI bill.

Dr. J. CLay SmrrH., JR. I don’t think I understand your question,
but if it is to reduce the benefits, I would be opposed to it. -

Mr. Dowpy. All right.

Dr. J. CLay Smrte, Jr. I just don’t think that that is the right
direction. for moral reasons first of all, and for educational assist-
ance and for forward movement under this program.

Mr. Downy. Maybe I didn’t phrase the question properly. I am
about out of time but what impact would it have if we cut the ben-
efits in half?

Mr. SAuNDERs. It could only be negative, Mr. Chairman, because
of the very serious scarcity that exists today of adequate financial
aid to hel peogle meet college expenses.

Dr. J. CLAY Smrth., JR. I just returned from a meetini as I said
before where the cost of education was evaluated in higher educa-
tion, and I think that even though the GI bill principle is for re-
cruitment and retention in the military, I think that there are
some good national, affirmative residual policies, and that is to en-
courage Americans to go on to college, and professional schools
such as medical and law school. These veterans are not marginal,
mentally marginal in terms of their .academic possibilities. I think
that to-reduce the ‘benefits would be contrary to the overall direc-
tion of having an educated society of people in or out of the mili-

Mr Dowpv: My time i§ almost up. ‘Ms. Rowland, do you care to
comment th()ugh'g,
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Ms. RowLAND. Yes, Thank you.

If $300 a month which is the current rate for a 3-year enlist-
ment, if:that will make the difference' on whether or not someone
goes to achool, you' can bet your bippy that $150 a month will look
a lot less attractive, particularly when if they are going into the
military they are looking at the financial aid structure. If they can
do as well in financial aid without giving 3 years of their life fo the
military, why should they go in the military? They w 1l lose the in-
centive as far as I' can see.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Smith. '

Mr. CuristoeHER H. SmitH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. .
Thank you for your testimony. I have a couple of questions.

Do you have any indication as to how many service men or
women who perhsps previously had not considered college for them
as an.option who because of the incentive of the GI bill, and be-
cause of some of the push théy received during recruitment or
during their first period of. time in the military, then decided and
opted for it. In other words, are we essentially getting a new clien-
tele that we could have expected otherwise?

Mr. MEnseL. My. only comment, Congressman, is that I think the
Army’s-own da*a clearly documents an affirmative response to
your question. The improvement as:-General Elton put it, is dra-
matic in the quality of the personnel that they are attracting. I
have heard Army officials say on many occasions that the New GI
Bill, because of 'thigifher quality, the new clientele as you.put it
that is being attracted.to serve, use of that quality, you have
eliminated an attrition of less skilled people from the Army, which
amounts to about a division, a whole division of the Army, from

That is,a tremendous, loss to the Army. I ti.ink those costs alone
might approach the cost of funding the-New GI-Bill.

Dr. J..CLay Smrrh,, Jr. I dor’t know about the Army statistics,
but I can tell you that with a son that is 22 years of age who is in
college, which is the average age of a person in the Marine Corps, 1
get.my statistics from-observing. some of the young men who did
not have an opportunity to go on to college and who did go into the
military. They knew I had been in the Service and the GI bill is
one of the incentives tkat I recommend to them when they ask me
why they sould.join the military. *

Mr. CuristorHER H. Smrra. Mr. Mensel, you indicated that you
felt there should be a reduction of the $100 per month contribution.
Are you thinking interms of reducing it to something like 50-50 or
a longer period of time? What is your situation?

Mr. MeNnseL. I think either of those options would be preferred,
Congressman. I think es Chairman Montgomery has indicated, that
is an impediment to some of the needier students. They just have
family obligations to meet and they cannot spare that hundred dol-
lars, whether -it is-for 6 months or a year. We don’t want to dis-
courage talented people from serving the countty and contributing
to cur national security.

Mr. CuristorHER H. Smrrh, Could you tell the committee what
the average tuition is, and perhaps room:and board.using that for a
comr-unity college, what the average tuition is per college?
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Mr. MensgL. Chairman, you may have later data than I, but my
impression is that total attendance costs for a community college
student right now are running in the range of $4,300 to $4,500 a

ear. Now you are talking tuition which averages probably $700 or
¥800 now across the country for a full academic year, two semes-
ters, three quarters. You add on top of thac meal costs, clothing
costs, commuting-costs; and-our students are primarily commuting
students. A lot-of t;aeople don’t understand that the average costs to
a commuting student are about the same as those to a boarding
student.. We have' managed finally in the Pell Grant program to
eliminate’ the différential between commuting and boarding stu-
dents. But the costs-are in that range.

One of the exciting things about the New GI Bill is that it offers
a needy student not only the $140 a month, assuming he or she is
doing an enlistment in the Reserve or Guard, on top of that the
drill pay, and on tep of that poseibly a Pell Grant, it makes the
kind of package where for the first time, a truly needy student
doesn’t have to put bread ahead ‘of education, taking care of roof
and sustenance for the family or relatives ahead of: doing a-good
job in school.

Now, with this combination those truly needy students have
something where\thg' can put education first.

Mr. CHrisTOPHER H. Smrra. Thank you.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Montgomery.

Mr. McNTGoMerY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Rowland, it is good to have you here again testifying before
our committee. Thank you for the help you have given us.

Mr. Saunders, nice to see you again. I want to also thank Dean
Smith. This is the first time I have had the o lportunii:y to meet
you. We have quoted your letter and shown it all around the coun-
try. Your letter was certainly helpful to us.

I'm pleased to see Frank Mensel who has been working with us
very closely on the GI bill. I guess you could call him “Mr. GI Bill
for Education:” Frank, you have been there, and you have been
outstanding in what you have done for us.

It's great when when you can have the Speaker come by. As
somebody pointed: out, this’is one of the few times a Speaker of the
House has appeared before a subcommittee and testified on legisla-
tion. So that is a plus for us. I don’t think we are going to have
much problem in the House of Representatives. But there could be
storm warnings in the Senate. We really need your help over there.

It takes a while to (get the word out to the educational facilities.
If schools think the GI bill is as important as we think it is, they
wiltldhave to be told we need their help in getting H.R. 1085 en-
acted.

Frank?

Mr. MeNserL. Mr. Chairman, we have 500 college trustees and
presidents in town here in Washington in this coming week for a
national seminar. They will all be working with the Congress, and
especially the Senate, on the issue. They will be making .the con-
tacts and we won't leiﬁ‘ou down, sir.

Mr. MonTGgoMERY. Thank you. I think in the House it would be
nice to thank members for supporting the GI bill. We have had it
up twice and there has never been a Member voting against it in

47

{142




42

the full House. We didn’t have a toll ¢all but no one got up and
opposed it. They said they were all for it.

So therefore, I think everybody is for it.

Mr. MenseL. Every House Member who sponsorzd that has al-
ready received a letter of thanks from our Joint Commission on
Federal Regulations.

Mr. MorircoMERY. We pointed out what the OMB }as told DOD
to do ubout ‘cutting back on the educational benefits. It is really
rather sad that they would come up with g proposal like this. We
figured out that-a young person going.on active duty and putting
up to $1,200 would have a total of $4,800. Then, you divide.by 36
and it comes to $133.per month for 36 months.

They have made a recommendation to OMB.to keep the Reserve
and ‘Guard. just. like it is .without putting up any money. The
guardsmen-or reservist gets $140 a month. So.that doesn’t make
sense. Surely they will go.back and take another look at that and
withdraw that requést. To send it-up would really be unkind in my
opinion. .

Thank you.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Solomon.

Mr. SoromoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, we have a lot of witnesses to testify and it is get-
ting late, so let me just concur in everything that our Chairman
Montgomery just said. We really appreciate your taking time to
come before us today. Thanks again.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Jontz. .

Mr. JoNrz. Mr. Chairman, if I might ask very quickly, would it
be correct to state that all of you would support changing the
method of payment for the young man or woman from $100 to $50
-a month over a longer period of time if that is what the recruit
chose? ' Would that be correct?

Ms. RowLAND. Yes.

Dr. d. CLAY Smrra., JR. Yes! I would think that. It should be left
to the recruit. Some may want to contribute $100 a mont’,; the
amount contricuted should be at the choice of the individual.

Mr. MeNsEL, I like the Dean’s suggestion. If it can be executed at
the option of the service person himself or hzisclf, that would be
wonderful. Whatever contract they want to make during the course
of their enlistment. If they want to put $1,209 on the line when
they enlist, put that in the ‘Federal Treasury, so much the better.

Mr. SAUNDERS. Colixsgreesman,- hat.sounds like a very reasonable
suggestion to me. I just havye to state that as far as the association I
represent, we simply took no position on amendments to it. Our po-
sition is simply to support extensign. \ .

Mr. JoNTz. And could I ask\would it be the position of each
of you that the 2l meny, of transferability would be desirsble, ¢r do
you have a positioh? Could you address the t sferability of bene-
fits to a spouse or tb children? \

Mr. Mensgv. I think that kind of flexibility would work in the
national interest. I§ would strengthen the commitment of the serv-
ice personnel to extend their service to work harder for this pro-
gram. . )

.
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‘Dr. J. Cray Smrth,, JR. I would say that if the bill ran into diffi-
cultz on the issues of transferability or refund, I would let it go for
the broader principal. ‘

" I think that any investment in the serviceman really saves the

American people money, and if they stay in the service after train-
ing just for transferability of the benefit, I think that the Office of
Management and Budget ought to look at that and do what they
usually do and do a cost survey.

Mr. MENSEL. Let me emphasize the first priority of the communi-
ty colleges is to get the program enacted as permanent law. What-
ever nzia are involved we would have to weigh those as to whether
they reduce that probability or enhance it.

Mr. Jontz. Thank you.

If'T might ask one ‘question of you, Ms. Rowland. You mentioned

* that from time to .time you have active servicemen and women

come ta’k to you who did not sign up for the GI bill. When we were
discussing earlier.the timing of when the recruit has to make-a de-
cision, we were thinking at what time ‘in their basic training made
most sense to agk them. )

Would that idea appea! to you, given that there are a large
number of young men and women in the Armed Forces now who
decided against participating when they enlisted for whatever rea-
sons and now see the importance of it?

Doeef th:hjdea appeal to yoél of some ﬁﬁoit to allo*w ti.lx?t optiotg
again for these young men and women who ¢ ose not to participa
then, but now would like to?

Is that something you think would be helpful and provide some
educational benefits to these members of the armed services who
will be coming through later?

Ms. RowLAND. Absolutely, because it opens that opportunity for
them again to become, better readjusted; better educated citizens
upon their discharge,

If I might add, one of the individuals that I talked to, he was an
American, and he said—he strengthened what the people from the
military sajd earlier. All he was concérned about when he was in
boot camp was not getting yelled at. He didn’t have the time to
think- about whether or not’he really wanted to participate in an
educational program.

He was 10 months into the: service when they contacted me to
find out if there was anything that he could do. He also didn’t un-
derstand his options at the time. Apparently he was on a delayed

" enlistment and came in after July 1, 1985, which would put him

into the New GI Bill, but when he enlisted there was much confu-
sion, and they thought he would only be eligible for that one sec-
tion.

It was an interesting situation.

Mr. Jonrtz. Thank you.

Mr. Dowpy. Ms. Patterson.

Ms. PATTERSON. No questions, thank you.

Mr. Dowpy. We want to thank each of the witnesses for being
with us and for helping us this afternoon. Thank you very much.

Our next panel is a Ig,;roup of mili associations. If you don’t
object, we will submit the statements of each of the remaining wit-
nesses for the record and go straight to the questions.
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We want to have an opportunity %o talk with many of you who
were with the group when we went to Kentucky, Texas, Florids,
and South Carolina last week.

Mr. Dowpy. The witnesses include Chief Alan D. Obermiller, ex-
ecutive director of the Enlisted Association of the National Guard;
Col. Ben S. Catlin, assistant executive director of the Air Force As-
sociation; Mr. Robert W. Nolan, national executive secretary, Fleet
Reserve Association; Ansel M. Stroud, Maj. Gen., president of the
National Guard Association of the United States; and Col. Edward
P. Smith, director of membership services with the Association of
the U.S. Army.

STATEMENTS OF ALAN D. OBERMILLER, CMS (RET.), EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, ENLISTED ASSOCIATION OF THE NATIONAL GUARD
OF THE UNITED STATES; CCL. BEN 8. CATLIN, ASSISTANT EX-
ECUTIVE DIRECTOR, AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION; ROBERT W.
NOLAN, NATIONAL EXECUTIVE SECRETARY, FLEET RESERVE
ASSOCIATION;. MAJ. GEN: ANSEL M. STROUD, PRESIDENT, NA-
TIONAL GUARD ASSUCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES; AND
COL. EDWARD P. SM_TH, U.S. ARMY (RET.), DIRECTOR OF MEM-
BERSHIP SERVICES, ASSOCIATION OF THE U.S. ARMY

Mr. Dowpy. First, gentlemen, i it meets with your approval,
some of you have prepared statements. We would like for those to
be made a part of the record, and in the order that I introduced
you, you would present your statements.

Mr. Dowpy. Would any of you like to make eny comments about
any of the testimony that you have heard from prior witnesses or
any matter that is uot included in your prepared statement?

STATEMENT OF ROBERT W. NOLAN

Mr. NovaN. Mr. Chairman, speaking for the Fleet Reserve Asso-
cintion, J was somewhat surprised today to learn of the Depart-
ment of Defense’s proposal or the Administration’s, whichever it
would be, to reduce the GI bill benefits.

Without & doubt—speaking as a shipmate that has 159,000 mem-
bers ihat are career versonnel of the Navy and Marine Corps and
Coast Guard and enlinted—such a veduction in benefits, we believe,
would gut the G bill

We stand by our position of full support of the bill now. We
agree with Chairman Montgomery's priorities that he stated very
frankly to the recruits in our visit last week, that we fec! it is im-
perative—I say particularly sc sic.ce the Administration has hopes
of changing the plan—that the pian be made permanent, and then
take a good hard look at the various amendments that we have
hea}:l-d about, all of which the Fleet Reserve Association agrees
with.

But nevertheless, we would bow to the uigency of getting a per-
manent law on the bouks rather than try to improve the bill at this
time.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Nolan appears on p. 179.]
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STATEMENT OF COL. BEN 8. CATLIN

Colonel CATLIN. Ben Catlin with the Air Force Aseociation, and
we would enthusiastically support the position of Mr. Nolan’s, to
get the bill through and not support the DOD changes at all.

qlélr}e] prepared statement of the Air Force Association appears on
p. 187.

STATEMENT OF MAJ. GEN. ANSEL M. STROUD

General Stroup. On behalf of the National Guard I would like to
express our appreciation for being allowed to testify here today. We
strongly susf)oxt- H.R. 1085, and statistically we.can prove that for
the National Guard, both the Army National Guarg and the Air
National Guard, that the program is working. We are recruiting
the highest intelligence-level soldier and airmen we have ever re-
cruited; our retention rate is higher and our turnover rate is lower.

t, in essence, proves the program is working.

[The prepared statement of the National Guard Association ap-

pears on p. 184.]

STATEMENT OF SGT. ALAN D. OBERMILLER

Sergeant OBERMILLER, Mr, Chairman, the Enlisted Association of
the National Guard of the United:States absolutely goes on record
to support the New GI Bill and it's being made into permanent leg-
islation. We would resolutel oppose anieconsideration to make the
benefits less than they sare use we believe that any attempt to
do that would take the attraction of the program away, not only
hurting training and retention of the Reserve forces but also the
Nation as a whole by turning away people who are currently moti-
vated to get a higher education. If you turn them off at this critical
point in their life, then they will turn their back and go someplace
else and the Nation as a whole will suffer.

9[4’1}19 prepared statement of Sergeant Obermiller appears on p.
|

STATEMENT OF COL. EDWARD P. SMITH

Colonel Smrry. Mr. Chairman, I rexreeent the Membership Serv-
ices of the Association of the U.S. Army and we wholeheartedly
support-the efforts in the immediate passage of H.R. 1085 to make
the GI bill permanent »sw. We would, support consideration of
changes later but we feel it is important to make th. legislation
permanent now.

I would also like to add, and this is the only thing I need to add
at this point, you have heard General Elton speak of the impact of
the bill on quality of enlistments in the Army and you heard the
academicians speak on the manner in which colleges and academic
ingtitutions are handling the results of the products of the GI bill.

I would like to gut in a plug ‘and say that the two institutions
have worked together and' recently the Army signed an agreement
with the Association of Collegiate Registrars' and Admissions Offi-
cers. This* provides c‘;oun.s;elin%1 for those who are about to depart
from the service, who have the benefits of the GI bill coming to
them. It line8 them up and guarantees that this counseling is done
before they depart the ranks so that they are admitted and ready
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to go onto college campuses and to begin the transition to civilian
life that the bill provides for them.

Trr}iank yoparedh’ o8 statomene ot Colonel Smith 191]

e pre ment o onel Smith appears on p. 191,

Mr. lgowny. All right, let me lead off wit% one question. Last
week several of you were with us as we went to some installations
and as I have said earlier, we asked a numher of people who were
participating in the Erog;'am, specifically I remember in Texas
somﬁedAir National Guardsmen as I recall, how the program
worked.

As I understand it, the VA mails them their checks. Are there
problems with the set up and are the checks getting there on tite?

Do any of you have any information that would lead us to ihe-
lieve that changes should be made in the structure of how tie
checks are delivered?

General STrRoup. Mr. Chairman, I am also the Adjutant General
of the State of Louisiana. I know of no instances in our State in
recent months where there have been any problems with recipients
of this benefit. Initially, in 1985, the guidelines were slow in
coming down. There was little publicity. There was confusion, but
once the program got underway it is working and working well.

I would simply like to add that in our State 82 percent of the
people that have enlisted in the Army National Guard since Octo-
ber 1, 1986, said that they enlisted because of the benefits of the GI
bill and in a recent survey of our Air National Guard, 67 percent of
those interviewed said that they would not have enlisted had it not
been for the GI bill. So it is important.

Sergeant Ope=mMiLLER. I would think that basically if there are
problems, and I am not aware that there are significant problems,
that they are probably startup problems. In other words, by startup
problems I mean getting basic documents, copies of documents to-
gether to initially go into a college or a commurity college. Once
that is established, I don’t believe there are any problems out there
that I have heard of.

Colonel Smrri. I would agree with my colleagues’ statements. I
believe the problems probably do exist but they are start up prob-
lem. as with any new program, almost all of us experience a cer-
tain difficulty. But they can be overcome and.I think the right
people are working on them.

Mr. Dowpy. All right. Chairman Montgomery.

Mr. MoNTGoMERY. Thank you very much.

I appreciate. our witnesses staying around. Actually the hearing
is moving very quickly, thanks to you, Mr. Chairman, and the
ranking minority member. We do have two other panels but I do
appreciate the witnesses here today. Your statements will be in the
record and they will help us. I want to thank Colonel Smith, Bob
Nolan, and Chief Obermiller for coming on our 2 day inspection
trip for the GI bill. That was most helpful.

Thanks also to General Stroud, who is an old friend. General
Wellman was very enthusiastic when we got to Kentucky. He
brought all the Kentucky press that were there. He was very, very
help: l;'l{,'The National Guard and Reserve groups have been totally
supportive.
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The Administration is really not bothering the Reserves or the
National Guard. They are leaving that program alone. But we
want and need the active forces under the GI bill, also. So, I know
you are not backing off from helping us because you have not been
ney ot h the whol d we h

e need your help to carry the whole program and we ave to
ve the Active and Reserve and National Guard all tigather, and
we will have a strong military force. )
thf‘am sure that is everybody down the line, that you are watching

t. .

General Stroup. Right.

Mr. Downy. Mr. Solomon,

Mr. SoLoMON. Mr. Chairman, let me Just say as the Ranking Re-
publican on the full Veteran's Affairs Committee I want to also
thank all of you that were with us including those out in the audi-
ence. It certainly was a tremendously productive trip and I think it
i8 going to provide what we need to push this through the entire
Congress and as you said, we are here today not 50 much to lock at
the problems or how we can improve the peacetime GI bill today
but to take it one step at 2 time. Let's permanentize it, make sure
it will be there for the f .are and then we can look into possible

c s,

I think there are obvious changes that need to be made such as
the $100 per month over a short period of 12 months, and perhaps
other changes, but again, your testimony and as Sonny Montgom-
ery has said, your support in getting this through the Congress is
going to be vital. We really do appreciate your taking time to come
here today.

I will reserve some possible questions for the record. I am sure
you all won't mind if we submit questions to you in writing. We
might want to have them inserted in the record and they will help
us for future changes we might want to make.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.,

Mr. Downy. Mr. Jontz. . .

Mr. JonTz. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. DowpY. Mrs. Patterson.

Mrs. PaTTERSON. No questions.

Mr. Dowpy. Again, we want to thank each of you for being with
us last week, those of you who went with us, and for your presence
here today. Thank you very much.

Our next panel includes Gen. William R. Berkman, military ex-
ecutive, Reserve Forces Policy Board, Richard W. Johnson, director
of legislative affairs, the Non Commissioned Officers Association of
the United States of America, Capt. Charles Buesener, director of
legislation, Naval Reserve Association, Col. Charles C, Partridge,
USA (ret.), legislative counsel, the National Association for Uni.
formed Services, Mr. Rudy I Clark, director of military and gov-
ernment relations, Air Force Sergeants Association, Ronald
Hayden, vice president for administration, Navy League of the
United States, and Maj. Gen. Evan L. Hultman, AUS (ret.), execu-
tive director, Reserve Officers Assosiation of the United States.
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STATEMENTS OF GEN. WILLIAM R. BERKMAN, MILITARY EXECU-
TIVE, RESERVE FORCES POLICY BOARD; RICHARD W. JOHN-
SON, DIRECTOR OF LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS, THE NGN COMMIS.-
SIONED OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA; CAPT. CHARLES BUESENER, DIRECTOR OF LEGISLA-
TION, NAVAL RESERVE ASSOCIATION; COL. CHARLES C. PAR-
TRIDGE, USA (RET.), LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL, THE NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION FOR UNIFORMED SERVICES; RUDY I. CLARK, DI-
RECTOR OF MILITARY AND GOVERNMENT RELATIONS, AIR
FORCE SERGEANTS ASSOCIATION; RONALD HAYDEN, VICE
PRESIDENT FOR ADMINISTRATION, NAVY LEAGUE OF THE
UNITED STATES; AND MAJ. GEN. EVAN L. HULTMAN, AUS (RET.),
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, RESERVE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF
THE UNITED.STATES

Mr. Dowpy. Let me again thank those of you who were with us
last week for your assistance then and all of you for being present
here today.

Let me again ask, with your permission, that we place your writ-
?n statements in the record and that we throw it open for ques-

ions.

It should be apparent for all of you that everyone on the commit-
tee, on both sides of the aisle and in it is a truly bipartisan sense,
feels the New GI Bill should be made permanent and its structure
should remain essentially intact; the VA should continue to fund
the readjustment portion of the program, that basic benefit, and
that the benefit should to be reduced.

Is there anyone in the panel who disagrees with any of those
statements?

%ngrtgé{m. No,

Mr. HaypeN. No, sir.

STATEMENT OF MAJ. GEN. EVAN L. HULTMAN

General HUuLTMAN. Mr. Dowdy, I would only say, that I regret
that I didn't have the opportunity last week to join your grou(p. In
my defense, my only excuse was that at that particular time I was
in Europe -representing 800,000 NATO Reserve officers who are
ﬁaced with similar types of problems that you are dealing with

ere.

1 would make two observations, if I could beyond what I have re-
flected in our brief remarks. I think it is incredible that this audi-
ence, from all of the sectors that have been rezresented here, start-
ing with the military itself, all the Active Forces first, the Reserves
and so forth, that on the basic issue they are all in sgreement.

To to my knowledge, you have not heard on single objection of
any kind on the bill itself. I would, Congressman Montgomery,
egree wholeheartedly with what you said, that we are in this ball-
game &l together, I would add that this is the only program really
that has given those incentives to the Reserves, the National
Guard and the non-Nationsl Guard Reserves. So it is critical from
that side of the house.

I am not acting as a member of the Finance Committee or any-
thing else, but in a period of budget constraints and the problems

CiA
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that you individually and collectively will face, the Reserve is going
to be given greater and greater responsibilities in terms of the total
force, and rightly-so, We.feel* we are going to have to make abso-
lutely certain that weé don’t cut, in any way, those incentives or do
anything that would niake it more difficult for the Reservist citizen
soldier, with his family ‘responsibilities, his Jjob responsibilities, his

community’ reéponsibilities, as well as his national responsibilities

‘for defense.

I would add a caveat. I think, without quéstion, we must be very
careful .and changing—I don’t like to use the word “tinkering”
with—the bill you-have passed. I am refeffering to the two or three
or four changes you have talked. about here. It is a fact that all the
record is good, Everything you have heard from every diréction is
good. So I think you must be very careful and very cautious in this
period of-budget _constraints, et cetera, that you do not do anything
lt)}e}‘at gull mean a greater charge on the dollars by increasing the

ensfits,

If it is working great now, then you must be very careful in-
terms of increasing whatever those benefits are or should be. Even
if &l of us would agree that change would be good and might help,
I think we have to be very, very careful in analyzing and consider-
ing any change in any way. It is good:now; it is working: now, so
before we start changing -anything we must be very, very careful.

I will just use one single illustration. I think everybody-basically
agreed that the decision period is a problem. I understanding that
all the young GIs, reservists ard actives, thought the period ought
to be extended, There are inherent problems with that when you
analyze it. On the surface it would appear to be a great thing. First
of all, you get the .administrative problems—we .heard the young
lady talk about them.

When you change. from the Veteran’s Administration 1o some-
where else, we have to start up all over again. We are aii for the
New GI. Bill; it is good, it has.worked. In a time of budget con-
straint let’s be very.careful about doing things differen’, unless we
know absolutely, one, that the changes are going to better the pro-
gram without any question, and two, that we are not going io run
into a buzz saw in that “cther House”, as Chairman Montgomery
referred to it. We need the program as it is now. If it can be im-
proved upon, that is great but let’s don’t run-any risk in the proc-

€88,

[The prepared statement of General Hultman appears on p. 200.]

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Montgomery.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

I would like to thank our panel. Maybe some of them would like
to comment. Mr, Johnson, this is the first time I have ever heard
you be quiet, '

Mr. JounsoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate t}.ac.

I made a special effort not to say anything. But now that you
have opened the door, sir—

Mr. MoNTGOMERY. You might pull that microphone up.
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STATEMENT OF RICHARD W.JOHNSON
Mr. JounsoN. If I may comment it would only be-to echo what so

many. others have:said, and that is that we need to make the pro-
am permanent: I do think that on the top T want to thank you

‘for inviting NCOA: to come along on'the trip.

I think we identified a couple -of .administrative_problems that
the committée could encourage the Department of Defense to cor-
rect. Orie .wag we noticed the more simple the presentation given
the recruits, the gréater the enroliment in the program.

The more information we clouded the minds of the young people
with, the less likely they are to understand what they are enrollins
in. In one case, thére was a kid that stood up and asked if he ha
to pay for his own in-service occupational training.

e was ‘80 confused by the education presentation that he got—
that was dewn in Florida.

I think that is unfortunate. I think we should advise DOD to give
a more simple presentation.

I think that would help enrollment. At the same time I think we
should advise DODto amend their regulations requiring decisions
within the first 14 days<to a required decision before the end of

basic-training. Obviously, before but not within those first 14 days.

Aside from .that, Mr. Chairman, I once again extend my appre-
ciation to,you for inviting NCOA along.

[The pre%are‘d statement of the Non. Commissioned Officers Asen-
ciation of the United States of America appears on p. 207.]

. STATEMENT OF GEN. WILLIAM R. BERKMAN
General ‘BEREMAN. Mr. Chairman, I would like to explain the

fact I am the only -witness in uniform at this table. I am the Mili-

tary Executive of the'Reserve Forces Policy Board within the Office
the Secre of Defense. '

That is a board that is chaired by the Honorable Will Hill Tan-
kersley and its membership is com -of general and flag officers
of each of the services, Active and Reserve components, including
the National Guard, and the Assistant Secretaries for. Reserve Af-
fairs-of each service.

The current report of the Board has just been sent by the Secre-

of . Defense to the President. It is currently being printed and
it will be distributed to each member of this committee, and the
entire House. In their report the board points out.that “one of the
most critical factors in achieving force readiness is the ability to
meet the Selected Reserve maérif)ower requirements—both in num-
bers and in quality in no sm part.” Undeniably recruiting and
retention successes are-due to incentives such as the New Gl Bill.

That is:the reason that the Reserve Forces Policy Board has sup-

rted the New GI Bill and for over 2 years has recommended that
it be continued and made permanent. legislation.

As a matter-of fact, I think it is significant that, not only repre-
sentatives that you have heard today, Generals Dean, Cheatham,
and chief Obermiller, and Generals Marchant, McMerty, Stroud,
but representatives that we heard on the field trip from the Re-
serve components at Lackland Air Force Base, Orlando Naval Sta-
tion, Fort Knox, and Parris Island, without exception they all em-
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" phasized: the importance of the New GI Bill in supporting the im-

provements that the Reserve components are experiencing not only
‘in recruiting but also retention.

L:appreciate the.opportunity to-provide the position taken by the
Reserve Forces Policy Board and.to commend you-and Chairman
‘Montgomery ;:and :members of- the-subcommittee and the entire
committee for what {ouiha;\ie done for the Reserve components in
the New GI'Bill for t e Selectéd Reserve,

. you very much. -

[The prepared statement of:Gengral Berkman appears on p. 205.]

‘Mr. MONTGOMERY. Mr. Chairman, my time has expired, could
have 3 more minutes? > .

These gentlemen did go on the trip with-us and——

.Mr. Dowpy. Without objection. .

‘Mr. MONTGOMERY [continuing]. And it would be helpful to share
their experiences. Charlie Buesener?-

-STATEMENT OF CAP.\. CHARLES BUESENER

Captain BUESENER. As the only sailor in the group, and not too
far removed as commanding officer of the largest Air and Marine
Corp Air Reserve Station on the East Coast, I would like to make
these short observations. .

The Reserve is the most voluntary of all voluntary forces. If the
reservist doesn't like you regardless of whether you have approved
them for reenlistment, he tells you by néver again showing up.

Unlike the active duty p ople we have no-hold-over these people.
Item 2, the Naval Air Reserve and Marine Corps Reserve training
cycle is essentially a 3-year.cycle for the selected reservist. This is
due to the complexity of the weapons systems, also the length of
some of the schooling.

It is most discoutraging to invest in an individual 1% or 2 years
of training and then have him opt not to stay. Force mandp-l;wer sta-
bility is the most important-element in Regerve force readiness.

e Reserve portion of the GI bill is easily going to be paid for
by the 6-year enlistment obligation. When we talk about air crew,
the payoff is even more quickly achieved.

A typical enlisted aircrew ‘requires about 50 to 100 hours of air
time at $1,000 an hour to get'qualified in a key crew slot. This man
onboard for 6 years is truly a rapid pay back for the investment.

Also, I would like to say that at NAg Willow Grove, I also had
1,100 active duty full-time sailors and marines onboard the base. I
would recommend in your deliberations that you consider ve;
carefully not changing the GI bill from comin under the VA Ad-
ministration. If you vzill, all' too often the sad history of military
reenlistment bonuses has taken in the sailors’ mind li—:{xe aspects of
a-flesh market bonus.

As soon as the piyramid is filled up the bonus disappears. It is an
appropriate type of thing.

I think we have to strongly stress to- these people that once
earned this is a vested entitlement and it is not subject to the va-
farities of inventory fill, of reaching our goal ‘and short-term reen-
uigteément quotas. It is there and there will remain forever until
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Therefore, I.would urge it not to be linked so strongly with other
recruitment incentives although I will admit that it functions in
much the same way. - -

A final comment because I am talking longer here, the Naval Re-
serve and-the Naval-Air Reserve, are going to grow 20,000 addition-
al people in the next 2 'to 8 years, 20,000 selected reservists. This is
exclusively high-tech growth primarily due to the laxge increase in
health care professionals and a migration of more and more sophis-
ticated ’ec’lul;ﬁment into the Reserve forces.

The GI bill is-absolutely tailored to %,rovide the hi-tech bodies not
only qualitatively but quantitatively. We have to get people in and
retain them, people that we can teach once and build the next
month on what they learn. this month, and not repeat the same
train. As we had.to do in the past. :

Thank you very much.

[L'l;?e, repared statement of Captain Buesener appears on p. 211]

M. ?ONTGOMERY. Thank you.

udy

Mr Crark. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

On. comment, of course—

Mr. MoNTGoMERY: Would you tell us who you represent?

STATEMENT OF RUDY I. CLARK

Mr. CrArk. The Air Force Sergeants Association, sir. It is a
gshame we couldn’t have gotten 315'more bills in the hopper. We
got so use to stomping H.R: 1400 it is hard to remember to say H.R.
1085, but we will work it.
~ The Air Force hates to.be last in any program and as you heard
General Hickey say, there are incentives being built and we hope
that the next time we have an opportunity to speak to you that we
will be able to say that we are with the other services with regards
to participation rates. ‘ .

ank you very much for having us on the trip. A

[The prepared statement of Mr. Clark appears on p. 217.]

STATEMENT OF RONALD HAYDEN

Mr. HAYDEN. On behalf of the 57,000 Navy Leaguers in the
Nation, we have this bill as a substance of our national resolution.
We wholeheartedly support it.

Mi-l MoNTGOMERY. From the Navy League. Thank you very
much.

General Vern Webber, was on the trip.

Vern, do you want to come to the mike and make a statement?

[The prepared statement of Mr. Hayden ¢ ppears at p. 236.]

STATEMENT OF GEN. VERN WEBBER, NATIONAL GUARD
ASSOCIATION

Mr. WEBBER. Mr. Chairman, first let me on behalf of my travel-
ing comgoanions and associates express to you, to Chairman Dowdy,
to Mr. Solomon, to Richard, Mack Karen and Jill, we just had a
ﬁreat time. That is.a rare opportuaity that anyone in the military

as an opportunity to travel with such a distinguished groups of
members of this prestigious committee.

N
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We eppreciate it very, very much, and ‘want to thank you on
tehalf of all of my group.

First, in résponse to-your earlier concern, Chairman' Montgom-
ery; for the:National .Guard. Association we in the Army and Air
National Guard depend: heavily on the individual who leave the
active.services for whatever reason. We rely on them to come into
the Army and Air National Guard.

from a very parochial view we have an interest in the active
services and the NewGI Bill, as it pertains to them. So, you can
count on our:association to-come out full-power “in support of the
continuation-or the permanency of the GI bill, and we will support
the active part of that.

T wouldlike‘to take just & moment to inject one additional item
into this somewhat complex equation that we discussed here today.
That has-to-do with the readinese of the Army and Air National
Guard units: :

There are two .elements to readiness, one is the manpower, we
have talked 'to thut at great length here today. As a reminder let
me tell you that in the past 10 yeéars, the Army National Guard
has grown approximaiely 100,000 in end strength. The Air Nation-
.al’Guard, approximately~20,000. Thus, the influence of the New GI
Bill on the manning.

The other element is that of our readiness of our units to meet
the new demsnds for deployment readiness, mobilization readiness,
if you will.

What I am saying is that we have to have the high caliber young
men and women come into our unit to deal with it, as was stated
here, the high-tech environment in which we are in.

These are demanding MOSs and AFDCs that we have in the
Army Air National Guard. We need to have quality people. We are
getting the quality people thank to the GI bill.

Mr. Mensel had said earlier, that this is a. great plus for the
Guard and the Reserve as our members on a somewhat day to day
basis are able to pursue their civilian education under the New GI
Bill at the same time they are performing that most demanding as-
signment in the Air Army and Air National Guard,

Thank you again for the opportunity to make the trip and to be
here today with you. )

[The prepared statement .of the National Guard Association ap-
‘pears on p. 184.]

Mr. Dowpy. Colonel Partridge, we had the pleasure of General
Pennington being with us on the trip. Do you have any comments
. you would like to make in his absence?

STATEMENT OF COL. CHARLES C. PARTIDGE

Colonel PARTRIDGE. Yes. He wants me to thank you for inviting
him on that trip. He has worked many, many years on this pro-
gram with ‘this commitiee back in the early days before the New
GI Bill was passed. .

He said that the trip confirmed his belief that it is the most im-

- Pportant recruiting and readjustment program that the Nation has.
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He strongly supports it, strongly urges the VA to continue han-
dling the basic benefit with DOD providing the kickers as neces-
sary and would oppose any reduction in the benefit.

We agree with General Hultman—let’s go ahead and get this biil
through for the young men and women cominf in to the services
now. Adjustments in.the program can be made later.

Thank you very much.

[The.prepared statement of Colonel Partridge appears on p. 214.]

Mr. Dowpy. M. Solomon.

Mr. SoLomoN. First of all, let me thank all of you on the ranel
for coming before and also those of you who participated un the
trip. ‘

I guess the message I am getting here is that we don’t want to
cut anything or do anything that would make it more difficult for
men and women to sexve in the Armed Forces of this country.

There is a resurgence of patriotism in this country like we
haven't seen in a long, long time. You can see it in high schools, on
the streets, in college campuses. ROTC is no longer-a dirty word; it
is a good word, and that is the way it.should be.

If we are going to support this All-Volunteer Army, the regular
armies and military, and we must, it is imperative to have a strong
Reserve to back it up. That is what has been happening in recent
years with these benefits.

I think, Captain-Buesener, you pointed out the big difference be-
tween the other incentives and the GI bill, of a one-time bonus for
re-upping compared to the GI bill which is under the Veterans' Ad-
ministration, and that is where it should be, because it is an entire-
ly different issue.

I am pleased that-we have unanimity from all of your organiza-
tions that think we ought to leave that with the Veterans’ Admin-
istration. Certainly Mr. Montgomery, Wayne Dowdy and the other
members think so, and that is going to be tremendously helpful for
us. That is one of the ptshes we really nead in order to succeed.

Iﬂ;geueess with that, I want to thank you for coming before the com-
mittee.

Mr. Dowpy. Ms. Patterson.

Ms. PaTTERSON. Mr. Chairman, t: 2 only remark I would have at
this time, as I have gone through tnis aftzrnoon I have regretted
more and more I was not on the trip, not only for what we learned
but for the entertainment we received from those who were there
and shared with us their conversation.

I think this has pointed out:the importance of education, and
that is why I am enjoying serving on this committee, is that educa-
tion is important, well, to the life and well-being of our country,
and we certainly need to give incentives to our men and women
who want to serve to.continue their education.

Mr. MonTGoMERY. We are sorry she couldn’t make the trip, but
we are glad her husband is.here today. We are glad to have Mr.
lgatterson here from South Carolina. Liz said you are checking on

er.

Mr. Dowpy. We want to thank each of the witnesses on the
panel. Thank you veri,' much. :

At this time we will call the last panel for the day.
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STATEMENTS OF JOSEPH E: MILLER, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, NA-
TIONAL LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION AND MICHAEL SCHLEE, DI
RECTOR, NATIONAL SECURITY AND FOREIGN RELATIONS COM.-
MISSION, THE AMERICAN LEGION; RICHARD SCHULTZ, ASSOCI-
ATE NATIONAL LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR, DISABLED AMERICAN
VETGRANS; BOB MORAN, ASSOCIATE LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR,
PARALYZED VETERANS OF AMERICA; AND DENNIS M. CUL.
LINAN, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, NATIONAL LEGISLATIVE SERY.
ICES, VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED STATES

Mr. Dowpy. We want to thank all of you for your presence here
today. Before I call on you, I want to thank the chairman of the
full committee, the ranking member, Mr. Solomon, Mrs. Patterson,
and the members of the other committees who have been present

y.

I think that you can see, since you have been here as long as we
have, that there is a lot of interest in this legislation.

So- having said that, Mr. Cullinan, we will start with you. What
would you add to what has already been said?

Let me ask you this again. We found out that the program, as it
is presently set up, seems to be working pretty well. There were
Some exceptions to that, but as a general rule we have been told
that the program seems to work the way administratively it is set
up now.

Do you have an opinion to the contrary?

STATEMENT OF DENNIS M. CULLINAN

Mr. CuLLINAN. Certainly not to the contrary. The one observa-
tion I would make, we are interested in having the program made
permanent. Thus, we would hold back with any suggestions for re-
finements until some later date.

One concern I would voice at this point in time is that we “hink
the Veterans’ Administration should retain the funding for the
program. Certainly the initial benefit, and that that shouldn’t be
changed. 'We see that only as being detrimental to the program and
to veterans.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Cullinan appears on p. 219.]

. Dowpy. Let me-ask the other members, Do any of you have
any reason to say that there should be changes in the program ad-
ministratively? Do you, from your membership, hear that the- pro-
gram is not working? Do you know anything different from what I
was told last week that checks get there on time and administra-
tively the program runs pretty well?

STATEMENT OF BOB MORAN

Mr. MoraN. First, I would like to say Gordon Mansfield from
, ll:eVA appreciated the cpportunity going on the trip with the mem-

Is.

The only comment I think we would like .to make is the time
frame for operating into the program. There was concern it was a
little too soon. Some of them weren’t clearly understanding that.
That was a problem.
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I think some of the concerns brought up today about the dollar
: amount paid into may be lowering it and extending it over a period
i3 of time. That is the only two comments that we really have.
. ‘Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Schultz.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Moran appears on p. 224.]

STATEMENT OF RICHARD SCHULTZ

. Mr. Scuurtz. Mr. Chairman, we really haven’t heard anything
from our people out in the field as to any problems they are
having, and we have no suggestions as far as any changes in the
program as currently administered.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Schultz appears on p. 227.]

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Schlee.

STATEMENT OF MICHAEL SCHLEE

Mr. Schrek. First of all, I would like to say it was a pleasure, Mr.
Chairman, and you Mr. Montgomery, sir, which I learned in Paris
Island, to be on the trip with you. I would like to take a few mo-

. ments to give you some of my observations on the trip. ) \

i I spent a year in 1966 training troops at Fort Jackson where you

’ were on the October trip, 5 years in the early 1970’s, training Na-

tional Guard troops. I think the men and women I saw dowmthere,

are by far the best caliber I have ever addressed. . -

I think we should bear in mind one fact, though. They are, in= :
fact, 18 years old, and as far as the curriculum goes, two strong
suggestions I have is, number one, perhaps I didn’t pick it up, but
no where in the training is it mentioned the number of VA-ap- .
proved facilities, which is close to 8,000: I think -an 18-year-old >~
would want to know the numbers and the types of facilities, and it ‘, :

would be enhancement to his consideration of the GI bill. ™

Additionally, I know Chairman Mongtomery has alluded to this,
whether we go with the $100 or $50 a month contribution..I dont
; think there was enough emphasis for 18- or 19-year-olds on what
: the true tax benefit is. I think the chairman-said $70 or less.

In my personal case, 15 percent at the lowest level, State -and
FICA, it is a 30-percent reduction. So we are talking about 70 true,
Breallg and butter on the table dollars. Or in the case of-$50; only 30 .

ucks,

Again, I express my appreciation to both the chairman, both
chairmen, and all the traveling companions. It is the first time I
have done this, and it was a most impressive trip, well organized,
and I think we learned. a heck of a lot.

I think it was organized where we could get down to the hearts
and souls and how the troops, both men and women, really feel in
the Armed Forces today.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Miller, are you aware of any problems adminis-
tratively in terms of the checks getting to those who participate in
the program? ’

STATEMENT OF JOSEPH E. MILLER

Mr. MiLLer. Mr. Chairman, I think we have to understand—my
understanding is there has been approximately 147,000 reservists
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go_through the program but very faw active duty people at this
point are eligible.
In fiscal year 1987, there will be a‘s)proximately 800 people into
. the program, and I think at the end of 1987 we will be able to
“better judge just how well the VA has managed to provide that
kind of administrative support. N
, Certainly, there were problems in the. ast; but those are always
\ / start-up problems, problems with forms® iot being where they are
‘ i{ supposed to be, and I myself went to schodl;.i;ndég the GI bill, and I
P am aware the VA can remedy those problems when they are made,
when they are aware they exist. s
I think we have to- reserve judgment on problems, until we have
had a substantial number o1’ people start into the program and see
: if there is something consistentl wrong. : :
: 22[S;I'he prepared statement of the American Legion appears on p.

[4 A

N r. MoNTGOMERY. Mr. Chairman, I would like to take this oppor-
» tunity to thank the veterans' organizations for being- here today
: and testifying, and also for having representation on the trip.

Every major veterans’ organization was represented there. I
think in the long run, having the VA administer the program-and
: handle the rc:ﬁram These young men and women each ‘month
. under the Gi bill, after they start-using the GI bill, they will get a

check from the Veterans’ Administration. .

Even though they will eventually be veterans—and let’s hope all- \
of them stay peace time veterans—I think it strengthens our posi-~
tion, especially this committee, when we have educated veterans
out there that back the programs we must oversee. A number of
these c?e:a\cetime veterans are going to be members of Congress
P some day. They are going to recall they got their check from the
Veterans’ Administration, axd they are veterans.

So, I think it is a good home run for us. It is administered by the
VA. They heve the experience. It has been done for 50 years like
that now, 40 years. That is the way it ought to stay.

Thank you again, veterans’ o anizations, for helping us out on
this very important piece of legislation.

Mr. Dowpy. Mr. Solomon.

Mr. Soromon. I just want to concur again with what Congress-
man Montgomery has said. We want to thank you for sticking
around and being last. It is not because you are not just as impor-
tant as the others; you certainly are.

Again, we apgreciate your being on the trip with us and all of
you, and I think maybe next year we can do the same thing over
again when we start filling in the nuts and bolts on any changes
that need to be made.

We appreciate it. Thanks very much.

Mr. Dowbpy. Mrs. Patterson.

Mrs. ParTeRSON. No questions.

Mr. Dowpy. We thank you very much for being here this after-
noon and for your assistance.

If there are no other witnesses before the committee, the hearing
stands adjourned.

[Whereupon, at 4:15 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned, sub-
ject to the call of the Chair.]

Q
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APPENDIiX

Yo H,R. 1085

To amend title 88, TUnited Staten Code, to make permanent the new GI bill

educational assistance programs established by chapter 80 of such title, and
for other purposes.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
FeprUARY 11, 1987

Mr. MonTooMERY (for himself, Mr. SorLomoN, Mr. Dowpy of Mississippi, Mr.

St of New Jersey, Mrs. PATTERSON, Mr. WrLig, Mr. Jontz, Mr,
Rmar, Mr. Evans, Mr. DORNAN of Californis, Ms. KaPTUR, Mr. SrN-
HOLM, Mr. KxNNEDY, Mr: EpwaRDS of California, Mr. HAMMERSCEMIDT,
Mr. ArprEGATE, Mr. STUMP, Mr, Mros, Mr. MoEwE:, Mr, Penny, Mr.
Burton of Iodisns, Mr. Sracoxes, Mr. Boueaxis, Mr. ROwLAND of
Georgia, Mr. ROWLAND of Connecticut, Mr. BRYANT, Mr. Sxrr of New
Hampshire, Mr. Froxio, Mr. Davis of Mlinois, Mr., GrAY of Illinois, Mr.
Kansomsxa, Mr. Ropmnson, Mr, Hagmis, Mr. Jom:soN of South Dakota,
Mr. Prior of Mlincis, Mr. 'Dicxinson, Mr. BenweTT, Mr. SpEncE, Mr.
STRATTON, Mr. BADHAM, Mr, Niorors, Mr. HopPxiNs, Mr. DaNmr, Mr.
Davis of Michigan, Mr. DreLLoms, Mr. Huntai, Mrs. SoaROEDER, Mr,
MARTIN of New York, Mrs. Breon, Mr. Kasion, Mr. MaveoULES, Mr.
BATEMAN, Mr. Hurro, Mr. SwxxNeY, Mr. SKELTON, Mr, BLAZ, Mr.
Lea7a of Texss, Mr. IRELAND, Mr. MoCurpy, Mr. HanszN, Mr. FoaLr-
ETTA, Mr. WELDON, Mr. DysoN, Mr. Kyi, Mr. HERTEL of Michigan, Mr.
RAVENEL, Mrs. LroYp, Mr. S1s18KY, Mr, Ray, Mr. 8praTT, Mr. McCLOS-
rxY, Mr. OrT1z, Mr, DARDEN, Mr, BustamManTz, Mrs. Boxexs, Mr. Hoon-
BRUECKNER, Mr. BRENNAN, Mr. Proxerr, Mr. QuiLrEN, Mr, JENKINS,
Mr. HerNex, Mr. LuncasTes, Mr. Banary, Mr, Pxzxmys, Mr. HUOKABY,
Mr. Vausntivg, Mr. Huppazp, Mr. Roxumex, Mr. HaLL of Texas, Mr,
Ropmo, Mr. Bonzx of Tennessee, Mr. Lznt, Mr. Lacomazswo, Mr.
Lusax, Mrs. 8urH of Nebrasks, Mr. CoLEMAN of Texas, Mrs. CoLLINS,
Mr. pn LA GaRzA, Mr. STANGELAND, Mr, JocOBS, Mr, @GaYDOS8, Mr. GoN-
ZALEZ, Mr. MOLLOHAN, Mr. DERRICK, Mr. LrpiNexy, Mr. Prrrez, Mr.
Nowix, Mr. Arxins, Mr. MoREISON of Connecticut, Mr. Maox, Mr.
Baxxz, Mr. Eouonzs, Mr, Oxtxy, Mr, Myxzs of Indians, Mr. MAxTINEZ,
Mr. Lowesy of Californis, Mr. Worr, Mr. YouNG of Florida, Mr. Ricn-
ARDSON, Mr, EostMAvEm, Mr. Gmanpy, Mr. SENSENBRENNER, M.
FraNK, Mr. Downgy of New York, Mrs. Bogas, Mr, BeviLr, Mr. WogrT-
LeY, Mr. MANTON, Mr. DAUB; Mr. Huones, Mr. Traxtzx, Mr. CorLHO,
M, KsnngLry, Mr. McGrATH, Mr. Fism, Mr. Roax, Mr. Pazrs, Mr,
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Surrr of Florids, Mr. Lnauax of Florids, Mr. McHUoH, Mrs. BEnTLEY,
Mr. THOMs8 A. LuxsmN, Mr, GLIOKMAN, Mr. WiLLIAMS, Mr. EMERSON,
Mr. Dwxzz of Now Jersey, Mr. CARDIN, Mr, REqULA, Mr. KLECZXA, Mr.
Yatnon, Mr, Nmyuson of Utah, Mr, VisoLosKY, Mr. Frost, Mr, Somu-
MER, Mr. Toxaxs, Mr. Faxi0, Mr, MuzeHY, Mr, ScHRURE, Mr, FEIGHAN,
Mr. Panerra, Mr. VaNTO, Mr. THOMAS of Georgis, Mr. Howaxo, Mr.
Rox, ir. Eoxaxt, Mr. Dxox, Mr, Roysax, Mr. SuNpQuist, Mrs. JOBN-
B8ON of Cannecticut, Mr, MoLNARI, Mr. GALLO, Mr, WoLPE, Mr, TOWNS,
and Mr, RTLDR®) introduced the following bill; which was referred jointly to
the Committees on Voterans' Affairs and Armed Services

A BILL

To smend title 38, United States Code, to make permanent the

W @ I N Cx B W D =

10
11
12
13

new GI bill educationsl assistance programs established by
chapter 80 of such title, and for other purposes.

Be i¢ enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-
tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,
SECTION 1. ELIMINATION OF TEMPORAL RESTRICTIONS ON

AVAILABILITY OF NEW GI BILL EDUCATIONAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS,

(s) AcTive DuTy PrograM.—Section 1411(a}(1XA) £
title 88, United States Code, is amended by striking out
“during the period beginning on July 1, 1985, and ending on
June 80, 1988,” and inserting in lieu thereof “after June 30,
1985,".

(t) Aotive Duty AND SELEoTED RESERVE PRO-
arAM.—Section 1412(e)}(1{A) of such title i3 amended by
striking out; “during the period beginning on July 1, 1985,

i B
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\)
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and ending on June 30, 1988,” and inserting in lieu thereof
“after June 80, 1985,”.

() Sxieotep REeseRvE  ProgrRAM.—Section
2182(aX1) of title 10, Unitsd States Code, is amended by
striking out “during the period beginning on July 1, 1985,
and ending on June 30, 1988" and inserting in lieu thereof
“after June 30, 1985".
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HONORABLE WAYNE DOWDY, CHAIRMAN
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TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT
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GOOD AFTERNOON, LADIES AND GENTLEMEN, AND
WELCOME TO THE FIRST HEARING OF THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING AND
EMPLOYMENT IN THE 100TH CONGRESS. WE ARE
MEETING TODAY TO REVIEW H.R. 1085, A BILL
AUTHORED BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE FULL COMMITTEE,
SONNY MONTGOMERY, AND COSPONSORED BY 174
MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE. THIS BILL WOULD MAKE
PERMANENT THE EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
FOR MEMBERS OF THE ALL VOLUNTEER FORCE UNDER
CHAPTER 30 OF TITLE 38, AND THE PROGRAM OF
EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE
SELECTED RESERVE UNDER CHAPTER 106 OF TITLE 10.
TOGETHER, THESE PROGRAMS ARE GENERALLY KNOWN A
THE NEW Gl BILL.

6 8m o
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"~ DURING THE PAST SEVERAL YEARS, TWO ISSUES

OF PARTICULAR CONCERN HAVE BEEN WIDELY DEBATED -
IN THIS COUNTRY. THE FIRST IS THE IMPORTANCE

AND AVAILABILITY OF .HIGH QUALITY. EDUCATION FOR
OUR NATION'S CITIZENS. THE SECOND ‘IS ACHIEVING
AND MAINTAINING A STRONG NATIONAL DEFENSE. WITH
THE ENACTMENT OF THE NEW GI BILL IN OCTOBER,
1384, THE CONGRESS TOOK ‘AN'IMPORTANT STEP
TOWARD ADDRESSING. BOTH ISSUES. THE NEW Gl BILL
PROVIDES ‘AN EXCELLENT OPPORTUNITY FOR
POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION AND TRAINING TO
THOUSANDS OF YOUNG PEOPLE WHO, BUT FOR THIS
PROGRAM, MIGHT 'NOT BE ABLE-TO FURTHER THEIR
EDUCATION. AT THE SAME TIME, THE NEW Gl BILL
PROV]DES A COST-EFFECTIVE MEANS TO STRENGTHEN
OUR NATIONAL DEFENSE BY RECRUITING HIGH QUALITY
YOUNG MCN AND WOMEN.

Vo
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LAST WEEK, | VISITED SERVICE TRAINING BASES
WITH CHAIRMAN MONTGOMERY AND MANY OF THE
INDIVIDUALS WHO WILL. BE TESTIFYING BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE LATER TODAY. | WAS IMPRESSED BY

~ THE ENTHUSIASM EXPRESSED FOR THE NEW Gl BILL BY

THOSE IN POSITIONS OF COMMAND. | WAS EVEN MORE
IMPRESSED, HOWEVER, BY THE-INTEREST IN. THE
PROGRAM ' SHOWN BY THE YOUNG RECRUITS. BY THEIR
QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS, THESE YOUNG PEOPLE
DEMONSTRATED A DEEP APi’RECIA’[lON FOR THE
IMPORTANCE OF EDUCATION. IN THEIR LIVES AND A
DEFINITE ABILITY TO KNOW A GOOD DEAL WHEN THEY
SEE IT. AT FORT KNOX, THE, STATEMENT WAS MADE,
"IF YOU GIVE A RECRUIT A DOLLAR TODAY, IT WILL

BE GONE TOMORROW. |F YOU GIVE A RECRUIT AN
EDUCATION, IT WILL BE WITH THAT RECRUIT THE

REST OF HIS LIFE* THE YOUNG PEOPLE WE MET

i)
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JUNDERSTAND THE TRUTH AND WISDOM.IN THAT
STATEMENT AND ARE GRATEFUL THAT IN EXCHANGE FOR
HONORABLE. SERVICE, THEY WILL -BE PROVIDED THE
MEANS TO PURSUE FURTHER EDUCATION AND INCREASE
THEIR SKILLS.

OUR NEWEST SERVICEMEMBERS ARE BRIGHT,
AMBITIOUS;: AND EAGER TO:SERVE THEIR COUNTRY.
THEY ARE ‘ALSO ENTERING THE MILITARY TO-GET AN
EDUCATION, AND THEY KNOW THE NEW Gl BILL IS ONE
OF THE MOST EFFECTIVE PROGRAMS AVAILABLE TO
THEM.
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THEY KNOW THAT IF THEY CHOOSE TO LEAVE THE
SERVICE AFTER COMPLETION OF THEIR ENLISTMENT,
THE NEW Gi BILL WILL ASSIST THEM IN THEIR
READJUSTMENT TO CIVILIAN LIFE. THEY ALSO KNOW
THAT IF THEY CHOOSE TO STAY IN THE MILITARY,

THEY CAN USE THEIR EDUCATION BENEFITS WHILE
THEY ARE ON ACTIVE DUTY, THE MEN AND WOMEN WE
MET A0 TALKED WITH LAST WEEK ARE THE FUTURE
LEADERS OF OUR NATION -'MILITABY LEADERS,
COMMUNITY LEADERS, AND NATIONAL LEADERS - AND |
CAN ASSURE YOU OUR "HTURE IS IN GOOD HANDS.




IN THE DEMOCRATIC RESPONSE TO THE
PRESIDENT'S STATE OF THE UNION MESSAGE LAST
MONTH, THE SPEAKER -:OF THE HOUSE, JIM WRIGHT,
STRESSED THAT, IN THE 100TH CONGRESS, EDi CATION
WOULD BE IN ITS RIGHTFUL PLACE AT THE PINNACLE
OF OUR NATIONAL PRIORITIES. HE POINTED OUT THAT
THE BEST FINANCIAL INVESTMENT THIS COUNTRY EVER
MADE WAS THE Gl BILL ESTABLISHED AT THE END OF
WORLD WAR Il. WE ON THIS COMMITTEE AGREE WITH
THE SPEAKER AND KNOW THAT THE NEW Gl BILL WILL
PROVIDE THE SAME DIVIDENDS AS DID ITS
PREDECESSORS - DIVIDENDS TO THE SERVICEMEMBERS,
TO THE ARMED FORCES, AND TO THE NATION.
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" THERE IS BROAD, BIPARTISAN SUPPORT FOR
CONTINUATION OF THE NEW-GI BILL IN BOTH THE
HOUSE AND SENATE. THE SENATE VETERANS’ AFFAIRS
COMMITTEE HELD HEARINGS ON THIS ISSUE EARLIER
THIS MONTH, AMD SENATOR CRANSTON AND SENATOR
MURKOWSKI HAVE LONG BEEN STAUNCH ADVOCATE™ OF
THE NEW GI BILL. THE T!ME FOR TESTING IS OVER,.
THE TIME HAS COME TO MAKE THE NEW GI BILL A
PERMANENT PROGRAM.

BEFORE WE PROCEED TO OUR FIRST WITNESS, |
WANT TO GIVE THE RANKING MINORITY MEMBER OF
THIS SUBCOMMITTEE, CHRIS SMITH OF NEW JERSEY,

AN OPPORTUNITY TO MAKE A STATEMENT. CHRIS, |
LOOK FORWARD TO WORKING CLOSELY WITH YOU DUR'N
THE 100TH CONGRESS.
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OUR FIRST WITNESS TODAY WILL BE THE
DISTINGUISHED CHAIRMAN OF THE FULL COMMITTEE,
G. V. (SONNY) MONTGOMERY. SONNY, | AM HONORED
TO HAVE YOU AS OUR LEAD-OFF WITNESS. YOU ARE
THE FATHER AND CHIEF ARCHITECT OF THE NEW Gl
BILL, AND WE ALL:LOOK FORWARD TO YOUR
TESTIMGNY.
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RECORD STATEMENT OF
HONORABLE G. V. (SONNY) MONTGOMERY

H.-R. 1085
FEBRUARY 18, 1987

Mr. Chairman, | want to congratulate you
on assuming the chairmanship of the
Subcommittee on Education, Training and
Employment. 1 also appreciate the: priority you
have given to holding hearings on making the
. New Gl Bill permanent. H.R. 1085 makes no other
changes to the existing program. 174 of our
colleagues have joinéd as cosponsors of our

bill.
The future of the New Gl Bill is one of

the most critical issues we must act on this
Session. Since H;R. 1085 was jointly refarred

to the Armed Services Committee, | hope to get
-early action over there and have the bill to

the Floor by the end of March. | am. optimistic
that we car complete action on H.R. 1085 in

record time.
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Wayne, you and several other members of
the Education Subcommittee, along with
representatives of military associations and

veterans organizations, were with me last week

S ee P A amoen ®

on our visit to service training bases where we
had the opportunityﬂo%obseéve, first hand, the
enthusiasm for the New G! Bill expressed by
base cornmanders, recruiters, trainers and,
especially, the recruits themselves. | know you
will agree with me that those .in the best
position to evaluate this proéram give it an -

- At, .
3 It is_succeeding as a readjustment benefit

for the servicemembers, as a powerful
recruitment tool for all the services, and as a
program which is going to greatly benefit the
‘nation as a whole.

On Octqber 19, 1984, the New Gl Bill was
signed into law. It was a day that marked the
culmination of more than four years of hard
wdtk on both sides of Capitol Hill t;) further
ensure the Naffon’s strength and security.
Already, we can look back on that day as one of
the most important in the history of our

country’s Armed Forces.
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On January 28, 1981, I first introduced
H.R. 1400, a bill to establish the New Gl Bill.
Prior to that date, we had worked for over

eight-months with the military service

-departments to. lay the groundwork for this

legislative proposal. It has proven to be time
well spent.
The New Gl Bill is fulfilling the purposes
set out by Congress: First and foremost, it
will assist in the readjustment of members of
the Armed Forces to civilian life: afte;r their
separation from military service: it is
providing education assistance for tens of
thousands of young men ana women who otherwise
might not be able to go to college or pursue

other post-secondary training.
A first century philosopher observed,

"Only the educated are free.” This statement is
no less true'as we move into the 21st century,

and it is our responsibility to enable those

‘who willingly protect our freedom to also

pursue their personal freedom and
self-improvement through education.

In addition to faciiitating service-
members’ readjustment, the New GI Bill is
designed to attract high quality personnel to

the active and reserve components of the Armed

Forces.

78
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Mr. Chairman, participation rates in all
branches of military service confirm the New GI
Bill's value to the young people volunteering
to serve in our country’s armed forces. The
‘latest available statistics show that 84
percent of: all new Army recruits are now
participating in the New Gl Bill. The- Navy is
signing 54 percent of its recruits; 64 percent
of Marine Corps enlistees are opting for ‘the
program; and:the Air:Force reports that 44
percent of its new recruits are enrol‘ling.
Through the end of -December 1986, 43,130
meimnbers of the Selected Reserve had already
initiated training under the l\iew Gl Bill. .
Statistics compiled by the U.S. Army
dramatically demonstrate the recruiting power
of the New Gl Bill. Today, more than 90 percent
of Army recruits are high school graduates
-compared to 54 percent in 1980. The percentage
of recruits scoring in the uper half of the
Armed Forces Qualification Test (AFQT) jumped

from 26 to 63 percéent during the same period.




Quality male recruits increased 10 percent

during the first year of the New G| Bill over

the final 12 months of vVEAP, the previous
education program, a program which proved to be
a digmal failure. Particularly impressive are

the stateiments of 43 percent of the high

quality recruits wiho said they woul&»not have
joined the Army but for the educational

assistance benefits available under the New Gl

Bill. .
The first year impact of the New Gl Bill

on Army Reserve recruitment has been equally
.impressive. Army Reserve high quality- recruits
increased 24 percent and six—yea.r enlistrﬁents
-increased 28 percent over the year prior to the
implementation of this new program.

The other services are as enthusiastic as
the Army in their support for continuation of
the New Gl Bill. The Air Force points to the
seven fold increase in New Gl Bill
participation over VEAP and notes that most New
G! Bill participants are in mental categories |

and Il
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Clearly, the smartest young people are
coming into the Air-Force to take advantge of
the available education benefits. Additionally, -
the number one reason given for enlistment in
-the Air Force Reserve is the New GI Bill. Both
the Marine Corps and the Navy rate this new
education assistance program as a critical:
component of their recruiting package.

Without the New Gl Bill, the services
would be forced to compete with an expanding
job market and educational institutions in
order to attract high quality and larger
-percentages from a shrinking pool of eligible
recruits. However, since the implementation. of
the New Gl Bill, and because of it, the
Congress and the military have forged a new,
stronger alliance with our community and_junior
colleges, universities and training
institvi/ons to ensure that those indi.viduals
whr desire to further their eductions may do
S0, and may do so with the knowledge that they

earned it in service to their country.
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Several of our witnesses who, will testify
later this-afternoon accompanied us when we
iiisite,d four training bases last week. | know
they gained a deeper insight into the
simportance of the New Gl Bill, as | did on this
and earller vjsits. It is very important that
we get out of Washington and into the field so
that we can talk with those who really know
what's important to the recruits and the
services. Brigadier General Paul Funk,

Assistant Commandant of the Army Armor School

at Fort Knox, told us that he has commanded
troops in the 60's, 70's, and 80's, He says the

. young people coming into the Army taday are the

best ever. According to Gensral Funk, “The Now

Gl Bill has made the Army a great place to

soldier.”

The Adjutant General of Kentucky, General
Billy Wellman, told us, *rhe New Gl Bili iz the
most attractive and important benefit we have
to offer... | don't know of any program more
-important to the military -~ Guard, Reserve, and

active force - than the New GI Bill.”
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Mr. Chairman, as far as I'm ‘concerned,
statements like these and others we heard last
week make the case for establishing. the New GI
Bill as a permanent program. The mandate is
clear. With 174 original cosponsors, ‘the
bipartisan support for H.R. 1085 is strong. |
urge swift action on this legislation. Thank

you, Mr. Chairman.
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- STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE
CHRISTOPHER H. SMIT!
BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON
EDUCATION, TRAINING, AND EMPLOYMENT
FEBRUARY 18, 1987

THANK YCU, MR. CHAIRMAN.

| COMMEND YOU FOR CALLING THIS HEARING AND
MARK-UP ON H.R. 1085, TO MAKE THE NEW Gi
BILL PROGRAM PERMANENT. THE DISTINGUISHED
CHAIRMAN OF OUR FULL COMMI’iTEE IS THE
FATHER OF THE NEW Gl BILL, WHICH IS NOW A
TEST PROGRAM. | THINK IT IS SIGNIFICANT

THAT EVERY MEMBER OF :I'HE HOUSE VETERANS’
AFFAIRS COMMITTEE HAS CO-SPONSORED H.R.

. 1085,
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R, %
..=MR. CHAIRMAN, WE KNOW FROM TALKING WITH
COMIMANDERS AND NEW RECRUITS THAT THE NEW
: Gl BILL TEST PROGRAM HAS BEEN A TREMENDCUS .
i 3UCCESS. RARELY HAVE 1 SEEN A LEVEL OF
ENTHUSIASM AND CONSENSUS FOR ANY
GOVERNMENT PROGRAM TO MATCH. THAT WHICH
EXISTS FOR THE NEW Gt BILL.

THANKS IN LARGE PART TO IT, THE MILITARY
SERVICES HAVE THE HIGHEST QUALITY RECRUITS
EVER TO JOIN UP. AND EVERYBODY COMES OUT
A WINNER - THE RECRUIT, THE DEPARTMENT OF
DEFENSE, AND OUR NATION AS A WHOLE.
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IMPROVEMENTS HAVE BEEN SUGGESTED FOR THE
NEW Gl BILL, AND POSSIBLE WAYS TO IMPROVE
THE PROGRAM ARE BEING CONSIDERED. HOWEVER,
| AGREE WITH MR. MONTGOMERY THAT WE OUGHT
TO KEEP FIRST THINGS FIRST, AND ELEVATE

THE PROGRAM FROM A TEST STATUS TO A
PERMANEMT STATUS. THEN WE CAN CONSIDER
HOW TO MAKE A GREAT PROGRAM EVEN BETTER.
IT CERTAINLY IS OBVIOUS HOW | FEEL ABOUT

THE NEW G BILL | AM GOING TO VOTE TO

MAKE IT PERMANENT.
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MR. CHAIRMAN, WE HAVE MANY WITNESSES WHO
ARE GOING TO TESTIFY ABOUT THE PROGRAM
THIS AFTERNOON. THOUGH THERE'S LITTLE
DOUBT ABOUT HOW OUR SUBCOMMITTEE MARK-UP
WILL GO, IT IS IMPORTANT FOR US TO
DEMONSTRATE THE STRENGTH AND DEPTH OF THE
SUPPORT FOR THE NEW GI BILL. DOD AND VA
OFFICIALS, REPRESENTATIVES OF RESPECTED
MILITARY ASSOCIAT JNS AND VETERANS' GROUPS
WILL SHARE THEIR VALUABLE EXPERIENCE AND
INSIGHTS WITH US, AND | LOOK FORWARD TO
LEARNING WHAT THEY WILL HAVE TO SAY ON

- THIS IMPORTANT SLRJECT.

THANK YOU, MR. CHAIRMAN.
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STATEMENT OF
R. J. VOGEL
CHIEF BENEFITS DIRECTOR
VETERANS ADMINISTRATION
.BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING
AND EMPLOYMENT
HOUSE -OF REPRESENTATIVES
FEBRUARY 18, 1987

Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee:

I am pleased to appear here today to give you the views of the
Veterans Administration concerning legislation pending befsr;
your Subcommittee which would make the Zew GI Bill programs

permanant. Educational assistance programs under the N;: GI.
Bill are provided under title 38, United States- Code, chapter
30, and under title 10, United States Code, chapter 106. We

refer to these programs respectively as the New GI Bill-Active

Duty and the New GI Bill-Reserves.

I want to talk about our experience so far with the New GI Bill
and provide the Subcommittee with some projections for the ex-
pected growth of the New GI Bill. However, before doing that,
I think it would be hcipful to outline a brief historical per-

spective of our educational assistance programs.

83,
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Mr. Chairman, we have a proud tradition in this country of as-
sisting in the smooth transition of veterans from military to
civilian 1life tirough educational and training assistance for
over 42 years now. Since June 13944, over 18 million veterans
and service personnel havs~received educational assistance un-
der three GI Bills. These 18 million veterans and service-
persons include 7.8 million under the World léf 11 GI Bil1,
almost 2.4 million trainees under the Korean conflict GI Bill,
and over 8 million trainees under the post-Korean Vietnam era
GI Bill. All of these programs operated in conjunction with
the draft and afforded a readjustment opportunity for many
people whose lives were involuntarily disrupted. The programs
pursued have taken place in classrooms, businesses, on farams,
at schools of higher learning and even at elementary schools.
In terms of content, they range from basic science to quantum

mechanics, and everything in between.

The costs of these three GI Bills totalled close to $60 billion.
Oout of this figure, $14.5 billion was spent on the Xorld War II
GI Bill; $4.5 billion was for the Korean conflict GI Bill; and

some $40 billion for the post-Korean Vietnam era GI Bill.
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Under the current post-Korean Vietnam era GI Bill, the partici-
pation rate is 68.percent. This compares with a participation
rate of 50.5 percent for the World War II GI Bill and 43.4 per-
cent .for the Korean.conflict GI Bill.

Participation in college l;vel training is greater under the
post-Korean Vietnam era program than under either the World War
I1 or the Korean conflict program. College participation for
World War II veterans was 1/ 4 percent; for Korean conflict vet-
erans, it was ‘22 percent; and for post-Korean conflict veterans
and service personnel, who served between 1955 and 1976, it was
22.7 pereent through September 1986. Vietnam era veterans and
service personnel who served between August 5, 1964 and January
1, 1977 have participated in college level training to a greater
extent than any other group of veterans. They have a college

varticipation rate of 43 percent.

The GI Bill programs have been widely acclaimed as the best in-
vestment America has ever made. During the four decades since
the original GI Bill, we have worked with Congress in the over-
sight of our programs, and have assisted schools in obtaining
course approvals and in meeting trsir enrollment reporting obli-
gations. We have had to be flexible in our adainistration of
eduéational benefits programs so as to adapt to changes in pol-

icy and practice within the educational comaunity; changing
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veteran needs; and shifting governmental priorities. 'Through it
all, we have learned a great deal about how to efficiently ad-
minister voterans' education programs. Moreover, we are proud
of our role in implementing laws which have promoted quality ed-
ucation for our Nation's veterans, providing them the opportuni-

ty to be the best that thé} can be.

The post-Korean Vietnam era GI Bill is, of course, scheduled to
end on December 31, 1989. Each year, from now until 1990, the
projections indicate that fewer and fewer veterans will partici-
pate. Congress, in October of 1984, enacted Public Law 98-525,
bringing into being the New GI Bill test program. This new law
(as amended. by Public Law 99-576) provided a program of educa-
tion benefits not only for serv{cepersons and veterans, but also
for reservists, and set a termination date for VEAP, the DOD-
funded. VA-administered peacetime education benefits program
which had been in effect since 1976. The effective date for the

new programs was July 1, 1985.

The New GI Bill-Reserves was the program with the first signif-
icant nuaber of trainees. Through the end of January 1987,
close to 46,000 reservists have trained under the New GI Bill-
Reserves. Current projections are that the number of trainees
will peak in Fiscal Year 1989 to about 140,000. Over time, we
expect that the larger program will be the New GI Bill-Active
Duty. We expect close to 180,000 trainees in Fiscal Year 1992.

4.
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The number of actual trainees is low now, but that is to be
expected because few individuals have yet served long enough
to become eligible. 1In Fiscal Year 1987, the number of these
trainees will pick up because that is when those with 2-year
enlistments becong eligiblk for training. In Fiscal Year 1987,

we expect 800 of these trainees.

Mr. Chairman, I previously mentioned, in passing, Public Law
99-576, the Veterans' Benefits Improvement and Health-Care
Authorization Act of 1986. This 1egislation, which was signed
into law this past fall, made a pnumber of significant changes
to the New GI Bill-Active Duty. It added apprenticeship and
on-job training, as well as correspondence training and work-
study, just to mention a few. Ths VA has great experience in
administering these programs and will be honored to continue to

do so.

As you are aware, Mr. Chairman, the Administration supports
making the New GI Bill program permanent. The Administration
also proposes to: (a) continue funding the additional "kicker"
benefits at their current levels, (b) continue VA administra-
tion of the program, (c) maintain the basic benefit 1evel for
six-year terms of enlistment, and (d) continue the reserve ben-

efits at their current level pending completion of the Sixth
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Quadrennial Review of Military Compensation which is conauctiuyg

an extensive review of Reserve compensation.

An siditional two changes‘in the current operation of the pro-
gram are proposed in the President's 1988 Budget: (1) to shift
funding responsibility fdr the basic benefit from VA to DOD, and
(2) to restructure the basic benefit to offer progressively low-
er benefits for shorter terss of service. These two modifica-
tions are proposed to ensure that the educational enlistment
benefits of the New GI Bill will be productive for the armed
services. Because these changes relate to the needs of the
armed services, we defer to DOD for a detailed explanation of

the rationale.

The Administration strongly urges that the subject ‘egislation
which this Subcommittee is considering include all the changes
to th? New GI Bill which are proposed in the President's
Budget.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my testimony. I would be glad to

respond to any questions you or the members of the Subcommittee

may have.
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Gocd afternoon Mr. Chalrman.

1t is a privilege to appear before this vommittee which has
done 80 puch over the years for American Service men and women.
The men and women Of the Armed Forces ar2 the backbone of our
nation's defense structure. They are proud and patriotic
citizens and I know they are grateful to this committee for
ensuring their fair treatment as they return to civilian life.

Today, you have requested that I comment on the
Administration's position with respect to the New GI Bill. This
program, administered under your oversight, is a good example of
the important role you play in providing for American military
personnel in their transition back to civilian 1ife.

Por over 40 years, veterans have been eligible for Federal
education assistance under a variety of programs. These
assistance programs have been authorized for a nunber of reasons:

1 to provide Service members with a compensating benefit for
adversities they endure such as low pay, harsh environments,
physical danger znd undesirable tasks;

2 to make sorvice in the Armed FPorces more attractive;

3 to provide training and readjustment to civilian life for
those who have served in the Armed Fcrces; and

4 to provide an education for those citizens who night not
otherwise be able to afford one.

These programs were of considerable value both to the nation
and to its Service members. Howaver, both military service and
the rationale for educational benefits have changed narkedly
since the inception of the All-Volunteer Force in 1973. Today,
our recruits make a voluntary decision to undertake military
service, many of thea motivated by the compatitive levels of pay
and improved quality of life in our Armed Forces. In this
environment, we view the New GI Bill not as a readjustrent
benefit, but rather as one of many recruiting tools, all of which
contribute to the maintenance of a high-quality volunteer force.

The Educational Assistance Test Program, which we conducted
during 1981, confirmed that educational benefits, if sufficiently
generous, can attract high quality people to the Armed Forces. A
gseparate study, conducted by the Congressional Budget Office in
March 1982, validated the results of the Education Assistance
Test Program and also puiated out that enlistments of high school
graduates with above avelage aptitude test scores increased with
generous education benefits.

The study found, however, that educational benefits are much
less cost effective than targeated incentives such as enlistment
bonuses. Further, the study pointed out that negative retention
effects may offset gains made in recruiting.

wWe bolieve the Wew GI Bill has the potential to be an
effective recruiting incentive. Por this reason, we support
paking this program permanent. To £it into the Overall context
of the DoD recruiting program, however, we believe that it should
be more of a targeted program. For this reason, we are
submitting a legislative proposal that will:

95
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1 restructure the basic benefit to provide a benefit that
varies with the tern of enlistment;

2 continue targeted incentives (known as “kickers"); and

3 transfer funding of the basic benefit from the VA to poD.

Placing both policy and fiscal responsibility for the New GI
Bill with tha Department of Defense will permit a concentrated
approach to using of educational benefits which emphasizes their
effectiveness as a recruiting incentive.

We will be able to build on the level of variable basic
benefit with additional targeted incentives that recognize
special recruiting needs of the individual Services. These
“kickers" can be varied as necessary and tied to hard-to-£ill
skills, test scores or other criteria.

This concludes ny prepared statement. Thank you again i.r
the opportunity to appear. I will be pleused to respond to your
questions.

O
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Mr. Chairman and nmembers c¢f the committee:

I want to thunk you for inviting me to appear and offer
testinony on the New GI Bill for the Selected Reserve.

As you are aware, the GI Bill program for the Selected
Reserve is a non-contributory, general entitlement program.
Reserve officer and enlisted personnel become eligible for GI
Bill benefits after initial active duty for training and after
completiing 180 days of gervice in the Selected Reserve.
Eligibility for GI Bill benefits also requires that reserve
component members enlist or agree to serve in the Selected
Reserve for gix years. Participants have up to 10 years in which
to use the full entitlement, provided they remain members of the
Selected Reserve. Benefits are paid at the rate of $140 per
month for full~time study leading to a baccalaureate degree, with
cmaller pro-rated amounts for less than full-time study.

In the current recruiting environment, our readiness and
manpower objectives for the reserve components present a
challenge -- one that can be met only if we have the proper set
of force management tools. The new GI Bill is but one of these
tools. And, when combined with other targeted incentives and
entitlements, the GI Bill will permit us to attract and retain
the numberd and quality of people we must have.

In November 1985, we testified before the House Committee on
Veterans' Affairs, Subcommittee on Education, Training and
Employment, that we did not have a firm basis on which to
evaluate the impact of the new GI Bill on recruiting and
retention. Our data now indicates there has been some
improvement in recruiting since July 1, 198S.

For example, since a reserve recruit must enlist for a 6
year term in order to qualify for benefits under the GI Bill, we
can compare the length of terms of service for new accessions.
During the first fifteen months of the New GI Bill, 59 percent of
Selected Reserve recruits enlisted for at least 6 years. During
the same time frame prior to the enactment of the New GI Bill, 57
percent of Selected Reserve recruits enlisted for at least 6
years. In other words, there was an increase of 8,321 six year
enlistments during the first fifteen months immediately following
enactment of the New GI Bill.

While educational benefits have been shown to have a
positive role in recruiting, I also would point out that other
actions taken by the Services during this same period contributed
to this improvement. The effect of increased recruiting and
advertising budgets, for example, cannot be discounted.

We have observed a sharp rise since the program began in the
number of members reported by the Services as eligible for
benefits. And, nearly one-third of these members today are
attending college and using their entitlement.

SELECTED RESERVE GI BILL
SERVICE-REPORTED ENLISTED ELIGIBLES

Reserve Component FY85 FY86 Total
ale}s] 13742 118150 131892
ARNG 6683 63231 69914
USAR 921 15463 16384
USNR 1139 10607 11746
USMCR 7 4676 4683
ANG 3397 15567 18964
USAFR 1595 8606 10201

SELECTED RESERVE GI BILL
ENLISTED ENROLLMENTS

Reserve Component FY85 FYg86* Total
DOD 11783 29146 40929
ARNG 4301 13702 18003
USAR 3501 5164 8665
. USNR 723 2720 3443
USMCR 118 1269 1384
ANG 1795 4771 8361

USAFR 1348 1520 2868
(* as of November 29, 1986)
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We continue to monitor closely the administration of the GI
Bill program. A close working relationship exists between the
DOD and the Veterans Administratic: in refining the accuracy of
our data systems to ensure only eligible members receive this
important educational benefit, As of November 1986, more than
40,000 new applications for the GI Bill were processed by the
vVeterans Administration. Applications to the Veterans
Administration have increased from a weekly average of 752 in
October 1985 to a waekly average of 974 in October 1986. The
largest number of enrollments sc¢ far, have occurred in the Army
National Guard followed by the Army Reserve, Of the more than
40,000 new applications, more than 29,000 Selected Reserve
members, or nearly 69 percent, have applied for full-time
benefits -~ a relationship that has remained constant since the
program began in July 1985. It is interesting to note that most
of the reservists applying for -the New GI Bill do not have an
entitlement under an earlier GI Bill program and are using
veterans' educational benefite for the first time.

Cooperation from the Veterans Administration on the exchange
of information and development of an accurate data base has been
excellent and is important to us in establishing effective
program management. A

In terms of quality, we have examined high school graduace
non-prior service (NPS) accessions during FY 1984 and FY 1986.
During FY 1986, 5 percent more Selected Reserve recruits (or
34,500) were high school graduates than in FY 1984, This is a
significant improvsment in terms of the quality of NPS
accessions.

We see great potential in the reserve components for
continued participation in the new GI Bill., Nearly 73 percent of
Guard and Reserve menbers recruited during FY 1986 possessed a
high school diploma, General Education Development (GED)
certificate, or above. More than 81,000 enlisted members have
two years of college (8 percent of the total Selected Reserve
enlisted strength). The chart below displays the component
percentage of those members who have 2-years of college.

ENLISTED EDUCATION LEVEL BY RESERVE COMPONENT
(Those With 2 Years College#)
Reserve Component 2 Years College (%) Enlisted Strength
DOD 81082 ( 8.3) 972197
ARNG 33232 ( 8.3) 402628
USAR 19780 ( 7.8) 253070
USNR 14516 (1 ) 116640
USMCR 8l6 ( ) 38123
ANG 5964 ( ) 99231
USAFR 6774 (10.8) 62505
(* Data from DOD 1147/1148 Report, FY 1986 Summary)
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our analysis shows reserve component enlistment and
reenlistment incentive recipients tend to honor their contracts
and serve longer with the component. While it is still too early
to tell, we believe this behavior also will hold true for GI Bill
recipients as well. Thereforé, in order to track participation
and further evaluate the effectiveness of the new GI Bill
entitlement, we have asked the Sixth Quadrennial Review on
Military Compensation (QRMC) to examine both the short and
long-term effects., Their report is due later on this year.

In conclusion Mr. Chairman, no single incentive or
entitlement is likely to meet all Selected Reserve manpower
needs. The Department will continue to require a broad range of
incentives -~ those that can be targeted toward critical skill
areas and shortages as well as general educational incentives

‘ such as the GI Bill.

Mr. Chairman, this completss my testimony. I thank you once
again for the opportunity you have given me to appear before the
conmittee. I am prepared to answer any questions you may have.
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Current New GI Bill hd

‘Individ contribution

Govt basic benefit
Govt kicker
Totals y

Individ contributioé

Govt basic benefit
Govt kicker
Totals

Individ contribution
Govt basic benefit
Govt kicker .
Totals

Individ contribution
Govt basic benefit
Govt kicker

Totals

Individ contribution
Govt bagic benefit
Govt kicker

Totals

$1,200
7,800
8,000
17,000

$1,200
9,600
12,000
22,800
~—

$1,200

9,600
14,400
25,200

$1,200

9,600
14,400
25,200

$1,200

9,600
14,400
25,200

DoD Proposed
Legislation

$1,200
1,200

Variable*
2,400-pluc

r": Ala

Gort 1pIELI

1

variable kicker

$1,200
3,600 }
Variable*
4,800 plus

3

variable kicker

$1,200
6,000 }
Variable*
7,200 plus
variable kick

$1,200
7,800 3
Variable*
9,000 plus
variable kick

$1,200 z
9,600
Variable*

10,800 plus
variable-kick
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Inv&ct a few years in your country
. and we'll invest from $5,040 to $9, 600
' m your college education.

time per month for 6 years, We
provide $5,040 with no contribu-
~tion from you, -

AN INVESTMENT IN LIFE.
Serving in the U.S. Armed

Forces offers many opportuni-
ties, The chance 1o travel. To
leam a useful skill, To receive

bbbty
or technical . Above all,
HOW THE NEW GI BILL its a wonderful opportunity fo
WORKS. personal growth,
-Invest a few years in the U.S. DO YOU FIT THE BILL? I
Ammed Forces on a full-time yougathgpersonmreta)‘ung
bwsForﬂ\eﬁrsﬁ%irggnth about, see your local Servies
1 contribute per recruiter for full detalils t it
. Then we contribute could be the best i mvestmenOdayt

%600 That’s a total of $10,800 i
U £an use for reducation. you'l ever make,
oaslsintheNahonal uard
or .sewesvouglveuslmned

The U.S. Armed Forces
it's a great place to start
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he Army and the Gl Bill:
Educating America

United States Army Recronting (€ ommand
* Fort Sheridan, Hlinols 60037-60.20 7
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of educational asslstance to our natioca’s ve“erans which

began after World War il. The first Cl Bill of Rights, signed
by President Roosevelt on Jung 22, 1944, gave veterans oppor
tunities thele fathers could only dream about Educational
assistance has evolved theough four versions to today’s GI Bifl, but
the theme has been constant: American men and women serving
their country and eaming 3 better future.

Today’s Gl Bill participant contributes $100 per month during his
of vet first year of Army service. The Veterans Administration cone
tebutes a lot more, providing the participant a combined total of
up to $10,800 for college. This is paid after the soldier leaves the
Army and enrolls in school,

The Army offers even greater benefits to high school graduates
who score in the S0th percentite ne higher on the aptitude test
Through the Army College Fund, young people who enlist for cer-
tain critical skifls can earn <5« 25.200 for college. That's $700 per
month for 36 acader=ec months — four years of college. .

Young American’; who earn the G1 Bill and t_ Army College
fund ate not the unly ones who benelit. America benefits as well,
More than 18 mi/fion Atmy veterans have attended college using
veterans' benefits. Mony would have never realized their educa
tlonal potentis | without the GI Bill's assistance.

This publication looks at some of the people who got thelr start
in the Army and used their educational benefits to tealn themselves
for a successful career.

The Army Is proud of its veterans' success storles, We feel we've
had at least a small hand in them, Now a new gencration of
Americans can write their own success stories, They will start by
providing the Army’s strength. They will become 7 merica’s strength,

T he G1 8il, introduced on July 1, 1985, continues a tradition

This booklet was produced by the U.S, Army Recruiting Command. The success stocies
weve provided with the consent of each of the individuals proliled. Permission to tepuint

should be obtained by writing:
Commander
U.S. Atmy Recrulting Command 0Oy, call:
ATTIN: Public Allalrs Ollice Commercial; (312)926-3918
Bullding 103 AUTOVON: 4593918
Fort Shetidan, Il 600376020

Fot more informstion about the CI Bill, the Atmy College Fund and all of the Army’s
benclits, call your local Ay recruiter, whose phone number ks listed In the Yellow Pages
{under “Recruiting™)
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tradition predates the creation of the nation itself.

In 1636, the Pilgrims declared, “If any person shalbee sem
forth as a soldier and shall return maimed hee sh may
competently by the Collonie during his life.” This small beginning
led to the devel of the most prehensive system of
assistance and care for veterans of any nation.

Veterans' benefits not only dealt with the aftermath of wars, but
also became important recruiting tools for maintaining a ready
defense. When its western frontier was threatened in 1755 by hostile
Indians, the Virginia House of Burgesses enacted a faw providing
enlistees with immunity irom civil offenses.

A year later, the same assembly paid five pounds to new soldiers.
Enlistment bounties were a common practice among a péople who
distrusted a standing army. Colonlsts rou(mely retumed home as
soon as their enti P 8 of whether the conflict-
was resolved,

At a critical point early in the Revolutionary War, whole com-
panies from Connecticut abruptly left the Army at the end of their
year of service. Others from New Jersey and Pennsylvania soon
followed. Faced with a rapidly disapp g army, the C
Congress decreed the first American package of veterans® benefits.

Commissioned officers who stayed the duration of the war re-
ceived half pay for seven years. Enlisted men received $80. Dis-
*led and the dependents of those killed in battle received
life-long pensions. Some of these dependents proved to be very
hardy patriots, indeed, as the U.S. govemment ‘continued to pay
R ionary War pensions until 1911,

Veterans' beneflts continued — and grew — thoughout the 19th
century. The Congress never failed to offer benefits to veterans of
the War of 1812, the Mexican War, the Civil War, the Indian Wars
and the Spanish-American War. Among the most common benefits
of that century was a “"mustering out” pay. These bonuses provi ‘2d
citizen soldiers a modest means to resuine their civilian lives.

Some benefits were offered as solutions to dual probl To en-
courage settlement of vast sections of the frontier, Congres> passed
several land grant acts, By 1850, any veteran who had served 14
days or more during wartime was entitled to 160 acres of land.
More than 47 million acres of land were granted to veterans
through these acts.

The modern era of veterans’ benefits began with the entry of
America into World War |, The Rehabilitation Act of 1919 provided
educationa! assi and an allowance of up to $145 a month for

Ve(cuns benefits in America are nothing new: In fact, the

disabled veterans, While limited in scope, (hls act es(abl:shed the
precedent of a period of g g for
veterans.

The state of Wisconsin established the fum unlimited educational
fund En 1918, Each state resident who served ‘at least 90 days in the
Great War qualified for four academic years at a $30 monthly sti-
pend. Any veteran could his schooling from the el ary’
through graduate levels.

But the most significant change in veterans' benefits was to come
as the result of World War [1. The first GI Bill of Rights gave “em-
phatic notice to the men and women of our Armed Forces that the
American people do not intend to let them down,” said President
Franklin D. Roosevelt as he signed the legislation,

i
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important bills in ti.c history of the United States, At the
time of its signing, there was little realization of the great
changes it would have on life in America. The program changed the
entire concept of adult education in this nation, and started the
greatest home construction boom in history,
Many Americans worried about the effect a large body of return-

T he first Gl Bill of Rights turned out to be one of the most.

ing veterans would have on the stillrecovering economy. Following

World War I, veterans in nearly every European nation clamored for
bonuses or other benefits, Their discontent had helped to foster the
rise of fascism which led to the Second World War. In the United
States, veterans of the First World War lobbied for several years
before Congress fmally granted them a bonus.

In 1943, Presid f dag council to
study ands anticipate post-war problems, That council estimated
that, in the first year after the war, between eight and nine million
men would be unemployed. The council concluded that some
means to dispel the likelihood cf a return to a Depression must be
devised before the war ended. Such a program should provide more
than a on(-time bonus so that its effect on the economy would be
fonger lastmg. It was agreed that one of the most lmportant aims of
such a program was to find a way to gradually r
into the work force.

Several congressional acts, as well as legislation by individual
states, became thé basis for the first GI Bill, The Selective Training
and Service Act of 1940 provided that U.S, servicemen were entitled
to reinstatement in their former jobs or in similar positions. The
Veterans Act of 1944 gave veterans special ad in the
federal civil service,

Many states also enacted laws providing for veterans’ preference
for civil service jobs, special educational benefits, and loans for
purchasing homes, farms, or small businesses. The Veterans

=S Emergency Hoiing Act of 1946 speeded the construction of homes,

nravided tesaporary housing for veterans, and gave them preference
in buying or renting new homes.

Most returning servicemen were young and had not completed
their education or become established in permanent jobs or homes.
The Servicemen's Readjustnient Act of 1944 — better known as the
G Bill — provided these young veterans unemploymént benefits,
paid educational expenses, and offered low-interest home, farm and
smali business loans,

Demobilization aid to disabled servicemen reached high levels
after World War I} as the U.S, expanded its facilities for hospitaliza-
tion and rehabilitation, Great progress was made in medical and
surgical treatment, in re-education, and in vocational guidance and
placement services. Veterans' preference and the reservation of cer-
tain civil sectvice positions for the disabled were practically univer-
sal, while training allowances and disability allowances were more
liberal than ever before,

During the 42 years since the first GI Bill was signed, the
American people have invested over $55 billion in educating 18 2
million World War 11, Korean Conflict, post-Korean and Vietnam
War veterans. They also have made possible more than $225 billion
in home loans for more than 11 million veterans. More than half of
these Veterans Administration guaranteed home Joans have already
been repaid in full, Remarkably. fewer than four out of 100 veteran

s have defauited on their g d foans in this
42-year period. .
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Arthur N. Brown (tight), director of .
employee development for General
Mills in Minneapolis, used the G! Bill
to eamn both his bachelor's and master’s

“The Gl Bill enabled me to have the
essential cost of education taken care
of, which would otherwise not have
been possible,” says Brown. “Thus, |
had to make only the time commitment.
to my education, not the financial com-
mitment. The advanced degree oppor..
tunity was particulary beneficial in
getting & working career underway,”

“The Gl Bill is a good invest.
ment by the government since
it allows most veterans to earn
incomes that ultimately con-
tribute to the livelihood of our
economy,” says Robert S.
McPherson (right).

McPherson, manager of
financial compliance for the
Coca-Cola Company in Atlanta,
used his Gl Bill to earn a dual
bachelor's degree in accounting
and education from the Univer.
sity of Georgia,

Stvart M Frey (right) used the GI Bill to earn a
bachelor of science degree in mechanical engineering
from the University of Michigan.

“A college education was of major importance to
me and was made available through the G/ Bill,”
says Frey who is vice president of car product
development for Ford's North Ametican automotive
operations.

"“Not only did the ‘Bill’ allow me financial aid, it
allowed the comfert of security and the assurance
that 1 had the Army behind me in any difficulty
which may have been encountered,”

“Having the GI Bill available to me was absolutely
the key to being able to attend Duke University, as |
would otherwise not have had the finances to go to
college,” says Gene Corrigan (right), Notre Dame’s
director of athletics. “While at Duke, I was able to
participate in intercollegiate athletics, a field which
has become a life’s work.”
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“My Army service was an educational and ex-
hilarating experience that gave me perspective and
maturity at a relatively early age.” says Harry | Gray
~ (let), chairman and chief executive officer of United
, Technologies Corporation in Hartford, Conn

_ Gray used the G! Bill to earn both his bachelor's and
master's degrees from the University of lihnos. “There’s
- no question that the G! Bill was a tremendous asset in
helping me accomphsh my goal of attaining both my

o and grad fegrees.”

Aiat

‘Albert £, M {letr). profi of ph. logy and logy
: at Virginia Commonwealth University 1n Richmond, Va. completed 5
- this bachelor and master of science degrees using the GI 81l 1 could .
~pot have atténded college if funds were not available through the G!
. Bill*says Munson:

e o «

Roger G. Lambert (left), pro-
fessor of biology at the Univer-
sity of Lousville, used the GI
Bill to earn a bachelor of
science degree in plant
pathology at the University of
Minnesota.

»There is no way | would
have been able to pursue a
degree without the help of the
G! Bill. It made all the dif-
ference financially.”

< From corporal to vice president
and general manager, Philip B. Auver.
bach (left) of Sperry Corporations
Tactical Systems Division, used the
G1 Bill to earn both his bachelor’s
and master’s degrees.

At separation from the Army,
with a wife and son, | elected to
seek employment and enroll in the
evening sessions. The Gl Bill paid for
all fees, books and supphes, making
things much easier on my budget,”
says Auerbach.
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ne of the factors that aided the onginal Gl Bill's passage

was the universal belief that the program was a one-

ti ly deal. The benefits were intended to terminate
as $00n as the need for them ceased. Surely post-Depression era
legist: would have provided greater opposition if they had felt
. * they were creating a fong-term assistance program.
¥ * But once enacted, the “Bill” firmly established the precedent of a
petiod of read ponsored by the g for all war
veterans. The name itself implied that the benefits were due to the
- ) veterans as a right of wartime sesvice.

It was this assumption that led to the passage of the Post-Korean*
Conflict Veteran's Readjustment Act of 1952. No fear of a new
deptession or widespread vaterans’ discontent motivated ths biil's
authors. 1t was recognized that military service would prevent many +
high school graduates from attending college Most felt this

fice to both the indwidual and the country required some com-
pensation But the furst C1 Bill was believed to be too large a pro-
gram — and too gencrous. The bill resulting from this thinking,
. then, mainly d on education benefits, as have the bills
* that foilowed it. .

*Korean Confiict were led to C1 Bil} education and
training for a period equal to one-and-a-half times their active ser-
vice, up to 2 maximum of 36 months of training This program end-
ed on January 31, 1965,

The total cost of the Korean Conflict G1 Bill was $4 5 billion. In
return for their I nent, Americans ed d 2.4 million
. or about 43 percent of the 5 5 million who were eligible. One and
¢ two-tenths million {led in in: ions of higher I€arning: 860,000
in vocationalitechnical schools; 223.000 received on-thejob training;
. and 95,000 took institutional on-farm training.

1
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1955-1964 Success Stories

Michael ], Semrau (right), director of corporate human resources
operations for the Coca-Cols Company in Atlanta, earned his
bachelor’s degree from Western Michigan University and his
master’s degree in psychology from Wayne State University, “The
Gl Bill education benelits provided me Ry to achieve. '
the level of education | acquired and that education has substan
tially contributed to where | am today.”

“The Army taught me that -
setting goals and working con-
sistently toward reaching them
are the keys o success.”

So says Janet Chordegian
(rnght), accounting sectron head
for Coca-Cola Company.

Chordegian used her C! Bill
benelits to obtain her
bachelor's degree in ac L 4
and says, “It would have been
very difticult for me to pay for
my education without the C!
Bill — it was a tremendous
assistance.”

“The CI Bill education benefits had
fust been reinstated and it was at a time
when | needed hinancial assistance
most to complete my education,” says .
Cerald £ Yandel . (right), market analyst
for the Coca-Cola Company in Atlanta.

“With a tamily of six to support and
wanting very much to tinish my degree
it would have been tremendously dif-
ticult without the CI Bill benefits.

Yandel earned his bachelor’s degree
in business administration from Loycla
University In Chicago. “The excellent

education | received has been put to
good use and greatly uttributes to my
success.”
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~The Army educational
benefits were very inste
in enabling me to return to
school for a master’s degree”
says Alan E, Cummins (lelt),
director of the materials
management diviston for
Eastman Kodak Company.
Cummins used his GI Bill to
earn & master of science degree
in applied statistics from the
Rochester Institute of
Technology.

Walter J. Dutton
(lelt). director of speciat
projects for Hughes
Helicopters, Inc., used
tis GI Bill to earn Mus
bachelor ol science
degree in mechanical
engtneening from Put.
due University.

My Atmy training,
and the exposure | had
to fust rate military
hardware, have helped
me directly. But the
greatest benefit 1s a st
class engineenng educa
uon.”

“With my veterans benefits, 1 was able to obtain a start in
the great career of aviation,” says L.L. “Les” Berkherser (left),
chuef inspector of arcraft mantenance for Shell Ol Company

Berkheiser got a head start on his aviation career while ser-
ving as a helicopter maintenance specialist in the Army. After
Jeaving the Army, he carned his degree from Parks College of
Acronautical Technology of §t. Louis Untversity
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C1 Bil for Vie*nam veterans. Overall, the benefits provided
by this bitl weie reduced in number and scale from those of
its predecessors because of a number of factors. The economy was
\ stronger and other forms of government loans and scholarships
* were now available. Also, when the bill was passed in 1966, the
Vietnam War had yet to reach [ts height. It was believed that only a

ﬁ gain, a changed economic climate brought about a changed

- small number of vaterans would be the eventual recipients of its
benefits.
In this climate, the 89th Congress passed the Ve crans Readjust-
ment Benefits Act of 1966, The education and training program
~ under this G1 Bill went into effect un June 1, 1966,

Originally, this G Bill provided one month of education and
training for each month of service, up to 36 months. But in
December 1968, the bill was changed to provid?d one-and-a-half
monlhs of entitlement for each month of service. Eighteen con
i hs of conti service after January 3, 1955 qualified
P a veteran for the full 36 months, if he or she had satisfied his or her

military obligation. 1n October 1976; the maximum entitfement was
extended to 45 months,
N A with no d , in full-time institutional training,
received $100 a month from the Veterans Administration under the
bill as it first passed. By January 1961 this had been increased to
$342 monthly.

This bill also provided home and farm loans, job counseling, an
employment placement service, and other benefits.

The Army’s history of veterans bcneﬁls shows they have been
well used by the soldiers they were intended to help. By the end of
the fiscal year 1983, nearly 66 million out of the 9.1 million eligible
Vietnam era veterans received training under this G1 8ill.

A record-setting total of nearly 4.9 million Vietnam vets trained i
institutions of higher learning, 2.5 million in vocational/technical
schools, 591,000 on the job, and 56,000 in institutions’ on-farm traln-
ing.

The popularity of veterans’ benefits and the GI 8ill continued to
increase’over tha years, As of 1984, the VA had spent about $37
billion to provide educational assistance to 8 million participants In
the Vietnam G! Bill education and training programs.
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1964-1975 Success Stories

“The wide range and variety
of experience and tralning |
received in'the Army, | am con-
fident, endowed me with a
near-perfect overall background
for ‘people’ programs,” says
equal employmen: manager
Valjean L. Hubbert (righy).

Hubbert, who works at Letter.
kenny Army Depot in
Chambersburg, Pa, earned her
assoclate’s degree in behavioral
science and minority studies
with the help of the C! i1,

“1 believe the benefits of the
C! Bill were most jnstrumental
In my success to this polnt and
will continue to benelit me In
my career,”

Dr. Jack L. Arnold, senlor systems analyst for the
Coca-Cols Company in Atlanta, Ca, remembers hls
military service as an “exciting adventure; a great ex.
perlence.”

Arnold served a5 a combat medic during the Vietnam
era. "My militaty experience Is primarily responsible for
helping me to develop discipline, order and patience,
These are basic elements for success in today’s woeld.”

Arnold completed his undergraduate studies while
serving in the Army. The CI BIll gave him the oppor
tunity to earn his master’s In business administration; he
followed this with a law degree.

“Without the financlal support, | would not have ac.
complished my educational pursults. I'm thankful this
benefit was available to me,” says Amnold,

“I won't tell you | enjoyed every minute | spent In the Army,
but I sure met and served with a lot of wonderful people and
that's what service fife is all about anyway. Its not the Indivl.
dual that’s all important — jt's the team effort that counts,”
$2ys James L, Schwarzkop! (right), peocess engineer for Dana
Corporstion In Toledo, Ohio,

Alter serving four years as a heavy truck operator, Schwarz
kopf ysed his CI Bill to recelve an associate’s degree in
business from Davis Junior College of Business.

“Without the opportunlty to earn my dagree through the use
of the I BIlI, my matketable skills would not have been any
greater than those of the thousands of other returning Gls In the
Job market With this addrtional education, | was able to pro-
mote myself to management who In turn realized my newly

16 acquired skills could be yseful to them.”
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Following his tour of duty in
Vietnam two decades ago, D,
David Stewart (lefs), director of
student programs and setvices of
Pennsylvania State Univensity. used
Nis Cl Bill education benelits to
earn three college degrees.

vxh the help of the C1 Bill,
Ste ran earned his bachelor’s
degree in psychology at the State
University of New York in Butlalo;
2 master's In higher education ad-
ministration and fater 3 doctorate
In counselor education from Penn-
- sylvanla State.

“1 found the Army to be one of the few places
where | could receive equal opportunity as a female,
Serving my country, especially duting the Vietnam
wat period, gave me a sense of pride,” says Ocborah
A. Skelton (lelt).

Skelton, education specialist at the education
center at Fort Sam Houston, Texas, used her CI Bill
. benelits to earn an associate’s degeee in business
technology and a bachelor’s degree in occupational
education from Southwest Texas State University.

1 know that I would not have completed college
without the CI Bill. I encourage all young men and
women o enter the Army as a means ol attaining
maturity and education™

~1t taught me to appreciate the freedom and oppore
tunities we have as Americans and not to tske them for
granted,” says Larry M. Britt (fefQ. about his Army ex-
periences. ~It had quite a maturing ellect upon me.”

Setving In Vietnam as an accounting speclalist, Britt,
now accounting section head for Coca-Cola’s analysis sec-
tion, furthered his accounting education by obtaining his
bachelor's degree in that lield lrom Ceorgla Statr Universk
ty.

Veterans’ education benelits helped finance that degree,
says Britt. “It allowed me to go to college on a {ulktime
basis to complete my degree work at a much faster paci;
with higher grades than what | wasexperiencing ptiot to
enteting the Atmy,”

17
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about pethaps the most significant change in American
veterans® benefits since the end of World War If,
President Richard M. Nixon dectared the end of the draft and the
beginning of the “All Volunteer” armed forces, While Americans
welcomed the first action, they were less enthusiastic about suppor-

I he years following the end of the Vietnam War brought

. ting the latter. Opposition to the war and the general low esteem

N for the military lingered after the war.

r What is more, potential erlistees, as well as the American public

A . as awhole, hs?  je to expect a “Cl Bili” of some sort. The '

. absence ¢ senefits, as well as disdain for the military, csused R
. many potential recrults to choose colfege or other career paths. As

‘. they did, the quality of the armed forces declined The armed’ '

forces becai..s the employer of last resort. Recognizing the setious -
national deense implications of such a trend, Congress acted to

. reverse it. e B
L Those who entered the armed forces from January 1, 1977 until-
L Jurz 30, 1985 were eligibiz for the “Post:Vietnam Era Veterans'
) Education Assi Program.” This prog known as the VEAP,
ditfered from Its predecessors in that it was not a benefit
) automatically available to all who served in the military. In order to
" collect the benefits, the VEAP required the soldier to make monthly
e contributions from his or her military pay in'order to participate.
: 1n addition to the VEAP, a new incentive program was blished
. to encourage enlistments for certain occupationat speclalties.
4 Soldters who enfisted for this “Army College Fund” received addi-
tional government contributions above those aiready provided by
the VEAP. . L o
The programwas a "‘Nf!e‘“” § of recruiting were
turned around. Bright young Americans once again cocs
militaty Service a positive means to build for thelf futures..
M R R T T I S
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1975-1985 Success Stories |

. “My setvice record greatly enhanced my potential
| for getting into law school,” says Linda M. Terrell

(right) of Somerville, Mass. “The responsibility the Ar- R
N my gives you, teaches self.disciphne and to manage
« your time effectively, both of which are crucial to
first-year law students.”

Terrell, now a third year student at Harvard Law N
school, served four years as a military intelligence of-
frcer. “My military career helped prepare me foe law, .
school. Through my training, 1 was able to spproach N
my studies with & mature attitude and less anxiety
than the younger students.” R

Martin Martinez (right) ager of K
and benefits of Merck and Company, Inc., recalls his
Army evoeriences as “challenging, stimulaiing and
extremely 1owarding.”
Martinez piofis~d from several Army education
benefits. He received his undergraduate dagree’
. through a ROTC scholarship and, most recently, com-
pleted a law degree by using the G! Bill.
“This éducation has opened doors that otherwise
would have remained closed. Furthermors, this
ducation, coupled with the exp ived in
managing line organizations while on active duty, has .
s given me the tools needed to be successful in any
4 walk of life,” says Martinez,

“Without the GI Bill, I would not have been able
to complete my education,” says Rodney W. Holland
{right}, quality engineer for Honeywell, Inc., New
Brighton, Minn,

Holland served as & military policeman and, since
leaving the Army in 1979, has obtained & bachelor’s
degree in engineering from the University of
Minnesota.

“There was no way | could have worked and car
tied the number of courses | dd,” says Holland,

“The GI Bill was & blessing.”
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“An immigrant,” says Young H. Noh (left), I ob-
tained knowledge of the American culture, the
. English language and basic leadership skills *
Noh, served in the Army as a persor el actions
specialist. Army educational benehts “allowed me to
obtain a master of science degree 1n program
+’management and a master of business administration
in financial management.
“These degrees provided me with the knowledge
: réquired to pursue my career objectives, which led
“\to a challenging position in operations systems with
:Hughes Helicopters.”

B o o

“The Army’s discipline enabled me .
to not only complete my education ,-
but has helped me tremendously 1n -
my professional careet,” says Xavier
_ Candia (left), corporate forecasting

for Colma Company 1n
Milpitas, Calif,

Candia, who served as an Arabic
translator in the Army, earned his
bachelor of science degree because
of the GI Bull. He later earned a
master of science degree in system
management.

[ T
-#The experience I had in the Army taught me the im-
portance of teamwork, planning and self.sacrifice for e
* the good of.the whole,” says Reed T. Hauser (left), pro-
curement engineer for Honeywell Inc. in New Brighton,
.- Minn.
The Army also helped Hauser earn two college
degrees. His bachelor of arts degree in chemistry from
«the University of Dayton was earned under a ROTC
scholarship; while his M.B A. from Florida Institute of
Technology was funded by the GI Bill.

21
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benefits in America As it replaced the old Vet Ed
Assistance Program, the “New” GI Bill brought with it a return
to some of the widespread entitlements cf the past.

The current Gl Bl is open to all enlistees {some of the previous
programs had been himited to veterans who served In select military
o ions). Itis not, h , open to Individuals who received

Y ding a service acad or by par-
ticipating In the Reserve Officers’ Tralning Corps after December 31,
1976. .
Soldiers entering active duty after July 1, 1985, are automatically
enrolled in the Gl Bill unless they choose to not participate. Those
enrolled have their basic pay reduced by $100 a month for their first
12 months of service, Upon completion of three years of continuous
active duty, soldiers are eligible for a maximum of $10.800 of basic
benefits for full-time schoollez,

In addition to the new G! Bill, the Army offers a new Army Col-
Tege Fund, which provides an even greater incentive for top high
schoo! graduates to choose Army.

Through the Army College Fund, the Army can increase the rate
of benefsts up to an additional $400 a month for sofdiers enlisting
for critical occupational specialities that are difficult to &l or re-
tain, Radar op and combat engineer are two such specialties,

The Army College Fund, as its name would imply, is unique to the
Army. The educational benefits are added to the G Bill benefits
which are offéred by all the armed services

Based on a fouryear térm, an Army enlistee caa feave the service
with $25,200 for college. This consists of a $1,200 personal contnbu-
tion, a $9,600 govemment contribution, and a $14,400 Army College
Fund benefit,

Money Is paid out to veterans on a monthly basis for 36
-academic months, The rate depends on whether a veteran is a full
of part-time student. A veteran eligible for'the Army College Fund

ding college or 1 schoo! fulk-time, who served a four-
year enlistment, receives $700 per month. A fulltime student with a
three-year enlistment receives $633 33 each month, while a full-time
student with a two-year enlistment recelves $472.22 8 month.

As a recrulting tool, the new GI Bill plus the Army College Fund
should have more appeal than any veterans’ benefits program ever
offered. On every level,-dollar for dollar, there is more money

ilable. Enlistees bute a smaller portion of their salaries
than In the past, and there are larger government contributions.

One possible atrangement makes this Army college aid program
particufarly attractive, The Army offers a two-year enhstment. In

two years, a young soldier can learn a valuable skill, earn a good
salary, and develop sélf-confidence. Often those two years are just
the right amount of time for & young person to define career goals
and make plans for the future. i

With the new college aid program, total benefits to the Veteran
are greater than ever before, Individual contributions have de-
«reased more than 50 percent. The combination of mote govern-
ment money and smaller p 1 butions is a combinati
that has made the program highly successful.

J uly 1, 1985 marked the beginning of a new era of veterans’

23
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The Army’s Own Success Stories

. Le. Col, Russell W. Jenna (right) chief of Tripler Army
Medic~! Center's Radiology Department in Hon-luly,

) 8radsated from West Point in 1966.

N A year'’s loave of absence from active duty allowed
him ‘o complete his premed courses at the University of
low 1 and then medical school at the University of South.
Florda. 8oth schools were financed by the G Bill:

s e L er tew

Le. Col, Thurman §.
Doman Jr. (right), deputy
T . division chaplain for the 7th
: Infantry Division at Ford

Ord, Calil, started his Army -
. career as an Infantry line of..
y Ficer. But his Future with the ™
Army was to take a less con- ;
ventional direction, “My
dream was to serve soldiers.
as & chaplain.” Doman used: ,
his G1 Bill benelits to make ~:
that dream come true.

“My VA educational bem-
hits | used to the fullest:
Three years through semin- ¢
ary, one yesr for a graduate *
degree at Prnceton, and )
what was left contributed
towards my doctoral work.”

“I came In the Army with a high school
and, within twelve years, | had a Ph.D.™
So says Capt. Alex W. Valadez, (center right, thk
page) who enlisted In the Amy as & mmmychlauk

lalist. Valadez finished his bachelor of scence.
degree by taking advantage of the Armys degree
completion program.
A master’s in education and doctorate in counsel-
ing psychology, earned while he served full-time with
the Army, completed his list of educational credits.

“There's education and success
here, young people. Come and get .
1t says 1st Sgt. Roger G. Mont- .
gomery (right). “The Army gives
you the tools and opportunity, all-”
you have to do is take advaneue
of them.”

M Y, with the Acadk
of Health Sciences at Fort Sam . *
Houston, Texas, esrned an asso-
clate’s degree using GI Bill benefits.

24
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Con. Peter D Christman (lelq)

commander of the U.S Army
L Dental Activity at Fort Leonard
- - Wood, Mo, lirst served as a

y e O e e combat medic in Europe during
-the earl +1950s. Upon con- ’
cluding that initial tour of duty, ~
.+ Christman used the C! 8ill to
' complete his bachelor’s degree
“and then earned a doctor of
" dentsl surgecy degree,

Christman was commissioned
and returned to active duty in
1961 In 1967, the Atmy sent
. him to Indiana University to
complete’ his master of science
In dentistry.

Su. m clus Cirmen oides says, “The Army took me in as | was,

straight out of Negh school; and gave mé Job training a5 well as a cok

-lege cducatlon."

. Roldes, s2rvés as a data processor in Heldelberg, Germany. “The cok .
! IqeaedmlveuoeivedehmughtheAmyhelpedmemwmmdin !
the pas nd willy 1'm sure, In the future."

Col. Frank L. Miller Jr. (lel0),

chief ol stalf of the Army’s Na.
. tional Training Center in Fort It
* win, Calil, entered Army service .
without a bachelor’s degree. “The
" Armny provided me with a two-

yeur, fully funded period to obtan N
“my degree. | was also alforded the

¢ 3
S time and resources to obtain my
ﬁk{' master’s degree.”

he Miller says, “The Army educa
5 tion benelits | received have been
7

-like a loan or investment paid -
back by concerned, intelligent and

better leadership in this member

of the officer corps.”

21 believe the harder one works 1o learn
+»and the harder one works on the job, the
< more successful that person can be.”
. * Lt Col. Robert P. Walters (left) chief of
- tie Military Pollce Branch at the Army's
* Military Py | Center In Al Jris
Ve ‘sarned both his bachelor’s and master’s
v degrees’using his C! Bill benefits.
" 71 bave been privileged to serve In posk
* thons 'where { could use my military and
clvillan educational experience and build
‘»my technical knowledge. As a result of my
* background {and the help 1 got Irom the
* CI Bil), | was selected early for promo.
“tion to colonel. Without these degrees, |
couldn’t be where 1 am todey.”
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he description “All Volunteer Army” Is certalnly &

misnomer, in truth, today’s Army should be known as “all,

recruited”. The bright young people who joln our ranks to-
day have a lot of poiemlal Many avenues are open to thtm. it
takes di h, wellconsidered planning, and d
effort in order to bring the Army’s message to them.

The early ysars of this experiment were rough |oln¢. Anti-military
sentimint and the “me™ generation of the ‘705 made recrulting
tough, During the last decade, public oplnion about the military has
improved, yet the number of eligible young people to recrult has,
steadily declined, In spite of these abstacles, the Army has suc-
ceeded in accomplishing its mission by recruiting enough new
widiers, What is more, it has excreded its objectives by providing
the brightest, strongest, most movally fit Army America hasever
known,

In fiscal year 1985, 91 percent of the Army’s new recrults were
high school graduates. Ninety-six percent of these new soldiers pass -
the Army’s stri hysical tralning standards in basic tralning.

The Army has a lot to offer high achievers. For one, it is the
Targest single tralning school in the nation. In the Army, a Young
person doesn’t have to dream about operating & main-frame com- -
puter. He or she can be tralned to operate it — paid weil whlh in
training — and then put in front of the terminal to put those new-
found skills to work,

Younc people lum a lot more than just a skill, They leam ull-

, and responsibility, 'I'hcy travel around the ¢
wovld 'I'hcy inue lcaming and g new ibllity and,
a3 they do 30, the Army mocnlxes thelr Indlvldual efforts by pro; .

ions and the opp to ad ¢ven more.

Whaether a soldier chooses to make the’Army & career or to retum
to civilian life after his or her first tetm, Ametica Is enriched, Like
the soldiers who served at Nomundy Imhon, u\d Hue, todm

‘are ing to the cl fi thelr d , and
advancing the Ameri a3 they contribute their skills,
enterprise and experience. The cl Blll plays a big part in America’s
future. 1t's helping the new generation of Army veterans to “Be All
They Can Be”

131 7 H ;
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Capt. David D. Crowell (right)
. has done his best to use all the
educational opportunities the
. Army has to oller.

Crowell, commander ol & medi-
cal company at Madwgan Army
Medical Center In Tacoma, Wash,
linanced his bachelor’s and
mastsr’s degrees by using the
Army’s tuition asslstance program,
‘ the G! Bill, and ROTC,

. "The education ! have obtained
through these resources has put
me where | am today, | lully ex-

¢ t0 continue (O reap con-
tinued benelits throughout my
future, .

~The Army, with the variety o!
assignments and geographical loca-
trons, has served to broaden me as
an individual, | sincerely feel it has
enviched my Iile and provides sub-
stantial pleasant memories for
mysell and my family”

1<,

Sgt. Donald R. Felt (right), airborne Infantrytran at
Fort Bragg, N.C, says, “The Army has had a very.
positive ellect on my life, | have found that one can- IR
truly, *Be All You Can Be’ by setting goals and work. *
Ing hard to achieve them.~ .

Felt Joined the Army two years ago and speaks
highly ol the Army’s educational benelits. “The per.
formance oriented training the Army provides has -
helped me galn conlidence In mysell and set my

“ gozls even higher. ! try to take maximum advantage
ol every opp ity to gain knowledge and .
expetience.

“1 strive to be as technlcally and tactically peolk
cient a3 possible. ! look lorward to each opportunity
l‘o #3in Army schooling 43 & means of prolessions!

28
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The NonCommissioned Ofhicer of the Year for the 82nd
Aleborne Division is earning }s degree while be serves.

Stall Sgt. Kenneth W. Riley (lelt) joined the Army with
no college experience. Since then, he has eamed almost
“enough cred:; jor an associate’s degree. Riley says, *)
have taken classes on Saturdays and at nights whenever |
could fit them in. 2 would urge all those with access to

wse them. Education can expand and enhance your hife.”

1 Mnmed very rapidly In the
~Amy, says Stall Sgt. Charles P. Willis
(sbovel. “Some of the things that | feel have
“ made me successtul are, striving to be the
beit soldier that | can be, good management
of my perso ! allalrs, knowledgs of my job,
~and speking sell-improvement at all times.”
*"One way Willis Intends to contlnue his
seliimprovement goals Is to use his veterans®
i educatloml benelits, which be says, ~will
contribute to my success In order for me to
progress to the fullest extent of my military
> coron.”
“Four years ago, | was going nowhere and
* dolng nothing. My lile didnt have a fot of
meaning. Then | joined the Ammy and the
‘ 82nd Alrborne Division,” says Sgt. Felix ],
Exposito (lef)
In Espositos four years in the Army, be
. hes participated In two overseas excercises,
" Including “URCENT Fury 83% = better
+'kniown a5 the Invasion of Crenada.
" “The Amy enables me to do things that,
although small, do ellect the wellsre of our
nation. That gives me & leeling of satislaction
that coutdn't be found elsewhere.”
d 29
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PREFACE

THE CURRENT SITUATION

The current GI Bill is a test program which {s scheduled to
expire on, June 30, 1988. Purther, there {s no replacenent program
on the books to revert to when the lew GI Bill ends. The Omnibus
Veterans' Benefit. Improvement and Health Care Authorization Act '
of 1986 eliminated the Post-Vietnam Era Veterans' Education
Assistance Prograk (VEAP) which was a program of gmaller benefits
that followed in the footsteps but not the spirit of the three
preceding vers{ons of the GI Bill.
Senator Cranston, chairman of the Veteran's Affairs
Committee, has introduced legislation which would make the New GI

Bill permanent. The bill has bipartisan support anong members of

the comnittee and the Senate. Congressman Montgomery will soon
introduce permanent GI Bill legislation in the House of
Representatives. His bill has over 170 original cosponsors from

» o

both parties.

ADDENDUM
WHILE THIS BOOK WAS IN PRINTING, CONGRESSMAN
MONTGOMERY INTRODUCED HIS BILL TO CONTINUE
THE GI BILL, IN ITS PRESENT FORM, ON 11 FEBRUARY
198T.

136
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BACKGROUND

TRADITION OF EXCELLENCE

The New GI Bill, :which began on July 1, 1985, continues a

traditicn of educational assistance to veterans which began at

the end of world War II. Since then, education assistance for

veterans has evolved through several versions, but the theme

has been constant: younc men and women serving their nation
ané investing in their future. o

As a readjustment mechanism for veterans returning to
civilian life, an incentive to attract quality young people
into military service and a prudent investment in our Nation's
human resources, it would be difficult to design a better
program than the New GI Bill. Participation by soldiers
indicate that it is an attractive program which enhances . -3
recruiting and will be used to continue their education after
the completion of nilitary service. Purther, our society as a
whole bene.its. Veterans repay the taxpayers several times
over in increased tax revenues and national and community
service,

Congressman Montgomery, chairman of the House Veterans®
Mfairs Committee, who was the driving force in the passage of
the New GI Bill in 1984, describes the performance of the New
GI Bill this way:

The New GI Bill has played a major role in
sav{ng tﬂe All-Volurnteer Porce...we must maintain

a cost~effective means of attracting higher

# ERIC
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percentages [of a declining youth population].
Purthermore, we must have a program that gives us
bright, disciplined, goal-oriented individuals.,
After all, ihat is what builds a strong military
force. The New GI Bill, in concert with the
compensation and enlistment bonus incentives, is
allowing all branches of the military service to

compete in the marketplace for quality personnel,

: The Speaker of the Bouse of Representatives has
% - made eloquent reference to the GI Bill and its

: impact on the Nation. 1In his words: “The very
best financial investment this country ever made
was the GI Bill of Rights at the end of Worl?
War 1I. It sent an entire generation of Amer-
icans to college. And our country has been

reaping the dividends ever since.*

He is.absolutely right. And we would 1like to

see those dividends continue.
;‘«

The GI Bill has become an American institution w’th far

reaching effects. FProm Congressmen and government officials to

. leaders in business and education, many veterans got started as :
c productive, concerned citizens with tﬂe help of the GI Bill.

: The New GI Bill is continuing this tradition of excellence.

ERIC TN
.’ .

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




134

PURPOSE OF THE NEW GI BILL

I

Traditionally, the primary purpose of all four versions of
the GI Bill, including the New GI Bill, is to provide an
educational assistance program to assist in the readjustment of
members of the armed forces to civilian life. However, the
advent of the All Volunteer Force expanded the role of the GI
pi11.!

The description °®All Volunteer"™ is a misnomer. In truth,

today's Army is "all Recruited.® Hence, Congress cited another

vy g

important reason for the New GI Bill which focuses on the Army's
récruiting needs. That reason -- to promote and assist the all
¢ volunteer force in the recruitment of h.gh quality personnel --
% has been a part of the total program which has produced the

B brightest and strongest Army America has ever known.

Further, the New GI Bill is designed to encourage membership
in unité of the Selected Reserve. The Army Reserve and National
Guard constitute an increasingly larger part of the Total Army's
combat and support units. Congress' intent here seems to be the
same as with the active component - developing and maintaining a

force of high quality, dedicated soldiers.

O
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l PURPOSE OF THE NEW GI BILL '

® PROVIDE A NEW EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
.TO ASSIST IN READJUSTMENT OF MEMBERS OF THE
ARMED FORCES TO CIVILIAN LIFE

® PROMOTE & ASSIST THR ALL-~VOLUNTER PROGRAM ...
PROMOTE RECRUITMENT OF HIGH QUALITY PERSONNEL

® ENCOURAGE MEMBERSHIP |N UNITS OF THE
SELECTED RESERVE

FIGURE |

BENEFITS

The current GI Bill is open to all enlistees and officers
except those officers who received their commission by attending
a service academy or by participation in an ROTC scholarship
program. )

Active duty soldiers are automatically enrolled in tae GI
Bill unless they choose not to participate. Those enrolled have
their basic pay rediuced by $100 a month for their first 12 months
of service. Upon completion of honorable service, veterans are
eligible for a maximum of $10,800 ($9,000 for a two-year
enlistment) for full-time schooling. The soldier's contribution
of $1,200 is added to a maximum government contribution of $9,600
($7,800 for a two-year enlistment). The soldier's contribution
represents about a 15 percent reduction in pay during the first

year's service,
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Benefits are paid out to the veteran on a monthly basis for
36 acaderic months as long as he is sutisfactorily enrolled in a IS
Veterans Administratioa fpproveq education program. The monthly
rate .depends on vhether:a veteran is a full or part-time student.
- A full-time student who served three years or longer receives $300
a month, while a full-time student who served two years receives
$250 a month. ~Qualified young men and women who enlist for hard-
s to-£fi11 occupationai specialties are eligible to receive
additional benefits on top of the basic benefit through the Army
College Pund,
Pigure 2 compares the thrse most recent veterans' education
; programs. The current GI Bill requires a smaller pe;sonal cont-
ribution than VEAP while doubling the total benefit for a three-
year enlistment. Yet, the New GI Bill pays 20-30% less than the
Vietnam Era Gi Bill.

COMPARISON OF BENEFITS UNDER THREE PROGRAMS
ACTIVE ARMY

(EXAMPLE: THREE~YEAR ENLISTEE)

SOLDIER aov'T TOTAL
PROGRAM CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION  BENEFIT
’ VN XRA Ot BILL [ s18.128 sis128
* (PRE-JANTH) ™
‘ vear - =10 $5,400 mi00
‘. (JAN 11 - JUN 88)
NEW Of BILL $1.200 $9.800 $10.800
. . FIGURE 2
t.
¥
'
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For Reserve component soldiers, the current GI Bill offers
substantial improvement over the previous program. PFigure 3
comp}res the current ang previous programs. An important
hittcrcnce between the programs is that the current program is
open to all enlistees and reenlistees; whereas, .he previous

program was targeted to certain recruits.

. COMPARISON "OF BENEFITS
' RESERVE COMPONENTS
EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE'  NEW GI
PROGRAM BILL
ELIGIBLES ENLISTED, NPS, HIOH SCHOOL KWL & OFF, NPQ, P8,
GRAD, 1-111A IN-SERVICR, HS ORAD,
ALL TRST CATREQORIES
BENEFIT TYPE INCENTIVE RNTITLEMENT
OBLIGATION & YRS SELECYED RESERVE S YRS -ncm ARSKRVE
BENEF.T TO SLOWYR 420 AY STWMO 172 TIME
TO $4000/ TR . T80 AT $106/MO W4 TIMR
- 96,040 AY $14/M0 PULL TIMRE
HOW PAID REIMBURSEMENT OF CASH PAID RACH RENKFTT
SCHOOL EXPENSES FAID MONTH
QUARTERLY
FIGURE 3
PARTICIPATION

The New GI Bill has been a tremerdoéus su;céss with soldiers.
Active and Reserve soldiers are participating (enrolling) in the
current program in impressive nunbers.

Since the program started in 1985, over 76 percent of
eligible active duty soldiers have elected to participate and
contribute the $1,200. Further, monthly participation rates have
risen steadily. Since June 1986, the monthly rate has been nearly

85%. Enrollment in the GI Bill has nearly doubled that of VEAP.

‘ » »
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ACTIVE ARMY PARTICIPATION IN GI BILL..

. . @uLy l“‘Dmln 1908)
. . ARMY GOAL - %0 %

;o ELIGIBLE ENROLLED % ACF -
. 170857 129363 T8 00,461

MONTHLY RATC

CY 1906

) ap:ummmvmumsrommvoec

FIGURE 4

The GI Bill is proving to be as popular with Reservists and
Guardgmen as it is with their activé counterparts. Reserve
component soldiers whovjoin a unit for a six year obligation are
eligible to begin using benefits after successfully Fompleting six
months of service'and skill training. Through December 1986,
27,916 Reserve component soldiers had applied for education
benefits. Annually, Rese:viéts and Guardsmen are using the New GI
Bill (an exceptionally.effective incentive for high guality young
Americans) at a rate of over three times that of the previous
Reserve cowmponent progran.

The other se;vicés are also experiencing vastly increased
participation compared to VEAP. As with the Army, GI Bill
participation rates for the other services in general are nearly s

double those of VEAP.
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PARTICIPATION IN THE NEW GI BILL

; i 7 scxerosmmYRATHS PARTICIPATI NI RATRS
’ ag - JULY 86 ~ DRECIMMER 88
- “ R URAR: LY . ..
NAVY: 4%
; 3 - « . Dmac: e12x
- . umnoa-mnc
RACENT MONTILY RATER RECENT MONTRLY RATES
MAVY &
§ o g - 4
< N < W
Eu-, ' H ‘gu -+ “
- o . ~ o
Y M am ot wovis. " JULADG 3Xr OCT WOV TRC
1998
FIGURE §
FUNDING

It is a powerful point to note that the Secretary of Defense
and all Services feel so strongly about retention of the GI Bill
Ehat they are willing to fund it within the pOD. However, funding
for GI Bill education henefits has alwzys been in the Veterans
Administration (VA) budocet. This is because the primary purpose
of the GI Bill ig readJjustment to civilian 1ife. Pirst and
foremost, the GI Bill ig a program for veterans, Both b{,1s
introduced in tke Senate and House of Representativeg.eep funding
within the VA for that reason. Nonetheless, “here are other sound
reasons for not transferring funding to anotﬁer agency.

¢ |
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The VA has over 4G Years of experience in planning, budgeting
and executing education programs for veterans. The administrative
expertise and machinéry is in the VA. Additionally, regarhleaa
. of which agency funds the program, the VA will execute it.

Taking the budgcting process from the VA causes an undo
administrative burden and the very real problem of the VA being

responsible for executing a program with -a budget developed by

another agency.

THE NEW GI BILL SUCCESS STORY

Historically, the GI Bill education programs have been among
the country's most effective legislation. The New GI Bill will
* be no different. In return for faithful service, veterans
receive mode;t but important support in the form of an investment

' that will benefit the nation, as well as the individual for a

lifetine.

A STRONGER ARMY

Enlistment incentives are essential for successful Army

recruiting. The-increased complexities of modern warfare demand

wox

that the Army maintain the quality of its enlisted force. The
Army needs quality soldiers who will perform well during their
initial enligtment and will develop into qualified leaders who
can successfully meet the challenges they will face over the

course of a career.

Q
ERIC

s o »‘1—4~5r:~-~~—— e R e —u‘ma




141 ’

The Army's quality program stems from the recognition tha;
military service is & profession. into which lateral accessions
;r. not possible. Today's recruits will be tomorrow's sergeants,
Proa 30 to 408 of the individuals who enlist in the Army will
‘reenlint. It i{s from these individuals that the Army must
develop its cadre of career soidiers. These individuals must
perform well during their first enlistment and must be able to
adapt to the changing requirements placed on them as their jobs
change through second and succeedfng enlistments. For some
individuals those changes will require the ability to learn
conplex technical skills, yhile for others it will require them
to have or learn the skills to be trainers and leaders. The
point is that the Army must select not only those who will
successfully.complete their f£irst enlistment but also those kinds
of individuals who will rise to the greater challenges of
leadership.

In recent years, the quality of Army recruits has improved

dramatically in terms of education and Armed Porces Qualification
Test (AFQT) scores. fThis is primarily due to improved recruiting
incentives such as the iew GI Bill. Today cver 90 percent of
Arny recruits are high school graduates compared to 54 percent in
1980. Based on }equirements determined by the Army's skill
proponents, the percentage of rc<cruits scoring in the upper half
of the APQT jumped from 26 to 63 percent over the same perlod.
These improvements have reduced attritisn and indineipline and

enhanced performance. In fact, these quality recruits Mave saved

boa st il e i e i e e - - NP g
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the nation the expense of recruiting and training a division's

worth of manpower each year.

IMPROVED QUALITY OF ARMY RECRUITS
ACTIVE ACCESSIONS

FY 80 FY 83 FY 86

MENTAL CATEGORY

I-IIIA 28% 61% 63%
v b2% 12% 4%
HIGH STHOOL

GRADUATES S4% .88% anx

FIGURE 8

Smarter soldiers pericrm ~ubstantially better. Figures 7 and
8 show the résults of some tests which vividly point this out.
Analyses of virtually every measure of performance (e.g., tank
firing, skill tests, promotions, indiscipline indicators, etc.,)
supports the same common-sense premise -- Smarter Soldiers Are
Better SOIdiers.z

Among enlistment incentives, education incentives are
. critical for recruiﬁgqg quality young people. F'gure 9 shows
some of the positive.effects of education benefits. The GI Bill
and Army College Pund expand the recruiting market by attracting
college-oriented youtht Note that 43 percent of quality recruits
(APQT I-ITIA, %igh school graduates) would not have joined the
Army without the combined henefits of the GI Bill and Arnmy

College Fund.

Q 147
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QUALITY SOLDIERS PERFORM BETTER

AFQT TEST CATEGORY

; I-IIIA INB v
AIR DEFENSE
SHORAD GUNNItRS
SUCCESSFUL ENGAGEMENTS 67% 52% 48%
CTRASANA)
ARMOR
RATE AT WHICRH US CREWS
DESTRGYED GPPOSING 7T01 156701
TANKS (CANADIAN CUP) .

INFANTRY

RATE AT WHICH RIFLEMEN

WOULD XiLL

OPPOSING INFANTRY 2TO1 1TO11TO1
(HUNTER/LIGGETT)

FIGURE 7

 GUALITY vs INPISUIPLINE
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POSITIVE EFFECTS OF.EDUCATION BENEFITS

! ® EDUCATION BINEFITS EXPAND THE MARKET

© 3TN OF MIGH-QUALITY MALE, RIGR SCROOL GRADUATES RAYKD
EDUCATION BENEFITS AS THE SINGLE MOST IMPOR.' ¢ REANND
POR INLISTING (ARS WEW BECRUIT SURVEY 7Y &)

® QX OF RIGR-QUALITY RECRUITS WOULD NOT HAVE JOINT.D WITHOUT
G} BILL PLUS ARMY COLLEGE FUND (AR! NEW RECRUIT S\TAVEY FY )

@ POTIOM LINE KDUCATION BENEFITS INCREASE THE POOL O
POTENTIAL APFLICANTS BY ATTRACTING LARGE NUMBERS OF
OF RIGH-QUALITY, COLLEQEK - ORIENTED YOUNG PROFLE (UsAREC)

FIGURE 9

.The GI Bill) is une of a package of incentives which attract
quality recruits, and in conjunction with the Army College Fund,
it becomes a significant part of the Army recruiting effort.
Moreover, the GI Bill has drawing power of itas own. Recent
analysis shows that quality male recruits were up 10 percent
during the first 12 months of the New GI Bill over the last 12
ronths of vsAP.3 Similar results have been recorded in the
Reserve Conmponents. Por example, USAR APQT I-IIIA recruits
increased 24 pe:genétgnd six-year enlistments increased 28
percent when conparing the first year of New GI Bill to the year

prior.
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The General Accounting Office reported in March 1986 that:

While the potegtiul inpact of the New GI Bill

on recruiting cannot be conclusively deter-
mined, Army statistics show a marked recruiting
inmprovement since the New dI Bill was gtarted

on Juiy 1, 1985, 1In addition, data obtained fron
the Reserve and National Guard components of the
Army and Mr Porce show other improvements in
enlistment, reenlistment, and extension sta-

tistics since the start of the New GI 8111.4

Now that recruiting resources are dwindling while recruiting
challenges are increasing, the GI Bill g becoming even more

vital as a recruiting tool, Inproving employment opportunities

and a shrinking youth population are occurring at the same tine
that incentives are-being cut (Pigure 10). As shown on the

next page, reductions in the enlistment bonus, Army Colleae Fund
Iaud advertising bu2yets along with ever worsening pay (relative
to civiiisn earniugs) and the prohibition on paying bhoth Arny
College Fund and enlistment bonuses to a recrult have increased

the role played by the New GI Bill.
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YOUTH POPULATION
"(17 =21 YEAR OLD MALES)

12

. x

&

POPULATION
1IN MILLIONS

. ' K
86 87 88 $2 90 91 92 33 84 95 96 7
Qrotaror  prscaL vear WAL Ay

FIGURF. 10

ACF GUT ADVERTISING CUT
FY 88 - $33.3M FY 88 ~ $25.1M
FY 89 ~ $40.6M

DECLINING MARKET
RECRUITING 37-21 MALE 1 TJIA
[POPULATION DOWN
34% KY 87 © FY 91

PAY
COMPARABILITY
+9.6% (FY 87)

DELINKING BONUS CUT

OF EB & ACF FY 88 & 89 $10M
LOSS OF 20,096 1.0SS OF 1600

MANYEARS IN FY 88 LMA PER YEA

FIGURE 11
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In addition to financial support, military service benefits
soldiers in other waYs The responsibility and discipline .

¢

*  required by the Army fosters the ma‘urity, selﬁ-confidence and
‘values necessary ébé success in college and throughout life.

f‘ ‘The.financial support combined with characc;r denelopment
result in mature, committed students p:eparing for productive

citizenship.

REACHING FOR EXCELLENCE

The Army has for a lcng time been committed to education.
Recently that commitment -- Reaching for Excellence —- has been
intensified by assisting soldiers who have completed their
service with the traasition to the academic environment.
*Partnership In Excellence® is a joint program by the Army and
the American Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admission
Officers to ease the transition from service to school.

Bach year the Army discharges about 70,000 soldiers who are
headed for some type of an education experience. fThrough v
*Partnership In Excellence® the Army will now be linked to
counselors and admission officers nationwide, This network
will facilitate the enrollment of soldiers pursuing a college
education, The Army believes its obligation to its soldiers

involves following through beyond their enlistment. In

conjunction with the GI Bill, *Partnership in Excellence® will
help better fulfill that obligation.
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A BETTER AMERICA

Benefits of the financial support provided by the GI Bill do
not accrue-solely to the individqal; Because the support is
‘wiaely éiovided in the form of an investment in human resources, J

it will pay dividends to the country for many years.

Ve wA e,

The Senate Veterans' Affairs Committee found that education
assistance to veterans was repayed several times over. Senate

Report 90-1243 (September 1976) concluded that:

For each dollar spent in education-benefits,
...the FPederal government has received from
$3-$6 in additional tax revenue from veterans
whose education has given them increased
earning capacity.

This finding was.recently supported by Senator Cranston in the

January 6, 1987, Congressional Record.

Not only does the use of educitional benefits

to recruit college-oriented young people benefit
our Armed Forces, but it also benefits our

country init;rms of the development of a more
highly educated labor force...There is no
question that increased taxes paid over a life-
time of work on increased income repays many times
the cost of the education borne by the tapayer...

The enormous contribations that have been made by

ERIC 153
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the three predecessor GI bills to our Nation
through the education and training of our citizenry
and the increased productivity, gross national
product, and %axarevenues produced thereby are

well known.

It is easy to see the impact that the GI Bill has on the
economy and government revenues by comparing the increased income
resulting from a colleée education to the éost of the GI Bill.
The median earnings difference between workers with a2 college
degree and thogse workers:who only completed high school is more
‘thar $9,400 annually, which ig virtually the same at the
one-tine, total gdovernment contribution for the GI Bill.

The cost of tiie .GI Bill pales in significance to the massive
Pell .education grants of close to $4 billion annually .which are
provided yith no expectation of service to the nation whatsoever.
It is interesting to note that in 1985 the maximum Pell grant for
four years was $8,400 which is Toughly equivalent to the maximum
$9,600 government contribution for the'GI Bill.

Not only does the veteran serve-his country, but he
voluntarily disrupts his life to do so. Veterans returning to
civilian 1ife find tﬂe;selves three or more years behind their
contemporaries in formal education or civilian job experience.
Although the Army teaches discipline, self confidence and

success-oriented character traits, the majority of Army jobs are
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not directly applicable to civilian life. The GI Bill helps ease
the-tranaitlon.

Senator Murkowski, in the January 6, 1987, Congressional

‘Record, eloquently refers to the obligation of the citizen to

gserve his country and the country to provide for his readjustment

as the *interlocking tapestry of duty and responsibility.®
The Uuited States has no obligation more fun-
damental than ensuring that the freedoms and
opportunities we enjoy are protected from those
who would destroy them by force of arms. To
meet this obligation' to its citizens the Nation
must impose upon them a corresponding duty to
support the Armed Porces which defend both the
Naéipn and the Constitution which protects our
liberties. At times, that support must take

the form of service in the Armed Forces.

When circumstances compel us to call Amer-

icans tc arms we, in turn, have a responsibility
to provide for the readjustment to civilian life
of thase Qﬁé have protected our liberty. Veter-
ans' benefits are one of the major tools we have

to meet this responsibility...

In a nation in:reasingly dependent upon the

knowledge and skills of its citizens, such a
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benefit [education) works to the advantage of
gociety as well as the, veteran. 1In an economy

where the future of an individual is dependent on
his or her eéﬁcation, such a Lenefit allows an
individual to prepare for a productive and
independent life. an education benefit is uniquely
appropriate to assist veterans in their readjustment
to civilian life and to provide the Urited States
with the productive znd gkilled citizens we will need
to succeed in the highly competitive international

economy we can expect to face in the future,

CONCLUSION

The Army has embraced the New GI Bill and promoted it as a
positive reflection of its commitment to America's youth. fThis
philosophy has helped advance the Army to the highest level of
readiness and public acceptance in many years. 1In October
1986, Congressman Montgomery, chairman of the House Committee
on Veterans' Affairs and a senior member of the House Armed
Services Committee, led a delegation which visited basic
training sites to observe and evaluate the implementation: of
the New GI Bill. .iﬁ‘his report Congressman Montgomery
concluded that:

The delegaiion believes that the New GI Bill
is on track. All services are implementing

this program effectively and making good uge
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of the flexibility built into the New GI Bill
to best meet their own needs., The delegation
is convinced that the' New GI Bill is success-

fully fulfilling its intended purposes which

> are to enhance recruitment and retention in the
services and to provide a meaningful readjust-
ment benefit to the men and women entering mili-

tary service today...

The New GI Bill has enabled the services to open
the previously untapped recruitment market of
college oriented young people and to broaden
access to the potential recruits who are employ-
ment oriented. The Army's utilization of the
New GI Bill is a particularly impressive success
story. For the first time, the Army has...
broken the link between unemployment and recruiting
and vastly improved the quality of new recruits
: {Figure 12). Only 4% of FY 1986 nonprior service
accessions are in Category IV, a remarkable
improvement over the 57% of Category IV's

accespedibﬁiing FY 1980.

Ths reserve components have also utilized the
New GI Bill successfully and effectively. Units
visited by the delegation indicated significant

Q oy :
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visited by the delegation indicated significant
increases in retention and in recruitment of
high quality/ young people...

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATE, MALR, I-ITIA CONTRACTS VS.
MAIFP UNEMPLOYMENT RATES

14

20

- 13

- n
a- ol CONTRACTS "
Qxef 10
s 200 p- ] g

100 - 8
s:u- — 1§
] UNEMPLOYMENT

140 e

1983 1962 1983 1984 1906 1908 1897
PISCAL YEAR gsTam
) FIGURE 12

The conclusion reached by the delegation is that
the New GI Bill is working extremely well. It is
the primary benefit that is drawing high school
graduates in the upper mental categories into
active and reserve military gervice. The dele-
gation is' mindful, however, that the recruiting
climéie 1; currently, and will continue to be,
fragile due to the improving national employment
situation and the constantly shrinking cohort

of young people from vhich the services must

recruit. In view of this, it is the belief of




the delegation that the total benefit package

now available must not be reduced or diminished.

The New GI gill, combined with an adequate level

of base pay: enlistment and reenlistment bonuses

and other benefits, will allow the services to )
continue and even surpass their current level of

guccessful recruitment and retention.

The New GI Bill is a winner for the veteran, the Army and

& the Nation. The permanent continuation of the GI Bill will

continue the tradition of assisting veterans, encouraging the N
{ enlistment of quality young men and women, and supporting a

vital, productive American society.
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EXPLANATORY NOTES

l, New GI Bill requirements and-benefits are in Chapter 30,
Title 38, USC for active-component gervice membzrs and chapter
106, Title 10, USC for those in the reserve components.

2, The tests referenced in Pigure 7 were conducted in 1980 for
SHORAD engagements, 1981 for combat-simulated tank gunnery, and
1984 .for infantry combat simulation.

3. The ten percent increase:was estimated using econometric
techniques to isolate the effect of the New GI Bill on
recruiting high school ,-aduates, I-IIIA AFQT nales (GMA).
Jariables included in the analysis were number of recruiters,
high-quality mission, other missions, population, unemployment,
GI Bill and dummy variables for quarters cf the year analyzed,
and Army Recruiting Brigades. The coefficient o..the variable
measuring the effect of the Mew GI Bfll was highiy significant
and implied-a 9.7 percent increase in GMA contructs as a result
of implementing tne New GI Bill. Por more detailed
information, contact one of the Army representatives shown on

-the title page,

4. GAO Report, "The New GI Bill: Potential Impact of Ending
it Barly,® March 1986, as reprinted in Congressional Record,
6 January, 1987, page §230.
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Legialative Authority. L
On Oe(obet 19, 1984, Public 'Law 98-525 was
d. Thls

Mr :‘ vr“lm d catl
Anbummdlm.monoomodyumu
“the New G Bill™ The new program also provides
for an cducutional+ entltlement program fcr
mtmbm of the Sclected Reserve, Significant

of this legislation are listed below,

The New GI Bill - Eligibltity
and Entitlement

Individuals who come on active duty between July
1, 1985 and June 30, 1988 will be automatically
earolied under the New Gl Bill, unless they dis-
earoll during Basic Military Training. Once signed
up, active duty members will have $100 deducted
from their pay for the first 12 full months of active
duty. This reduction is noarefundable. To receive
full post-setvice ' benefits a8 veterans, members
must:

(1) Serve at least three years of active duty
after June 30, 1985,

(2) Have received a high ncbool diploma or
ivalent prior to complation of their initia tour
o{ active duty.
~ (3) Separate from sctvice with an honorable
discharge,

.

Alr Foree members can begin using benefits aftzs
two years of active du:y. Benefits e:.’nie 10 years
after last discharge o2 riense from service,

Ths new program pl/l a tota) benefit of $10,800
for three years® of service at the rate of $300 per
month for up to 36 months. Three quarter time
study will be paid at the rate of $225 rer month,
and half fime study at a rate of $1% per month.

The program will pay for ziudies at post-secondary
institutions which 27¢ approved by the Veterans
Administration for the payment of educations
benefits,

Apprenticeship and other on-the-job training,
perative prog farm coop e, fight
ining and P - tralring are not

approved for payment under the new GI Bill.

Work-study, tutorial asilstance and educational

loan programs are also not approved for payment

of benefits.

Graduates of Service Academics and ROTC
scholarship recipients are not cilgidle.

The New GI Bill for Selected Reserve®

Selected Reserve enlisted personnel who entist,
extend or mnlm for at least six years from July 1,

1985, are ‘eligible for a total benefit of $5.040.

Officers who, on July 1, 1985, or later, agree to
serve for aix additional years beyond their current
Selected Rescrve obligation, arc also cligible, The
benefit is paid at the rate of $140 per month for up
to 36 months for full-time education atteadance:

$10$ per month for three-quarter time attendance;

and $70 per month for half-time attendance.

There is no deduction from pay for Rescrve
members,

Reserve members are eligible for benefits a8 soon
a3 they have completed initial active-duty training
and 180 days scrvice {n the Selected Reserve.
Members who have a bachelor’s degree are nct
cligible for benefits,

If additional information is desired concerning the
New G Bill prior to entry on active duiy, pkase
contact your nearest Air Foree recruiter, For thote
on active duty, sce your education counselor at
your Jocal base education center.

*Selected Reserve consists of yais beloaging (0 the Alr Foroe
Reserve and the Air Natiomal Guard as well as 1hose indindusle
serving o active duty On stalicory (owr GIsigaments.
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Admissions Test . . . SAT and ACT for college/university *+
admisslons arefree o servicemesnbers at DANTES DANTES Testing

. (College Level Examination Program). Successfiul
mnﬂmdhmimﬁkmmﬂs
hdpmsdnwﬂese -

+ » (General Education Development). Through this
pmmm. canearna/ sdsodaeduﬁi.@mbgk
g:x G-Dm Test Centers within the United
States and from DARTES Test Centers on railieary bases over.
seas. There fs no charge for GED esting at overseas cenfers.

for Technical Schools Training, You havesnop- -

Equivalency
portunity badvﬂhnsdsodhmbrnﬂty
ek Q%m are published by the Ameri-

Bﬁcsldkmmimhoym oourses
are offered on-duty time in skills relaed oo mil-
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What The Corps Has o Offer You

It starts inboot camp. The proving ground where
Marine learns first hand what mdwmﬂm
tions demand— emotionallyand mentally. But

Marhsdon\mp there,

Education and 2 Marine’s individinal development s tmpor-

tant ¥o the Marine Corps. That's why we offer over 100 voca-

tional schools where you can train %o become a specialist or

Sechnician in over 300 jobs In docupational fields such as otz .

tion, communications, ot electronics. You can even complete )

anapprenticeship program, earn college creduts, of receive a -

ummmn, oz‘h)' ‘oppomﬂqmmmmdc '
earnan ©

mmbﬁomﬂm‘syguawyouandon.“

‘This brochure contains 2 partial list of vocational schools

The New GI Bill
MWGIBWWWO\?E‘;:@:M
education, complete onetour
ﬁ;wluvcbdoisa;y‘tumﬂxm:wx“lmm:mn
Installments.

‘Then afier you Enish active duty you can receive up o $300
amonth for 36 months while you've in school. }
ﬂxnchlBﬂlzboqﬁu-sodwmhmﬁanlbmﬁs,see

Iean be diffcult o complete your college education while
youTre on active du'x. You're faced with transfers which can
meana boss of credits. So what's the solution? Consider enroll-
ment in oneof the 400 colleges and universities that partici-
%‘o:h:‘:ai;s n;d;'émykéd;ﬁonhdtsocm
wmbsg]m ’ bt

your credtts transfer, but you can eam up o
15 semester hours' credits through your lob.T'Ilssmn
give you an opport.nity % earn credss for thein-

M\?’ o

To for the SOC program, you must be on active duty,

ha school and be
2 hmdﬂd‘iepbmor:mwglhcdmﬁbn,
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. 10 any Regular or Reserve enlisied Marine,
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requirements.

To participate in MECEPyou must first be selecied 10 atiend
amwed(prepsdxool.l-‘mﬂue. 'Eom\oznyomol.’»o
ajor colleges o universites where youll study for a bacca-
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classcs, you'll deaw, the standard
$300 2 month until you've used up
the $10900 that's yours.

You nray decide you want to
wait until you've compicted your
entire enlistment before you begin
school. If that’s the case, you'll
recelve the full $300 2 month for
36 months once you begin full-
time classes.'Foc more details, talk
to you: Marine Corp recruiter.

Get in the Reserves and get
35,040 for your education.
There’s more than one way to get

excitement of parttime opportu-
nity in the Marine Reserve. If that's
your kind of opportunity, after ini-
tial training, all you have to do is
drill one weekend 2 month and
compiete two weeks of annual
tralning fee 6 years. Your
remaining 2 years being inactive
drill status.

" ERIC
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ately. If you go to school full-time,
you'll receive $140 2 month foc 36
moaths. Go ¥4 of the time and
you'll get $105 2 month for 48
months. Or attend on 2 ¥z time
basis and you're entitied to $70 2
moath for 72 months. Any way, it's
a great way to help pay for your
advanced education.

very job comes with momey
for school.
‘Whether you join the Marine
Corps or the Marine Reserve,

every job we have to offer not only
ot'fcxsyw challenge, but comes
with all the benefits of the New
GL Bill indluded. In other words,
you don't have to qualify for 2 par-
ticular job to be eligibic for your
GL benefits. You recelve them no
matter which career field you
decide on.

So, the choice is yours. You can
become someone . . . or vou can be
tike everyone else. See your local
Marine recruiter. Ask him about
the New GLL BilL It's for someone
like you.
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J. CLAY SMITR, JR.
DEAN

HOWARD UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW

1 Dr. J. Clay Smith, Jr., is the Dean of Howard University Law School.
:: He was born in Omaha, Nebraska, and attended Creighton University, graduat-
ing in 1964. fle obta’ined his J.D. from Howard University School of Law

in 1967. From 1967-1971, he was on active duty w!tl; the Army, where he

T served as Captain in the Judge Advocate General Corps. He received his
LL.M. and S.J.D. degrees from the George Washington University National
Law Center in 1970 .and 1977, res;;_ecti'vely.

Dean Smith began his legal cureer in 1971 as an associate with Arent,

., Pox, Kintner, Plotkin and Kahn where he specialized in the field of anti-

‘ trust and trade regulation law. From 1974 through 1978, he served as
Deputy Chief of the Cable Television Bureau and as Associate General Counsel
of the Federal Communications Commission. In both positions, he was the
first Black person appointed to a policymaking position at the FCC since
the creation of that agency. In 1978, Dr. Smith was appointed by President

Jiwmmy Carter as Commissioner of the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission,

where he alsn served for one year as Acting Chairman in President Ronald W.
Resgan’s Administration.

Dr. Smith began teaching at Howard University Law School in 1982 where
he taught communications law, torts, administrative law, civil rights law,
legal methods, and administrative process. In 1986, he was appointed Dean
of the Howard University School of Law.

Dr. Smith is a former president of the Washington Bar Association.

He became the first Black person to serve as the National president of the
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Federal Bar Association since it was founded in 1920. He served {n that
cspacity from 1980-81. Dr. Smith also served as Federal Bar Asaociation
representative to the American-Bar Association Houae of Delegates from
1981-83. 1In 1981, Dr. Smith waa selected by the Board of Trustees of
Howard University to receive the "Outstanding Alumni Award™ in the area of
Law and Socfal Reficm.. In 1985, Dr. Smith received the highest award be-
stowed by the Nationl Bar Association, the C. Francia Stradford Award.
Recently, he was elected as a Fellow to the Amerfican Bar Association Foun—
dation and received the 0l1lie May Cooper Award from the Washington Bar
Association. M

Dr. Smith has filed several Amicus briefs before the Supreme Court
and other federal courts and administrative agencies on civil rights and
related issues.

Dr. Safith is a prolific author. He has publiahed approximately 85
articles on a variety of 1ssues, including torts, class actions, attor—
neys fees, legal histoty of Black lawyers, civil righta, and Haitfan art.
Host recently, he has prepared s bibliographical index on genetic engi-
neering, and he i{s currently researching the history of Black lswyers in

Anmerica in preparaton for a book. In addition to his numerous other acti-

'viti es, Dr. Smith has taught Church School at Asbury United Methodiat

Church for 20 years. He algo served as President of the Priends of the

D.C. Youth Orchestra Program.

12/4/86
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Mr. Chairman and Mimbers of the Subcommittee:

I am Charles B. Saunders Jr., Vice President for
Governmental Relations of the American Council on Education.

ACE is the major coordinating body for higher education,
representing the nation’s large, small, public, private, two-year,
four-ysar and graduate colleges and universities and their national
associatisns., This constituency is large and diverse: a
$100 billion enterprise accounting for about thres percent of the
Gross National Product, employing 800,000 instructional and research
staZf and ono million administrative and support personnel in 3,300
institutions enrolling over 12 million students and serving millions
more in public service programs.

On behalf of ACE, I am pleased to have this opportunity to
testify in strong support of ER 1085, to make permanent the authority
for the New GI Bill. <This legislatioh is a high priority for the
higher education community.

Jusi: as the original post-World War II GI Bill sparked a
broadening of opportunities which changod American higher education
dramatically, so we believe that the New GI Bill promizes to
significantly assist research, industry, and the military services to
obtain the talent they need to nmaintain Axmerica’s security and
international competitiveness. The early success of the legislation
in its pilot stage stands as a remarkable tribute to its sponsor,
Chairman Sonny Montgomery, and his colleagues on the House Committee

on Veterans Affairs.
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In a publication distributed to all members of Congress last
month, A Higher Education Agenda for the 100th Congress, ACE

identified the community’s primary legislative objectives. Among
those priorities, it urges renewal of the New GI Bill, with the
following statement:

*In 1985, the new GI Bill was enacted as a three-year test
program designed to =meet the criticzl skill needs of the armed
services and the teservcs, &nd to enhance the lives of military
personnel by helping them to pursue postsecondary education. It has
already proved succesaful: tens of thousands of active duty,
vational Guard, and Reserve personnel have nade a financial
commitment to their fiture education under the progcam, and the
quality of vecruits has risen significantly, The higher education
community stiongly supports renewal of the legislation before it

expires in June of 19688."
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STATEMENT OF FRANK MENSEL

Mr. Chsi{rman, ny name fe Frank Menxsl. I ssrve on ths staff of both the
Associstion of Community College Trustses and ths Amer{cen Associstion of
‘ Comaunity and Junior Coilagss, ss nansger of fad-ul‘nhtlom for b>rth

‘AssoGistions. It {s & spscial psreonal plessure for me to enpesr st this
! hearing, Xr. Chairman, and to resffirm to you and this Comnittas the strong
support of ths comaunity coli-g-- for the New GI B1ll.

Ve ers vary plesssed to ses such tramsndous spprecistion {n tiw Houss for
ths program’s succass, ss shown by the more then 180 Maxbars who are
cosponsoring Cheirnan Montgomsry's resuthorizat{on bfll, H.R. 1085, snd to see

‘ ths Senste Vatersns' Affairs Comaittes moving ss vigorously on resuthorizstion
as this Coomittse {s. You will be plesssd to knov thst we slrsedy have writtsn
letters of spprecistion to every cosponsor.

Community colleges have been very active {n support of thes New GI Bill
since ths originel {ntroduction of H.R. 1400 four Congrissss sgo. And our
menbere have no csuse to regret that support. It f{s clesr to us that the New !
GI Bill is exceeding its expsctations ss s thres.yssr pilot and {s now naking
vital contributfons to the national interest on st lssst three fronta:
national security, postsacondary sducstion sccess, and s mor: compatitive
Amsrican ekill base.

The progran's concributions to national security are undorscorsd by marked
inprovesents in ths genersl qiality of personnel antaring the arzed ssrvices,
perticularly the Arny. We know thess {mprovezents sre being graphicslly
documented for you by the Army. 1If the White House continues to oppose the New
GI Bill, it will do so in the face of strong svidence that the prograsm i. the

key to the increasing succsss of an allevolunteer militery.

1 e
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A vital innovation in the New GX BSll is the collage incentives it offers
for Resarve and Netional Guard membars vho take six-yeer enlistments. Those of
us who have eupported this innovetion from the beginning have often referred to
it as an "up front® GI Bill. By ellowing the Guard and Resarve enlistees to
take college courses vhile.serving their military obligetion, the progran gives
the defense system the diract benefit of the enhanced skills -- thiz in

contrast with the treditional GI Bill, in which the skill anhancement cones

ofter the sexrvice. The more sophisticeted our P systens b . tha more
depandent our security is on the skills of the personncl usirg thea.

Mr. Cheirmsn, this mixing of military ssrvice and college treining
strengthens both national security end the aconomy, {n both the short and the
long run. The college benefits that Guard and Reserve mesbare racuive during
their anlistments ere bound to strengtien their civilien cerears. Hany skills
20 Zeined will f£ind theis way sooner or later into civilian defense work, es

wall as benafit the nilitery 3irectly through extended snlistments. In msny

ceses, they will do both.

A perhaps more subtle bansfit of the New CY Bill is {ts potentiel for
ellevieting the compstition asong the militery, enployers end higher educetion
for the reduced flow of high school graduates -- compatition that posas
hardships for ell thres sectors. In the jergon of effirmative ection, grest
nunbers of the Guard and Reserve enlistees vho use their New GI Bill banefits
will bacoms "two-fars® end “three-fars.” Thet {s, they will be college
studeyszs sexving as part-tice soldiers, vhose treining then may lure thsa into
§# S-tine employment es well.

1t {s vorth noting, Mr. Cheirman, thet e recent analysis by Cerol Frences,

o donsulting economist vho is the former chief aconozist of the Anericen
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Council on Equcation, shove that tho biggest eingle step thet a working
Amsrican takes up the psy ledder {s tha completion of the tvo-year college
dagres. It ehows that & worker with s two-year collegs dagree esrns an average
of 80 percent of vhet a bachelore dograe holdsr aarns, vhile tha {ndividual
with only & high achool diploma sarns an aversgs of just 70 percent of vhat &
community college graduate aarns. Many of the Cuard aud Rezerve nenbers who
uze the Nev GI Bill banefits in comaunity collegee will pursus the technical

training that fits the skill needs of the local ailitary unit {n vidch they

aerve. Thay ars Lound to ses thie ae & way to better themselves in ranl and

pey withiy the military.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, ve should not underestimate the izportanza of the
New CI Bill to ths Amsrican drean of universal postsecondary educational
opportunity. With & marked decline in the purchasing power of studant
financisl aid aa nessured sgainst full costs of college attendance, incressing
nuabera of high school graduates are likely to turn to the New GI B{1l as their
surest peth to & college educetion, '

In sumrary, the comrunity colleges sre anthusisatic sbout Che
cpportunities for greater produstiyity that the Hew GI 31l offers boch ta
#ndividual Anoricens and to the national sconsdy alike. In its quichening
quest for an economic coxpacitivencss policy that will give thia country the
tochnical education and akill basa it must have to geat che global chellenge,
Congrass elreedy has & cornerstons in place in :‘he New CI Bill. Wae know this
Comaittes spprecistes this fact.

Vs thank you egein, Mr. Chairman, end all your col.avgues who have
supported and sre supporting the New CI Bill, and wo applaud the dauntless
lasdership and vieicn of Congresszan Hontgomery in building this program.

Plesse count on the continusd support of ths comrunity colleges.
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committee on Veterans Affairs
of the
House of Representatives

on H.R. 1085

Testinmony of Ms. Bertie Rowland
The National Association of Veterans Program Administrators
Office 'of Veterans Affairs

california State university, Chico

Honorabie Mr. Montgomery, Chairman and Distinguished

Members of the committee:

1 am Bertie Rowland, president of the National
Association of veterans Program Administrators (NAVPA). NAVPA
is most grateful for the opportunity to share with you some
of our thoughts, concerns and enthusiasm for the new GI Bill,

under Chapter 30 and Chapter 106.

My testimony is to speak in favor of H.R. 1085, which
extends the "New GI Bill" for active duty service persons
under Title 38, Chapter 30 and for reservists under Title

10, Chapter 106.

O
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NAVPA represents the directors of veterans educational
prugrams throughout this country. We are in an excellent
position to view the effects of the educational programs as
we serve the students who partake of the various GI Bills

and dependents educational assistance programs,

It is unquestioned that VA Educational Benefits have
had a positive influence on our country. Veterans returning
from WWII, KOREA, and VIETNAM used their GI BIlis to help
them to readjust to the new and changing civilian employment
opportunities. It is well documented that these programs have
effectiyely paid for themselves many times over by increasing
the overall productivity of the citizenry, and by subsequently

returning increased tax dollars to the government. These

programs not only provide readjustment benefits, but also
encourage veterans to aggressively participate in today's

technology.

Under the veterans Education Assistance Program, this
country attempted its first peace-time educational benefit
package, and its return to an "all volunteer® service. while
VEAP had some degrees of success, a poor participation rate
served to highlight that the program did not attract the
quality recruits required to staff our increasingly

sophisticat~d military. The program had limited appeal. From

O
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the students' point of view, many of them could find adequate
funding for college through utilization of Student Financial
Aid--without taking years out of their lives to participate

in the military.

The New GI Bill has a higher benefit rate than did

the VEAP. With an 85% participation rate in the new bill,

this difference is sig=nificant enough to indicate that it

does attract educationally oriented recuruits. Furthermore,

the New GI Bill encourages retention in the military services.
1f the serviceperson wishes to have more money for college

and his or her subsequent readjustment to a civilian
occupation, their lengthencd commitment to the military will
provide this funding. The "New GI Bill® has experienced great
success and the Chairman of this committee has our appreciation

for his work in this area.

Industry and educational institutions are interested
in attracting the same group o< young people that is targeted
for recruitment by the military. Tye New Reservists GI Bill
is very attractive to these individuals. It allows for the
pt.suit of an education while holding a job, contributing
to the local community, and enjoying the satisfaction of
service to one's country . . . all by the same individual.

This incentive to serve in the reserves has Leen heralded
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as a success as demonstrated by the rising educaitonal level
of the recruits, by a lengthening of the average enlistment
period and by the increasing participation rate in “he Chapter

106 program.

. One of the elements which is generating support for

C

the reservists GI Bill is it's overwhelming acceptance by

the educational community. This acceptance is partly due to
it's inclusion in the veterans Educational Benefits delivery
system. This system includes members of the Department of
Defense, t veterans Administration and the Veterans Affiars
Offices at educational institutions. It is important to
maintain the visibility and direct support that is generated
through’ the VA and the IHL's. This established support network
has proven to be a vital link in problem solving and satisfying !

the needs of the reservists on campus.

After service in the military, the educationally
motivated veteran will begin or continue their academic career,
and since the early eras of veterans educational benefits,
the GI Bills have been viewed as a readjustment benefit. The
returning veterans of every era have come home to observe

that their peers have an advantage of several years in their

jobs or professions. The NEW GI BILL in it's current delivery

system will continue to offer support and readjustment to

LRIC
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these returning veterans. It may be appropriate at this time
to suggest that since benefit delivery is primarily after
the serviceperson is discharged and that the targeted objective
is readjustment and support, it is our feeling that funding
should remain as currently budgeted through the veterans

administration.

Implementation of Chapter 106, reservists GI Bill
has been a success, however, we feel that the difficulties
in the distribution process for the Notice of Basic Eligibility

should be addressed to preserve the integrity of the program.

. In conclusion the National Association of Veterans
Program Administrators is enthusiastic about the benefits

of the New GI Bills, Their value has been demonstrated in
the pepartment of Defense statistics and is currently proving
xtself on our campuses. We therefore support H.R. 1085 and

the permanent installation of the New GI Bill.

We thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to

support this very worthwhile program.
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STATEMENT ON
“THE NEW G.I BILL CONTINUATION ACT”

RN

H.R. 1085
“to dmend title 38, US.C.
to make permanent the New G.I. Bill...”

BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRANING AND EMPLOYMENT
VETERANS' AFFARS CC/MITTEE
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
18 FEBRUARY 1987

BY
. ROBERT-W. NOLAN
FLEET RESERVE ASSOCIATION
NATIONAL EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

Not to be released until mzde public
by the House Committee on Veterans' Affairs
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INTRODOCTION

Mr. Chalrman and members of this distinguished Committee, I
am Robert W. Nolan, National Executive Secretary of the Fleet
Reserve Association. The FRA is & national military organization
comprised of over 149,000 enlisted personnel of the United States
Navy, Marine Corps and Coast Guard, active duty and retired. 2as
a retired Navy Chief Petty Officer, it is my privilege to speak
for not only my Shipmates but for all active duty personnel of
the three Sea Services on-the vital subject of making the New
3.1I. Bill permanentc-by law. A3 we learned on last Thursday and
Friday when we toured the recruit training centers at Port Knox,
Lackland' AFB, Orlando and Parris Island, young Americans entering
the service today are vitally interested in furthering their
formal educatioa. For the vast majority of the several hundred
recruits.we talked to, education was their primary motivation for
enlisting in the service, and earning educational benefits under
the New G.I. Bill was the first step they could take to achieve

‘their goal.

PRESENTATION

Mr. Chairman, the Pleet Reserve Associatior “as long been an
active advocate of a peacetime program which afi.«ds young
Americans the opportunity to obtain a higher education in
exchange for a staied period of service in our arned forces.
Exactly 22 years ago today I was involved in presenting the FRA's
testimony in support of U.S. Senator Ralph W. Yarborough's
(of Texas) Cold war G.I. Bill, S.9, before the Senate Committee
on Veterans' Affairs.

G.I. Bills of the past were based upon the philosophy of
rewarding those who scrved our nation in wartime by assuring them
a measure of readjustment assistance as they returned to civilian
pursuits. Based on 40 years of G.I. Bill experience, no one can
question the overwhelming and total success of previous G.I.
Bi’ls.

However, to meet today's challenges, we must design and
apply a New G.I. Bill philorophy. We want to assure the
continuing success of the Al:-Volunteer Porce. In the col?
reality of our shrinking national demographics, we must attract
the best of our nation’r youth to serve in our Armed Porces.
This can be done equitably with cost-effectiveness by making the
New G.I. Bill permanent law.

THE NEW G.I. BILL'S PERFORMANCE TO DATE

Based upon the statistics over the pericd from 1 July 1985
through 30 September 1986, the New G.I. Bill is one of the most
effective recruiting tools since the implementation of the All
Volunteer Porce. Over fifty-six percent of the eligible
enlistees who have joined the military since 1 July 1983 have
chosen to participate in the New G.I. Bill.

By comparison, analysis of the participation statistics of
VEAP over an 8-year period reveals that only 37 percent of
eligible enlistees participated in VEAP. What is even more
revealing is that of the participating 37 percent, almost half,
48 percent, chose to withdraw and reclaim their contributions
after a period of military service.

The following participation percentages show the
overvhelming approval and acceptance of the New G.I. Bill:

KEY G.I. BILL VEAP
Navy 41% 19%
Marines 608 :13
Army 748 20%
Air Porce 41% 18

6
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FRA SUPPORT OF THE NEW G.I. BILL
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The Fleet Reserve Association's total 2upport of making the
New G.I. Bill pPermanent law ie baged upon what. the FRA has
learned from active duty personnel, PRA's.active duty membters
: have voiced their full acceptance of the New G.I. Bill. The Sea
. Sexvices' senior enlisted military leaders have informed us of
» the popularity of the new G.I. Bill with Junior enlisted person-
nel. Naval Reserve officials state the Naval Reserve will be
hurt significuntly if the New G.I. Bill's termination date is not
extended beyond 1988. The Naval Reserve and Marine Corps Regerve
spokesmen say both Reserve groups have enjoyed a substantial
increase in reenlistments and extensions because of the New G.I.
Bill with corresponding increases in readiness and unit
stability.

The last week in Jar ixy the FRA participated in hosting the
U.S. Navy's "Recruiters .: the Year Week" here .in Washington,
X D.C. The Navy's top recruiters and recruiting commands were
s honored for their successful performance in 1986. wWe met and
: discussed Navy recruiting with the top 20 officer and enlisted
{ recruiters of 1986. Fach and every one of them unequivocally
Btetel that the New G.I. Bill is their most attractive lure to
young potential enlistees, in the upper mental categories.

Because of these reports, FRA was delighted on 4 February
1987, to express its unqualified support for the passage of H.R,
1085's companion bijl, §.9, before the Senate committee on
Veterans' Affairs.

INPRESSIONS OF THE NEW G.I. BILL GAINED
) ON A FIELD TRIP TO RECRUIT TRAINING CENTERS

Thanks to Chairman Montgomery, the FRA had the opportunity

last week to experience the New G.I. Bill's acceptability among
, recruits of all Servicés. As, you know, we were fnvited te

accompany members of this Committee on a two-day field tcrip,
12-13 February 1987, to military recruit training centers at Fort
Knox, Ky.: Lackland AFB, Tex.: Orlando, Fla.s; and Parris Island,
S.C. Allow me to relate our impressions gained on the field
trip.

EBach vigit to a recruit ceuter began with a briefing
explaining that Service's polic,, ir compliance with the
Department of Defense's directive, of informing the recruits of
their New G.I. Bill benefits and allowing the individual recruit
to make the decision on whether or not to participate. Tais was
followed by attendance to a class of new recruits receiving their
initial briefing on the New G.I. Bill. We were present for the
entire class. Then our group interviewed a gecond group of
recruits who had made their decision 28 to whether or not they
‘ would participate in the New G.I. Bill. and we would interview
them as to their reasons for their deciaion, At each briefing,
Chairman Montgomery's personality and remarks set the stage for
tn easy and free exchange of comments with the recruits
expressing thejr opinions,

The following are the impressions gained during the two-day
field trip:

1. The New G.I. Bill ig attracting the brightest
v and best of young Americans to gerve our
countxy and most are joining the gervice for
. three or four yeasrs.

2. Almost ALL are igh school graduates, and 1
was pleasantly surprised to gee the compar-
ative high percentage who already had earned
college credits, :
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3. Young America is hearing of the availability
of the New G.I. Bill. The recruits stated
they had learned of it through a variety of .
sources: the local recruiter, through high -
school, from relatives and television ads.

4. The military Services' administration of
informing the recruits of their New G.I. Bill
benefits is very good and each Service is
monitoring its performance and comparing its
success with the success ot the other
Services.

5., It was obvious-that this monitoring had
caused changes in the individual Services'
administration of their New G.I. Bill
information classes to gain increased
effectiveness and .participation.

$. This on-going analysis by the Services is
accompanied by a policy of adjustment in the
explanation of the New G.I. Bill and the time
the recruit has to decide on whether or not
to participate. The wisdom of this flexi-
bility being afforded to the Services is
clearly demonstrated by the fact that since
30 September 1986, the Army has increased its
participation rate frem 74 percent to 77-78
percent and' the Marine Corps has increased
its participation rate from 60 percent to 72
perxcent!

7. We particularly noted that the spokesmen for
the Services' Reserves and the National Guard
were especially enthusiastic of the success
the New G.I. Bill was bringing to their
forces. All said that the availability of
the New 6.3I. Bili-benefits has increased
their enlistments and reenlistments .providing
their Units with an unprecedented peacetime
readiness and stability.

8. The candor evident in the remarks of the
recruits who did not elect to participate in
the ¥e# G.I. Bill. They asked pointed
questions of the Chairman and Committee
mesbers. The primary reasons given for non-
participation in the New G.I. Bill were:

a. The feeling they could not afford
to contribute the required $100 a
wonth for 12 months. Almost all
vnaid if this contribution was a
. smaller amount over a longer period
{e.g. $50 a month for 24 mcnths)
they would have participated.

b. Many felt they did not have enough
time in which to consider their
decision.

c. A few felt that they were going to
make the military a career and
would not need a college education.

The Committee members explained the realities of enacting
legislation. Chairman Montgomery told each group that the MNew
G.I. Bill law is due to expire on 30 June 1988. Th :-efore, the
Committee's primary goal is to have the law become p-zmanent
first and then the Committee would consider the wisdom of
amending the law. He assured the recruits their views and
comments would be taken into consideration.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




5
s
5

ERI

183

The Fleet Reserve Association agrees with Chairman
Montgomery's priorities, Purthermore, the individual Services'
monitoring and adjusting of their programs of explanation allows
us to better evaluate -the New G.X. Bill and its impact before
addressing amendments to the law.

CONCLUSIONR

Mr. Chairman, the Fleet Reserve Association was fully
convinced of the New G.I. Bill's cost-effective contribution to
the pational security and future economic stability of our pation
prior to embarking on the field trip to.the Services’ recruit
training centers. The first-hand knowledge we gained by
interviewing the recruits and our cbservation of the individual
Services' information program adds to our conviction of the
imperative need for the continuation of the New G.X. Bill as a
permanent program.

Therefore, we urge you to-enact the provisions of H.R. 1085
immadiately so as to send young America the message that the New
G.I. Bill is here to stay and to inform our military leaders they
can continue to depend on the beneficial “esults of the New G.X.
Bill in attracting and retaining the personnel needed to defend
the United States.

We thank you for the opportunity to express our views today.
It is because our representative form of government provides the
opportunity to do so that we have willingly devoted a major
portion of our adult 1lives to the defense and perpetuation of
that government. On behalf of not only my FRA Shipmates, but our
enlisted Sea Service personnel everywhere, I thmnk you. I will
answer any questions you may have to the best of my ability.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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STATEMENT BY
MAJOR GENERAL ANSEL M. STROUD, JR.
PRESIDENT

of the

NATIONAL GUARD ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES

to the

Subcormittee on Education, Training and Employment

of the

House Comittee on Veterans' Affairs

18 February 1987
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Mr, Chaitmon, and members of the subcommittee, I appreciate this
opportunity to appear before you today to present the views of the
National Guard Association of the United States on H.R. 1065, a proposal
to extend and make permanent the authorizing language of the Wew GI
Bill. This is my first appearance before Congress in my capacity as
President of the National Guard Association. I am pleased to use this
cccasion to express our strong support for continuing the very effective
recruiting and retention entitlements of the New GI Bill. With me today
are Lieutenant General ravern E. weber, Executive pirector of our
Association and Major Genmeral T. Eston Marchant, Jr., the Adjutant
General of the State of South Carolina.

THE ROLE OF THE NATIONAL GUARD

The initiation of the Total rorce Policy in 1970 has had an “ex~
plosive™ effcct on the historical role of the National Guard in the
defense of our nation. puring the past 15 years DoD applicaticn of the
Total Force Policy, along with encouragement from the Congress, has
resulted in a significont increase in reliance on National Guard and
Reserve forces. Today, the Ammy and Alr National Guard are true full
partners in the Total Force. Almost S50 percent of the Total
fighting personnel are in the Army National Guard anmd approximately 26
percent of the aircraft in the Total Air Force are in the Air National
Guard. Representation in specific areas is even greater, with 73 percent
of Army infantry battalions and 73 percent of Air Force CONUS strategic
interceptor forces in the National Guard. To meet its defense
objectives, the nation relies on a well-equipped and well-trained
National Guard. h

MANPOWER

Although equipment and training are essential ingredieits of wartime
readiness, the most important factor in producing combat-ready National
Guard units is the ability to recruit and retain sufficient nurbers of
qualified personnel. While the National Guard has been able to meet its
manpower goals in recent years, this will became a much more difficult
task as the service age manpower pool continues to diminish. Increased
reliance on the Guard will place even greater demands on recruiting and
retention efforts. At the end of FY86, the ARNG had attained a strength
level of approximately 446,900 and the ANG had achieved an end strength
Of 112,600, with proarammed growth of 12,000 in the Amy Guard and 4,100
in the Air Guard by the end of Fv88, and continued growth prograrmed
through FY92, the effectiveness of recruiting and retention efforts will
be critical to maintaining the readiness of the National Guard and the
Total Force.

RECRUITING AND RETENTION INCENTIVES

There are a number of incentives that havz been helpful in achieving
required strength goals. They include enlistment and reenlistment
bonuses; tuition assistance; and educationai loan repayment programs.
Some have been developed to serve a special purpose, and are targeted to
specific critical skills or occcupations, such 28 medical skills.

The bonus and tuition assistance programs are certainly important
parts of the overall incentive package for recreiting and retaining
high-quality targeted scgments of the military population. They have
been instrumental over the past few years in bhelping to reduce the
shortage in many critical skill specialties. Their effectiveness has
been hampered, however, by the 1imited period of authorization.

Those incentives that have proven to be effective should be made
permanent.  The lapae in authority for enlistment and reenlistment
bonuses in late 1985 resulted in a great deal of turbulence and
confusion. Authority will again temminate on September 30th of this
year, if not renewed prior to that date, and the indefinite status of
these programs is hamful to day-to-day recruiting activities. 1In
addition, the tuition assistance program has been extended only one year,
with limited participation, pending a DoD review of the program, We
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realize pay and incentives of Guard and Reserve menbers are under riew
by the recently activated 6th Quadrenial Review of Military Compensition
group. We would hope its review would validate the need and effec:ive-
ness of the various incentive programs, however, the 6th Quadrenial
Review of Military Compensation report to the President is not duve until
mid ovember — too late to. influsnce the authorizatfon extension
necessary on Scptember 30th.

THE NEW GI BILL )
Althowgh it is not targeted toward specific specialities, the New GI

Bi1l Bducational Assistance Program for the Sclected Reserve has proven
to be a valuable incentive for across-the-board recruitment and zetention

within the National Guard, By providing cducation assistance, it serves

as a very effective attraction to college oriented Individuals. It
promotes the Guard/Reserve all-volunteer program by assisting in
recruitment of high quality persoanel. It also Improves retention
through the six-year cniistment/reenlistment requirement and by
authorizing participation only while in sclected reserve status. The
success Of the New GI Bill is probably best illustrated by the over 75
percent participation rate in the program by new active Army recruits,
and by the average participation rate of more than 57 percent within all
Active Services,

Specific data on the participation rate within the Guard and Reserve
is not available because of the eligibility of both new recruits and
six-year rcenlistecs, However, the Information which is available
indicates the Guard and Reserve progran is as guccessful as that of the
Active Services, Over 43,000 Guard and Reserve rembers were partici-
pating in the program as of the end of Decezber, 1986, A recent National
Guard survey Indicated that 51 percent of recruiting and retention
specialists considered the New GI bill to be effestive to “a very great
degree” in recruiting new Guard members. Thirty-nine percent congidered
it to be equally as cffective ag a retention tool. Another 27 percent
considered the New GI Bill to be effective to "a great degree® in both
{nstances., FPinally, the steady growth in Air National Guard six year
enlistments/reenlist- ments/appointments, as a percentage of total
enlistments/reenlist- ments/appointments, from 35 percent in FY 1984 to
48 percent in FY 1986 almost certainly reflects the valuc of the New GI
Bi1l as a retention incentive.

The success Of the New GI Bill as a recruiting and retention incen-
tive certainly supports the proposed legislation making the program a
permanent entitlement. The value to the military and the nation should
far exceed the ocost of the program, through higher retention, increased
readiness, and a=ntual pay bsck through a higher-cducated populace. The
last point was yade very clearly by the Speaker of the House in his
response to the Ftesident's State of the Union Address on January 27th:
“The very best fliancial investment this country ever made wes the GI
Bill of Rights at \he end of World War II. It sent an entire generation
of Azericans to college. And our country has been rezping the benefits
ever since, That program — Simply in greater taxes paid from higher
earnings — has actually repald the Treasury about $20 for every dollar
invested®. In view of that statement, adainistration proposals to reduce
New GI Bill benefits at¢ this time would appear to be shortsighted.

SUMARY

The National Guard Association of the United States strongly urges
passage of H.R, 1085 making the New GI Bill a perranent entitlement, The
effectiveness Of the prograa has been demonstrated by the high
participation rates and longer enlistments during the test period. The
coat of the progranm should be evaluated not only in relation to increases
in manning and readiness but also as an educational Investment, We are
investing in individuals who devote cheir time and talents toward the
nation's eecurity and will very likely repay the investment rany times
over during their lifetimes,

The New GI Bill is an excellent recruiting and retentfon incentive
and it should be mgdelp‘e:punnt.
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MR. CHAIRMAN 1 AM DELIGHTED TO HERE TODAY. AFA APPRECIATES THE
MANY EFFORTS OF YOUR COMMITTEE TO SUPPORT VETERANS AND THE
MEMBERS OF OUR ARMED FORCES.

THE AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION AT I1T'S 1985 NATIONAL CONVENTION PASSED
A POLICY PAPER WHICH STATES “THE AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION SUPPORTS:
ESTABLISHING A PERMANENT EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM DEVELOPED
T0 MEET QUALITY MANPOKER NEEDS OVER THE LONG TERH, INCLUDING AIR
NATIONAL GUARD AND RESERVE COMPONENTS.®

THE AIR FORCE HAS FOUND THAT OVER 60% OF THEIR-NEW RECRUITS
SPECIFY EDUCATION AS ONE OF THE REASONS FOR ENLISTHENT. THE VAST
WAJORITY OF THOSE WHO PARTICIPATE IN THE NEW G.1. BILL IN THE AIR
EGRCE ARE IN THE TOP TWO MENTAL CATEGORIES. THE NEW G.1. BILL
HAS ALSO HAD A POSITIVE INPACT ON THE SELECTED RESERVE AND IS THE
STRONGEST REASON FOR ENLISTHENT IN THE SELECTED RESERVE. THE NEW
61 BILL IS CLEARLY A SUCCESS.

y O
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THERE ARE, HOWEVER, ‘A FEW MINOR CHANGES THAT MIGHT ENHANCE ITS
ACCEPTABILITY AND SUCCESS. FOR EXAMPLE, THE AIR FORCE
ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDS
~ CHANGING THE AMOUNT AND DURATION OF MONTHLY CONTRIBUTIONS
TO THE NEW GI BILL TO $60 PER MONTH FOR 20 MONTHS.
WE ALSO RECOMMEND
~ GRANTING MORE DECISION TIME TO THE NEW RECRUITS --
DECIDING WHETHER TO OPT FOR THE GI BILL COULD BE THE LAST
ACTION BEFORE LEAVING BASIC TRAINING.
AN ENLISTEE DOES A LOT OF MATURING IN THE FIRST YEAR OF
SERVICE.
- IF THE DECISION TO OPT-IN COULD BE TAXEN ANYTIME DURING THE
FIRST YEAR OF SERVICE, 1 BELIEVE MORE WOULD PARTICIPATE.
~ THE OPTION COULD, FOR EXAMPLE, BE LEFT OPEN DURING THE
FIRST YEAR OF SERVICE AND START THREE YEARS OF OBLIGATED
ACTIVE SERVICE - FOR FULL ELIGIBILITY - FROM DATE OF SIGN-

UP.
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- WHILE SOME ADDITIONAL NUMBERS WOULD OPT FOR THE BILL IF
REFUNDS OR TRANSFERABILITY WERE OFFERED, I BELIEVE BOTH
WOULD REDUCE THE INCENTIVE OF THE PARTICIPANT TO GO TO

" SCHOOL -- WHICH IS - AND SHOULD REMAIN - THE PRIMARY
PURPOSE OF THE PROGRAH.

THE AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION BELIEVES THE G.I. BILL IS A BASIC
BENEFIT AND IS INTENDED TO BE A READJUSTMENT BENEFIT BASED ON
FAITHFUL AND HONORABLE SERVICE. ACCORDINGLY, THE GI BILL HAS
HISTORICALLY BEEN FUNDED BY THE VETERAMS ADMINISTRATION AND
SHOULD CONTINUE TO BE FUNDED BY THE VA, HOWEVER, IF THE SERVICES
DESIRE TO SUPPLEMENT THE BASIC BENEFIT WITH “KICKERS” TO AID IN
RECRUITINS, THESE SHOULD BE PAID FOR BY THE APPROPRIATE SERVICE.
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A Statement to tne
) Subcormittee on 'Education. Training and Employment

House Vaterana' Affairs.Coxmittse

-

18 Februsry 1987

I am COL Edward P. Suith, USA ratired, of the Association of the
United Statrs Army. This association vary wmuch spprecistas ths opportunity
to expreas :lts views on tha legislative propossl to maks parmanent the
current educational assistancs taat program for membars of the srmed
sarvices.

This sssocistio. tous & leading role in helping to win.support in the
Congr<ss vhen reenstat=.ent of the GI Bill wzs a major issue on your
leg'.slativa calendar back in 1981 - 1983, We urged its adoption then and
we do now sgain. Ws do so becsuse this program is s prover winner -~ - ~
everyone benafita. The government banefits, the Sarvices benafit, the
youth of ths country benefit, their hardworking, tax-paying parants bencfit
from this program, and our collages and univarsities szlso benefit.

Benefits to the Goverrment. Wa hava all seen any number of studies
which correlate personal income lsvals to sducation levels. Genarslly
speaking higher levels of education mean higher incoms. [For the govarn~
ment, higher incomss mean highar tax revenuss to fund esaentisl prograus ——
not exactly an unpopular rssult over .hare, as I undsretand it.

As to the question of cost to the government, the GI Bill ir s winner
here too. Ths latsat astimate we have 1s $1 billion per year pesk costa.
1f one comparss this to costs in the Department of Education for loans and
grants, currently estimated st sbout $8 billion, some idea of the govern-
ment's bargsin Zron the GI Bill begins to emerge. Add to this that, in
xoat of the loan and grant programs, thers is no othar parsonal obligation
on the part of the individual to ths govarnment. [Two to 6 ysars of ixmedi-
at: duty in the Armed Services is the psrsonal obligstion undsr ths GI
Bill. .

Finslly, I think I should point out that the prasent GI Bill 1is not an
outright grant, As you well know the service man or woman muat contribute
$100 per month for 12 months, ‘and forfeit ths entire $1200 if he/shs later
decidas not to sttend college. Incidentally, $100 per month from & current
recruit's pay represants 16.9 parcent of his monthly pay; not an insignif-
icant amount.

Benefits to the Army. It ig not my intention to repest sll the
statistics that I know LTG Bob Elton, the Army's personnel chief, has or
will shortly provids you. However, I think it important to point out to
you that we have seen s number of very recant Army studies that convince us
the following are significant benefits to the Army directly sttributable to
tae GI Bill. .

~ EducatZon benefits expand the availsble youth narket.
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~ Educetion benefits gre o etronger enlistment incentive for high~

quelity, College-Oriented youth than higher pay., (Please ler me interrupt O3
. mysslf here and ¢dd parentheticelly that with higher quality eccessions y

comes reduced ettrition preeently equating to 13,000 pereonnel annually in R

the Aray,) . (5

. "

~ Over 35 percent of the high-quality male, high school greduates
zeted educetion benefits as the eingle most important reeson for enlisting.

~ Over 40 percent of the high-quality recruits would not have joined
without the GI 3111 and the Army College Fund.

Benufits to Youth, A college sducation is the dream of & lerge
segment of our youth populetion — and their parents I might edd. Por many
the cost ie.prohiditive, and for eome they have not yet discovered e field
of endesvor:in which to focue their time, tzlent and effcrt. It eesms to
us that there is no more economical and socially constructive way “cr the
government to epportion precious reescurces than to raward militery eervice
to the nation by providing the finmancial mesns for highar education of
Americe’t top quality young men and women. It is not & grant; it ie not e
give-awvay program; it is smart businees. ,

At the beginning of my statement I mentioned thet the GI Bill was gleo
& benefit to parente of our college ege youth. My guees is that precticei~
1y averyoue in this rocm over the age of 45 has had to fece the cost of
college bills to sducate their children. Por some of us the idea thet son
or daughter could earn money for college through ¢ etint in one of the
araed services was an enswer. It qven had the edded sttraction of perhape
teechiig them self relfance and independence. Today's parents, I suggeat,
are not differant; they recognixe ¢ bargein whan they eee it. The €I Bill
18 ¢ bargein for all concernad,

Benefits to Colleges end’ Univereities. Colleges and universities of
our country ere well ewvare of the impect of the GI BLll on their diminish-
ing enrollments end budgete. Thie has nurtured the recently errived et
agreement between the Army and the Associstion of Collegiete Registrere and
Aduissions Officers which provides Army counselling end eeeistance tu thoes
leaving the gervice in getting their college plecement 1ined up prior to
deperture from the service.

The turn eround in the quantity end quality of men and women in the
ranks that ve have seen over the past few yeare obviouely may not be
attributed solely to the new GI Bill, which only becans effective in July

*of 1985. The Congrees has eeen fit to provide many remediee in ¢ number of
areas vhich have combined to give us e £it end ready-force. This Associa-
tion, hovaver, is convinced thet e major countributor to the improved
personnel eituation in ell of the services, and especially jn the Army, has
been enactment of the new GI 2ill. We further bilieve that 1t will, if
made ¢ permanent program, be e major contributcs in precluding any return
to e "Hollow Army." I urge you to approve expeditiously this legisletion
nov before the committes, .

LRIC
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MR. GATRAN, DISTINGULSHED MEMBER: OF THE SUBCOMMITIEE, ON BEHALF
OF THE 50,000 MEMBERS OF THE ENLISTED ASSOCIATION OF THE MTIONAL
GUARD OF THE UNITED STATES, COMMONLY REFERRED TO BY ITS ACRONM
EANGUS, I WOLD LIKE TO EXPRESS QUR SINCERE APPRECIATION FOR THIS
INVITATION TO PRESENT QUR VIEWS N THE PROFOSED LEGISLATION FROM

THE VIEWFOINT OF ENLISTED SERVICE.

RE ARE IN FAVOR OF, AND MOST STRONGLY SUPFORT, TMIS EFFORT TO MAKE

PERMANENT THE ADVANIAGES OF THE NEW GI BILL. AT THE SAVE TDVE, WE

OFFOSE ANJ ATIEMPT 10 ‘CHEAPEN' THIS FPROGRAM TMROUGH REDUCTION OF

ENTIDLEMENTS.

THF. NEW GI BILL 3245 BEEN REFERRED T0 AS A BENEFIT OF MILTIARY SERVICE,
WIQ! INUEED IT 15, BUT 15 MACH MORE THAN THAT, IT IKS SECONT THE
COMNERSTOE OF QU ABILITY TO ATIVGT AND RETAIN QMLITY PEQELE IN
THE RESERVE COMRONENTS. IT 15 REQUIRED IF WE ARE TO CONTINE TO
MAINIAIN QL ABTLITY TO MAINTAIN STRENSTH AND EXPERTISE IN THE FACE

OF SKRINCING MANFORER RESQURCES. 1T 1S THE FORDOST OF THE ATIRACTIONS
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THAT ENABRLE US TO INDUCE THE BEST OF QUR AMERICAN YOUTH TO SER\E
IN QR MILITARY SERVICES. ITS IMFORTANCE SIMFLY CANNDT BE OVER-

EMEASLZED,

TOONY, SOE 18,765 ARMY NATIONAL GUARD MEMBERS PARTICIFATE IN THE
NEW GT BILL. ANOTHER 6,835 MEMGERS OF THE AIR MTIOML GUARD ARE
PARTICIBANTS; A TOTAL OF 25,598 IN THESE TWO RESERVE COMFONENTS ALONE.
THESE ARE, T AM TOLD, THE LATEST ARILABLE FIGURES, THIS REPRESENTS
mmqw,z'mmw\mmmas IN THE
LAST SIX MONTHS. THERE CAN,BE NO DOUBT OF THE PROGRAM'S APFEAL TO

UOUNG AMERICINS.

mnmzs&:msmsq'wmdsmormm
SOTENTIAL CONIRTBUTIONS TO NOT ONLY MATIOWL SEQURITY, BUT TO THE
WELPARE AND QULITY OF LIFE IN QU MTION. THE CONCEFT OF A 'GL BILL',
BORN QUT O THE SUCCESSPUL CONGLUSTON OF WORLD WR IT - AND EXTENDED
JOR THE KOYEAN CONPLICT AND VIETMM - HAS CONTRIALZED TO AMERTCAN
LIFE AS A WALE. mmmaim-mzcr, RUSHING TO CATO

UP FOR THE FINE JEARS LOST TO MR, SEIZED THAT CPFORIUNITY TO FREPARE

w3
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THEMSELAES JOR A BLACE IN THE AMERICAN DREAM. TODAY, THOSE FIRST
VETERANS, JORTY-SOME UEARS LATER, RN CORFCRATIONS AND BUSTNESSES,
DESIGN QLR MOST SOPMISTICATED ATRCRAPT, CONCLCT RESEARCH, ADWNCE .
COMNICATIONS, TEACH QU CHILOREN, OFFICIATE FRO4 QLR PULPTTS, AND
= I DARE Sy - PERMKPS SIT IN THIS \ERY ROOM TOIMY IN TE HIGEST
OFICES OF QR GOERMWENT. THEY ARE THE LEALERS IN ALMOST EVERY JACET
OF QR DALY LIVES, THE ORIGIML GI BILL - THAT QPAORTUNITY ~ PREPARED

' THEM TO ASSME THOSE LEATERSHTP ROLES, THE NEW GI BILL WILL IO THE
mmmmums TO COME, IT WILL HELP ALLEVIATE THE SHORTAGES
"NE NOWHA\E IN THE SCIENCES ~ SNGINEERING, MATHEMATICS, RESEANGH,
SMCE TEGINOLOYY, COMMUNICATIONS AMONG OTHERS. IT WILL HELP FUT U3
BAGK ON THE ROAD TO EXCELLENCE AND WORLD LEACERSHIP. THE QONCEPT OF
mmm.uaxxm.mxymmsmsaxmmwmmmmym
AND PRIWIE SECTUR MGINESS ANO QALITY OF LIFE. IT IS NO LONGER A
QUESTIQN OF *BENEFIT’ OR ‘ENITILEMENT'; IT 15 A QUESTION OF THE MTTONL
WELFARE. AMERICA REQUIRES PIUCATION TO PROSXESS. T KISTOKY OF THE

41 811 zsAmm‘ns_m IN THAT DIRECTION. IT MUST SE ENCCURAGED AND

PERPEIVATED.
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TO THOSE TRT WOULD CUT AENEFITS UNCER FERVANENT ENITILEMENT, AND
AS A PRICE JOR IT, WE WOUD KON THEM THAT SOME PROGAMS TRANSCEND
SHOKT TERM CONCERNS. WE ARE RULLY AWKE OF THE NEED TO (UT FELERAL

| SPENOIN - TO CONIRL THE COST OF GONERMMENT -~ BUT THE DWFORTANCE OF
ESUCATION TO THE FUTURE OF AMERICA APFROMCHES THE DMFORTANCE OF THE
INCUSTRIAL XEVCLUTION AT THE TURN /< THE CENIURYJ, CR THE ADVANCEMENT
OF MAN INTO SPACE. ELUCATION OF QR [JUNG PECELE IS A FREREQUISTIE FOR .
MITOWL SURVIVL. IT 1S A MTIML RESORCE THAT MUST BE TEVELOPED AND
UTILIZED. WE MUST NOT FAIL TO RECONIZE THIS SIGNIFICANCE. THE NEW
4T BILL IS PART AND PARCEL TO THE TOTAL ERUCATIOMAL EQKTION. IT HAS
PROVEN TO BE FFTECTT\E AND BENEFICTAL. CAN THERE BE ANJ DOUBT QN AT
¥E MUST D07 THE NEW GT BILL MUST NOT FALL TO THE AX OF THE BUDGET

QUTIER. IT 1S SDALY TCO IMEORTANT.

QN SEHALF OF THOSE WO MIGHT OTHERWISE NOT HA\E THE CPFCRTLNITY (R
MEANS TO ACHIE\E THEIR POTENITAL - ON BEMLF OF THE ARV AND ATR

MTIOHL GARD RO NEED QULITY PECPLE TO CPERATE THE SCEMISTICATED
SYSTENS O MOLESN'WAR 10 SUCCESSTULLY ACCOMELISH THE MANY MISSIONS

ASSIGNED TO US IN THE MTIONAL INIERESTS - N BRMALF OF QR BELOED

= -5
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NUTION WD NEEOS THE DEDICATION AND EXCELLENCE OF HER CITLZENS TO

CONMINE ax uyqrx.raz-zxssm'amj.ymmymmmmmy

mmmmwwmmwm&\z.
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Statement of Major General Evan L. Hultman, Army of the United
States (Retired), Executive Director, Reserve officers aAssociation
of the United States before the Committee on Veterans Affairs sub-
committee on Education, Training and Enployment, concerning the
«continuation of the New GI Bill--1g February 1987

Mr. Chajrman and Members of the Subcommittee:

The Reserve Officers Association (ROA) appreciates being
provided this opportunity to express our support for legislation,
introduced by the distinguished Chairman of the Committee on Veterans
Affairs G.v. "Sonny" Montgomery, which, if enacted into law, will
Sontinue-the New GI Bill beyond its current June 1988 termination date.

As this subcoxmittee knows, three years ago ROA worked with many
of you in support of a new GI Bill. We believed that the then
existing VEAP educational Prograa was not doing the job, and that
a new GI Bill of the type that was under consideration, and which
became law as a test program, would have a beneficial impact on
recruitiry, retention and on the quality of the force. We also

believe that we have been proven right on all three counts.

All reports that ROA has received indicate that the New GI
Bill has been a great guccess. In fact, when continued funding
for this progran was not included in the administration's .budget
request for FY87, ROA's Mid-Winter Conference adopted an
énergency resolution urging the adninistration "to abandon
any initiatives to terminate the New GI Bill and urging
the Congress to continue, extend, and fund this effective
educational agsistance program.® We were pleased that the
Congress did take. the necessary action to fund the GI Bill
for FY87 and we strongly support the legislation under
consideration today which will’ @elete the termination date of 30
June 1988 for the current GI Bill and change its status from a

206
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test program.to that of an ongoing military service based

educational assistance program.

The GAO has reported that Army statistics show a marked recruiting
improvement under the New GI Bill and data obtained from the Reserve and
National Guard components of éﬁe Arny and Air Force also show improve-
ments in enlistment, reeylistment and retention statistics since the

start of the New GI Bill.

The attractiveness:of.this program to the individual service
mepber is clearly illustrated by the fact that in the active
Army, during the period of July 1985 to September 1986, 743 of
those eligible enrolled.in the program. In the Army Reserve

components, for the same time frame, over 21,000 applied for the

New GI Bill benefit. These were reserve compohent members who
had entered'a 6 year obligation' and had completed 6 months
service as well as their military skill training. sSignificantly,
there was an increase. of Six-year enlistments during the first

fifteen months immediately following enactment of the New GI Bill.

e

Chartered by the Congress with a goal of furthering national
security, ROL supports the New GI Bill as a recruiting benefit
applicable to the total force. As a voice for Reserves, we would
be remiss in not emphasizing the importance of the program for the
reserve component. The New GI Bill provides the first comprehensive
educational assistance program to members of the reserve component;
without the Bill, Reserves would be without eligibility for
assistance. Given the shrinking number of persons eligible for
military service, conmpetition from the private sector, and the
high retention rate of the active component, the importance of
this educational assistance cannot be overemphasized. At a time

when budget cutting calls for more and more responsibilities to

W
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be shifted to the Resexrve, the need for recruiting and retaining

highly qualified men and women. in the reserve component has never

been greater. .
The quality of recruits is equally-as important as the increases

in numbers. The New GI Bil: appeals to the most capable young men and

women, those who take education opportunities more seriously. During

FY 1986, 5 percent rore Selected Reserve non-prior service accessions

were high school graduates than in FY 1984. This is a significant

improvement in the quality of non-prior service recruits and can be

attributed in part, if not wholly, to the appeal of the New GI Bill.
The Reserve officers Association believes the New GI Bill is

good not only for the services and the individual service rember,

but is also good for our country. If we are to remain vital and

competitive in today's world, an educated population is

essential. This is recognizea by the:-lnrge amount of dollars that

go for non-military service related educational lcans and grants,

For example, the Department of Education spent over $3.8 billion

in Pell Grants just in FY85, and that is for a GI Bill without

the "GI". ROA believes that if an individual wants to serve his

country, either in the active or the reserve components, it is

highly appropriate for that service to be recognized through an

educational assistance program. Thus, we as an association

applaud this subcommittee for the consideration it is giving to

deleting the termination date for the New GI Bill. ROA supports

the goals and objectives of the legislation proposed to make the New GI

Bill a permanent progran.

- ERIC
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Thank you for the opportunity to ‘present ROA's views. Your
support for the men and women who are wearing and have worn the
uniform of our country, both active and Reserve, is deeply

appreciated. We will ba happy to address any questions that you
may have.
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Mr. Chairman and members of the committee:

It is a pleasure to app:ar at your invitation to present the
views of the Reserve Forces Policy Board on the New GI Bill for
the Selected Reserve.

The Reserve Forces Policy ‘Board (Board) is by statute the
“principal policy adviser to the Secretary of Defense on matters
relating to the reserve components." (10 uUsc 175(c)). The Board
is chaired by the Honorable Will Hill Tankersley and has as
members general/flag officers from each of the sexvice Reserve
Components, their Active Components, and the Assistant
Secretaries for reserve affairs. ¢

The Annual Report of the Board for Fiscal Year 1986 was
recently submitted by the Secretary of Defense to the President.
The report reviews the current status of our Reserve Components
which are now essential elements of our Total Force and vital to
our national security. The report states:

n"one of the most critical factors in achieving force
readiness is the ability to meet the Selected Reserve
personnel requirements, both in quantity and in quality."

Because the New GI Bill has proved an effective factor in
achieving Selected Reserve quantity and quality, the Board for
over two years has recommended that the New GI Bill for the
Selected Resexrve be continued.

The Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense (Resexve
Affairs) put it well in testimony before the Senate Veterans
Affairs Committee on February 4, 1987:

"In the current recruiting environment, our readiness
and manpower objectives for the Reserve Components
present a challenge -- one that can be met only if
we have the proper set of force management tools.

The New GX Bill is but one of these tools. And,

when combined with other targeted incentives and
entitlements, the GI Bill will permit us to attract
and retain the numbers and quality of people we

must have."

Those views were confirmed last week during a field trip by
some members of this committee to training centers of each
service: Fort Knox, Kentucky; Lackland Air Force Base, Texas?
Naval Training Center, Orlando, Florida and Marine Corps Training
Center, Parris Island, South Carolina. I was pleased to
participate in that f£ield trip. at each location representatives
of the Reserve Components emphasized that the New GI Bill for the
Selected Reserve was an important factor in recruiting and
retention improvements. The result is soldiers, sailors, airmen,
and marines in the Selected Reserve in the quantity and quality
we require.

Those are the reasons that the Board recommends continuation
of the New GI Bill for the Selected Reserve on a permanent basis.

Thank you Mr. Chairman.

ERIC ell
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The New G.I. Bill is a remarkably successful program in
meeting its objectives. Already members of reserve components
are using its benefits and, in less than two years, many other
veterans will begin training under the program. Its benefits,
although not overly generous, should assure the opportunity of a
college education to thousands of young men and women who have
served their nation. Indeed, the New G.I. Bill is a program of
which its sponsors should be proud. Yet NCOA has several idexz
which we believe will make the program better.

Foremost, NCOA believes Congress should act to eliminate the
June 39, 1988 cut-off date for enrollment under the new program.
The prograa should be made perxanent. Additionally, the
association believes the treatment of career servicemembers
shovld be modified to provide benefits under the program to some
who are excluded by the circusstances of the test. NCOA believes
the entrollment fee should be_eliminated or modified to allow
greater participation and believes servicemesbers eligible for
the Veterans Educational Assistance Program (VEAP) should be
allowed to participate in the New G.I. Bill. Finally, the
association objects to the transfer of G.I. Bill funding to the
Defense Department. Frankly, NCOA does not believe the Defense
Department would sustain the program. The first and last of
these recomsendations are the most ixmediate concerns.

Extending the Prograa

While there is no disputing the success the New G.I. Bill
has had in achieving its secondary objective of assisting in
nilitary recruiting, NCOA believes its primary objective of
assisting veterans in obtaining an education is the most
important benefit of the program. Certainly the New G.I. Bill
produces smarter soldiers. Recruiting in both quantity and
quality has soared since the Txogxan was created. More than 90
percent of new recruits are high school graduates and more than
98 percent are in mental categories.I to III, the most desirable
and trainable recruit. Yet, more important than the quality the
progranm brings to the arsed forces is the quality of citizens it
creates and the quality-of life it provides for veterans.

This nation's success is a product of previous G.I. Bills.
How many mewbers of Congress would hold their seats today if not
for their G.I. Bill education? If we took all the G.I. Bill
trained engineers out of the space program, would the U.S. still
be reaching for the moon? How much tax revenue would have been
lost; how many colleges would have closed; how many veterans
would ba struggling to feed their families because they lacked
the education or txainin? opportunity offered by the G.I. Bill?
The questions are impossible to answer. Indeed, we are fortunate
that we will not know the answer. But if the New G.I. Bill is
alloved to expire, the next and future generations may know the
anever.

NCOA delieves the veteran should be the first to benefit
from the billions of dollare spent annually to support
post-secondary education. Prom 1976 until 1985 Congress spent
billions on a G.I. Bill without the G.I. Allowing this program
to expire would return us to that sad state.

Punding

Transferring funding respcnsibility from the VA to the
Defense Department might have an effect equal to tha terminating
of the program however. The current VA budget proposal suggests
this change which NCOA adamantly opposes.

During the creative process leading to enactment of the New
G.I. Bill, the Defense Dopartment sought authority to use the
program as a selective recruitment tool; offering its benefits
only to those who would join the service for no other reason.
Baving failed, DoD sought to create in the program & trigger
mechanism alloving service secretaries to turn the program ontand
off with swings in recruiting. Last year DoD and OMB sought to

-1-
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have the Rew G.I.'Bi1l terminated before the test wes barely six
nronths old. And, only a few wecks ago it was announced that DoD
was working on a plan to reduce banefit> under the new progran
$100 per month after three years of gervica for those who enlict
after July 1, 1968.

Clearly, DoD does not recognize the social valus of the
g:o ram, nor does it recognize the need of veterans. NCOA
lieves that the basic benefits of educaticn should accrue
equally to all who serve. Its value to veterans and tie natfon
make it an infinitely desirable progran. Accordingly, :COA urges
that funding of the basic' benefits be continued ag a rasdiustaent
progrum of the Veterans Administration.

Pay Forfeiture

In the Democratic response to the President’s State of the
Union address House Speaker Jim H:i?ht specifically praised prior
G.I. Bills as "the very best financial investzent this country
evelr made.* He went on to say the program *,..has actually
repald the Treasury about $28 for every dollar i{nvested.® That
return should be enough!

NCOA continues to object to T:ovision requiring a pay
forfelture of $1,208 arong partic pants for one fundamental
reason. It discriminates against socldiers, sailors, airmen,
Marines and coast guardsmen whose financial obligations do not
allow them to participate. Recruits who join the service today
make §608.42-per month during the first four months of service.
The average first year earnings of most recruits is about $7,708.
If they participate in the G.I. Bill, that drops to $6,%23, a
below minimun wage income for an individual who works a rorty
hour week. But any servicemember would be grateful for 2 .
workweek of only 49 hours. As a result many recrzuits who have
mothers, wives or children to support cannot participate. No
matter how great their desire they are out. They are locked in a
cycle like 80 many other disadvantaged individuals, lacking the
opportunity of even the G.I. Bill to escape. Accordingly. NCOA
urges the committee to eliminate the fee for participation in the
basic program.

At least, as an alternative, NCOA believar the committee
should make the contributions refundable znd rhculd extend the
ge:iod of time over which ‘he contrliutions can be made. Some

ndividuals night be comfortable making $486 monthly payments
during their £irst three months of service while they are
isclated in recruit training while others may be comfortable
making payments of only $25 per month over the course of a four
year enlistment. There i8 no profit in the current paynent
systen and no discerrable advantage to retaining it.
Concurrently, NCOA does not understand the logic of not refunding
the pay forfeitures of those who do not use the program.

Government need not profit from the G.I. Bill other than to
produce better citizenc through education and better
servicemenbers through enticement. Neither should the program
become a veterans helping veterans program, supported by its
participants as the Administration would like to do with the VA
Home Loan Guaranty Program. Thos~ who subsequently decide not to
participate should be rcfunded their noney. At least rsfunds
should be given to those who cannot participate because of
hardship or disability and to the survivors of those who die
before using their benefits. However, NCOA would endor.e
legislation delaying refund eligibility to one year after
discharge to discourage young veterans from using the refunds
unwissly.

Eligibility

In addition to creating a necessary replacement for the
Veterans Educational Assistance Program (VEAP) the New G.I. Bill
was in part crested to stem the hemorrhage of talented
D9ncomnigsloned and petty officers who were leaving service to

o R
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R uge benefits they earned under the Vietnam Era G.I. Bill. The
{ new G.I. Bill prcevides penefits to those individuals who remain
on active duty until June 38, 1988 to replace the loss of those
benefits. Unfortunately, there is a group of servicemembers
caught in a vacuum between the old and new G.I. Bills. Because
of service regulations and federal law many servicemembers have
been or will be required to leave service before becoming
eligible for benefits under the new program but without
- sufficient time to use the benefits of the oid program. Most
servicenembers are forced to retire or accept discharge on the
basizs of a compression of their rank and years of aservice. For
example, an E-6 who falls selection to E-7 may be discharged at
: 24 years of service. If that individual completes 24 years of
gservice between July 1, 1985 and June 38, 1988, some education
benefits will be lost. Accordingly, NCOA u:ge? tge committee to
rgxlis bine its under the new iog:am (aftetr 1989) to any
ndividual who retires from service for longevity during the
current tevt period.

—

‘ Pinally, NCOA urges the committse to reconslder the issue of
1ater participation by individuals who do not enroll in the New
G.I. Bill during their first enlistment and the eligibllity of
certain VEAP participants. The underlying principle behind the
new G.I. Bill is an exchange of education benefits for honorable
gervice in the armed forces. 1In part it 1s designed to encourage
qua11t¥ soldiers to reenlist. NCOA therefore believes it would
be logical to allow those who have not previously participated in
' the program to reconsider upon any reenlistment. The armed
forces will benefit from the continued gervice of an experienced
noncommissioned or petty officer. Additionally, the
servicemember will have an opportunity to reconsider a decision
more maturely. If pay forfeitures are retained as a part of the
program they will likely be more manageable for the experienced
servicemember and conversion of previous contributions could pay
for the participation of VEAP eligibles.

Conclusion

The New G.I. Bill in the assoclation's opinion is a
tremendous asset to the nation as a veterans benefit. 1Its
sponsors and supporters should be commended. However, NCOA
believes the program should be modified as outlined in this
statement to eliminate the fee which discriminates against th:
participation of many; to accommodate the career servicemembei
caught in the void between education programs; and, to make the
benefits of higher education available to those who continue in
aeﬁxlce. NCOA also urges the committee to advance legislation
making the program permanent and retaining its funding as a
function of the Veterans Administration.

[Elz:i(:‘ iz ]:ES
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MR« CHAIRMAN, ComniITTEE MeMBERS, THE NAVAL RESERVE ASSOCIATION APPRECIATES
THE COMMITTEES INVITATION YO PRESENT OUR VIEWS COMCERNING THE PROPOSED
LEGISLATION WHICH WOULD MAXE THE NEw Ge1. BILL convaINed 1N Time Vil of PuaLic
Law 83-525 A PERMANENT PROGRAM.

THE NAVAL RESERVE HAS SFEN, OVER THE PAST SEVERAL YEARS, INCRFASED TASKING
AND ASSIGNMENT OF WARTIME RESPONSIRILITIES AS THE TOTAL FORCE HAS GROWN'IN SIZF
AND coMpLEXITYe THE NAvAL Reserve FORCE Tobay -PROVIDES 100X OF THE coMBAT
SEARCH AND RESCUF, 100X OF THE LIGHT-ATTACK HELICOPTER SQUADRONS, 100X of U.S.
BASED LOGISTIC SUPPORT SOUADRONS, 86X OF THE CARGI-HANDLING BATTALIONS, -68% of
THE NAVAL MoBILE CoNsTRucTiON BATTALIONS. IN THE HYPER-CRITICAL AREA OF
AHT1-SUBHARINE WARFARE, THE NAVAL RESRRVE PROVIDES 35% OF THE LONG RANGF
MARITIME PATROL SOUADRONS, 21X OF THE ASH HELICOPTER SOUADRONS AND 26 ASH/AM

Ry THE EARLY 19%0's THE NAVAL RESERVE WILL PE THE JOTH LARGEST MAVY IN THE
WORLD. | WOULD HASTEM TO POINT ouT THAT THE NAvAL RESERVE, IN ADDITION TO
PROVIDING WARTIKE SURGE CAPABILITY IS ALSO A PEACETIME "FORCE MATIPLIFR” WITH
RESERVE AIRCREWS AND SHIPS ROUTINELY DEPLOYED FULFILLING THE PEACE TIME
OPERATIONAL COMMITMENTS IN SUPPORT OF OUR NATIONAL MARITIME ORJECTIVES.

TH1S INCREASED RELIANCE ON RESERVE FORCE CAPASILITIES 1S BOTH COST-EFFECTIVE
FOR THE NATION AND WELCOMED BY THZ NAVAL RESERVIST.

THe HAVAL RESERVE OVER THE NEXT FEW YEARS 1S SCHEDULED FOR CONTINUED GROWTH
REACHING A TOTAL SELECTED RESERVE END STRENGTH OF ovER 161,000 By 7V 89 or A
GROWTH OF 20,000 IN THREE YEARS. THIS GROWTH IS ALMOST EXCLUSIVELY "HIGH TECH'
GROWTH, THAT 1S RECAUSE THE REQUIREMENTS ARE RASED ON THE A) EXPANSION OF HFALTH

CARE PROFESSIONAL SEGMENT OF THE MAVAL RESERVE AND B) THE CONTIMUED TRANSFER OF
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INCREASINGLY SOPHISTICATED WEAPONS SYSTEMS INTo THE ROSFRVE Foace.

THE RESERVE FORCE 1S RY ITS VERY NATURE THE “HOST VOLUSTASY" SEGMENT OF THE
TotaL Force. CouPRISED MAINLY oF FLEFT VETERANS RECRUITING .\ND MORE IMPORTANTLY
RETENTION IS OF VITAL IMPORTANCF. THE ENACTMENT oF ™z New G.l. R, was
WITHOUT QUESTION BEEN THE MOST IMPORTANT FACTOR IN Reserve Forcr crowrH ann
STABILITY. [T HAS PROVIDED THE MOST EFFECTIVE INCENTIVE FOR THE REVENTION oOF
THE QUALITY PEOPLE ABSOLUTELY ESSENTIAL TO OUR INCREASED READINESS. As wr
APPROACH THE KNOWN SHORTAGE OF NRAFT ELIGIBLE MALES [N T™E EARLY N0's THg New
G-l BILL SIMPLY MUST BE MADE PERMANENT IF FORCE MAXN'.S REOUIREMENTS ARE Ta BE
ACHIEVED.

IN ouR vIEW, AN OFTEN OvERLOOKED FACTOR Rom IN TFRMS OF DOLLARS AND RFAUCED
READINESS ARE THE INCKEASED TRAINING COSTS ASSOCIATED Wit A RAPID AND ENDLESS
FLOX OF PEOPLE THROUGH THE RESERVE UNITS. Te MavaL Reserve Assoctation 1s
CONVINCED THAT THE STABILITY INDUCED BY THE New G.]. BiLL WILL MORE THAN OFFSET
THE EDUCATIONAL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROGRAM BY SIGNIFICANTLY REDUCING
THESE “FLOW" ASSOCIATED TRAINING COSTS.

THE HAvVAL ReSERVE AssocIATION STRONGLY ENDORSES THIS 'PROPOSED LEGISLATION
AND QUITE FRANKLY DOES NOT BELIEVE THAT FUTURE RESERVE FORCE MANNING ANO
READINESS OBJECTIVES CAN BE ACHIEVED wITHOUT IT.
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Statesent of
Colonel Charles C, Partridge, USA (Ret)
Legislative Counsel
The National Association for Uniformed Services
Befcre the
Subcommittee on Education, Training, and Employment
Committee on Veterans' Affairs
U, S. House of Representatives
February 18, 1987
H.R. 1085, The New GI Bill — A Permanent Program

Mr, Chairman, snd mesbsrs of the Comaittee, I welcome the opportunity .
to present the views of the National Association for Uniformed Services on .
leqishtion to make the new GI Bill permanent.

The Nationsl Association for Uniformed Services' (NAUS) membership
represents all grajes and ranks of career and non-career service personnel
and their spouses and widows. Our membership includes active, retired,
and reserve personnel of all seven uniformed services: Army, Havy, iir
Force, Marines, Coast Guard, Public Hedlth Service, and the National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Adwinistration. With such menbership, we are able
to‘drav information from ' broad base for our legislative activities.

The need for a permaneant GI Bill for military personnel is great and
growing. The current GI Bill has already proven in the test period that
it 1s a great-success as a readjustment device and a recruiting incentive.
It provides & basic 'benefit adminiatered by the VA for all personnel in
recognition of their service to their country and provides the military
services with the option of further speciel Zitnancial supplesents or
kicksrs as necessary to obtain hard to recruit skills. It has done more
than any other recruiting incentive to attract top quality young men and

; women into our Armed Forces.

The proposed measure provides for the continvation of the New GI Bill
beyond the June 30, 1988, expiration date. The New GI Bill is
’ contributory, requiring a decision by the entering recruit to contribute
‘ $100 per month for 12 months. It will return a bacic benefit to the
soldier of $9,000 after two years.of service and $10,800 for three years
active duty service, The basic berefit is funded by the Veterans
Administration. Reduced benefits are provided for individuals enlisting
or reenlisting in the Selected Reserve or National Guard.

In addition, through programs euch ass the Aramy College Fund, a
recru‘t may earn kickers for enlisting in the hard to zecruit skills the
gservices need. Beginning in 1985, an ROIC option was also offered in
conjunction with the GI Bill.

The 8o called kickers are aimed at recruiting rather than
readjustwent, and are appropriately funded by the Department of Defense
basec on military perscnnel requiresents.

Q
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‘ . As ambitious, public spirited, dedicated young men and women leave
. military service after two or more years, they face an increasingly
competitive workplace and fros their perapective, in many instances they
ate behind. their contemporiries in civilian related akillas.

delayed entry into the civilien job market by providing the GI Bill as a
revard for his gervice and to prepare him educationally for the future,
This could include. service 8t a higher level in .the military through ROTC
or through advancement to senior non-comsissiored officer status.

The nation can repay the veteran for this dedicated service and

PEPOER raraa ey

The cost effectiveness of the GI Bill as a read justment bene{it has
been amply demonstrated over the years in terms of additionsl taxes as a
result of incressed earnings by veterans who otherwise would not have
attended college. With our nation seeking to increase its competitiveness
vis-a-vis other nations, the GI Bill has become an even more significant
part of .our national effort to become more productive and therefore
s improve our competitivenéss in world msrkets, -

In addition, there are more immediate and more readily apparent
benefils which accrue to the wilitary services. The GI Bill attracts a
high peicentage of college-oriented youths in the high~quality mental
cotegories I-ILIa. These high quality recruits are:

- more likely to complete their enlistments, thus reducing the number
of recruits needed,
- Are more easily trained, thus reducing training time and providing
a spark of leadership in the enlisted ranks, This provides
s comaanders wich the opportunity to reenlist these high-quality
‘ personnel who would not have been svailable for reenlistment
otherwvise. :
- Less 1ikely to go AWOL or to desert. This population has
lower crime rates and a lower incidence of drug abuse, resulting in
savings in management time, reduced personnel turbulence, and
savings in training time,

Studies by ‘the Depertment of the Army show that the increased number
of high school graduates recruited as a result of the GI Bill produced
savings of about 13,000 persomnel, and cost savings of approximately
$200,000,000 annually as a result of lower attrition rates. Further, high

: quality soldiers perform about ten percent better than other soldiers and
provide an example for all soldiers.

A8 the military gervices face a rapidly dwindling pool of 18 to 23
year olds, the GI Bill becomes even more important as an incentive to
serve.

In recent studies, education benefits were found to be a stronger

) incentive for high-quality, college~oriented youths than higher pay.

> Thirty-seven percent of high-quality male, high school diploma graduates

: rated educational benefits ag the single most important reason for

. enlisting, Forty-three percent of high-quality recruits would not have
Joined without the GI Bill.

Participation rates by new recruits in the New GI Bill have
) increased to 85 percent in the Army, 65 percent in the Marine Corps and 50
. percent in the Navy and Air Force.

The Army Recruiting Command reports that education benefite increase
the pool of potential applicants by 500,000 high-quality young people.

< .
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3 Some analysts say that the GI Bill encoursges soldiers to leave the
$ service after their initial period of service. This is cuntrary to the
nilitary services' experience. The GI Bill encourages a higher quality
recruit to enter; Significant numbers of thea stay for full careers, thus
providing a high-quality, professionsl soldier and leader which the
military would not otherwise have attracted. Of those who do not remain

on active duty, many will go on to college and enroll in ROTC, while
others will join National Guard or Reserve units., With the reserve
components playing an increasing role in mobilizatfon and resdiness, the

GI Bill is ac important part of their recruiting effort.

For all of the sbove reasons NAUS urges you to make the GI Bill a
permanent program; continue the basic benefit as e readjustment benefit
funded and operated by the VA, and sliow the military services to enrich

tha program for recruiting purposes.

The nation, its armed forces aend the veteran will all be the
lgeneficiariee.

e A
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Mr. Chairman, and distinguished members of the panel, thank you for the op-
portunity to present the views of the Air Force Sergeants Association with

, respect, the proposal to make the New G.I. Bill a permanent program.

sir, there is solid proof that the New G.I. Bill is a potent recruiting
tool, however; the present success in recruiting quality young men and
women could be jeopardized by changing conditions in the future =-- condi~
tions for which we mus% be prepared or suffer the cOnsequences: with a
diminishing manpower pool throughout the decade of the 19808 and into the
19908, the risk in trying to cut corners in compensation for military per-

sonnel cannot be ignored.

The New G.I. Bill is a proven winner. Unlike the VEAP program which pro-
duced a dismal 6 percent average participation rate for Air Force recruits
during its six and one-half year tenure, the New G.I. bill has attracted a
s01id 42 percent participation rate.

.
Baged on my conversation with enlisted men and women at numerous Air Force
bases, we feel there is an opportunity to double the 42 percent sign-up

rate by making a few minor modifications to the existing program.

Pirst, we would ask this subcoemittee to consider reducing the airman's
monthly contribution from $100 to séo and spread the payments out over a
20-month pericd. when you consider that $100 a month represents almost 20
percent of an airman's pay, after taxes, that presents a difficult decision

for a new recruit to make upon entering military service.

; Q 0 223
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The second modification needed to sttract more participants is to allow the

services to refund contributions to the member if he or she decides not to

utilize the New G.I. Bill after separation from the service. Also, if the

servicemember should die, the monies he or she contributed should be re-

funded to the beneficlary.

Sir, we urge this subcommittee to consider these recommendations to improve

the Air Porce participation rate.

Mr. Chairman, one of your distinguished colleagues, the Honorable Bill Arm-
strong from Colorado, summed up the value of the New G.I. Bill when he made

the following comment:

*The G.I. Bill should not be viewed solely as a recruitment measure.
The G.I. Bill is an investment in America's future, one from which everyone
benefits ~- the beneficiaries who cbtain a college education, the colleges

and universities they attend, our society as a whole."

This concludes my statement and, again, thank you for this opportunity to
appear before this subcommittee. I am prepared to respond to any questions

you or your distinguished colleagues may wish to pose.

El{fclz-ﬂzo-w-a TR 224
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. VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED STATES

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTUR
N STATEMENT OF
DENNIS M. CULLINAN, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR
NATIONAL LEGISLATIVE SERVICE
VFTERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITFD STATES
* BEFORP THE
. SUBCOMMITZPE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT
COMMITTFE ONOVl;E}‘gEANS' AFFAIRS
. UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
WITR RESPFCT TO
ELIMINATION OF THE NEW GI BILL EXPIRATION DATE
WASHINGTON, D.C. FEBRUARY 18, 1987
MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBPRS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE:

Thaok you for this opportunity to present the views of the Veterans of
Foreign Wars of the United States with respect to proposed legislation which
would umend Title 38 USC to remove the expiration date for eligibility for the
educational assistance programs for veterans us contained ia title VII of
Public Law 98~525. This proposed lecidslation enjoys the full support of the
Veterans of Foreiga Wars inasmuch as it would lndefinitely extend a program
which 18 both a poteat recruiting tool for the Armed Forces and 15 also an
iavaluable readjustaent benefit, facilitating the transition of those mesbers
of the Armed Forces who elect to retura to civilian life.

As you kaow, the VFW ha: long stood for a stroug national defeanse. We
firnly belfeve thut the very foundation of our ability to protect and defeand

our country lies in a stroug avd capable troop force which is ready, willieg

and able to respond to the civil and martial exigeacles of this modern age.

J WASHINGTON OFFICE X
VFW MEMORIAL BUILDING @ 200 MARYLAND AVENUE, N.2. ® WASHINGTON, D. C. 20002 5799 @ AREA CODE 202:543-2239
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puge 2

'ua beltieve that our Armed Forces are now 1a a position to do just this, and

- the New GI Bill 18 pluying an essential role 1a uchieving and maintaining this
crucial capability. Duta collected on the program leave no doubt that the Mew
GI B1ll 1s directly responsible for dramatic gains in military recruitmeat and
retention, allowlag our nation to maintain and improve strength levels for
both active duty and reserve forces while avoiding a return to the draft.

We of the VFW are coavinced that the New GI Bi1ll 18 dollar for dollar the
most cost~effective means of recruitment now 1a existence. The Army has
stated that the New GI Bill 18 suving it sbout $234 millfon a year 1n vilitary
personnel cost. These savings come from attracting more intelligent and
highly wotivated people into the militury. And these are exactly the people
needed to serve 1n our modern, high-tech Armed Porces.

We potnt to the fact the size of this program 1n dollars 1n return for
service to the nation pales 1n significance when conpsred to the massive Pell
Fducutionul Graut program of close to four billion dollars annuslly. Pell
Grants are provided with no expectution of service to the nation whatsoever in
contrast to the New GI Bill vhic. directly benefits both the participant and
the country.

There cun be no doubt sbout 1t, the New GI Bill 18, across the board, the
best educationsl' 1ncentive the Department of Defense has to offer toduy.
Purthermore, this educstionul benefit progrun is payiog for itself by
improving recruiting quality and reducing turnover in personnei.

Alo?g vith providing.a highly motivated and capable Armed Porces, drawn
from a full cross gection of the populution, the New GI Rill's indirect
benefit to éhe astion 18 also profoundly felt. Increased taxes peid on

increased fncome more then repays the cost of this educstional benefit,

Q " G 226
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The New GI Bill is a low cost and highly patriotic mesas for this

natioa's young people, who could aot othervise afford it, to furcher their

.education and thea fully achieve their poteatial both as mature individuals

and us informed citizens. Vhich briags us to uddress oae of the more
importaat uspects of the New CI Bill, namely, the highly beneficial impact
this educationul readjustneat program hus oo those YOUug men aad womea who
choose to retura to civilian life after huving served in the Armed Porces.

The VFW 1s highly coacCerned with the career and personal needs of those 1a the
service of their Couatry, both while fa the Armed Forces und after they have
returned to the private gsector. The VFW hus long understood that the
educution aad trafaing received while fa the military service oftea 18 not
sufficieat to adequately meet cureer gouls onCe out of the service. In this
regard, the New GI Rill 1s designed o provide the fiaaaciul tesources so very
necessary to achieve the professional or vocstioasl skills aecesssry for
gsuccess 1ia our modera gociety.

Military service itself, undoubtedly, hus & highly benefictiul effect oa
those Young mca aand wonen who choose to serve their nstion. The pilitary's
special enphusis on discipline, working for the good of the group sad personsl
foitiative, the lasisteace thut the individusl make decisions provides an
eaviroameat which foaters stroang personal growthe. This eavirvanent iavests &
young persoa with aa unusually high degree of maturity and selé-confidence.
Noaetheless, the trsasition from the rigor and discipliae of nilitary life to
the more capricious and fadefinite contiagencies of civilisn societv 18 often
not easy. This,is vhere the New GI Bill Pducationsl Program mav serve af an

{avaluable readjustoeat aid.




page 4

The New GI Rill provides aot oaly the mesas of achieving the professioanal
or vocational skills anecessary for financial success, but also affords those
reeateriag civilian 1life the opportunity to eater an educational or academic
wilieu, 8 place of c;i- and Coateaplation, wherein their values and views may
be considered in a relaxed yet intellectually disciplined faghion. They are
givea the chance to carefully compose the iantellectual and moral principles
which will guide them through the remsiander of their livea. Out of such
carefully coastructed principles are bora the fineat citizeas this nation has
to offer.

Thus, as a transitional msechanisn, the New GI Bill provides the means
whereby our young men aand womea who have opted to serve ia the Armed Forces
may schieve both finuncial well belng and moral and iatellectual maturicy. In
this regard, there 18 one other such considerstion we will address here today.
It pertains not to the breadth of a 1ife time but, rather, only s momeat.

A young man or womaan may very wiaely choose to eater the military aand
then, just as wisely, choose to leave it. Fven so, leaviag the certaianties of
military service for the uacertaianties of civiliaan 1ife 1s, for wany, an
iatimidating step to take. This is especially true for savoane who comes from
the lover economic sector of society aad who, therefore, cannot be expected to
have an especially clear or happy view of vhat the world outside of the
silicary holds for thenm.

Oace again, the New GI Bill can be tremeadously beneficisl for such young
men aod women. Due to the sid provided by the New GI Rill, these fadividuals
kaow they huve the menns of at least achieving a near term goal, namely,

educational or vocational bettermeat which may also lead to social aand

financial well-being 1a the future. Ian.other words, they do not have to feel

O
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that lesviag the military will result ia there being left out fa the cold,
Upon returaniog to civilian life, they are afforded the opportunity to achieve
a highly worthuaile short~term goal which will benefit then in the future.
Because of the New CI Rill, these yousg men and womea know they have a chance.

Our nation 18 served best by un educational incentive whizh wost improves
our people resource. Participation rates cow ‘indicare that the Nev CI R11l is
the facentive our militury personnel will use the most uad will therefore
provide the greateat improvemeat to soclety as a whole. As a readjustment
mechunism for veteruns returaing to civilian life, an lacentive to attract
high quality young people fato the military and a prudeat fuvestmear in our
pation's human resource, it would be difficult to desiga a better program then
tbe New CI Bill. Therefore the Veterans of Foreign Wars stroagly supports
this proposed legisiution to indefinitely extead this invaluable readjustment
Program.

Mr Chairman, this coacludes my testimony, thank you xad T will be happy

to respond to suy questions you muy have.
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STATEMENT OF
BOB MORAN, ASSOCIATE LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR
PARALYZED VETERANS OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE
HOUSE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS
SUBCOMMITIEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT
CONCERNING
“THE NEW G.I. BILL" (H.R.1085)
FEBRUARY 18, 1987

Director for FVA.

dependents.

relationship with each of you and your staff.
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Hr. Clairman and Members of the Subcommittee, it ia an honor for me to be
sble to participate here today and speak on behalf of the members of
Paralyzed Veterans of America. 1 am Bob Horan, Associate Legislative

Initially, Nr. Chairman, I vant to take thia opportunity on bebaif of a1l of
the mesbers of PVA to officislly congratulate you on tsking over the Chair-
mauship of this most important Subcommittee. 2VA {s confident that with your
leadership and 2 good working relationship, we can address and improve VA

prograzs and benefits that-provide for all of our Nstion's vetecsns and their

Also, I would like to welcome back those members to the 100th Congress, vho
acrved so adeptly on the Subcoamittee last year. PVA looks forvard to once
again vorking with each of you om your specific areas of interest wvhich
affect our Nation's veterans. And lastly, s special welcose to the newest
meabers of the Subcommittee, Representatives Patterson, Jontz, Stenholm,

Kennedy, and Dornsn = we look forvard to building 2 constructive, working
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And gov to the business at hsa¢, FVA vholekeartedly supports H.R.1085, a bill

introduced by the House Committee on Veterans’ Affairs Chairman, G.V. (Sonny)
Hontgomery, snd cosponsored by the full Subcommittee.  This legislation
would amend Title 38 aod Title 10, United States Code, removing the
expiration date of June 30, 1988, thereby making the educational assistance
program under Chapter >3 of Title 38 and Chapter 106 of Title 10 3 permagent

program.

For over 40 years veterans luve‘ been cligible for federal educationsl
assistance under s variety of educational aasistance programs. The New G.J.
Bill is the best educationsl fnceative the federsl government has to offer
today. It oot only provides for the recruitzeat of high quality recruits and
their reteation within the military, but slso sexves as a vehicle for
readjustoeat back ianto the civilian population. In s relatively short period
of time the New G.I. Bill has proven that s more motivated individusl, of
higher quality, is being attracted to the Armed Services, which is cost
effective. Along with providing highly motivated and capable military
caopover, dravn from a full cross section of the populstion, the New G.I.
Bill's indirect benefit to the nation is also profoundly felt. For exasple,
the country benefits from a more highly educated populace. As reported by
the Departacat of Lisbor workers with college degrees had median carnings of
$21,777. Those who had completed high school hsd medisn earnings of about
$18,350 s0d those vith fewer than four yesrs of high school esrned only
$14,716. Increased taxes paid on increased incose more than repays the cost

of this educational beaefit, the New G.I. Bfll, borne by the taxpayer.

Anslyses show that educstionsl assistance is the most cost effective mesns of
getting high quality recrufts. According to a recent survey coaducted by the
Aray, 35 percent of today’'s recruita cite the educstionsl beoefits as their
principal reason for enlisting. In s letter dated Novesber 17, 1986, fros
Representative G.V. (Sonny) Montgomery, Chairman of the House Comittee on

Vetersas' Affsirs, to PVA's National Presideat Richsrd Hoover, he stated:
The Nev GI Bill is helping them (recruiters) bring bright, high quality

young people into military service. For exazple, the Army has told us
thst during the first 12 months of the New GI Bill, the sverage moanthly

-
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percentage of high quality graduate contracts written incressed to 57.9%
from 50.8% uader VEAP. Army Reserve Cozponents report that during the
firat 12 months of the New GI Bill, U.S. Aray Reserve I-IIIA enlistzenta
focressed 24%, high school ecnliatments incrsased % sad six year

enlistoents fncreased 19% aa cospsred to the pre-Nev GI Bill rates.

Whether vieved as an fncentive to sttract high-quality young people iato
military service, or aa s prudent fnvestaent in our Kation's human resources,
or as & readjustzent pechanisa for veterans retutning to civilisn life, the
Nev G.I. Bill should be made a permsnent program, with the basic benefits
paid for snd adainistered by the VA, so our Nation can continue the tradition

of revarding those who su e 3nd protect our freedoa.

In conclusion Mr. Chafrman, ve coszend you and the Subcomittee Mesbers for
<

cosponsoring this sost worthy legislative proposal. PVA supports oaking

permanent the "New G.I. Bill" and has alvays supported the need and utility

of educations] Sncentives as an investaent in our Natfon's future.

That contludes ey statesent and I wild be glad to snswer any questiona that I

<an.
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STATEMENT OF
RICHARD F. SCHULTZ
ASSOCIATE NATIONAL LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR
DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS
BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, EMPLOYMENT
AND TRAINING
OF THE
COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS
OF THE
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
February 18, 1987

MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE:

On behalf of the more than one million members of the
pisabled American Veterans, I wish to thank you and the members
of the Subcommittee for your invitation to appear here today to
express our views on the draft bill, which accompanied our
invitation, proposing to make the "New GI Bill" a permanent
program.

Mr. Chairman, as you know, the DAV is composed of honorably
discharged veterans who were wounded, injured or otherwise
disabled in wartzme service for this country. It therefore
follows that our organization is pximarily concerned with
veterans' educutional assiz.ance provided by the Vocational
Rehabilitation Program under Chapter 31 and the Survivors and
Dependents Educational Assistance Program provided under Chapter
35 of Title 38, U.S. Code.

Though our organization was founded on the principle that
this nation's first obligation to veterans rests with the
rehabilitation of its service-connected wartime disabled, we
nevertheless are also concerned with those federal programs
which have been designed to enhance the educational
opportunities of veterans in general.

T also wish to add that the DAV fully endorses and supports
a str.ng national defense to assure that the United States’
Armed Forces are second to none.

Mr. Chairman, as you know, Title VII of the Department of
pefense Authorization Act, 1985 (Public Law 98-525) established
the "All volunteer Educational Assistance Program” (commonly
called the "New GI Bill") under Chapter 30, Title 38, U.S. Code,
and the "Educational Assistance for Members of the Selected
Reserve” which appeass ir Chapter 106, Title 10, U.S. Code.
Both programs were initiited as three year 'tests to determine
their value as recruitmeat and retention tools for our nation's
Armed Forces and are administered by the Veterans
Administration. The Title 38 educational assistance program is
also funded by the VA, however, the Title 10 program receives
its funding from the Department of Defense.

In addition tc the educational assistance program offered
under Title VII of Public Law 98-~525, the individual branches of
the military may also offer recruits variows "kickers" in order
to enhance recruitment in critical skill arevs or to encourage
longer enlistments. While these supplemental benzfics are also
administered by the VA, the individual branch of service
offering the "kicker" is responsible for its funding.

In order to participate in the Chapter 30 program,
servicemembers who enter active duty for the first time duriang




the period from July 1, 1985 through June 30, 1988 must agree to
a non-refundable $100 per month reduction in pay during the
first 12 months of their service.

Persons who complete a three year tour of active duty
generally receive $300 per month for 36 months and those
individuals who complete two years' active duty and four years'
service in the reserves receive 36 months of entitlement at $250
per month.

Also, under the Chapter 106 program, reservists who
reenlist or extend for a period of not less than six years
during the test period can receive educational benefits of up to
$5,040. The Chapter 106 program, however, does not require a
monetary contribution from the servicemember,

praft Bill

This measure proposes to make the "New BI Bill" permanent
by amending sections 1411(a) (1) (A) and 1412(a) (1) (A) of Title
38, U.S. Code, and Section 2132(a) (1) of Title 10, U.s. Code, by
deleting the currerit June 30, 1988 ending date for the
educational assistance programs established by Title VII of
Public Law 98-525. -

Mr. Chairman, as mentioned in this testimony, as we’l as in -
previous appearances before this Subcommittee and your
counterpart in the Senate, the DAV focuses its efforts primarily
upon those benefits and services earned as a result of a
service-connected disability or death. Consequently, our
membership has not taken a position on the "New GI Bill," nor do
we have an official position on this measure proposing to
continue the "New GI Bill" indefinitely.

Having stated this, I must also say, however, that the DAV
fully recognizes the importance of educational benefits as a
recruitment and retention device for our Armed Forces. We note
that various studies and analysis of .the "New GI Bill" have
shown that it has prompted a marked improvement in recruitment,
resulted in obtaingng high quality recruits in the upper mental
categories and is now considered as the leading reason for
enlistment in the Army.

Mr. Chairman, the great contributions made to this country
by the GI Bills of World War II, Korea, and Vietnam in terms of
educating and training its citizenry, as well as adding to the
Gross National Product and the tax base of nearly every
community in this country, are well known. Based upon the high
percentage of participants currently enrolled in the "New GI
Bill," we believe this educational assistance program will
follow in the footsteps of its predecessors. Therefoxe, we
also believe that the "New GI Bill" will serve as an excellent
"transition mechanism” by enhancing the future employment
opportunities for those individuals who elect to return to
civilian life following their initial period of military service.

This concludes my testimony, Mr. Chairman. I again wish to

thank you for the opportunity to appear here today and will be
pleased to answer any questions you may have at this time.

. .834
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¥r. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

The American Legion is pleased to appear before you today in support of H.R.
1085. This bill would remove the expiration date for educational assistance eli-
P gibility for members of the All-Volunteer Force and Selected Reserve. We believe
: its enactment is essential if the armed services are to continue to meet their re-
cruitment ‘goals during the remainder of this century.

. In this regard, we would like to briefly illuminate the differences that we

. feel exist between the new GI Bi1l and its predecessor. Prior to the enactment of
the new GI Bill educational assistance programs, administcred under title 38, were
designed to provide readjustment assistance to veterans whose educational careers
were interrupted by involuntary service or the threat of such service. Indeed,
the readfustment benefit accrued to most veterans regardless of whether their ser-
vice was through conscription or enlistment. Honorable service for a specific
period during the term of eligibility was the only requirement set by Congress to
receive educational assistance under the old program.

While the new GI Bill is similar in that it provides an educational benefit
and therefore some readjustment value after the service member has been released
from active duty, it is clearly a program to improve the ability of the military
services to attract and retain high-quality recruits. But the differences do not
stop here. This program, unlike its predecessor, is a contributory system in
which the service member-is financially investing in his or her own future. Of
equal importance is that, unlike the universal availability of its predecessor,the
new GI Bill requires that the recruit make a decisicn about future educational plans
at the time of enlistment. In addition, the new GI Bill provides for kfckers or ad-
. ditional monthly benefits for recruits entering certain military career categories,
¢ benefits not available under the Kold system; -

In order to meet.the manpower demands of the armed forces during the remainder
of this century most experts agree that it will be necessary for the military ser-
vices to attract upwards of one half of those eligible to serve. Assuming the con-
verging factors of an ever-dwindling manpower supply in an expanding civiliza job
market and the continuation of the concept of an All Volunteer Force, we are con-
v'lnc:d that the new GI Bi11 is crucial to meeting the manpower needs of the armed
services.

The All Volunteer Force is now 14 years old, and on occasion since the draft
was discontinued the military services have experienced difficulty in meeting their
recruitment goals. Earlier programs to provide contributory educational assistance
had such low participation rates that they served little practical use in attract-
ing high-quality individuals to military service. All the armed services now agree
that the new GI Bill, with {ts overall 58 percent participation rate, has clearly
increased the quality of new recruits - a necessary ingredient to meet the envolv-
ing high technology of today's military service. It has also served as a magnet to
draw-youth from all segments of our society to military service. Therefore, The
American Legion is convinced that.making the new GI Bill permanent is-essential to
gnsure that the services will have access to high quality recruits novw and in the

uture,

Mr. Chairman, that concludes our statement.
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StaTEMENT OF HoN. RoNALD V. DELLUMS

MR, CHAIRMAN:

I DEEPLY APPRECIATE THE OPPORTUNITY TO APPEAR BEFORE YOUR
SGICOMMITTEE TODAY AS YOU ADDRESS THE IMPORTANT PRIORITY OF

VETERANS' EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS.

FIRST, LET ME SAY THAT THE COUNTRY AS A WHOLE AND IN
PARTICULAR THE MORE THAN 43,000 PARTICIPANTS UNDER THE NEW G.I.
BILL THUS FAR OWE YOUR SUBCOMMITTEEZ AND THE CHAIRMAN OF THE FULL
; COMMITTEE, MR. SONNY MONTGOMERY, A TREMENDOUS DEBT OF GRATITUDE.
AGAINST WHAT AT TIMES SEEMED TO BE OVERWHELMING ODDS, IT WAS
CHAIRMAN MONTGOMERY'S UNFAILING DETERMINATION AND DILIGENCE THAT
WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR THIS IMPORTANT EDUCATIONAL BENEFIT HAVING

BECOME LAW.

SINCE PUBLIC LAW 98-525 WAS ENACYTED, IT HAS SHARED THE
DISTINCTION OF MANY OTHER DEoERVING AND PRODUCTIVE PROGRAMS.
UNFORTUNATELY, THAT HAS INCLUDED A RELENTLESS ATTACK FROM THE
REAGAN ADMINISTRATION IN THEIR ATTEMPT TO DISREGARD THE INTENT OF
CONGRESS AND HAVE THE FUNDING FOR THE NEW G.I. BILL CUT OFF, EVEN
BEFORE THE CURRENT THREE-YEAR PROGRAM HAS RUN ITS COURSE. DUE TO
THE PROTECTIVE WATCHFULLNZSS OF CHAIRMAN MONTGOMERY, THESE

.. T ;
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o ATTEMPTS HAVE NOT BEEN SUCCESSFUL AND HE IS TO BE CREDITED WITH

THE SURVIVAL OF THE PROGRAM THUS FAR.

I AM PROUD TO COSPONSOR THIS COMMITTEE'S NEW INITIATIVE,
H.R. 1085, WHICH WOULD MAKE PERMANENT THE PROGRAM V..'ICH AFFORDS

VETERANS THESE EDUCATIONAL READJUSTMENT BENEPFITS.

MR. CHAIRMAN, I SHARE WITH YOU THE DESIRE TO IMPROVE THE
QUALITY OF LIFE FOR OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN. AS CHAIRMAN ‘OF
THE ARMED SERVICES SUBCOMMITTEE ON INSTALLATIONS AND FACILITIES,
I HAVE HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO STUDY THE MILITARY QUALITY OF LIFE
ISSUE FIRSTHAND. IT HAS BEEN MY GOAL, IN REPORTING AN
AUTHORIZATION BILL POR MILITARY CONSTRUCTION EACH YEAR, TO DO
%»VERYTHING POSSIBLE TO PROVIDE FOR BETTER LIVING QUARTERS,
PHYSICAL FITNESS CENTERS, HEALTH CARE AND DAY CARE CENTERS,
RECREATIONAL FACILITIES AND BETTER LIVING CONDITIONS IN GENERAL.

MR. CHAIRMAN, THE TESTIMONY ONITHE NEED FOR THE NEW G.I.
BILL IS ELOQUENT AND THE STATISTICS ARE CONVINCING. THE NEW G.I.
BILL IS A SUCCESS BY ANY STANDARD. THE EDUCATIONAL LEVEL OF
THOSE WHO ARE NOW JOINING THE SERVICE HAS RISEN BECAUSE MANY OF
' THESE NEW RECRUITS ARE CONCERNED ABOUT PURTHERING THEIR EDUCATION
AND THE INCENTIVE OF THE G.I. BILL BRINGS THEM TO THE‘RECRUITER.
THEREFORE, IT IS AN EFFECTIVE RECRUITING TOOL, AND HIGHER QUALITY
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RECRUZITS ARE JOINING., THIS TREND REFLECTS ON THE SERVICES IN
GENERAL, AND THEIR POSITIVE PUBLIC ACCEPTANCE HAS IMPROVED AS

WELL.

BUT MORE THAN THIé, THE NATION DEMONSTRATES ITS COMMITMENT
TO THOSE WHO SERVED IN PROVIDING FOR THE QUALITY OF THE VETERANS
LIPE APTER THEIR SERVICE. VETERANS ARE LARGELY PEOPLE WHO HAVE
SACRIFICED THEIR TRADITIONAL COLLEGE YEARS TO SERVE THEIR
COUNTRY. BUT THE EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS THEY RECEIVE NOW AND
SHOULD CONTINUE TO RECEIVE AFTER SERVICE IS MORE THAN A PAY-BACK.
IT IS A RECOGNIfION OF OUR MOST PRECIOUS NATIONAL RESOURCE: THE

YOUTH OF OUR NATION.

I BELIEVE THAT THE NATION U&DERSTANDS THAT THERE CAN BE NO
MORE EFFECTIVE WAY TO BALANCE THE'BUDGET, LOWER UNEHPLOYHE&T:
FPIGHT CRIME, AND RAISE THE STANDARD OF LIVINé OF OUR CITIZENS
THAN THROUGH EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE TO OUR YOUTH. STUDENT AID
FOR CIVILIANS AND FOR VETERANS REPRESENT~THE GREATEST HOPE FOR
THE IMPROVEMENT OF THE HUMAN CONDITION, THE ENLIGHTENMENT OF OUR
CITIZENRY., IT IS MY HOPE THAT AS WE PROGRESS, WE WILL FURTHER
UNDERSTAND THAT A QUALITY EDUCATION IS THE RIGHT OF THE PEOPLE.

YOUR BILL CfURTHERS THAT CAUSE.

AGAIN, I THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY BEFORE
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YOUR' SUBCOMMITTEE. PLEASE BE ASSURED THAT I WILL DO WHATEVER I
,‘2 ¢ CAN TO ASSIST YOU IN YOUR EFFORTS TO OBTAIN PASSAGE OF THIS
IMPORTANT LEGISLATION.

erlc 240
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Comm{ ttees

8111, I am here today as a representative of more than 57,000 Anerican
citizens dedicated to the support of a strong mil{tary which depends on the
avdhbnlty_and recruitment of young American men and women, I should point
out theZ, uniike many other nil{tary support organfzations, noi. of our members
Is oz active duty with any branch of the armed services, nor fs the Kavy League
an organization restricted to.retired or former members of the mfl{tary, 1In
fact more than 50% of our members have never served in the mi1ftary services,
Primarily, we are ordinary citizens from a1) walks of 1ife who are convinced
that the natfon needs 2 strong, viable, Navy, Marine Corps, Coast Guard and
Nerchant Harfne. Our objective 1s educatfon and motivation ~ to awaken
{nterest, to encourage cooperation and to support all matters which aid and
improve our mar{time capabilitfes.

Putting the bottom 1ine first, the Navy League of the United States
strongly supports the GI b11) and the proposed legislation to make 1t a
permanent program, It {s a good program now and 1t {s hoped that changes will
be incorporated {n the future to sike 1t even better.

I would 11ke to read to you from the 1986-1987 Navy League Resolutions
adapted by the werbership {n July 1986 at our National Convention,

"In order to at.act and retafn the best of our youth to the
armed forces, the Navy League belfeves that service in the

consisting of compet{tive pay rétes, a full program of fringe
benefits, and an attractive retfrement progran,

We consfder the GI 8111 to be a very {mportant fringe benef{t. A fringe
benefit that serves both as a recruftment and 2 readjustment tool.

The GI b11) has been an important {ngredient in attracting highly
qualified high schoo) graduates to serve in the nfl{tary, Havy statistics, for
fnstance, {ndicate that 58% of fts December and January recrufts opted for the
new GI 8111, This figure brings the Kavy cunulative tota) to about 60,000
active duty partfcipants which weans that approximately 43% of a1l recruits
have taken advantage of the new GI B{1) since 1t bacame available, Harine
Corps percentages are similar,

The GI 8111 {5 an Anerfcen Institution, It s an {mportant part of the
aflitary benefit program. For more than 43 years {t has been available to
provide our service personnel with educationa) benefits {n return for honorable
n{iftevy service, During a1l this ik, 1t has given Yiterally nf)lfons of
young Azericans an opportunity ta adfust from nilftary service to successful
and productive civilfan 11fe,

Those who berrow money to pay thefr way through college end uy owitg, Ln an
average, 6,000 - 9,000 dollars., This is Indzed & substantial finascial Lurcen
for anyone right out of college and starting a cureer,

Clearly, today's high cost of a college education {opacts on all but the
wealthy. Colleges and universitfes are experfencing reduced enroliments. And
at the same time, greater numbers of the adtion's youth - those that are
scholastically prepared and motivated ~ «re financially unabie to g0 to
college,

The GI bi1) s also an fnvestment 1n our country's future, Servicemen and
women return to cifvilian J{fe and college more mature, and with a greater
understanding of tle world around them. Usually they are petter students than
they vere before military service, With the {ncreased earnings that come fron
afbetter educatfon, these veterans will more than repay the nation for ‘he cost
of the GI B{MN.

Keep 1n mind that as we end the 1980's and enter the 1990's the

denographics of young people indicate 1t will be harder and harder for the
services to compete with industry for mentally and physically qualified young
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men and women. Last year, then Chief of Naval Operations, Admiral James D.
Watkins, tn a speech before the World Affairs Council reported that the United
States {s racing a downward trend {n demographics.

He cited a Rand Study which found that the 1980 manpower pool of 2.1
mill{on youth will shrink by 20% to 1.7 mill{on by 1990. This means the Armed
Services, so dependent upon quality people, will find it increasingly difficult
to compete for the young people {t needs. Should it become impossible to
attract the nubers needed, the alternative {s a return to conscription to meet
the srmed-services personnel requirements.

By waking the new GI Bi11 a permanent program as well as providing for
adequate compensation and with {ncentives we assure the armed services of
quality personnel who, upon leaving the service, will be financially veiter
able tu obtain a college education. They will then become more pruductive
nenbersstl:f :he work force as has been proven by two generations of recipients
of the BiN.

In closing 1 urge you to seek approval of this legislation. The time to
act is now before the current law expires. In my opinfon, a lengthly delay or
defeat of the legislziion will only cause the nation haram.

Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for peraitting me to appear before your
comni ttee.
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Vvietnam Veterans of America strongly supports HR 1085 to
make permanent the New GI Bill educational assistance programs.
The first resolution passed at the first National Convention of
Vietnam Veturans of America in 1983 is "Be it resolved, that
the Vietnam Veterans of America vow ‘Never again will one

** This statement, from

generation of veterans abandon another.
the Keynote address for the Convention by Congressman David
Bonior, Is our commitment to ensure that those who follow us in
fulfilling their obligation of citizenship through military
service are afforded the opportunity to regain their rightful
place in relation o their peers who chose not to serve. The
New GI Bill educational assistance programs arc important means

of fulfilling our oiligation to assist in the readjustment for

those who serve in vur military forces.

As the newest generation of war veoterans, we appreciate
the benefits of advanced education that were available to us
through the Vietnam Era GI Bill. While the climate in
educational institutions and the country itself may have made
it difficult for some of us to take full advantage of the
benefits available, many of us have received advanced education
that would not have been possible without this assistance. It
has enabled us to begin to take our place as leaders in this

country.

It is very oencouraging that many new recruits are opting

1
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to give up a substantial part of their first year's salary to
participate in this readjustment program. e are concerned,
however, that when the time comes for them to use this vital
assistance the $300 monthly check will be completely {nadequate
to offset the rising cost of advanced educaticn. It is appar-
ent, as happenct with the vietnam Era GI Bill, that these young
people will be fovced, if they have no other sources of income,
to attend the least expensive {nstitutions. We recommend the
military services in briefing recruits on the program include
information on cducation costs. The veterans Admin{stration,
as part of their ecducational assistance, nmust be prepared to
provide Information on additional sources of support for

education.

He also ercourage and support the provision of extra edu-
sation benafits to those who opt 2o train in skills that are of
critical need or are not casily transferable to the

non-military work force.

There are a number of possible improvements in the
prcgram. These are i{mprovements to encourage full
par*ticipation and not necessary changes at this time. The
program as it presently opsrates has the full support of
Vvietnam vetorans of America. These suggestione are clements of

“fine-tuning* that we will also support.

I
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We view the New GI Bill as a veterans readjustment

program. In this time of needed deficit reduction it is
understandable, yet lamentable, that we must ask those who
sacrifice for us to also sacrifice financially for this
program. But since they do sacrifice financially we must
insure that these funds are not lost to their use if they do
not use them for education. .

We recommend:

1. Those "opting in" the program during the first 14 days of
active service be offered the option of $100 per month reduc-
tions in salary for 1 year or $50 per month reductions for 2
years. All others be allowed to "opt in" during the first year
of active duty at $100 per month reduction. This will ensure
that those whose obligation is for 2 years will have paid in

their share before leaving active duty.

Many individuals are entering military service fully aware
of the readjustment benefits of the New GI Bill due to the
efforts of recruiters to inform them of this program. Some of
these, however, do not take advantage of the program due to
financial responsibilities which they have already incurred
including the support of their families. It is our beleif that
the participation of this group will be increased if they have
a lower monthly reduction. Many who have not made up their
mind about paécicipacion in the pruyraims will need more

3
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inférmation and'time to make a decision. They should be given

this extra time to consider this important decision.,

2, Anyone leaviné active gservice before fulfilling their first
enlistment obligation who is granted a general or higher

discharge be reimbursed their full contribution upon discharge.

Due to the rigors of military training some individuals
may prove to be unsuitable for service in the military. There
really is no completely reliable way to determine this suit-
ability before enlistment. Those who opt in the New GI Bill
Program and are unable to complete their responsibility chroubh
no fault of their own should not be penalized by loss of their

contribution,

3. Those who do not use any benefits within five years of
leaving active duty be allowed to be reclaim their full
($1,200) contribution,

Some individuals entering military service are unsure of
their future plans and may not consider advanced education to
be a part of that future. In fact they may find that they do
not need or desire to advance their education after military
service. They may have no need of this readjustment benefit,
They should be allowed after a five year period to reclaim
their contribution if they have not used any of their benefits,

4
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It is our belief the need will exist- and many who may have
opted out if they felt they would forfiet their pay rsaduction
will, in fact, take advantage of the berefits and contribute

substancially to our society through the use of this program.

4. Those who opted in and have served at least ten years
on active duty and have used no GI Bill benefits be permitted
“to transfer those benefits at 1/2 their value to a spouse or

child.

There is a need fu: 2ilitary forces to retain members but
the New GI Bill may be a detriment to this retention because to
be vsed most effectively the service member would need to leave
active duty. The option of passing on some of the benefit to a
spouse or child only encourage participation by potential
careerists and.will ensure that those whose plans change will

be afforded the of sortunity available under the New GI Bill.

5. Military Academy and ROTC graduates be permitted to opt
into the program having their pay reduced by $100 per month for
12 months if they commit to remain on active duty at least 2

years beyond their initial service obligation.

The New GI Bill does not discriminate against those who
have giined education through any other government funded
education programs. Once these individuals have fulfilled

5
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their initial obligation from their education they c“ould be
offered the opportunity to use this program to further their

eduEation.

The New GI Bill for the Reserves and National Guard has
one major flaw which may be detrimental to retention of highly
skilled and educated individuals, The restriction of type of
education and level should be 1ifted for Reserve and National

Guard members.

With a large part of our military medical programs being
transfered to the Guard and Reserve we must offer jncentives to
retain highly skilled and motivated individuals. We can
certainly expect the opportunity to obtain advanced degrees
that will enhance our sgervice delivery to be a boon to
recruitment and retention and to assist the country in
fulfilling its needs for nurses and medical technicians in many

fields.

Since the establishment of the first GI Bill Program after
World War II miliions of America's vetérans, who would not
otherwise have the means, have received advanced education
using this important readjustment program. Those who have
fulfilled their obligation of citizenship through military
service deserve to be afforded that same opportunity today.

6
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opportunity to express our interest, concern and support for

1085.

Thank you for giving vietnam Veterans of America the
HR
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m Joint Commission
- . On Federal Relations

. JC

March 6, 1987

The Honorable Wayna Dowdy, Chairman

Scbcommittee on Education, Training and Paploymeat
Committes on Vaterans' Affairs

U.8. House of Representatives

240 Caanon Bouse Office Building

Washington, D.C. 20513

Dear Mr. Chairman:

In response-to your letter of February 20, community colleges in moat States
ere actively buildizg casiv outreach in working vith Rationsl Cuard end Reserve
units. As your record already indicates, we are making e epacial effort to
tacourege community college egencise {n each State to couvens drive-in conferencee
both to give community college etaff e detsiled briefing on the opportunitise that
the Nontgomary GI Bill offers to fncrease enrollment and to increass dialogus
betveen the campuses and the locel-Guard ‘and Paservs units.

.. In eome Stetes, euch ee North Carolina and Virginia, s strong working
relstionship has already developed batwesn comsunity colleges.and Cusrd and Reserve
units., Ia North Caroliza, for example, tha Stete Departmant of Coamunity Colleges
and the tvo-ysar.collegee met their.target of completing by Jenuary vhat they cell
"drive-in visits" with all Neefonal Guard unite. Thess mestinges sarved to sste-
blish working relationshipe between the colleges and local Guard unite, to help
sasure-that Cuard membars make the bast use of their.Montgomary GI Bill opportunities.
The colleges ere now complating similar mestings vith all Ressrve unite. Similer
netvorking is being dons batveen the cormunity colleges and the Guard end Ressrve
unite in Virginis and South Carolins, among othsr Stetes.

In gengral, closer working reletionehipe are developing repidly between Guard
and Reserve unite and community colleges acrose the country. In the coming veek,
Mack Fleaing and I will be leading drive-in conferences in Denver and Salt Lake to .
prosote euch reletionships. National security, the students and tha collegee ell
benefit becauss the program is drawing growing numbere of Guard and Reserve neabere
iato collage courees that provide the skille the aflitery systeze and the national
economy must have to meet global compatition.

As v teceive more detsiled rep of the program’e progrese from the Statee,
we will ehare them with you. : hank you again for your decisive lesdership on this
vital program.

Frank Mensel
Vice Presideat for Federal Ralations, AACIC
Director of Federal Relazions, ACCT

Piiegd
cc: Hel Miller

A of and Jurior Colle se
wdmmtm oy o c‘m“‘:ﬁ
Sute A o
Annandsis, VA 22000 Washington, 0.C. 20038
{703) 9410770 (202) 233-7080
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WRITTEN COMMI’I'I'EE QUESTIONS AND THEIR RESPONSE

CHAIRMAN Dowpy 10 AR FORCE ASSOCIATION

. 1501 Lo Highway, Arlington, Virginia 222091198  (703) 247-6800
An independent Non Profit Asrospece Organization

How important is it to our Armed Porces to recruit high
quality young people?

The Alr Force can accomplish its mission because it has well
trained, experienced, highly motivated people to operate and
maintain its weapons systems. ,Its abllity to get the mission
done and maintain an effective deterrent force depends on
‘ recruiting and retaining high quality men and women in sufficient
numbers to provide an experienced and combat ready force.

. The Alr Force is a high technology organization. It has

- been this way for a long time, but is getting into higher and
higher technology each year. If we don't recruit high quality
young people, some Of these high technology systems could become
space aged tinker toys. Quality people are the key.

rimearere
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Air Force Sergeants Association

QUESTION: Hew important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality
young people®

RESPONSE: The Alr Force Sorgeants Association believes it is absolutely
imperative that the military services continue to recruit high quality
young men and women. It is a proven fact that recruits in the higher men-
tal categories are more likely to complete their enlistments, thus reducing
the number of recruits needed; are more easily trained, thus reducing the
costs associated with training time and attrition due to failure to pro~
gross through the training cycle; and finally high-quality recruits are
less likely to become involved in crimes, incidences of drug abuse or ina-
bility to conform with military disciplines. The bottom line is high-qual~-
ity recruits coxplete their prescribed enlistment contract without incident
and do their job better.

International Headquarters, P.0. Box 50, Temple Hills, MD 20748 ¢ Pnone: (301) 899-3500
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CHAIRMAN Dowbpy 10 AIR NATI-ONAL GUARD

DEPARTMENTS OF THE ARMY AND THE AIR FORCE
NATIONAL GUARD BUREAU
WASHINGTON, 0.C. 203102500

Question 1: Does an educational assistance incentive attract s

Answver:
ant s

differant kind of recruit from that sttracted by
bonuses? Is it importsnt to your service to have both
availsble?

Educstional assistance has as its primary focus the
accession of quality, goal oriented young men and women into
the broad range of career opportunities within the Air
National Guard. Convarsely, the thrust of the bonus prograas
is somevhat more narrow. They are targeted to increase,
through significant monetary incentives, enlistaents into
specific, well defined wartima required specialties in vhich
we have hiatorically had recruiting shortfalls, If the Air
National Cuard is to-continue to appeal to young men and
women (26 percent of our nev prior service accessions in
Fiscal Year 1986 were femsle) with diverse goala for their
futures, it is clearly in our best interests to be able to
offer both educational benefits and financial indrcements.

Question 2: How are candidates for service informed of the benefita

Ansver:
Snsver.

available to them under the New GI Bill?

The New CI Bill has received extensive publicity in the
media. When queried, more than 60 percent of our new
accessions responded that in their opinion, the New GI Bill
had been publicizad to s great degree. Our experience has
shown that most of our applicants make their initial
inquiries concerning the Air National Guard based on a
conbination of this advertising plua information from a
fviend vho has recently enlisted in the Air National Guard.
W. accrue an additional benefit from this phenomonon.

Quite simply, quality attracts quality. Individusls with
like interests, lifestyles, and goala tend to cluster
together. Enlisting one member of such an informal group
often precipitates similsr interest in his or her
associates. This is hot the word spreads about the “good
deal” in the Air National Cuard., The recruiter is trained
to elicit from an applicant just vhat his or her interests
and goals are. Once this information hss surfaced, the
recruiter is in a position to explain precisely how the Air
National Guard can help in fulfilling those interests and
goals,

Question 3: There are those who assert that educational assistance

Answer:
answer:

benefits are an incentive to leave service., What has
been your experience with this? Do you agree with this
assertion?

The assertion that educational assistance benefits are an
incentive to leave the service is, at the very least, open
to dispute, There should be no doubt that the New GI Bi11 -
is effectively providing the Air National Guard access to
the most wanted young men and women in our country. Once
we have successfully enticed them with these benefits, it
is imperative that the leadership and management in the Adr
National Cuard, and I am talking about officers snd senior
Non-Commissioned Officers (NCOs), provide an environment in
vhich these young men and vomen can mske substantive
contributions, an environment in which their presence is
essentisl. If we can continue to waintain this kind of
envirogment (and in Fiscal Year 1986 we retained 80 percent
of outfirat tern traditional Guardsmen), I s= confident

“thit the concerns implicit in this asaertion will not be

realized.

" 955
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Question 4: How important is it to all of you to attract high quality
young people to wilitary service? What would be the
effect if, in future years, you wvere without an
educational assistance benefit snd unable to bring into
service your current high quality recruits?

Answer:

O
E lc"2-772 0-87-9

Attrscting and recruiting high quality young people for whom
further education is of priwary importance in the attainment
of their long range goals is clearly in the best interests of
the Air National Guard. Every personnel study in this area
underscores one key trait: as s group, high achool graduates
have a higher completinn rate in basic training and in
technical school, perfecrm wore ef€ectively on the job, and
have substantially fewer disciplirary probleas than do non=
graduates., The complexity of modivn weapons systeas and the
increasing involveament of the Air National Cucrd with the
regular Air Force do not allow us to settle for second best
in our personnel accessions. Any diminution of our high

standards will have a long term impact that i{s both 4

predictable and intolerable. Predictable in the sense that
ve know all too woll the high costs incurred when the Armed
Forces are asked to wake do with less than the best.
Intolerable in the sanse of higher elimination rates from
bssic military training and technical school, lessened
productivity resulting from an increase in disciplinary
problens. Given a acenaric in which the present high
quality of our young airmen decreases, we can project a
parallel dacrcase in readiness and effectiveneas.
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RESPONBE:

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION

Division of Govemnmenral Relorions

FEBRUARY 18, 1987 HERARING OM HR 1085

1 believe one of the most important ramifications of the
Naw GI Bill is the development of the really remarkable
relationship that is developing between schools and the
ailitary. Would you comment on this and perhaps shsre
any personal experiences you have had in this regard?

The G.I. Bill, and enlightened federal statutes and
policies, have fostered the development of productive
relationships between the miliLary services and colleges
and universities. These education assistance prograns
have enabled many active duty personnel, as well as
military veterans, to pursue postsecondary education
opportunities. Among such programs are t{010 sponsored
by the University of Maryland’s University College, City
Colleges of Chicago, Big pend (Washington) Comamunity
College, University of the State of New York Regents
College Degreess, Thomas A. zdison College (New Jersey),
and Central Michigan University.

since 1945, the American Council on Education (ACE)
through its Military Evaluations Program and General
Educational Dovolognont (GED) Testing Program has
enabled millions of active duty personnel and veterans
to receive’ formal :ocognlclon of postsecondary~level
learning acquired in the military services in the form
of academic credit and credentials.

since 1972, the Servicemembers Opportunltg Colleges
(50C)--now incorporating approxlnatelx 400 colleges and
universitiss—-have been meeting the educational needs of
nobile servicemen and women. The SOC associate degree
programs for soldiers (Army) and sallors (Navy) are
formal networks of commuriity colleges that enable
enrollees to pursue, uninterrupted, associate degree
prograns from etny military station in the world.
Currently, about 90 percent of those enrolled intend to
acquire associate degrees directly celated to thelr
nilitary jobs. Four-year colleges and universities are
now forming baccalaureate degree networks for soldiers.
SOC sponsors are the American Association of Community
and Junior Colleges (AACJC) and American Association of
State Collegs and Universities (AASCU). Eleven other
ostsecondary education associations and agencles
?lgcluglng ACE) cooperate and subscribe to membership
criteria.

The nation’s armed services have been quite aggressive
in promoting educational advanceament of personnel. The
Army, for example, has announced that in its search for
educational "excellence“ it aims to enroll some 90
percent of its total membership in postsecondary
education prograns in ths years ahead.
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CHAIRMAN DowpY T0 ARMY NATIONAL GUARD

DEPARTMENTS OF THE ARMY AND THE AIR FORCE
NATIONAL GUARD BUREAU
WASHINGTON, 0.€. 203102500

12 AR 1367
Office of Policy and Liafeon

Question 1: Does an educationsl sssistance Encentive attract s
differant kind of recruit from that attracted by
bonuses? Ya it important to your service to have both
available?

Ansver: The New GI Bill attracts soldiers vho either intend to or
are sttending college. This providea the Army National Cuard
vith a source of higher civilian educated aoldiera to meet
the higher technology of equipment and misaion scenariocs,

The enliataent and retention bonuses ara for £i11ing unit or
critical akill shortagas only without regard to college
education. It {s important for the Arny National Guard to
offer varfous different enlistment and retention incentives
to achieve the atrength miesfon.

Question 2: tow are candidates for service informed of the benefita
available to them under the New GI Bi117

Ansver: Federal lav requires that soldiera be notified when eligible
and aign 2 Notice of Basic Eligibility, Additionslly,
recruiters and other personnel routinely fnformm recrufta and
soldiera of their benefita.

Question 3: There are those vho sssert that educational sssisetance
benefits are an incantive to leave service. What has
been your experience with thia? Do you agree with thias
sssertion?

Ansver: The Reserve Componenta® New GI BE1l can.only be used while the
soldier remaina an active meaber of the Selected Reserve,
Thia assertion of leaving doea not apply to the Reserve
Components. The New GI BIll is sn {mportant enliatment snd
retention tool.

Question 4: How fmportant {a it to sll of you to sttract high qualfty
young people to military aervice? that would be the
offect if, in future yeara, you were without an
educationsl asafatance benefit and unable t, bring fns.
aervice your current high quality recrufta?

Ansver: Ae & reflection of the Total Aray, the denand for higher

educated soldiera within the Aray National Guard has
cecalated sharply ir recent years and promises to continue
to do go. A key factor fa the equipwant, training, and
nisaion acenarios of the Totsl Aray are becoming more
sophisticated. As an Integral part o€ the Total Aray, the
soldiera of the Aray National Cuard wmust keep pace with
these changes if they are to meet the challenges of the
future. The Reaerve Componenta’ New GI Bill {s necessary
to attract and provide soldiers to west theae challenges.
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CHAIRMAN DowDY 70 ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES ARMY

ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES ARMY

POF; OFFICY 40X 1860, ARLINGTON, VIRGINIA 21810 (703) 8414900

- orrice or N
CXRCUTIVE: VICE PRESIDENT

Q. UOW IMPORTANT IS IT TO OUR ARMED FORCES TO RECRUIT BIGH
QUALITY YOUNG PEOPLE?

A. On bshalf of the 166,000+ membare of the Association of the
United Ststes Army, I (Major General Robert F. Cocklin, AUS
Ret, Exscutive Vics Precsident, AUSA) am pleased to provide
this response for ths record.

Nothing is mors important to ths Army than its peoplo.

Righ quality psnpls, sccessed as individuals, and infused
regularly through snlfeted- and officer-producing recruiting
prograns, bscome the bsckbone of the Armod Forces which

i provides our nation's defense.

N
4

Bigh quality young psople are:

- more 1ikely to complsts thoir enlistments,
- - demonstrably mora trainabls,
~ less prone to indiscipline.

And, they are more 1likely to grow into ths innovative leaders
and technicians sach Sexvico necds for tomorrowv.

By recruiting high quality young people, the Govornment saves
recruiting, training, aand 08§ funde, which may then be
applied toward other Service necds.

There exists important, inextricable links among educationm,
recruiting and retention. The Army encourages ite soldiers
to wake education a 1ife-long pursuit. Eigh quelity young
people with personal goals, who desirs education and self
izprovement, become relisble, dependsble soldiers and” enhance
unit combat rsadinees. In turn, snhanced unit combat
resdiness onsbles the Army leadership to refine the Army's
conbat force structure and improve its strategic
dsployability.

Despite the forecasted decline in the available pool of
applicants, ss izportant incentives (such as the GI Bill) and
Service needs (such as access to sdequite resources for
recruiting) sre recognized by the Congress and made
permansnt, tho Army and its sister Services will bo in a
battar position to attract high quslity young people to serve
in the nation's Armed Forces.

e
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CHAIRMAN Dowby 10 DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE

DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FCHCL
HEADQUARTERS UNITED STATES AIR FORCK
WASHINGTON, D.C, 203305060

L. Question: Does an educational assistanca incentive attract a
different kind of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? 1g it
important to your gervice to have both avallable?

Answer: There is no doubt that the answel to the first fa:t
of your question is yos. Education benefits are most appealing
to young people who ars goal orionted. Thoy realize the long=
term value of higher education. Oa the other hand there is a
sogment of the youth population who value the need for available
cash for a host of reasons. Our bonus programs are targeted to
critical gkills and have beon vory effective in our efforts to
meet our qualitative and quantitative Tocrulting goals. The
availability of both of these potent recruiting tools has
broadened our potential rocrulting market and are two of the pri-
maly reasons why Air rorce recruiting has been auccessful,

2. ?geltion: How are candidates for service informed of the
benetits available to them under tho Naw GI Bill (¥GIB)?

Answer: New Iacruits are informed of all the bill's benofits
in a aystematic sequance of actions, FPirst, the Air rorce
recruiter briefs the potential recruit and gives him/her a panm-
phlet titled An Air rorce Guide To The New GI 8i11, At the Mili-
tary Bntrance Procoallng Stations tﬁey are required to read a
sories of queationz and answers which deal with the NGIB. A
letter is also sont to the members' parents along with the nGIB
pazphlet. At basic training al) new trainees are briefed
thoroughly on day two of training and given the pamphlet once
again.” On day soven they are given the option to opt in or out
og the program,

3. Question: There are those who assert that educational
assistance benefits are an incontive to leave service. What has
b:on?your experience with this? Do you agree with this asser-
tion

Answer: With the exception of those personnel who, due to
high year of tenure, will be forced to separate from service

leave the Air Porce. Those who leave do so for a varioty of
reasons, Those who choose to stay on with us ara encouraged to
puraue their education. The Air Forca has developed a cocprehen-
sive continuing education program for its personnel with on-base
degree ?rnnting opportunities at all of our major bases. tThe
in-sorvice provisions of both the NGIB and the Vietnam GI Bills
eilcourage our people to take full advantage of thesae’ opportuni-
ties while pursuing aAir Force careers.

4. ggeltion: How i{mportant is it to all of you to attract high
quality young Peo,le to military service? What would be the
effoct if, in future yoars, you were without an educational
assistance benofit and unable to bring into servica your current
high quality recruits?

Answer: It is coemon knowledge that our weapons systems are
undergolng constant change. With each change the degree of coam-
ploxity and sophistication has increased. This fact is egually
true with respect to requirements for their raintenance and
offectivoness. Due to thase facts, the neod for us to recruit
and retain high quality young people is no longer a luxury; it is
an absolute necessity. Our annual surveys of recruits (over
4,000) toll us wh, shey elected to anlist in the Mr rorce. our
latest survey reflv;ts that 63% eniisted "to continue my educa-
tion® as a primary reason vhy they jJoined the Air Force. We
tharefore have no doubt that we would suffer severely in the
future without an effective educational assistance banefit.
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CHAIRMAN DowbpY T0 DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
OFFICE O¢ TWE DEPUTY CHIEF OF STAFK FOR PERSONNEL
WASHINGTON, DC 20310-0300

3uestion: Does an educational assistance incentive attract a
{fferent kind of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is it
jwportant to your service to have both available?

Gen Elton: The Army subscribes to & dual market concept theory
composed of two major sub-markets within the quality youth
populations. These are employment/skill-oriented.and
college-oriented, Whereas both groups have-some common
motivations, such as the desire to serve their councr{. the
emgloymenc-orienced:vouch tend to be mors interested in
job-related benefits. They are interested in learning skills and
also are more likely to view the Army as & permanent ewployer.
Bonuses are highly effective in persuading them to enlist for
four year terms and hard to £i11 skills with long training

eriods. The college-bound youth, on the other hand are more

ikely to be uotivated by deferred benefits, such as the
opportunity to finance their future education. The{ enlist for
tge shortest availsble term and tend to look at military service
in terms of & hiatus from school. The Army.has historically done
well in the employment-oriented segment, but not in the
college-oriented segment. Both are required to weet our
requirements. ‘The Army uses the GI Bill plus the Army College
Fund as a warket expander to cag into the college-oriented
segment. An American Economic Review article concluded that
education benefits are & stronger enlistment incentive for high
quality college-oriented youth than higher pay.

Question: How are candidates for service informed of the
benefits available to them under the New GI Bili?

Gen Elton: GI Bill information provided to potential recruits
begins with national advertising. The Army uses the full range
of broadcast, print and direct mail vehicles to inform young
Americans of cge educational opportunities afforded them by the
GI Bill. Now recruits first get briefed on the GI Bill by the
recruiter. When he gﬁocesses through the Military Entrance
Processing Station (MEPS), he receives a second briefing b¥ a
recruiting guidance counselor as part of his orientation of his
enlistment contract. One part of this orientation is a video
presentation using the Joint Optical Inforwation Network (JOIN)
system. Prior to the recruits return to gccess on active duty, a
letter is sent to the parents informing them of the benefits of
the program. Upon arrival at the Army Reception Statiom, the
recruit receives a final orientation with a wovie, participates
in a question and answer session and makes the dezision to enroll
or disenroll from the Erogran. Education counselors concuct the
briefing at the Reception Stations and are available at every
Army installation to continue the information process.

Question: There are those who assert that ed:cational ausistance
benefits are an incentive to leave service. What has Leen your
experience with this? Do you agree with this assertion?

Gen Elton: The recruit who is truly college-bound would not have
enlisted at all in the absence of educational incentives or for a
longer term-in the first place. However, when they leave active
duty, they do not leave the service, but are transferred to the
Rescrve Components to complete their :=otal of eight years of
wilitary service obligation. The college-bound Kouc who serve
short active duty terms provide urgently needed high quality
manpower .for the Reserve Componernts.

Question: How important is it to all of you to attract high
quality young people to military service?” What would be cgc
effect £, in fucure years, you were without an educational
assistance benefit and unable to bring into service your current
high quality recruits?

r e
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Gan Elton: Military readiness depends on
discipline, and motivation of our young wen and women in uniform.

For the Army, a quality force is a griorlt{lobjectlve.

needs quality soldiers who will per:
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CuHAIRMAN Dowpy 70 DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY

OEPARTMENT OF THE teav
HEADQUARTERS UNITED STATES MA « o e
WASHINCTON DC 202854001

Question: Does an educational assistance incentive attract
a different .ind of recruit from that attractod by bonuses? Is
it important to your service to have both available?

General “Cheatham: Our experience is similar to that described
by General Elton. Generally, we f£ind that thoe GI Bill appeals to
the higher quality applicant wo are seeking. The enlistment
bonus program is a part of cur force management effort. It
provides an incentive that spreads the talents of new accessions
throughout the force to meet our needs. We use thy bonus program
to attract the high quality accessions to the jobs we need them
in, in the months that support our trainirg capability, and for
the terms of enlistment that most effectively invest our training
dollars.

In other words, the GI Blll helps attract a high quality
applicant to the Service while the bonus program focuses them
into areas we need. As such, these two programs complement
rather than cémpete with each other. Using them together, we
were able to achieve an average term of enlistment of 4.4 years
during FY-86 while improving all our quality indicators. It is
very important for us to continue to have both programs avail-
able - to keep all of the tools in our tool kit.

Ouestion: How are candidates for service informed of the
benefits available to them under the New GI Bill?

General Cheatham: The term "GI Bill” has strong name recog-
nition in our country, and is well regarded by the general popula-
tion. We try to use this in our marketing by creating an awareness
that the New GI Bill is available. We do this as part of our
direct maill campaign in letters sent to high school and junior
college students. We have developed posters, and handouts for
our recruiters to take to the school g.idance departments adver-
tising the GI Bill., When the recruiter delivers these, we have
provided him with a2 fact sheet on the program that helps him
brief the guidance personnel on the details that they need to
effectively advise the student. We have Incorporated information
on the GI Bill in our recruiters product knowledge book. This
book is used in the applicant‘'s home, cenerally with his parents,
to answer a variety of questions about the Marine Corps including
education benefits. Finally, recruiting stations send letters to
both the applicant and pareats after enlistment. These letters
welcome the family aboard, and highlight a number of issues; our
policy on drugs, personal behavior, and education. These letters
don't provide all the answers, but do cause the applicant and
parents to ask any questions of our recruiters.

All of this is followed by a presentation at recruit training
where we explain the provisions of the GI Bill to the recruits
and they make their choice. Several members of the Committee and
membors of the staff have had the opportunity to see our presen-
tation at Parris Island.
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uestion: There are those who assert that educational assis-
tance benefits are an incentive to leave service. what has been
your experience with this? po you agree with this assertion?

General Cheatham: That's an ¢asy assertion to make, put when
Viewed, in a broader context 1 don't think it's a signficant
concerns Let me start by saying that I'm not talking about the
Reserve GI Bill - I pelieve there's a general consensus that the
Reserve GI Bill is a superb recruiting and retention program that
is working well.:

When you discuss retention and the New GI Bill, I think you
need to consider two aspectsy first, retention through the first
term and then, retention beyond the first texm. The way the
program isg structured, a Marine must successfully complete a
£irst enlistment to realize the benefit. The value of the benefit,
coupled with his own investmant of $1,200.00 Serves as a powerful
incentive for a Marine to keep at it and be successful. In this
respect, the New GI Bill helps us to keep these high quality
Marines in through their fixst enlistment.

When that first enlistment is done and a Marine is making a
decision to reenlist or get out, the availability of the GI Bill
will obviously be a factor. How important a factor is yet to be
determined because the groups participating haven't gotten to
that decision point. The negative incentive is partially offset
by the option of in-service use and the fact that the benefit ig
not lost if not used at that time. Also, adequate funding of ouc

particular =zgills. This allows us to shape the force by bettcr
matching our people to the requirements,

I think the point that's often overlooked in this discus-
sion is that we need to have at least 50% of our first term
enlisted force get out after their initial enlistnent to
preserve the vigor of the force and to avoid stagnation of the
pramot ion system. Recognizing this fact and realizing that
many of our MOS's do not have the technical skillg that sarry
over to a civilian job, wo need to provide these young Americans
a readjustment benefit to catch -Yem back up with their contem-
poraries.

%uestion: How important is it to all of you to attract high
quality young people to military service? wWhat would be the
effect if, in future years, you wore without an educational
assistance benefit and unable to bring into service your
current high quality recwuits?

General Cheatham: Pecple are the single most important ele-
ment of the Marine Corps - I can't over-emphasize that point.
Our experience through the era of the A11 Volunteer Porce is that
a8 we increased gquality, disciplinary problems and non-expiration
of active gervice attrition went down, while training and retention
improved. In other words quality Marines produced a better, more
combat-ready Marine Corps. It is very important to me that we
maintain the caliber of our young Marines. If a reduction in the
basic benefits package resulted in a marked dacrease in quality,
we would gsee an increase in the kind of problems that eventually
degrade readiness, and cost money.
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CHAIRMAN Dowpy T0 DEpuTY CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS FOR
MANPOWER, PERSONNEL AND TRAINING

DEPUTY CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS
(MANPOWER, PERSONNEL AND TRAINING)

1. Does an educational assistarce incentive attract a different
kind of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is it important
to your service to have both available?

Yes. the Navy's modest enlistment bonus program is primarily
B targeted to upper mental group applicants with a high school
diploma who are willing to obligate for six years in oul nuclear
power program. These young people are particularly intvrested in
the sophisticated technical training the Navy has to offer. The
EY Navy's Sea/College Program is targeted to high gqualily enlistees
who are willing to make an eight year committment Lo the Navy
(two years.active duty and gix years in the Ready Reserve) in
return for assistance in attending college.

Both programs are critical to Navy's needs. Bonus programs
and the GI Bill attract accessions with different obligated
gervice. and provide different kinds of benefits. each of which
are important to our total recruiting effort.

2. How are candidates for service informed of the benefits
available to them under the new GI Bill?

A descriptive panphlet for the new GI Bill along with a
question and answer sheet is provided to all applicants by the -
recruiter. Accompanying this information is a letter from the
recruiting aistrict coamanding officer suggesting a thorough
discussion with parents and/or school guldance counselors prior
to departing for recruit training where the individual is requiread
. to make a decision within the first two weeks on participation in
. the new GI Bill.

At reciuit training. the recruits are given two presenta-
tions. The first one is a thorough discussion on the provisions
of the new GI Bill. The second presentation is a recap of the
first one. followed by an extensive question and answer session.

: The recruits are then required to make their election to remain
enrolled in the GI Bill or to disenroll. A Department of Defense
form (DD 2366) is used to record the recruit's intent. and filed
in the permanent service recorad.

3. There are those who assert that educational assistance bene-
fits are an incentive to leave gervice. What has been your eXper-
ience with this? Do you agree with this assertion?

In January 1984 the Chief of Naval Operations testified that
personnel leaving the Navy continually cited the impending loss of
GI Bil1l1 benefits as one of the prime reasons for their decision.
In the two year period preceding passage of the new GI I°*11 the
lo8s of GI Bill benefits increased froix tenth to fourth ag the
nost important reason for leaving the Navy. Under the new GI Bill
with its conversion provision for Vietnam Era GI Bill eligibles.
there is no longer the compelling reason to leave the service to
use these benefits before the 1989 delimiting date. Also. since
in-service usage ig available under the new GI Bill after two
years of active duty. coupled with ten years after discharge in
which to use the benefits., I do not anticipate a conflict with
nembers desiring to stay in the Navy. My perception. however. is
that transferability would ada impetus to our retention efforts.
Over the years hearings have been held on the igsue of transfer-
ring benefits to dependents with overwhelming support expressed
by our military personnel. oOur Navy retention teams that travel
~hroughout the Fleet have also reported oz X2 popularity of

zansferability. Transferability would be a » sitive retention
incentive.

4. How important is it to all of you to attract high guality
young people to military service? What would be the effect if,
in future years. you were without an educational assistance bene-
f£it and unable to bring into service your current high guality
recruits?

It is extremely important to attract high guality recruits
into the Navy. We have beon very successful in meeting quality
goals for the past five years. This attainment has contribut
significantly to improved fleet readiness.

wo have no data which would demonstrate the impact on
recruiting should we be faced without zn educational assistance
benefit program in the future. We can substantiate. however.
that lower quality recruits result in (1) higher attrition and,
therefore, a requirement for more accessions., (2) higher

) training costs to maintain the ssme level of technical abilicies.
© and (3) nore disciplinary problems.
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' CHAIRMAN Dowby T0 DiSABLED AMERICAN VETERANS
MAR 0 4 1987

DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS
National Service and Legislative Headquarters
. 807 Maine Avenue, SW
Washington, p.C. 20024
(202) S554-3501

March 2, 1987

Honorable Wayne powdy

Chairman

Subcormittee on Education,
Training and Employmeat

House Veterans Affzirs Committee

335 Cannon House Office Building

Washington, p.C. 20515

Dear Chairman Dowdy:

This is in reply to your letter of February 20, 1987,
requesting that I respond to questions which you were unable to
ask during the February 18, 1987, hearing on H.R. 108S.

1. pid you personally use earlier GI pills or did you have
friends or family members who did? pid this opportunity to
further their education help them catch up with their peers
who did not serve in the military?

I did not use the GI pill following ny military gervice in
Vietnam. However, as a sexvice-connected disabled veteran, I
did use my entitlement to vocational rehabilitation as provided
for in Chapter 31, Titles 38, U.S. Code.

I might add, that as a pav National Service Officer, I came
into contact with many veterans who used GI Bill educational
benefits following their service in World War II, Korea and
Vietnam. With very few exceptions, these men and women reported
that the education »~i “vaining they received under the GI pill
greutly assisted them whe.. “hey entared the competitive job
market.

2. If our Armed Forces did not have an educational
assistance benefit to off - gervice candidates, what would
be \the effect on the abi} .y of the military to recruit
high quality young peoples

As you know, recent data reveals that the New GI pill is
the most cost effective means of attracting high quality
recruits. An Army survey also shows that the leading reason
young men and women are enlisting is the educational benefits
afforded them under the New GI pill. Obviously, the elimination
of the New GI Bill educaztional benefits would impair the
military’s ability to recruit and retain high quality young
people.

Trusting that your questions have been answered, I remain,

Sincerely yours,

. bcnorT

ICHA
hssociate National Legislative pirector
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CHAIRMAN Dowby TO ELISTED ASSOCIATION OF THE NATIONAL
GUARD OF THE UNITED STATES

ENLISTED ASSOCIATION OF THE NATIONAL GUARD OF THE UNITED STATES
ONE MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE NW
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001

How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality
young people?

4 look inside & mob.le communications van with its racks of electronic
boxes that operate radio and radar equipment will begin to explain the
dependency on mental quality. Watching maintenance people troubleshooting
a problem on the M~1 Abrams tank with electronic computerized equipzment
will help. Spending a minute in the electronics shop of a military air
bage will soon make you aware of the importance of quality in the
nilitary workplace.

The sophistication of modern weapons systems require understanding
complex theory. It is no longer the world of *lock and load', trigger
squeeze simplicity of bygone days. Today's soldiers, sailors and
airmen are required to maintain and operate advanced technology
weapons in the aoise and confusion of the modern battlefield where
decision and reaction timés Luve been reduced to near-~instantaneous
manuever. One such weapon - the STINGER missle - requires 18 steps
to fire, then the operator must remember to hold his breath for a
second or two to avoid the noxious fumes expended by the fir ng.
Clearly, this is not a task for the slow thinker.

Today's nilitary services are computerized to a degree not even
envisioned twenty years ago. Use of the computer is a daily activity
in almost all military occupations. The drive to reduce reaction tire
in the employzent of offensive and defansive weapons have spawned a
world of black boxes that require extensive training and mastery of
complex theory to maintain. Interpetation of electronic signals is a
new dizension in optical acuity and mental recall. These systems are
only as effective as the hunan nind is able to grasp their secrets.

Education — and the ability to expand the human intelligenc.: - is key

to maintaining the quality of our defense. As technology expands to
provide quicker responses and decision-naking, the demand for the

huzan inteélligence to understand, operate and maintain also increases.
Quality - in people as well as equipment - 18 the key to maintaining

a viable defense capability. We have come 2 long way in making a service
career attractive to people of this caliber. We must maintain the
nomentun and continue to offer the incentives Necessary to attract the
best of our young people into the services. The New GIL Bill has proven
to be one of the best of these incentives. It encourages advanced
education and provides the means whereby it may bo achieved. The quality

Z?)le we seek are attracted by it; it needs to be a permanent incentive
ppogran.

e g/,é Zoteclies

an D. Obernmiller, CMS (Ret)
Executive Director

e e e
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FLEET RESERVE ASSOCIATION

Representing All Enlisted Personnel of the
W.5. NAVY s U.S. MARINE CORPS % U.S. COAST GUARD

1303 New Hampshire A , N.W., Washington, D.C. 20036 s (202) 785-2768

The followiiy is the Fleet Resexve Association's answer to
the question, "How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high quality young people?*

The Fleet Résezve Association believes it is vital chat our
Armed Services recruit the very best among high quality young
Americans because:

® All those recruited should be graduates of high school.
We are not just thinking of the academic kncwledge a
high school graduate possesses. A high school diploma
proves that the individual has the purpose and persis-
tence to achieve a basic goal in 1ife. A high school
graduate is a proven achiever.

e In today's technical world, the Armed Forces are the
leaders in technology and common skills are Lecoming
more complex and the technical skills have become so
advanced that it will take the persons in the upper
mental group categories to perform the skills required
to maintain the state of readiness that our national
defense requires.

e Today's Armed Forces offer almost unlimited training
and education opportunities to those entering the
service, Therefore, it is mandatory that those
recruited have the basic education and learning ability
to absorb this knowledge and apply it in a meaningful
way.

e Today, we are in the All Volunteer Force age. That
means the Services must compete with industry and .
private enterprise. This fact makes recruiting and
training expensive. another factor is the national
demographics, These two factors combined requires that
we recruit the highest quality because in doing so, we
also improve the retention of personnel and thereby
contain the costs of future recruiting and training of
personnel .,
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CHAIRMAN Dowpy T0 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR UNIFORMED
SERVICES

Abdec,, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR UNIFORMED SERVICES
,T £538 HEMPSTEAD WAY
* * SPRINGFIRLD, VIRGINIA 221514094
* TEL. (203) 750-1342
B
Cay, o~ “The Scrvicrmomber's Vout in Governmant”™
b Fscablished 1968

Q: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality youag
people?

A: It is critically important to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality
young people. In fact, vhen considering the issue of combat readiness of our
Armed Forces, the single-most important factor is the quality of the people
vho serve. This fact has been borne out in many ways and is clearly shova in
tests and studies conducted by the Army. These studies shoved that quality
soldiers, those with high school Jiplomas and Armed Forces Qualifying Test
(AFQT) scores placing them in the categories I through IIIA, perform better
as the chart below shows:

COMAAT ARM AFQT CATEGORY
I-IIIA IIiB Iv

r—

Mr_Defenss - Stinger Missile
auccessful engagements 67% 52% 48%

Armor - Rate at which U.S. tank
crews destroyed opposing tanks 7¢tol - 1.5¢t0 1
(NATO ~ Canadian Cup 1981)

Infantry - Rate at which riflezen
would kill opposing infantry 2tol 1tol 1ltol

Armor — Armor Crewmen passing skill
qualification training tests (sqr) 94% 92% 79%

The chart shows significantly higher levels of performance for the high
quality soldier. As 8 result, savings can be achieved in training costs and
training time. More importantly, vhen deployed in combat actions suck as
Grenada, Mves would be saved and the chances of success would be greater.

Further, analysis of indiscipline indicators shows that the quality
soldier is far less likely to be adninistered punishment under the Cocmanders
Article 15, be court martialed, go AWOL or desert, or to commit violent

crimes.

When all of these factors are considerad, high quality young people sre
essential to high quality, combat ready Armed Forces.
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CHAIRMAN Dowpy TO NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF VETERAN PROGRAM
ADMINISTRATORS

National Assoclation of Veterans Program Administrators

Bertie Rowland, Preeident
c/o CaMornia Stale University, Chico
M Chico, Cakiornia 95629-0711
1
QUESTIONS (916) o9s-831

1 believe one of the moat important ramificstions of tha Naw
a1 Bill is tha davalopment of tha raslly ramarksble
ralationzhip that is davaloping-batwesn schools snd ths
military, Would you conment on this and perhaps shars sny
parsonal axpsriances you hasve had in this ragerd?

RESPONSE:

>u<>Z{)

One of the most visible rasponses by the military to the
New Gl Bills is their presence at National and Regional
Meetings. puring 1986, the National Guard provided speakexs
for the Annual Conference of the National Association of
Veterans Program administrators which was held in Denver,
Colorado. The Guard had the opportunity to address about 200
veterans coordinutors from across the country. They
presented an excellent audio-visuzl experience for the group
and emphasized their desire to make the NEW GI BILL a
cooperative effort.

In additizn to the presentation on the NEW OI BILL,
a condensed seminar on leadership, called the wWarrior I
Project, was also demonstrated for the group.

The Army and National Guard were also participants of
the regional meeting of the Alabama Veterans Affairs
Association, both in 1986 and 1987. addressing a different
sector of education, a presentation was also made at the Los
Angeles meeting of the Amarican Association of Junior and
Community Colleges (AACJC) in December. This meeting was
attended by college administrators. .

‘The response to the Army and the Guardsmen by the
educational community has been enthusiastic, and there are
many interesting ideas that have been brought to light. One
such idea is that perhaps community colleges, technical
schools and universities could more fully participate in the

. actual training of individuals fcr military service, thus
addressing some of the duplication of systems batween the
nilitary and civilian schools. An excellent starting point
would he to review the American Council on Education (ACE)
guide to evaluation of military credit, perhaps allowing
colleges to provide more of this specific training for the
military.

The new spirit of cooperation is perhaps a result of the
realization that military service is truely not a divorce
from the civilian sector. The military reserves have
required that cfficers attain a certain leve. of education to
retain their commissions or to be considered for prom~tion.,
This education is a civilian function. 1If the goals of the
militery are to be met, cooperation.and communication with
educational irititutions is mandatory. It should be pointed
out that prior to the gnactment of Chapter 106, there was
little reason for the educational comaunity to work.with

. local reserve units,

A negative factor (the difficulty with the Notico of .
Basic Eligibility) has actually precipitated a greater sense
of "baing a part in the same objectives" between veterans
cocrdinators and reserve units. Both the reserve units and
educational institutions have an interest in the
reservist-student, and often must team up to solve the
eligibility problem-for the Chapter 106 student. A simple
but visible step in this p:ocens}wﬂz the sharing of key

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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telephone numbers in the Pentagon with Veterans Coordinators.,
(Attachment A), When local efforts fail or cannot be
initiated, the school official has access to a person who
will resolve the problem. I have had several occasions to
use the "pentagon connection" to identify a responsible
person at the local level to address a specific problem - and
can happily say that I have met great success.,

The new GI Bills are viewed positively by educational
institutions, For many of our students who require
additional financial support, it is an honorable alternative
for funding., It is fortunate that many of the Veterans
Coordinators from the VCIP era (Vietnam-era Veterans program
- Veterans Cost of Instruction Payments Program) have been
retained by the educational institutions, It is also very
fortunate that the new VETERANS EDUCATION OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM
(VEOP) will go into effect on July 1, 1567, When this
program becomes properly-funded, it will encourage colleges
and universitias tc retain their qualified professional staff
in veterans services. Thelr presence on the campuses will
g:lg to forward the development of the military - civilian

nkage.,

1 am always pleased to have the opportunity to
support the Veterans Affairs Committee, Please contact me if
there is any way in which I can assist you.

- . J

3 SR
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CHAIRMAN DowpY T0 NATIONAL GUARD ASSOCIATION

QUESTIN: How fimportant iz {t to our Armed Forces to recruit
high-quality young people?

GENERAL WEBER: High~quality personnel are a key element {n achieving our
national defense goals. The modern battlefiald we pust prepare for will
be unlike any exporienced {n our nation's military history. Greater
levels of intelligence, skills and leadership capabilities will be
required to survive and win. Preparation time for going into battle will
not be equivalent to previous situations. Therefore, we must meintain
readiness and assure sustainability within our current force.

T camplexity and quantities of ‘modern equipment in the Armed Force,
to include the National Guard and Riserves, require the ability to
understand and work with multiple mxdern technologies, Even baslic equip~
ment has become more complex. Training levels for these technologies and
the wa:l fighting strategies that are in place require high—quality
personnal,

The Natiocnal Guard must maintain a high state of readiness with a
part-time force. The ability to learn skills quickly and retain them
over time with pericdic refresher training is fundamental to the guccess
of the Guard and Reserves, Total Force policies expect the Guard' and
Reserves to be interactive with anmd equivalent to the active components
in educational levels and capabilities, ly high-quality personnel can
assure our readiness capability, the success of the Total Force policy,
and, in turn, the most-effective x]atlonal defensge,

ERIC _72
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CHAIRMAN Dowpy T0 NAVAL RESERVE ASSOCIATION

Naval Reserve Associatfon reply to question posed by Con

er'l %. Yayne Dowdy,
Chatman Veterans Affairs Subcommittee on Education, Training an

Employment,

How fmportant is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality young
people?

The Naval Reserve Association has long recognized the importance of high
quality enlistments into the Naval Reserve Force.

The very nature of the Naval Reserve Force structure which not only provides
hardware equipped squadrons and ships but also furnishes {ndividuals to augment
active force ships and squadrons, has always been hi-tech in nature.

Today the complexity and sophistication of our modern weapons systems place
an ever increxsing demand for higher quality reservists.

The ‘Nava) Reserve essentially operates on a three year qualification
training cycle. This requiresent is driven both by the limited availability of
the individual reservist and by the complex nature of our modern systems. often
fleet training courses must be compressed to accommodate the reservists.
Additfonally, the reservist sust be able to assimilate and retain {nformation
gained in one month for 30 days until the wext training session. Exferience has
demonstrated that only the high quality individual can successfully progress
through this reserve training cycle and attain the required readiness
qualifications.

The future will be even more demanding as newer equipment is assigned to the
Naval Reserve.

It should also be pointed out that most of the Haval Reserve growth which
occurs in the next three years is in the health care field {.e. Corpsman, lab
techs, etc. Obviously then our requirement for high intelligence is also on the
{ncrease.
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CHAIRMAN Dowpy 10 NAVY LEAGUE OF THE UNTTED STATES

TELTPHONE
+AREA CUDE 701, 8261305

NAVY LEAGUE OF THE UNITED STATES

1 OUNDCO 19O

2300 WILSON BOULEVARD
ARLINGTON VIRGINIA 2720«

How important is it to our Armed Frrces to recruit high
quality young peopie?

On behalf of the 57,000 members of the Navy League, I am
Pleased to provide this response for the record.

The Navy Lezgue, in discussions with the Navy, Marine corps
and coast Guard, realizes and roaffirms their Position that
nothing is more importmut to the military than its people,
especially high quality people.. There exist undeniable 1inks
between the quality of an individual entering the military and
the trainability and retainability of that person. Navy, Marine
Corps and Coast Guard figures over <he last two years indicate
that high quality young people are more likely to complete their
enlistments, thereby qualifying for the new GI Bill. They are
iaterested in bettering themselves and are m~ra trainable, not
oniy in their ability to corplete basic trefr..ig, but «lin in
meeting advanced training. In sddition, quaiity recruits, baing '
fore mature, prove to have fewsr d'sciplinary problems which
cause administrative burden, interrupw. training and lover
productivity.

Navy figures confirm that the higher a person gcores on the
Armed Foxces Qualification Tost (AFQT), the mors satisfactorily
he will complete recruit and specialty school training. For
fiscal year 1986, only 88.5% of the recruits entering tne Navy
were in the upper mental groups. This will likely result in
higher attrition ra.es in boot camp and a reduction in the number
of suitable candidates for further schooling. This trend could
have an adverse effect in the future, since th: naval services'
high~tech weapon systems require highly trained intelligent young
men and women to maintain and operate themn.

Despite the forecasted decline in the available pool of
applicants the Navy, Marine Coxps and coast Guird, along with the
other services, will be better able to attract high quality young
people with the availability of the new GI Bill plus continued
emphasis on providing recruiting incentives.

Q
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NATIONAL CAPITAL OFFICE

NON COMMISSIONEOD
OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

225 North Washington Street ¢ Alexandria, Virginia 22314 o (783) 549-0311

Question: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high quality young people?

Answer: It is very important. Eigh quality young F20ple
represent the best financial investment of personnel dollars for
several reasons. Poremost, a high quality recruit is more likely
than a non high school graduate to complete his or her
enlistment. This reduces attrition costs by as much as 38
percent. High quality recruits are statistically less likely to
become discipline problems thus further reducing administrative
support costs. High quality recruits are more receptive to
technical training and retain more of what they learn requiring
less retraining (again a savings in outlays) and are
statistically more proficient in their occupational specialties.
In summary, high quality recruits ara cheaper and more proficient
members of the Armed Forces than their lower mental category
counterparts.
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CHAIRMAN DowpY To OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF
DErFENSE FOR RESERVE AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE MAR'25 1387

WASHINGTON. D ¢, 20301

RESERVE ArFAIng Maxeh 23, 1987

Question: In your testimcny, you state that there was an increase of
8,32] 8ix year enlistments during the £irst fifteen mnths immediately
following enactment of the New GI Bill. You also pointed out that 34,500 more
selected reserve recruits were high school graduates than in fiscal year 1984,
Can you quantify these increases for »e in terrs ci,cost savings associated
with reduced training costs, reduced attrition, and lowered indiscipl’ne?

Answer; It is too soon to determine the relationship betwesn reduced
atttitnion {and thus reduced training costs) and recruit quality due to the New
GI Bill.

Military personnel quality has traditionally been defined in terms of
educational attainment and aptitude test scores. The possession of a high
school diploma is currently the accepted best single predictor of successful
adjustment to the military. For example, the high achool diploma graduate has
had an almost 80-percent chance of caxpleting his/her initial term of service

Attrition contisues to be a costly drain on the efiectiveness and
rexdiness of reserva component units, representing both a serious logs of
trained manpower and a significant expense to train replacements. The
following Table depicts the average cost estimates for recruiting and training
each accession for the reserve oomponents.

N Reserve ts
Average Replacement Costs Per Perscn

Basic  Technical
Recruiting Training Training Total
{\hmy Components* $,2,100 $ 4,879 $ 9,521 § 16,500

3,193 3,126 2,401 - 8,720
Alr Components*v 1,673 4,852 13,660 20,185
Marine Corps 4,000 4,100 4,900 13,000

*Includes Arry Mational Guard and Army Reserve
** Includes Alr Porce Reserve and Alr national Guarg

Cauticn must be used in estismting the effect of a single recruiting
incentive in fulfilling all the accession requirements of the Services.
Educatitnal bunefits provide a major incentive in attracting high-quality
recruits, camplewenting other recruiting resources such as targeted enlistment
and reenlistwent bonuses, enlictment options and advertising funds.

Question: When we were in the field last week, enthusiasn for the New GI
Bill was very high amngst those asgociated with the Guard and Reserves.
Several of the recruits we talked with indicated they Joined the Selected
Reserve because of the Mew GI Bfll. Do YOU Or Ow..2r8 on your staff go out »xl
perscnally meet with recruits in order to get & feol for the izpact of this
and other benefit progrars cn these individuwals?

Ansser: All the Services report that the New GI Bill is very popular
with thelr membars. I am also aware of the Popularity of the New GI Bfll
progran azong reservists from trip reports made by Mr. Montgomery which have
been shared with my staff.

Questicn: We have 'imd :eport: that, atithe unit 5;wol, t.hc:: ozppe:lx:tto ba
some confusion regard ¢ligibility requirements for Chapter N
action is being taken 123 yuug office to ersure that these misunderstandings
are cleared p?

Answers We agree that there havs been administrative problers associated
with tha New GI Bill progran for mexbers of the Selected Reserve. As with
many new programs, start-up preblems aroge. Iast Rovezber, our office issued
clarifying guidelines ana developed a comprehensive checklist for the Sarvices
to use in determining officer and enlisted eligibility. (We produced a
controlied version of the Notice of Basic Eligibility (iGE) form to ensure
progzam inteqrity.) Additionally, the Department of pefense las developed new
data elements and assoclated reporting systems in order to better mnage the
Program. He have issued various memoranda to the Services emphasizing quality

) trol meusures and we meet reqularly with Service regresentat.ves, the
h> -erant Mninistration, and tle Defense Manpower Data Center to discuss
E l C blems agaociated with continued progran inteqrity and efficiency.

B
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OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF OEFENSE
RESIRVE FORCES POLICY BOARD
WASHINGTON. O €. 20301.7300

Question: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high quality young people?

Answer: The Reserve components are essential elements of the
Total Force upon which our country relies for national
security. The challenge of achieving and maintaining
required readiness of National Guard and Reserve units
requires qualified men and women ~ men and women who
can be trained and are physically f£it to fight and
win. The Montgomery GI Bill is an important inciatise
in attaining qualified young men and women to serve in
the Reserve Conponents. On March 11, 1987, the last
quarterly meeting, the Reserve Porces Policy
Board passed the following resolution:

*Oour natiopal security policy to maintain peace
through deterrence and to protect U.S. interests
anywhetre in the world requires a strong, fully-manned
armed forces consisting of active and Reserve Com-
ponent personnel. The Montgomery GI Bill of 1984 is
an excellent recruiting aid which must become a
permanent incentive. It is a "Nation Strengthening"
educational incentive which provides ambitious,
patriotic young men and women financial support
necessary for increasing college expensis.

This bill will help the Armed Forces through the
vicissitudes of the difficult recruiting years, which
are predicted in the early 1990's accoraing to
current demographic analyses.

This Board, as the "principal adviser to the
Secretary of Defense on matters relating to the
Reserve Components" (10 USC 175(c)), strongly urges
the Congress to support this bill and make it
permanent law."
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BOB HORAN, ASSOCIATE LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR
PARALYZED VETERANS OF AMERICA

March 5, 1987

Honorable Wayne Dowdy

U.S. House of Representatives
Committee on Veterans' Affairs
335 Cannon House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear fhairman Dowdy:

Thank you isr your letter dated February 20, 1987. I have reviewed your
questions and ° v are my answers.

Question 1) Did you personally use earlier GI Bills or did you have friends
or family members who did? Did this opportunity to further their education
help them catch up with their peers who did not serve in the military?

Ansver 1) Yes, I personally used the GI Bill (Chapter 34) and Vocational
Rehabilitation (Chapter 31) and also had quite a few of my friends that did.
Additionally alot of my friends and others, who did not serve in the military,
furthered their education while I served in the United States Army in Vietnam.
Upon my arrival back into the civilian workforce, it vas clearly evident that
prospective employers wanted individuals with either work related experience
or the appropriate education within their respective area. I learned very
quickly that my friends had over a two year headstart on me, so I decided to
utilize my educationsl opportunity available through the VA to catch up, and
even pass in some cases, my non-veteran counterparts. This :ducation, a
college degree, led to my becoming employed by the State in a very good :ob,
suited to me and my education.

Question 2) If our Armed Forces did not have an educational assistance
benefit to offer service candidates, what would be the effect on the ability
of the military to recruit high quality young people?

Answer 2) 1 personally think, as it has been brought out in hearings and
testimony, that the majority (90%) of the young recruits joining are hagh
school graduates, up from approximately 50 percent in 1980, and a good
majority of those joining state that the educational assistance benefits 1s
the reason for them signing up. If it had not been for the educational
benefits, I would have not joined the Army.

Sincerely yours,

R st

Bob Moran
Associate Legislative Director

3H/ef
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CHAIRMAN Dowpy T0 RESERVE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF THE
UNITED STATES

Reserve Officers Association
of the United States

THE PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION REPRESENTING ALL M1 ITARY OFFICERS .
ARMY % NAVY % AIR FORGE % MARINE CORPS % COAST GUARD % PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE % NOAA

Question: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high quality young people?

Gen. Hultman: The Reserve Officers Associaticn believes that it
is most desirable to have high quality young people manning our
Armed Forces. The reaso ; behind this belief are many.

In the first place, it costs approximately $10,000 to recruit
a service wmember. Statistics show that the upper mental category
recruit is much more likely to complete his term of service than
is a lower mental category recruit. The Army estimates that
without the GI Bill there would be an annual rcduction of
approximately 6,000 highschool graduates in the upper mental
categories. This in turn would increase attrition by 1,400
losses, at a cost in excess of $25 million when you factor in the
retraining cost of replacements for those who do not complete
their term of service. -

In addition, high quality recruits are easier to train and
are quicker to learn how to use the equipment associated with
their military specialty. This in term reduces wear and tear and
brings down training and unit operational costs.

Another decided benefit in having high quality recruits is
the reduction in disciplinary problems. With the increased
percentage of Mental Category I to IIIA personnel in the force
structure, AWOL, desertion and other indiscipline rates have
taken a dramatic nose dive.

All of these factors mentioned support the conclusion that we
are able to have a stronger national defense if the services are
manned by high quality soldiers, sailors and airmen.

The New GI Bill helps to recruit the quality gersonnel that
the services need. The Reserve Officers Association supports HR
1085, which, when enacted, will make permanent the New GI Bill.

O
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For God and Covntry

1) Did you personally use earljer Gl Bills or did you have
friends or family members who did? Did this opportunity to
further their education help them catch up with their p:ers who
did not serve in the military?

| have numerous friends and colleagues who received both
undergraduate and graduate degrees ynder the Vietnam Era Gl
Bill. There is no question that this provided a decided
opportunity for them to maintain educat ional parity with their
non-veteran peers.

2) If our Armed Forces did not have an educational
assistance benefit to offer service candidates, what wou!d be the
effect on the ability of the military to recruit high quality
young people?

It is my opinion that the effect would be disastrous.
Moreover, the "baby bust®, coupled with the increasingly high
technical skills needed by all services, the effect would be even
more severe in the years ahead.

280
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CHAIRMAN Dowpy 10 U.S. CoaST GUARD

USquxvnenl Commancant gfngmoczum4m|
of Transportanen Unrted States Coast Guard Pno‘l’nm G-cC
United States 1 (202) 366-4280
CoostGuord /i

U.S. COAST GUARD RESPONSES
TO QUESTIONS REGARDING H.R. 1085
FROM THE
SUBCOMMITTIE ON EODUCATION, TRAINING, AND EMPLOYMENT
HOUSE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS®' APFAIRS

1. Does an educational incentive attract a different kind of
recruit froam that attracted by bonusea? Is it isportant to your
service tc¢ have both available?

Yes. Recruits tend to fall into two categories: the college
oriented and the employment oriented. Those in the former
category are more attracted hy educational incentives and the
latter by bonuses. It is important to have both because they
tend to appeal to different groups of people ands in.the case of
the Coast Guard, each has a specific purpose. The educational
incentives provided by the New G.I. Bill are design~d to attract
individuals of high quality into tde service. We 2 the
Selective Reenlistment Bonus as a targetted incentive designed to
manage and shape those individuals once they are in the work
force.

2. How are candidatcs for service informed of the benefita
available to thea under the New G.I. Bill?

Coast Guard recruiters are knowledgeable about New G.I. Bill
benefits. They make potential recruits aware of the education
benefits available to them as part of the overall compensation
package for which they are eligible. Individuals are given a
briefing on the New G.I. Bill during the first week of Recruit
Training or Officer Candidate School, and again during the second
week of training, when they are required to sign their allotment
lorms for the prograa.

3. There are those who assert that gducational asaistance
benefits are an incentive to leave the service. What has been
your exparience with this? 1> you agree with this assertion?

The Coast Guard's only axperlience in this area hau been with
active duty personnel eligible for vietnam-Era G.I. Bill. oOuring
the early 1980's individuals in this category indicated that they
would have to leave the service to make maximum use of their
education benefits, which expire in December 1989. However, the
passage of the Now G.I. 8ill, with its option to allow Vietnam-
Era G.I. Bill eligibles to convert their benefits to the new bill
on 1 January 1990, negated that argurent.

The primary purpose of G.I. Bill educational assistance benefits
is to help militacy personnel readjust to civilian life after
their separation from military service. However, that should not
be construed to mean that the availability of such benefits
serves as an incentive to leave the service.

It is too soon to determine if the New G.I. Bill benefits will be
an incentive for individuals to leave the service. Participants
will not have the opportunity to use such benefits until July
1987 at the earliest. Howovers it is possible that New G.I. 8ill
benefits could be an incentive to leave the service for
individuals who made contributions to the program and then later
decided that they did not wish to participate. Bxisting
regulations prohibit granting a refund of New G.I. Bill
contributions for any reascn. Therefore, participants may leave
the service because the benefits are available to them and are
more lucrative out of service than in gervice This is pure
conjecture, however. We may wish to revisit this issue after a
track record on the use of New G.I. Bill benefits has been
established.

Enclosure
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4. How important is it to all of you to attract high quality
Young people to military service? What would be the effect, if
in future years, you were without an edscational assistance
benefit and unable to bring into service your current high
quality recruits?

Improving employment opportunities and a declining youth
population make current recruiting efforts for all of the
military services an exceedingly challenging task. Therefore,
the New G.I. Bill is beccming even more vital as a recruiting
tool.

If, in future years, the services were to be without an
educational assistance benefit and unable to bring high quality
recruits into the service, the armed services would either be
forced to return to a draft or would be required to recruit
individuals of a lesser o lity who would be unable to cope with
the increased complexitic of natienal defense. The disastrous
ramifications of such a situation are obvicus. Recruiting high
quality individuals into the military service is not only
important but imperative to our country's defense.
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CuAIRMAN Dowpy 1o U.S. MARINE CORPS

Question: Does an educational assistance incentive attract
a differcnt kind of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is
it important to your service to have both available?

General Cheatham: Our experience is similar to that described
by General Elton. Generally, we find that the GI Bill appeals to
the higher quality applicant we are seeking. The enlistment
bonus program is a part of our force management effort. It
provides an incentive that spreads the tulents of new accessions
throughout the force to meet our needs. We use the bonus progran
to attract the high quality accessions to the jobs we need them
in, in the months that support our training capability, and for
the terms of enlistment that most effectively invest our training
dollars.

In other words, the GI Bill helps attract a high quality
applicant to the Service while the bonus program focuses then
into areas we need. As such, these two programs complexent
rather than compete with each other. Using them together, we
were able to achieve an average term of enlistment of L.k years
during FY-86 while improving all our quality indicators. It is
very important for us to continue to have both programs avail-
able - to keep all of the tools in our tool kit.

Question: How are candidates for service informed of the
beneflits available to them under the New GI Bill?

General Cheatham: The term "GI Bill" has strong name recog-
nition in our country, and is well regarded by the general popula~-
tion. We try to use this in our marketing by creating an awareness
that the New GI Bill is available. We do this as part of our
direct mail campaign in letters sent to high school and junior
col)ege students. We have developed posters, and handouts for
our recruiters to take to the school guidance departments adver-
tising the GI Bill. When the recruiter delivers these, ve have
provided him with a fact sheet on the progran that helps hinm
brief the guidance personnel on the details that they need to
effectively advise the student. We have incorporated informtion
on the GI Bill in our recruiters product knowledge book. This
book is used in the applicant's home, generally with his parents,
to answer a variety of questions about the Marine Corps including
education benefits, Finally, recruiting stations send letters to
both the applicant and parents after enlistment. These lstters
welcome the farily aboard, and highlight a number of issues; our
policy on drugs, personal behavior, and education. These letters
don't provide all the answers, but do cause the applicant and
parents to ask any questions of our recruiters.

All of this is followed by a presentation at recruit training
vhere we explain the provisions of the GI Bill to the recruits
and they make thair choice. Several members of the Committee and
members of the staff have had the opportunity to see our Jresen-
tation &t Parris Island.
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Question: There are those who assert that educational [:3:1:3 .28
tance benefits are an incentive to leave service. What has heen
your experience with this? Do you agree with this assertion?

General Cheatham: That's an easy assertion to make, but when
vieved, in a broader context I don't think it's a signficant
concern. Let me start by saying that I'm not talking about the
Reserve GI Bill - I believe there's a general concensus that the
Reserve GI Bill is a superb recruiting and retention progran that
is working well.

When you discuse retention and the Kew GI Bill, I think you
need to consider two aspects; first, retention through the first
tern and then, reteation beyond the first term. The way the
progran is structured, a Marine must successfully conplete a
first enlistment to realize the benefit. The value of the benefit,
coupled with his own investment of $1,200.00 serves as a powerful
incentive for a Marine to keep at it and be successful. In this
respect, the New GI B{1ll helps us to keep these high quality
Marines in through their first enlistment.

When that first enlistment {s cone and a Marine is making a
decision to reenlist or get out, the availability of the GI Bfll
will obviously be & factor. How important a factor is yet to be
determined because the groups participating have.'t gotten to
that decision point. The negative incentive ig partially offset
by the option of in-service use and the fact that he benefit is
not lost if not used at that time, Also, adequate funding of our
Selective Reenlistment Bonus program, allows us to further reduce
any negative incentive by attracting and retaining Harines with
particular skills. This allows us to shape the force by better
matehing our people to the requirements.

I think the point that's often overlooked in this discus-
sion i8 that ve need to have at least 50% of our first term
enlisted force get out after their initial enlistment to
preserve the vigor of the force and to avoid stagnation of the
promotion system. Recognizing this fact and realizing that
many of our MIS's do not have the technical skills that carry
over to a civilian job, we need to provide these young Americans
& readjustment benefit to cateh them back up with their contem-
poraries.

Question: How important is it to all of you to attract high
quality young people to military service? What would be the
effect if, in future years, you were without an educational
assistance benefit and unable to bring into service your
current high quality recruits?

General Cheatham: People are the single most important ele-
ment of the Marine Corps - I can't over-emphasize that point.

Our experience through the ere of the All Voluntear Force is that
cs we increased quality, disciplinary problems and non-EAS attri-
tion went down, while training and retention improved. In other
vords qualily Marines produced & better, more combat~ready Marine
Corps. It is very important to me that we maintain the caliber
of our young Marines. If a reduction in the basic benefits
package resulted in a marked decrease in quality, we would see
an increase in the kind of problems that eventually degrade

‘ readiness, and cost money.
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Oftfice of the Washington OC 20420
Adminlstrator
of Veterans Alfaies

Veterans

Administration

Q. 1. When we wrote the New GI Bill, we included as the first
purpose for Chapter 30 the following: "To provide a new educa-
tional assistance program to assist in the readjustment of mem-
bers of the Armed Forces to civilian life after their separa-
tion from military service..."

In your view, is the Congressional intent clear that the
New GI Bill is, first and foremost, a readjustment benefit?

A. 1. Although readjustment is among the stated purposes of the
New GI Bill, the VA tradltlonallg has funded education progranms
aimed at providing readjustment benefits to comscripted war-tine
veterans. The New GI Bill's basic benefits, as well as the
kickers, are used by DOD as a recruitment tool. Recruitment
tools, including the previous peace-time education benefits
progranm, traditionally have been funded by DOD.

Q. 2. I can't stress strongly enough thc importance of a
swooth, efficient inplementation of the Chapter 30 and 106
prograns. As I understand it, the proposed regulations have
not yet been published and the Interagency agree.ent h.s not
b;en gonpleted. When can we expect action to be completed eon
these? )

A.2. Executive Order 12291 requires that before publisihing no-
tices of proposed rulemaking or final rules, agencies must sub-
mit them to the Director of the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) fo=- review. The VA finished drafting regulations to im-
plement chapter 30 on May 19, 1986. They were immediately sent
to OM3 for review.

OMB subjected these regulations to a lengthy review. Althourh
menbers of my staif ang other employees of the VA worked with
OMB to secure the release of the regulations for publication,
the review process is not yet complete. We estimate that pro-
posed regulations will be put..shed within a few months. The
proposed regulations will not implement the portion of Public
Law 99-576 which added more types of training to chapter 30.
Regulations implementing that portion of PL 99-576 which ap-
plies to chapter 30 will appear at a later date.

The VA finished dra“ting regulations to implement chapter 106
on February 3, 1986, over thirteen nonths ago. Usually the
Departacnt of Defense develops regulations to implement title
10, U. S. Code. Since chapter 106 is a part of that title, it
is necessary that we cbtain the concurrence of the Department
of Defense and the Coest Guard before publishing the proposed
regulations.

They have been 1greed to by the Department of Defense and
currently are being reviewed by the Coast Guard. Following
approval’ there, they must be reviewed by OMB.

We are well aware of the difficulties inherent in administering
an education program without implementing regulations. We will
strive to publish proposed regulations for t’.is program as soon
as all the agencies involved have agreed on heir contents.

Let me just add that we do have published and distributed to
the field stations circulars and other directives that assist
in the administration of the New GI Bill programs.

As to the interagency agreement, the National Oceanic and Atzos-
pheric Administration (NOAA) in the Department of Commerce and
the Public Health Service (PHS) in the Department of Health and
Human Services have concurred $n the agreement which the VA pre-
pared. However, the Department .f Defense, the Department of
Transportation, and Treasury have requested changes which we

are now considering.
LT
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CHAIRMAN Dowpy To VETERANS oF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED

STATES

VVE’I‘ERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED STATES

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR

Question #1 — D14 you personslly use esrlier GI Bills or did you have
friends or family members who d1d?..00000.D1d this oppoctunity to further
their edgcnuon help them cstch tp with their peers vhn did not serve in the
ailitary

Response #1 - Yes, I and several members of xy {amily hove taken
advantags of past CI educational progrems. With respe.t to the impsct ths GI
3111 has had on carecr advancement, I can best sddress vy ow" alstory. Upon
.completing high school in 1966 I enlisted in the US Kav) whes: I gerved for

four years. . The majority of my frieads, howevsr, went directly into college.
‘Upon returning home thess individuals were alteady emharking oo their
“rsspective careers where as I was only fnvolved in the inftisl planning

stage. While they were already beginning their professional csreers, I was

Just berely initiating the educatfonal process which would allow me to even
consider one of my own. -

Konetheless; I did enter into & course of study which I persued through
the years. However, what was initially only s discrepancy in the level of -
educationsl gchievement between =y friends and I at that tiee was fyrther
compounded by & steadily widening gulf in economic sod social ststus. They
bad, as it were, srrived whess a3 I' was still strugglicg. to gol wuderway.

Fortunately, than“s to the Vietman-¥ra GI Bill, I was provided with the
economic means to achievs my educstional goals. This cducational schievement
eventurlly lead to xy also being sble to emhark on & professiozal cgreer. It
is very clesr to me tkat without the Vistman-Era GI Bill, I would not be in
the position today to respond to a congressional query, of no small
importsnce, in the capacity as Assistant Director of the Nstional Legislative
Services of the Veterans of Foreign Wars. In this rsgard, I would also point
out that the entire VFW National Legislative professionsl staff sttended
college under the Vietman-Xra GI Bill.

But 88 to wiwther I’ve actually caught up with wy peers, it is very
hard to ssy. Certainly in terms of professional gnd dent plish N
I have st least drswn abreast of quite a nusber cf thew. But I aiso reslize
that the five year jusp that they had ~) me in getting started in their
professions has allowed them to gather additionsl expertise in there
respective occupations along with hsving schieved s significently grester
degree of economic security. In other words, I believe had I gone directly
into college and then straight to work, without first Laving ssrved in the
sraed forcss, my career might now be further along and I would certsinly have
aore money in the benk.

Of one thing I ax certain, however, without the Vietsman-Ers I Bi11, I
would not be where I am today.

Question #2 ~ If our Armed Forces did not have educstionsl assistance
benefit to offer service candidates, what would be the effect on the ability
of the ailitary to recruit high quality young people?

Response #2 — As vas stated in our written testinony, the VIV is
° conv!nca_h

t the New GI B1l1 is dollar for dollar the most cost effective
metns of resruitmant now in existence. The information gathsred oo this
progranm leaves ao doubt that the New GI Bill is directly responsible for
dranstic gains in militsry recruitment and reteation. This is allowing our
nation to maintain snd feprovs its military strecgth lavels for both sctive
duty snd ressrve forces without ieplementing = "draft.”

n support of our » the stmy bis indicated that the New GI
Bill 1s & stronger enlistment incentive for high qusility, college orfentated
youth than higher pay. The sray has also geid that 30% of the high quaility
male high school gradustes rated education benefits zs the single most
ieportant resson for enlisting. Prrthersore, an evon higher percentsge rated
tha New GI Bill as an importast ressoa for enlisting, this {s supported by
participation rates now in excess of 80%. Finslly the srwy has indicated that
43% of it's igh quaility recruits would not havs Joined without the GI B111
pluv Aray Collegs Fund. In sunsation, it 18 our view that 1f the CI B111
Educational Assistance Benefit was slimdnated, tha impsct oo srmed forcas
recruitment would be sevarly dstrimentsl esd that our all volunteer grued
forcss would be put in jeopardy. (g
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